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Established in 1994, the China Development Bank (hereinafter referred to as CDB or the Bank) is
a state-funded and state-owned development finance institution. As an independent legal entity
directly overseen by the State Council, it is dedicated to supporting China’s economic development
in key industries and under-developed sectors.

To anchor its mission of supporting national development and delivering a better life for the
people, CDB aligns its business focus with China’'s major medium- and long-term economic
development strategies. Leveraging its unrivalled position as a leading bank for medium- and
long-term financing and comprehensive financial services, it mobilises economic resources and
channels them towards eight key areas: (1) Socioeconomic development, such as infrastructure,
basic industries, pillar industries, public services and management; (2) Urbanisation, urban-
rural integration, and balanced regional development; (3) Programmes essential for national
competitiveness, including the transformation, upgrading, and restructuring of traditional industries,
energy conservation, environmental protection, advanced equipment manufacturing; (4) Public
welfare, including affordable housing, poverty alleviation, student loans, and inclusive finance; (5)
Areas of strategic importance, including science and technology, culture, and people-to-people
exchange; (6) The Belt and Road Initiative (BRI) and other international cooperation programmes
in industrial capacity, equipment manufacturing, infrastructure connectivity, energy and resources,
and for Chinese enterprises to “go global”; (7) Initiatives in support of development and economic
and financial reforms; (8) Other areas encouraged by national development strategies and policies.

Placing a strong premium on reform and innovation and tapping into its strengths as a development
finance institution, CDB keeps closely to national development strategies, operates on market
principles with the backing of sovereign credit, and ensures principal safety and modest profitability.
Its vigor, influence and risk resilience has been growing continuously, putting it on track to become
a world-class development finance institution and a steady source of support for China’s economic
and social development.
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The Board of Directors and Executive Management of CDB confirm that the information in this Annual
Report contains no false records, misleading statements or material omission; they and each of them
assume joint and several liability as to the authenticity, accuracy and completeness of this report.

The Board of Directors reviewed and approved this report at its first meeting in the 2019 financial year (the
calendar year as adopted by the Bank) on April 25, 2019.

The Bank’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 are prepared in accordance
with Chinese Accounting Standards and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).
PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP has audited these financial statements in according with Chinese
and international standards of auditing, and has issued an unqualified auditor’s report with respect thereto.
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CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK (Abbreviated as CDB)
Zhao Huan

RMB421.248 billion

No.18, Fuxingmennei Street, Xicheng District, Beijing
100031

86-10-6830 6688

86-10-6830 6699

www.cdb.com.cn
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(B4, ARM101Z7TE B 4 tL Billion RMB or %)

%Eﬁ;ssets 16,179.8 15,959.3 14,340.5 12,619.7 10,317.0
ﬁiﬁfiﬁkﬁ%ﬁances, Gross 11,678.9 11,036.8 10,318.1 9,206.9 7,941.6
ﬁo?—%e%ﬁfming Loan Ratio 0.92% 0.70% 0.88% 0.81% 0.65%
ﬁliﬁfﬁior Loan Losses to Total Loans 4.37% 3.57% 4.11% 3.71% 3.43%
%gl|ﬁfiabi|ities 14,879.1 14,718.8 13,177.8 11,549.4 9,636.2
Ee%t@iﬁ%«flssued 9,108.4 8,446.6 7,898.5 7,359.5 6,353.6
igfﬁ;g%% 1,300.7 1,240.5 1,162.7 1,070.3 680.8
?azgiglﬁiquacy Ratio 11.81% 11.57% 11.57% 10.81% 11.88%
ﬁjugﬁom 112.1 113.6 109.7 102.8 97.7
Eueliﬁffgs\t Income 182.9 180.3 136.1 158.4 178.7
;Feitl?‘l:ﬁ}?:r:&:\feige Assets 0.70% 0.75% 0.81% 0.90% 1.06%
B sy 8.82% 9.45% 9.82% 11.74% 15.63%

Return On Average Shareholders’ Equity

E RERERE (BRITFIN REAOUSEIEREFRETPECLYSTHAENY R, BRFEFIRAN, A RTRABTASEH
AR MARTHIRR.

2. ERAPISER NG EERAZRERERBERLES(BFURTEAETERE (RT))EREMEUHE, 204ERXETE
REBERES(RURTEAZEREEMA)VEHEXMNETE. BEFRAN AEERESFERAT EREXEKIE
¥WAhEHOE,

Note 1: All the financial data and indicators in the annual report (excluding appendices) are prepared in accordance with Chinese Accounting
Standards and, unless otherwise specified, the consolidated data of the Bank and its subsidiaries, denominated in RMB.

Note 2: The capital adequacy ratio in the above table since 2015 has been calculated in accordance with relevant regulations including the
Provisional Rule on Capital Management of Commercial Banks issued by the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission
(CBIRC), while the capital adequacy ratio of 2014 was calculated in accordance with the Rule on Capital Adequacy Ratio Management of
Commercial Banks published by the CBIRC. Unless otherwise stated, the capital adequacy ratio is a consolidated figure.
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Outstanding Loan Balance: Breakdown by Industry
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Outstanding Loan Balance: Breakdown by Geography

B B %

N

B X 42.57
Eastern

B hEBBER 18.29
Central
R X 30.32
Western

B F®iEHX 6.57
Northeastern
KB IS X 2.25

Outside the Chinese Mainland

| TS 7.28
Railways

B A 16.14
Highways

0 oBn 8.23
Electric Power
N ERNR 11.35
Public Infrastructure
- X BE 27.40
Urban Renewal

B AR MEET 10.13
Strategic Emerging Industries
Hith 19.47
Others

2018F R T AR M &5FHAR S 6
Renminbi Bonds Issued in 2018: Breakdown by Maturity

BB %

-
TN

B 28 (—E8MUT, &—%) 15.79
Short-term Bonds (under 1 year, inclusive)

W AR (—EHEREH AHF) 42.41
Intermediate-term Bonds (1 to 5 years, inclusive)
KB (AEHETEH. & +F) 39.00
Long-term Bonds (5 to 10 years, inclusive)

W BKHA(+FEULE) 2.80

Super Long-term Bonds (over 10 years)
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2019 BARROMIBE XRETFHBEFERARMRENENOM2F LEEHRREGEE
BRATAMEREBEEMN25F, RE2019F, ARRTBEUIEFFHATERFEHSEXEENES,
ARANEMEXREPRESREBRARSE EHRPRATELR P EHRVHLARES BRRSS
FRERR BHRSHEMNEHMNE, BHERSRUTHULE . § RSKEFR, BHED, HECH,
TUEE BAERSHARAMNCHREFRSERKBHEE, MRS RT P EARJFEMZL70REF

In 2018, China started to implement the roadmap adopted at the 19th CPC National Congress, celebrated the 40th anniversary
of its reform and opening-up policy, embarked on the path of high quality development, and launched all-out efforts to tackle
the three tough challenges of major risks, poverty, and pollution. Under the strong leadership of the CPC Central Committee
with Comrade Xi Jinping at the core, CDB stayed true to its founding mission, aligned its operations with the new development
philosophy, and facilitated supply-side structural reform to boost China’s high quality development.

Over the year, we put the Party’s political building first and exercised strict Party discipline to ensure good governance
of the Bank. With political building on the top of the agenda, we upheld the authority of political discipline and regulations;
required Party members to maintain political integrity, think in big-picture terms, follow the leadership core, and keep in alignment
with the central Party leadership; enhanced confidence in the path, theory, system, and culture of socialism with Chinese
characteristics; and made sure that Party members obey the Central Committee and uphold its authority and centralised, unified
leadership. In an effort to implement the overall plan for Party building in the new era, we made sure the Party's leadership is
present throughout our corporate governance and business management. All measures aimed at enhancing Party discipline
were taken to a good effect. Making continuous efforts to build the Party through theory, we encouraged Party members to
gain a thorough understanding of the Party Constitution, Party rules and regulations, and General Secretary Xi Jinping’'s major
policy addresses, and ensured their conduct is up to the Party’'s standard. We promoted the study of the Xi Jinping Thought
on Socialism with Chinese Characteristics for a New Era and the guidelines of the 19th CPC National Congress, making these
theories well understood and a compass for action. We improved the conduct of Party members and enforced Party discipline
by implementing the eight-point frugality code to combat formalism and bureaucracy, and strengthening accountability in
oversight and discipline enforcement to better supervise positions that are prone to corruption risks and continuously improve
Party members’ conduct. Following the standards of excellence for Party officials in the new era, we developed a contingent of
competent and professional officials with Party loyalty, moral integrity, and a sense of responsibility.

In 2018, we focused on the most outstanding challenges to support the national endeavour to control major risks,
eradicate poverty, and treat pollution. We acted on the strategic decision of the CPC Central Committee on winning the
battle against major financial risks. Keenly aware that risks do not discriminate between persons and all are responsible for risk
management, we put in enormous efforts to ensure risk prevention is built in our consciousness, rules and methods, so that
our Bank, with strong defenses against risk, would continue to grow healthily and sustainably. We increased our knowledge and
capacity in market operations and explored new ideas and ways for promoting social and economic development with market-
based solutions. To deliver the national programme for precision poverty alleviation, we provided institutional, financing, and
intellectual support for poor regions; supported provincial relocation programmes, county-level infrastructure programmes,
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village industrial programmes, and disbursed student loans. Over the year, we issued RMB266.8 billion loans for precision
poverty alleviation projects in 1,118 poor counties. We facilitated poverty alleviation partnerships between China’s west and east
by holding events to build connections between over 290 businesses. We also took a package of measures to support our own
partner counties in poor regions, issuing a total of RMB1.2 billion loans for precision poverty reduction in four places, which
lifted 290,000 people out of poverty. A strong supporter of pollution prevention and treatment, we firmly believe that a good
environment is an invaluable asset and joined the fight against air, water, and soil pollution. Our balance of green credit was
over RMB1.9 trillion, the largest among Chinese banks. Using innovative models, we issued a total of RMB25 billion green bonds
and USD500 million and EURT billion international green bonds, which channeled financial resources toward environmental
protection and encouraged the development of green bonds in China.

In keeping with our mandate as a development finance institution, we made new efforts in delivering national
development strategies. As a lead financial institution for economic growth, we supported priority areas and major programmes
and projects, issuing RMB217.5 billion loans to developing a new model of urbanisation and RMB1.3 trillion loans to priority
areas such as the Yangtze River Economic Belt, Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Coordinated Development, and Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macau Greater Bay, and put to effective use the BRI special lending scheme worth RMB250 billion equivalent. Dedicated to
bolstering development where it is most needed, we fought poverty and made a difference in people’s lives, issuing RMB698
billion loans to the renovation of shanty towns. By the end of 2018, we had helped improve housing conditions for more than
23 million people. We supported programmes in elderly care, education, and healthcare to reinforce the social safetynet. To
play a leading role in counter-cyclical regulation, we used medium- and long-term investment and financing to support the
implementation of macro-economic policies, providing over RMB3 trillion financing for the real economy over the whole year,
including an additional RMB633.7 billion loans.

Our efforts over the year were widely recognised. For 13 consecutive years, we have been the recipient of “People’s Social
Responsibility Award” from people.cn; we were named by the Financial News and the Institute of Finance and Banking of
the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences as the Best Bank of the Year for Promoting High Quality Development; and China
Comment named CDB one of the Ten Most Valued Financial Brands over 40 Years of Reform and Opening. We owe our
achievements to the strong leadership of the CPC Central Committee and the State Council and the support of governments at
all levels, ministries, institutional stakeholders, clients, and friends from different sectors. In particular, our entire staff should be
commended for their grit and bravery. To each and every one of you, | extend my heartfelt gratitude.

The year 2019 marks the 25th anniversary of the founding of CDB. Looking back, we have stayed our course in supporting
national development and improving people’s life, and blazed a trail for development finance to flourish under Chinese
conditions. Looking ahead, CDB will keep to the Xi Jinping Thought on Socialism with Chinese Characteristics for a New Era,
implement the strategies and plans of the CPC Central Committee and the State Council, and move forward steadily. We will
continue to uphold the new philosophy on development, promote high quality development of the economy, and facilitate supply-
side structural reforms, market reforms, and greater openness. With courage, innovation, commitment and professionalism, we
will continue to support national strategies through development finance and celebrate the 70th anniversary of the founding of
the People’s Republic with new progress.

. 19
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In 2018, CDB stayed prudent and proactive and supported China’s high quality development by facilitating supply-side structural
reform, contributing to the tackling of three major challenges of major risks, poverty, and pollution, and improving our own
operations and risk management. New progress was made on all fronts. At the end of 2018, our total asset was RMB16.2 trillion,
balance of loans RMB11.68 trillion, net profit RMB112.1 billion, capital adequacy ratio 11.81%, and NPL ratio 0.92%, an end-of-
year figure lower than 1% for the 14th consecutive year.

Stepping up support for the real economy. We used our resources more effectively to play a counter-cyclical role, with
our medium- and long-term loans increasing by another RMB741.8 billion, up by 23% year-on-year. To give real support to
infrastructure, basic industries, and pillar industries, we prioritised major state projects and focused on shoring up the weak links
in infrastructure projects, disbursing RMB72.9 billion loans to the railway sector and RMB63 billion loans to water projects. We
were a strong supporter of private businesses, setting up a special lending scheme of RMB100 billion in November 2018 and
disbursed RMB8.7 billion in the first month alone.

Encouraging innovation to add new impetus to the economy. We believe in the importance of high quality development of the
manufacturing sector and scientific and technological innovation, initiating the “investment+loan options” model which benefited
45 enterprises engaging in technological innovation. To invigorate the green economy and combat air, water, and soil pollution,
we issued RMB342.8 billion green loans. To promote balanced development between regions, we supported the strategies for
Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Coordinated Development, Yangtze River Economic Belt, Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area,
and the development of the Xiongan New Area up to high standards.

Tailoring our measures to eliminate poverty. We kept to the approach of providing institutional, funding, and intellectual
support to fight poverty. Believing that helping the extremely poor regions is critical for the battle against poverty, we issued
RMB41.1 billion loans to six regions in Tibet, Xinjiang, Gansu Province, Sichuan Province, and Yunnan Province, all of which
were extremely poor. As part of our intensified financing support, we provided RMB61.8 billion loans for rural infrastructure and
RMB28.7 billion student loans. To strengthen intellectual support, we produced advisory reports on fighting poverty and held
various kinds of training sessions for officials working in this field. Our efforts helped to grow the capacity of poor regions for
sustainable development.

Serving as the main financing channel for government-subsidised affordable housing. Based on a clear-eyed assessment
of our own capabilities, we worked within the framework of law and regulations to provide financing for the renovation of shanty
towns, issuing RMB698 billion loans throughout the year. We made sure that the renovation and settlement plans for the shanty
areas met local conditions and issued over 65% of the renovation loans to our priority regions, i.e. the central, western, and
northeastern parts of the country. We made active efforts to finance housing rental programmes and was authorised to issue
China’s first public rental housing ABS product to the tune of RMB10 billion.
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Pushing forward BRI cooperation for mutual benefit. Under the BRI special lending scheme of RMB250 billion equivalent, we
made an equivalent of RMB466.5 billion loan commitments. We worked for steady progress on major international cooperation
projects by creating financing models and methods that are open, transparent, and consistent with international rules. To build
global partnerships for financial cooperation, we took the lead in establishing China-Arab Countries Interbank Association and
China-Africa Interbank Association. To pursue intellectual cooperation, we engaged in international academic exchange and
think tank cooperation and supported multilateral and bilateral exchange, training and scholarships under the BRI.

Preventing and controlling risks in a holistic way. At the macro level, we laid out a three-year plan and annual plans for
forestalling and defusing major risks to guide systematic actions. In the most important areas for risk prevention, we carried
out targeted inspections and improved monitoring and early-warning. To enhance compliance management and anti-money
laundering efforts, we created 30 internal control and compliance rules to flesh out the management system. In the process of
implementing our internal audit rules, we completed the audit of 279 items. Risk prevention was also enhanced for key projects
as we continued to recover loans in accordance with law as an increasingly important way of NPLs disposal.

Improving operational management. Following a cycle-neutral financing policy, we issued RMB1.84 trillion financial bonds over
the year. As an innovative bank, we pioneered the flexible bidding issuance mechanism in China, offering RMB35 billion financial
bonds on Bond Connect and RMB14 billion on stock exchanges. Our comprehensive financial services grew stronger, as we
actively promoted the coordinated development of the Bank and subsidiaries. With stronger IT support, we made breakthroughs
in data management and innovative applications. Thanks to improved operational support capability, we made a total settlement
revenue of RMB1.608 billion for the whole year.

In 2019, the People’s Republic of China will celebrate its 70th anniversary. This is a crucial year for completing the building of a
moderately prosperous society in all respects and realising the first centenary goal. This year, the 25-year-old CDB will continue
to be a stronger supporter of China’s high quality development. We will keep in mind our founding mission, make focused and
targeted efforts to boost high quality development of the economy, facilitate supply-side structural reform, contribute to the battle
against the three challenges of major risks, poverty, and pollution, and play our role in bringing about steady growth, supporting
reform, promoting structural adjustment, and delivering a better life for the people, while putting up stronger defenses against risks.
As a development finance institution, CDB will take on new tasks to promote healthy development of the economy and society and
make new contributions as we deliver our mandate to support national development and improve people’s well-being.
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BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

RARBROTEECHESRRE(EFERSRINMESSETHON BERLSE282S) FEE. ZNEERE I
MESBREIR.

The Bank’s supervisors are appointed by the State Council according to the State Council’s Provisional Regulations on the Board of Supervisors
of Key State-owned Financial Institutions and other relevant laws and regulations and they report to the State Council.

EF. ARAEEERATR

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE MA
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

B EEK WTES 3 19634128 20184118
Zhao Huan Chairman, Executive Director M December 1963 November 2018
Mz A BEEK WiTES 3 1958%05H 20124108
Zheng Zhijie Vice Chairman, Executive Director M May 1958 October 2012
BEE WITES 3 19624F09H 2017€E108
Zhou Qingyu Executive Director M September 1962 October 2017
EER MEES = 19624127 20174108
Lian Weiliang Government Agency Director M December 1962 October 2017
SRR BEES 3 1958££06 5 20174108
Shi Yaobin Government Agency Director M June 1958 October 2017
R MEES 5 19674£02H 20174108

Li Chenggang Government Agency Director M February 1967 October 2017
K MEES E:S 2017€108
Zhang Xiaohui Government Agency Director F October 2017
MR BiNEE 3 19594 12H 20154058
Mi Jingping Equity Director M December 1959 May 2015

X & BANESR 3 1969406 A 20174108
Liu Xiangdong Equity Director M June 1969 October 2017
kAR BANESR % 19664035 20174108
Zhang Shenghui Equity Director M March 1966 October 2017
EER BNES 3 19694045 20174108
Chu Aiwu Equity Director M April 1969 October 2017
ToRE BRES % 19644E04H 201806 8
Bian Ronghua Equity Director M April 1964 June 2018

k B BiNESR 3 1968406 5 2019401 8
Zhang Yong Equity Director M June 1968 January 2019
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BREEERRA
EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

K2R (RN L 19584E058 20124E10 8
Zheng Zhijie President M May 1958 October 2012
BAEE EIEFR S 3 19624098 20164E07 B
Zhou Qingyu Executive Vice President M September 1962 July 2016

KB K EIESR S 3 19644104 20134094
Zhang Xuguang Executive Vice President M October 1964 September 2013
REF Lo IERE A K 3 1962508 H 20194018
Song Xianping Chief Inspector of Discipline Inspection and Supervision M August 1962 January 2019
5 % EIEER S 2 19674118 2018404 8

Ma Xin Executive Vice President M November 1967 April 2018

X % EIEERS % 19674024 20184E04 5

Liu Jin Executive Vice President M February 1967 April 2018
[ ] 2 1962407 5 2008%:12 8
Chen Min Secretary of the Board of Directors M July 1962 December 2008

EERE ZIE N
CHANGES TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

ZATEFEI0BFEE =R WHNBIHRBRRESRE, BREEATEEK ATEF. &
—REWHWBIHRBRESE, TREBELRTRNESE. £

Bt RBBEATRNES,

HIRBAFEEETESEK WOTES. TENACHFEETETRNES.
ZANTERER0BFFE RS WHINBIHRBRESZE, DR, NEBER

TEEL2018FEE=

HRTK.

S A
A=

TEER20185F %
WHIGBE FFRBR

IAE EXRDHBE2018F4F . 2019F3A AHEEATEITK. EaEH2019F1 B AFHEEATLESRIE.

As discussed and approved at the third meeting of the Board of Directors in 2018 and confirmed by the CBIRC, Zhao Huan was appointed
as chairman and executive director of the Bank and Zhang Yong as an equity director. As discussed and approved at the first meeting of the
Board of Directors in 2018 and confirmed by the CBIRC, Bian Ronghua was appointed as an equity director.

Hu Huaibang no longer served as chairman and executive director of the Bank. Li Shaogang no longer served as an equity director.

As discussed and approved at the second meeting of the Board of Directors in 2018 and confirmed by the CBIRC, Ma Xin and Liu Jin were
appointed as executive vice presidents of the Bank.

Wang Yongsheng and Cai Dong no longer served as executive vice presidents starting from April 2018 and March 2019 respectively. Wang
Yungui no longer served as secretary of the CPC discipline inspection commission starting from January 2019.
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ANNUAL REMUNERATION

AOHFHHERETERTRELENEMARTAFTERRE. RRFMEEFE ATXTURM. SR AROCHT
AHE SREMNFHEASEIERERFHEAATIR AT MAFHEREN. RIS ERERFHEAHTIE.
RBREFAVIRARAENFHHERL, KITETMARRAEFMOEIE EEFMEETHERE.

ARAFHERE, REFRXTFRURCARTAFHEHEREZFXER, B2015FE, ATEEK. TKEHEMARTA
FM AR ERCPREBAVARAFMERGTNENAT, FHENSREELRET . KUEFNETHHMEN, 8F
REERETEBIILABHREARTAERBARAEHFEEMNGRINERETRERRIN. ATATAFHARIZEFE R
ZEHNBEE RXATEEFSAEZTESFHEASHFERESTSHIWMAE REERTERINBTEREFFELRTST
B 77 Mk L ATIREE .

RIFMERE. ATHFMRATHREBAIRMNBEME THEMERANBRMUREMEXIE BFEIR X,
R M RE. FEARE. CVFESLE ATRE " UREH. MGEX, WIMNEERES NRTEQAF M5
B> BRI, RETOLAE B o EALE, RASCIF M EIRKT, AR EFMAVRRARER ., XTS5 INH L AL RER
NAEARIBHHRRE, BREELARES EAEFRE. K. THMNEFRE, F UL B ENSRELMLLA 3%
BARIHHRETZA. ALRAE, SHHRBINKEDERRKAIXNELAFEZE KRELAFERRIN, Z2RER
TEBIIHAERREE ATM012EFEARTRIGVFS FREE-FETRLSHN—ELLOTRELVES &
RITEBRERITWHTRL.

The Bank’s remuneration plan is formulated and approved by competent state authorities in line with business profitability and staffing
changes. Positions and performance are the two determining factors in this plan. The total compensation for a department is set in line with its
performance evaluation; the compensation for an individual staff member reflects the performance evaluation results of the individual and his/

her department. Following the Guide on Reforming the Remuneration Plans of State-owned Enterprises, CDB will continue to deepen the reform
of its remuneration policy to establish a sustainable remuneration system.

Remuneration for Principal Members of Senior Management. As required by the central authorities in the reform of the remuneration
system for the principal members of senior management of central SOEs, since 2015, the remuneration policy for the chairman, president,
and other members of executive management of the Bank is kept in strict compliance with the Provisional Standards for the Remuneration of
Leading Members of Senior Management of Financial Institutions Overseen by Central Authorities. Comprising an annual base salary, an annual
performance-based salary, and term incentives, their salaries are calculated in accordance with the base figure and performance evaluation
results released by the competent state authorities every year. Their remuneration plan must first be adopted by the CPC committee in the
Bank and then presented to the Committee on Human Resources and Remuneration of the Board of Directors for review and approval. It is
kept on record by the competent state authorities and disclosed on the official website of the Bank.

Remuneration for the Staff. Remuneration for the staff refers to all payments and expenditures in exchange for the services provided by the staff;
these include salaries, bonuses, allowances and benefits, social insurance, housing provident funds, and annuity. The compensation level is mainly
determined by the position while bonuses are subject to performance. This remuneration policy aims to be competitive in the industry and fair for
staff members across the Bank’s various lines of business. This policy has been undergoing continued reform and improvement to be more effective
in providing incentives and restraints. The Bank joins local government’s social insurance schemes to provide coverage in basic pension, healthcare,
unemployment, workplace injuries, and maternity, contributing monthly to the premium payment in accordance with the threshold and percentage
mandated by local authorities. Local social security departments are legally bound to make pension payments to our staff members after their
retirement. In addition to the basic pension, CDB, approved and put on record by competent state authorities, set up annuities for its staff in 2012
and holds back a certain percentage of the total salaries of the previous year for planned payments during retirement.

RIEHR
STAFF

BE2018FERAITHBRTIIS07A K98 27T% M A THAAREIUN LR, 6667 RATHBEMRERULER.
At the end of 2018, CDB had a staff of 9,507, of whom 98.27% held a bachelor’s degree or higher and 66.67% a master's degree or higher.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

#&* ¥ Zhao Huan
BEEK HTES

Chairman, Executive Director

=z 7  Zheng Zhijie

BlEREK HTES

Vice Chairman, Executive Director

FEliE&E Zhou Qingyu
HITES

Executive Director
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ZE4R  Lian Weiliang
MEEE

Government Agency Director

SRR Shi Yaobin

MEEE

Government Agency Director

ZH$N Li Chenggang
NEES

Government Agency Director

HEEE  Zhang Xiaohui

MEEE

Government Agency Director
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MZE  MiJingping

BNES
Equity Director

X@% Liu Xiangdong

BANESE
Equity Director

4<%  Zhang Shenghui

B ES
Equity Director

fiEZH Chu Aiwu

BREE
Equity Director

5<% Bian Ronghua

RIRES
Equity Director

i & Zhang Yong
BARESE
Equity Director
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2z Zheng Zhijie
7

President
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AiEE Zhou Qingyu

BT
Executive Vice President

MEY Zhang Xuguang

K
Executive Vice President
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RFFE Song Xianping

LRI EAEK
Chief Inspector of Discipline Inspection and Supervision

O Rk MaXin

BIfTK
Executive Vice President

x % Liudin

EIERRS
Executive Vice President

f& E Chen Min

EREWB

Secretary of the Board of Directors
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OVERVIEW

ATERBARSHAVHE SE(ERTRETER), FAEASGEIEEIHR E0HET hBEE. AHH
BHRSRIENEH,

HEARAKRAEEZRS A | A
Committee on Strategic Development §$K . Jlluﬁ-gx
and Investment Management Board of Directors | : Board of Supervisors

HItZRS

Audit Committee

=5 4T £t T (B2 :
REERERS ESREER
Risk Management Committee Executive Management

KR FEHERS
Committee on Related Party
Transaction Control

AESFMZERS
Committee on Human Resources
and Remuneration
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SR T AR B ARLE.
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RAREHERE. ATETREULVPRELZNASTNRRIESAER, 2018FATEIT(ERTLRTE
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TENTAEFIERR,
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Modeled on the system of modern financial institutions, CDB follows its Articles of Association and puts in place a corporate governance
system that ensures accountability and coordination and balance between different functions.

Strengthening CPC leadership and corporate governance. CDB underlines the leadership of the Communist Party of China in all aspects of
its corporate governance and ensures effective corporate governance in its day-to-day operations. Following Xi Jinping Thought on Socialism
with Chinese Characteristics for a New Era, the Bank strengthens the CPC’s leadership across the spectrum of its business to promote good
governance in the Bank; placing strong importance on political awareness, we exercise strong political discipline and follow closely political
rules to ensure all our work is carried out in the right political direction. We encourage the study of Xi Jinping Thought on Socialism with
Chinese Characteristics for a New Era and the guiding principles put forward at the 19th CPC National Congress; require our staff to maintain
political integrity, think in big-picture terms, follow the leadership core, and keep in alignment; enhance their confidence in the path, theory,
system, and culture of socialism with Chinese characteristics; and make sure that the authority and centralised, unified leadership of the
Central Committee is upheld. We follow the Party’s leadership in human resources management and build a team of talents, and consistently
carry out political inspection tours across the bank and develop long-standing mechanisms for supervising the officials.

Improving corporate governance mechanisms. CDB continuously improves its corporate governance system and operational efficiency
in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations, its Articles of Association, and the various rules of procedures. The Board of Directors
operates and exercises its powers in a lawful, rules-based, independent, and effective way and makes well-informed decisions; the special
committees in the Board have their responsibilities clearly defined and advise the board; the corporate democratic system centered on the
employee’s congress is continuously improved.

Improving corporate governance system. CDB is one of the first financial institutions overseen by the central authorities to put the CPC'’s
leadership and Party building in its Articles of Association, which was amended in 2018 and dedicates a special chapter to “Party committee”,
laying out more concrete plans for Party building. Amendments were made to the Rules of Procedures of the Board of Directors, the Committee
on Strategic Development and Investment Management, and the Committee on Human Resources and Remuneration; the Plan for Authorisation
of the President (Executive Management) by the Board of Directors was formulated. These efforts led to more robust procedures and methods
for deliberations and review and a stronger corporate governance system.

RERIFHR

SHAREHOLDERS
B E2018FRATRERIFHE RN A LLHERANT %

CDB's shareholders and their shareholdings by the end of 2018 are shown as follows:

R ZRATR FH R & LE
Shareholder % of Total
T B 9

Ministry of Finance 36.54%
Rl & AARELE 24 689
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. Dese
AR AT A R KL S o7 19%
Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. e
EHSREESEES 1.59%
National Council for Social Security Fund D
&it N

Total 100.00%

BB A E SR AMAR], RER T EM BT MBRBRGEE. WEREESETENEIOREREST.

FRLCERATRTALDRKE(PEARKTNEADE)AERHARINERTRA LS, RI\EESHRFN, U
RPARARERKENEFER SRSV TEEAANFMNBTEARAAXS, XUEFSRA~RERE.

BREMRAFSERFTELDRHREFE(TEARKMEADEZ)HEZFINLCEEREARINFRRAELS, TENE
BRSNE . BN B EE RRRANURASIAEE RATHE.

TEHSREESEESESEHSRERESNERSENMS.
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The Ministry of Finance (MOF) is a macro-regulation body under the State Council responsible for managing fiscal revenue and expenditure,
formulating fiscal and tax policies, and exercising fiscal supervision.

Central Huijin Investment is a wholly state-owned limited liability company incorporated in accordance with the Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China. As authorised by the State Council, it represents the government as an investor in key state-owned financial institutions, and
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, seeks to preserve and increase the value of state-owed financial assets.

Buttonwood Investment Holding Company is a limited liability company incorporated in accordance with the Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China. It is solely funded by the State Administration of Foreign Exchange, investing in domestic and overseas projects, equities,
debts, funds, and loans and engaging in entrusted asset management and investment management.

The National Council for Social Security Fund is the operational arm of the National Social Security Fund.

EESEEBR
OPERATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

RERESHRMENC(ERFRRTER), ATEESHISREFTAN. SESEHTER (FEEK). 42BEEEM
6ERMEE, BRATEEFKRRRIER, BEFTKARZAERE HTEFTEHE. BR BZAX. BAEE. BEEFH
ExARAEZ MEB. F5B. ARRTRERKIBVBEARTAELE S B4R LBER . FHM. KRR, KNE
EHRFREMER, 8 BRTF. VAR KES BHER. TRE KB EFZWE . KR,

20184, ATTEERBFHRIKFETELSER, MMRESRUBELEMEMMNE, INITHF KB RE, FETELT
RIE, RMTRRAASSREENFKE, EMIERSHHRE. RN 2FBAEEIIWOR, HIUBIL2018FEM &
WE. 2018FEEEITH. 2017FEMEFRE . £RMHRF LTI, 2018-2020F AAEEM Y. aMNEENE. H&
BEANE . XKEXSHEENE AMEHEERNE. ANHEITEEFSLINRMAT, BNRERTLSEE.

As mandated by the Articles of Association approved by the State Council, the Board of Directors has 13 members: three executive directors
(the chairman included), four government agency directors and six equity directors. The incumbent chairman is Zhao Huan, and vice chairman
Zheng Zhijie; the three executive directors are Zhao Huan, Zheng Zhijie, and Zhou Qingyu; the government agency directors are each
appointed by the National Development and Reform Commission (NDRC), the MOF, the Ministry of Commerce, and the People’s Bank of

China. They are Lian Weiliang, Shi Yaobin, Li Chenggang, and Zhang Xiaohui. The shareholders appoint Mi Jingping, Liu Xiangdong, Zhang
Shenghui, Chu Aiwu, Bian Ronghua, and Zhang Yong as equity directors. Chen Min is the Secretary of the Board.

In 2018, the Board continued to guide the Bank in moving forward steadily. With a focus on supporting supply-side reform and the three
national goals of tackling major risks, poverty, and pollution, the Board delivered new results in strengthening corporate governance. At the
six meetings convened during the year, the directors considered and adopted 54 proposals, including the financial budget and business
operational plan for 2018, the financial statements for 2017, financial bond issuance plans, capital management plans for 2018-2020, rules for
compliance management, consolidated supervision, related party transactions, and internal control, internal audit charter, thus providing strong
guidance for the operation of CDB.

ATEESTREBEARNKAETEZAS FITERAS NREEZAS XEKXFRHZERS . AZS5FMERSF
SMENZERR. FENZRSRBEFZHENTRIE, @ EFSRETLURAAM T IFHATRE HEEFSNR,

BEARMBAERZERS, TEATEWUATKPLREBNEEEERR, REVSFERW, AFTEEREFE
ZEN RADNEHTEANRMIFTEETERL YRSEXREBBEANEEBRETHR DESFRHBKRE
WE. 2018F, ATHMARMBAAEEZRASRAAAK VEEXEREARKBE, £FBFIWAR. fiREH
WAIT2018EEMEHE . 2018FRLE M. SRGBEFLTITY. RREENE SITEASHEREFITLE,
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HHERS TEATHZABETERERNTERS P KAETAWMNEER I, 155, K8 ZRMIT
MAEETTE, EEMFNIIMBHRITNMEIE RESMBETNMEBESEREZINE. 2018F, ATHITERAREE
MEAMBIEHLEE, EFEFFSWER, MARBFW017ERRE. AFTETY. BRASITIRESHFOIMINE, 155
ENBHITER FERBEEEMCSTRERTE

REERZERR., TEATHRUNKERLE SESREEEXNERANK. XK. Raht K. BEXKE. BE3K
B MOMAFRNE . FEREMESRKAREFEENENEFREENAREEREL SRR, EERAEN
PRZRENHATEH G RETENREEMABEFNERLSE, 2018F, KTRKEEEZE RS RN ASNBAE
EEEY BSHEENNE. REXNK . KBAKFSMNGEEEATE, N TEATEENREREFR, AHTH
BT 1L % B K MBS TR i FT 2R BR A

KEZGEHNERRS, TEARAKIZNERE, FENHA BREXEKZHNE, BRATSHI BN Z 889 X5
RXHTEWMEERARLARRN, 2018F ATRARKXFEFERRESEITXRKXHEENEF, FLHEEM, H—
FRARTREXZEENMNZHMAE M.

AES5FHERS TEARFUATEMARFENBER, UERTEFTNSEEEARNTHIR aEESRED
FHAREYN, HEBAELHE ARNEEENSREEARNETRFNGE HNEESNSREEARTRESEH
FMTEERIFEMEERREEWNE. 20184F, K1 A$ S5HEMERCESRAZEECESRERN. TEXSERNE.
RUTFHAERBEFWNER, 2FEBASWAR, BIBEOIMINE, RET ATLEERE.

The Board has five committees: the Committee on Strategic Development and Investment Management, the Audit Committee, the Risk Management

Committee, the Committee on Related Party Transaction Control, and the Committee on Human Resources and Remuneration, all of which discharge
their responsibilities as authorised by the Board, provide professional advice for the Board, decide on technical matters, and report to the Board.

2

Committee on Strategic Development and Investment Management. This committee deliberates on the long-term development strategy
and the overarching goal of business management of the Bank; monitors the execution of the annual operational plan, investment plan and the
fulfillment of corporate social responsibilities; and studies national strategies and the supporting policies and advises the Board. Focusing on
strategic decision-making, the committee met four times during the year and reviewed 29 proposals, including the financial budget and business
operation plan for 2018, the financial bond issuance plans, rules for capital management, and amendments to the Articles of Association of the
CDB Capital Co., Ltd. (CDB Capital).

Audit Committee. This committee examines important policies and work reports of internal audit and medium- and long-term audit plans and
annual audit plans; guides, supervises, evaluates and comments on internal audit; supervises and comments on external audit; and advises
on the hiring and changing of external auditors. In 2018, the committee focused on supervising internal control and convened six meetings to
deliberate six proposals, such as the 2017 annual report, work plans for internal control, and the hiring of accounting firms, and guided the
formulation of such basic rules as the internal audit charter and measures for information disclosure.

Risk Management Committee. This committee considers risk management strategies; supervises the executive management in their control
of various risks with regard to credit, market, liquidity, operations, country, bank account interest rates, reputation, and IT and the overall
risk management; conducts regular assessments of risk policies, management, and resilience; advises on how to improve risk management
and internal control. In 2018, the committee engaged in an in-depth analysis of the management of internal and external risks, and guided
the formulation of eight basic systems for the management of risks associated with country, operations, and strategies, etc. The overall risk
management system of CDB grew stronger, providing the bedrock for preventing and tackling major risks.

Committee on Related Party Transaction Control. This committee manages, reviews, and approves related party transactions; controls the associated
risks; and ensures integrity and fairness in the related party transactions between CDB and its subsidiaries. In 2018, the committee oversaw the
amending of measures for related party transactions, building the institutional foundation for rules-based management of related party transactions in the
Bank.
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Committee on Human Resources and Remuneration. This committee reviews the incentive and restraint system and policies of the Bank,
draws up and executes the remuneration plans for the executive directors and executive management, advises the Board on remuneration
plans and supervises the implementation; decides on the procedures and standards for the selection of directors and executive management,
and examines the qualifications of candidates for the directors and executive management and advises the board on the matter. In 2018, the
committee sought to enhance the governance capacity of the board, enlarge the team of executive management, and develop a stronger staff,
meeting four times to adopt six proposals which contributed to the business development of the Bank.

R EREE T
INTERNAL AUDIT

REATER ABEITSBNEREANTARNEESAFTHRELE ABHITMIIEZBESTIEES. 2018F, £TIAR
RMELPRFUHZRASE RSWER, ZR(HFITBXTABRITTENREIFER, SIZ(ERXFRRITREHEIT
ZiE) Y ZTERUHE. EBRESRSIEZLT. BESRNE. RMERIE=ZXRES MEPEFRTREAEE.
MREFEXMEESREFRSEREBE AT O, RANRERTEEER, TREARKBRERITRERSAZTAEE. SN
BRCEMI S ARERZE. MIMEEESKARENHET RFEEHITBRVESERENERBLREHI. 58
xtERF AT HIT TENESTEE NEARMBTXEME @M. MAF=ALFTFREFRERIT RH#RNS TIEEBN.
HRAN, AT ZEH IR EXBMEEF. MRETHAREA, RN EREM LR, BRI FTRESNE. 058
BEREHNREEE RHFSHE. AR#E KAKESN. RMFAGRITEA BAEFRTREBEE, BT W UHET
FEBBME , RETHR T T RE S FIREK,

As mandated by the Articles of Association of the Bank, the internal audit function and its responsible persons report to the Board of Directors
and work under the guidance and oversight of the Board of Supervisors. In 2018, following the principles laid out at the first meeting of the
Central Audit Commission of the CPC and in compliance with the Internal Audit Rules of the National Audit Office of China, CDB formulated its
internal audit charter to improve the audit system. To meet the goals of serving the real economy, preventing financial risks, and deepening
financial reform, the Bank gives full play to the supervising role of audit to protect the safety of state assets and make development finance
an effective tool for implementing national strategies. It carried out follow-up audits of poverty alleviation loans as well as risk and compliance
audits regarding priority group clients, foreign currency loans, asset management, NPL write-offs, and IT outsourcing. It supported the National
Audit Office in carrying out follow-up audits of main national policies. By stepping up guidance and oversight of the audits in its majority-owned
subsidiaries, it uncovered risks and problems from an organisational perspective. Accountability audits were conducted in a strict and honest
way to encourage appropriate and prudent use of power. Public complaints were handled in a transparent manner and channels were kept
open for complaints and public scrutiny. The results of audits were acted on, relevant procedures and mechanisms streamlined, and the value
of audit services increased. By strengthening interconnection between the oversight and audit functions and joint oversight, information and
results were better communicated and shared to produce a combined effect. Off-site audits were conducted, audit quality management was
refined, and a team of professional auditors was created, all of which contributed to the growing capacity and efficiency of audits.
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In 2018, CDB pursued a prudent yet proactive approach, delivered national macro policies for high quality development, and facilitated

the supply-side structural reform. Improved operational and risk management put the Bank in a stronger position to achieve sustainable

development with enhanced risk resilience. Thanks to these efforts, CDB reported a return on average assets (ROA) of 0.70% and a return on
average equity (ROE) of 8.82%.
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PROFIT ANALYSIS

eSS APIES

Income and Expenses

ARMEAT o o

Million RMB +/()

Z)E#pme!ﬂtl:ﬁg Profit 131,444 140,523 (9,079)

e Eljét%\lﬁgejs\t Income 182,948 180,250 2,698
feiiid&?oﬁﬁiii)gn Income, net 7,698 9,773 (2,075)
fn%%fnfint Income 19,979 20,525 (546)
éﬁh@%} g?fs%osses) (16,925) 3,857 (20,782)
I}\:Eofgg‘\fExchange Gains/(Losses) 48,859 (57,002) 105,861
Eis&amgguSurcharges 4,479 3,899 580
ﬁgaﬁfeiﬁtgfosses on Assets 98,083 5,080 93,003
éke%(ezria?a}%c;%Administrative Expenses 12,305 12,177 128
%’fﬁi}ﬁlﬁ(})\me, net 3,752 4,276 (524)

Ngeﬂtklitﬁgp{gr;i? I)ncome/(Expense) 116 101 15

fﬁgfgeﬁi Expense 19,504 27,085 (7,531)

;r\?e*tugﬂrofit 112,056 113,589 (1,533)

X 2018FEAFRERKBIHERABRERLMEME=RERK.

Note: Impairment losses on assets in 2018 include credit impairment losses and other impairment losses on assets.
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2018, ATTAE VWS RFRE, £FLIHFNE1,120.56127T, FILLHHFE1.35%, Fl B2 RARARITRFEZMHRAKIE,
SELYF B HKA,829.48{27c, FIBHW AR EF1.50%, F AR T HETREZ W, =4 L HKz5488.591Z7T.
In 2018, CDB maintained stable business growth, with a net profit of RMB112,056 million, a slight drop of 1.35% from the previous year. As

the largest source of income, net interest income was RMB182,948 million, up 1.50% from the previous year. Foreign exchange gain was
RMB48,859 million as a result of the depreciation of RMB against US dollar.

ERFFMARAGRERE

Interest-bearing Assets, Interest-bearing Liabilities

2017
TR ks

ARMEATHESL Average Interest
Million RMB or % Balance Rate

ERHE" 5 5
Interest-bearing Assets 15,094,837 4.09% 14,141,587 3.96%
He. FRP R BITFFRE LRI
Balance with Central Bank and Other 1,183,904 2.89% 1,157,423 2.62%
Financial Institutions

FHAE 3
Due from Other Banks 219,439 2.40% 248,825 2.12%
ENBESRE =R HM

Securities Purchased under Resale 410,200 3.00% 556,411 2.95%

Agreements and Others

RIGEERAETR 3 ]
Loans and Advances 11,446,231 4.37% 10,703,903 4.27%

REZE
Debt Investment 1,835,063 3.55% 1,475,024 3.46%

TR A%k o 9
Interest-bearing Liabilities 14,414,342 S0T 13,588,871 280%
Hep . Bl & 2 Ath & RAL T IR

Deposits from Other Financial Institutions

150 B A0 H At & BR AN AD(E 3R
Borrowings from Governments and Other 391,340 3.11% 367,811 2.76%
Financial Institutions

3,243,047 3.05% 2,827,312 2.77%

I?e%jiii 2,055,449 0.62% 2,188,360 0.60%
Deeft?:éiﬁgjs?lssued 8,642,494 3.56% 8,130,510 3.39%
(%tﬁbérs 82,012 2.73% 74,877 4.12%
maE - 1.21% - 197%

Net Interest Margin

Wt 554K 5L 53 #
FINANCIAL CONDITIONS ANALYSIS

B E2018ERAFTH = B5161,798.201Z 7T, LG 1.38%, WIMEATHIOE, 2018ERK M RAR R BT S
111,983.751Z7T . FILL#E1K5.22%, A B &~ #Y69.21%, & #1148,790.971Z 7T, FELIEK1.09%, KRR AITHRER
HIBLARIR, 2018 FERERITRFIESHKEN1,084.16{27T, FILLIEKT7.84%, & 2 1 fRAI61.22%,

As of the end of 2018, CDB's total assets amounted to RMB16,179,820 million, an increase of 1.38% from the previous year. Loans are the Bank's
core assets. Net loans and advances at the end of 2018 were RMB11,198,375 million, up 5.22% from the previous year and accounting for 69.21%
of the total assets. The Bank had total liabilities of RMB14,879,097 million, increase of 1.09% from the previous year. As the principal source of our

funding, the balance of our debt securities at the end of the year was RMB9,108,416 million, up 7.84% from the previous year and representing
61.22% of the total liabilities.
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Financial Position

arait
Total Assets 16,179,820 15,959,288 220,532

P& RFRRITRE LRI

Cash, Balances with the Central Bank 1,033,707 1,393,901 (360,194)

and Other Financial Institutions

ﬁz?iﬁi%d%f\ances 11,198,375 10,642,675 555,700

e 3,025,272 2,903,629 121,643

%tf?ers 922,466 1,019,083 (96,617)

%Eﬁ.gbilities 14,879,097 14,718,813 160,284

Eeffzfeﬁcﬁfe? Issued 9,108,416 8,446,592 661,824
o pe i

e g:ﬁﬁ%ﬁated Debt Securities Issued 64,995 64,925 70

=l (4 £h

go%ﬁvﬁg%%ﬁﬂé&ﬁ:ﬁﬁems and Financial Institutions 428,243 366,992 61,251

B NETN =

gu%ﬁ%?ﬁggafg ?:n?dA Customers 4,900,295 5,334,679 (434,384)

ftﬁmers 442,143 570,550 (128,407)

ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁf ot 1,300,723 1,240,475 60,248

gﬁfr;eﬁépital 421,248 421,248 -

p> {n] {n]

faﬁgﬁﬁiﬂsﬁignﬁ Surplus Reserve 325,965 304,308 21,657

geﬂfgaﬁﬁéifﬁovisions 227,633 213,934 13,699

ﬁn@igri*gﬂ?:g%r@oﬂt and Other Equity LRI 279,957 23,178

O AR 22,742 21,028 1,714

Minority Interests

AR
ASSET QUALITY

2018%F , ATTRMERNRE, HFRELGRFRE. FREE0.92%, LLEY EF0.220 B H =, 20185, HAIE
FEERES,102.5MZ7T . BREKERA37%. RIFBSRH NI EES.

In 2018, CDB maintained stable asset quality thanks to effective risk management, reporting an NPL of 0.92%, 0.22 percentage point higher
than at the beginning of the year. The bank made RMB510,251 million allowance for loan impairment, with a loan provision coverage ratio of
4.37%. As a result, the Bank continued to be in a stronger position to prevent and manage risks.

HERBBRE

Quality of Loan Assets

ARMEATHEDL 2017
Million RMB or %

TR LRI
Loans and Advances, Gross

FRERRH
Non-Performing Loan Balance

11,678,929 11,036,832

107,222 76,798

FRERE B o
Non-Performing Loan Ratio LB 0.

BRREEE
Allowance for Loan Impairment 510,251 394,157
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STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

2018%F  AFTRFHRPRHETIELSRR, BHFARES HLKR
SHANEHMRE, INTHF=RBEE, FEIIANE [0
BIESR N HE, A PEZTSRERRIEHRIRTTR.

i7-2018, CDBradopted a prudent and proactive approach and acted in line
with the “newsdevelopment-philosophy of the government. We facilitated
supply=side \structural reformmhelped. o tackle-the three tough challenges
of ‘major. risks,-poverty, and._pollution; andekept.intensifying=support for key
industriessand 'under-developed sectors,. playing a positiVesrele in-bringing
about high quality*development of the Chinese economy,

MAEEEZEFZEHENE

GREATER SUPPORT TO THE REAL ECONOMY

» ZHrEA IR AN ER

Filling in Infrastructure Gaps

K& RAILWAYS

REER(PRPKEMIAL), UKBERME AT ERXFRAEIL BEMER EREER 88
EoEHKEME, MESGBERREXNE VNEEHUEFNA . BE2018F RARTHREEITIL TR INS,08012
TSR BN E N,

With a focus on the National Medium- and Long-term Plan for Railway Network, CDB invested in major railway projects, such as the high-
speed rail links between Anging and Jiujiang, Ganzhou and Shenzhen, Beijing and Xiongan, and in southern Shandong Province, and

financed the overhaul of rail transport equipment and the purchase of railway vehicles. At the end of 2018, our balance of loans to the
railway sector was RMB808 billion, making CDB the top railway lender in the financial industry.
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20185F12H26H FESEHKRBERNBE . LB ERESR
—ZMHWTREANTER. BAGERSHSERE, B
ERERUEERN "2 NHZEE " O UREFRELR.
RTRIT A1ZI B R R FE0Z T,

Opened on 26 December 2018, the railway is the first in China to be mainly
funded by local governments and up to the most advanced technical
standards. Upon its completion, a “two-hour transport circle” took shape
in Shandong Province, delivering a strong boost to local economy. CDB
financed the project for nearly RMB9 billion.
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71 ELECTRIC POWER

MREHERKE BEBEXFsERELIERR, FEEHRANIUE. REVNABRERSHRERNE, £
FRBEBNTLLEKT618{Z7T, Hih mBFEERIRI B AP KHARRK7691Z7T, 457 2R A%,

CDB supported major hydro-power and ultra-high voltage electricity transmission projects across provinces and regions, and
assisted the upgrading of power grids in rural areas and the retrofitting of coal power plant units to realise ultra-low emission

and raise energy efficiency. Over the year, we issued RMB161.8 billion loans to the electricity industry, including RMB76.9 billion
medium- and long-term loans to clean energy projects, accounting for 39% of the total investment in the industry.

P EAELEF 800 T RS EERILIZEMB
=800 KV HVDC Project from Northwest Yunnan Province to
Guangdong Province

ZHMBERASBEB BTN+ ZKEERELEZ—,
BEUHIXBFKB200ZF R, B3 =MH K ERH
FE67O M, WREE B AT X ERMS BERRSEA
BRMEX . KT AIZWMB K ERKI0ZTART. 32K
7T, ERITRMHERI 832,

This is one of the 12 electricity transmission lines identified in the Action
Plan for the Prevention and Treatment of Air Pollution, transmitting

20 billion kWh of clean hydro-power each year and denting coal
consumption by 6.7 million tons in the Pearl River Delta, playing a crucial

role in ensuring power supply for the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area and alleviating air pollution. CDB pledged RMB10
billion and EUR300 million loans for the project, with a total drawdown of
RMB383 million.
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& HIGHWAYS

1.618.- PRIHERSELEN. BETLEHE REABSEE
JC SN . S, R . 4=

. FEHRE, BHABTUMRER LR, BE018ERALT

20185 K8 717 Ak STk INEENAE = NRACDFR

Issued loans to the electricity ‘ o ]

industry in 2018: RMB161.8 billion CDB is a strong supporter of building national expressway networks,

upgrading national and provincial highways, and constructing rural roads,
to promote the fast growth and transformation of the sector. At the end of
2018, our balance of loans to this sector was RMB1.79 trillion.

769.-

BRI B R A EA TR
dium- and.longsterm
loans to clean encrGVERIGIECISHN
2018: RMB76.9 bilios

ZWERMEERIUNEE T AR TR
BIE, R EKERRER. B AR XA 5
EREFERREN., AT AZME XM HTHK38.9
fz7.

This is the main line of transportation connecting the one
million people in Aba Prefecture, Sichuan Province with other
parts of the country, a key project for filling in transportation
gaps in the Tibetan areas and reducing poverty. A total of
RMB3.89 billion loans were provided by CDB.
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#3% AIRPORTS

hnkﬁﬁ?’ﬁzﬂx RANGHRE, EERRERE2Z
T ERIFABRFEFENS. FAFLERIZ=

,HJ%, TRHLERN S =0T B T ESERCERAY S

Bix.

Helping to improve the distribution of civil airports, we issued

RMB8.2 billion loans over the year to support the Tianfu

International Airport in Chengdu, phase-three of the Xiaoshan

International Airport in Hangzhou, and phase-three expansion
project of the Lishe International Airport in Ningbo.

Wi TH#NE 328 URBAN RAIL TRANSIT

RIRFEHNRTHEXBTIYEREAR ESXFERM
&53%%&% SxsBEAEGHE (PPP) A . @M TH
x@4 554 —HTHEMA. f_d‘l‘lglkﬁtlé18ﬂ5?§l
& HEOBERATHTAEZTBT UL RREM
5,0211Z71:0
CDB supports urban rail transit projects and has financed the PPP
project of No. 5 subway line in Hangzhou, the first-phase project
of No. 4 and No. 5 rail transit lines in Fuzhou, and No. 18 transit

line in Guangzhou. At the end of 2018, our balance of loans to this
sector was RMB502.1 billion.

ZEMFR018EMIE LTS
EX HREKNZERATLR, +
BEREAXXNTRERBINSE, 2
SHEELFIA.

This is the largest green financing instrument
with the longest maturity issued in 2018 in
Hubei Province, which was mainly used to

finance the No. 11 transit line and the south
extension of No. 2 transit line in Wuhan.
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ZIEHEAMMEAEX AR RS — &8 S5HRXEEEFRREX . X17H1ZI B K%+ K EH
wHA{ZT,

This project is an important part of developing the Greater Hangzhou Bay area and building the Integrated Belt and Road Pilot Zone.
CDB made a medium- and long-term loan commitment of RMB4.1 billion .

7k# WATER RESOURCES

ERAREBEERKMNIZASTIR, IHFRAESIFB. I EAXBRKFRA, HEAREAKFIRASFERERLRE,
UERFRKRE ERKRLE. F/UVTRAESFRAEKNIE . BE2018FRATKMITUTRRE4A,310127T, 4%
SRFKF IRERRBA T NWRITHA,

To meet the financing needs of water projects under construction, CDB supported such major state-level projects as Shaanxi Hanjiang River-to-
Weihe River Water Diversion Project, Guangxi Da Tengxia Gorge Water Conservancy Project, and Xinjiang Altash Hydropower Station, and other water

projects that improve the people’s well-being, such as safe drinking water in rural areas, projects near main water sources, and waterway remediation
and restoration. At the end of 2018, CDB remained a top lender for water projects in China, with a balance of loans worth RMB431 billion.
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Improving the Quality of Urbanisation

ATUEE Kk SFARES HEMAXNBTEEER. SRET. FEE. FRXY AR HEEMZ G
RREASFVAHNME T, s REBHMBHECRR.
Committed to green, low-carbon, and innovative development, CDB has increased financing support for the construction of underground

tunnels, sponge cities, and featured towns, capacity enlargement and upgrading of development zones, and urban infrastructural
improvements, giving strong support to urbanisation of a higher quality.

2018, RTERBA X FH MU LB I RTINS
REPOETAENEHRNITHFEZLRTRL,
RIERRA(L T X FINME160E R Fh 2 2
RIEERP . BRERETNAKBRSEEREST
EBRTzEGEEHNA. FLEERERZREF.
ERPOHBKEENE ELSRXAEHEX
B ITERERRAXHE,

In 2018, CDB made its first move to finance the renovation
and sustainable development of mega-cities like
Shanghai, with a loan commitment of RMB4.2 billion for
the maintenance and preservation of historical buildings,
improvement of infrastructure and public services facilities,
multi-purpose use of underground space, and facilities
supporting industrial growth in the 160 Neighbourhood in
the Bund in an effort to restore its historical flavour, renew
its functions as a financial and cultural center, and develop
a neighborhood with a distinct cultural legacy.

» ZFRERILR

Supporting Private Businesses

2018, AfTeANXFHREMS VAR, 11HEI1,000Z cREA LT
MBER, EAMEMEMBERAMB7IZIT, B E2018ERATHRE S
BREFEITE37T M. RRIBRESCVARRESKBRE, TREX
FTCL20{Z ciBAERE. AT IERSZ TR ZEERE L VRS, B XA L
REMSVREBAE.

In 2018, CDB provided all-round support for the growth of private businesses, creating
an RMB100 billion special loans programme on November which saw RMB8.7 billion
being disbursed in the first month alone after its inception. At the end of 2018, our
balance of loans and investments to private businesses was RMB637.1 billion. To
support the private sector in expanding financing channels, we were the primary
underwriters of private business bonds, such as TCL RMB2 billion super short-term
commercial papers and Zhejiang Hengyi RMB500 million medium-term notes, helping to
promote the steady growth of these leading private companies.
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2018%F , Z f7fa) Eb 0 388 K A EF5R691Z T,
THREERL. SAFROABNER,
B 73 4 b i R 858

In 2018, CDB granted RMB6.9 billion loans to
the automaker BYD in support of its growth in

critical areas, such as batteries and chips, to
help the enterprise grow bigger and stronger.

1% 5 42 5T K Fah e

FOSTERING NEW ENGINES OF ECONOMIC GROWTH

» REHELTRERBMBHREIH
Supporting High Quality Development of Manufacturing Sector and Innovation in
Science and Technology

2018%F, ATRAERBEFUARTHE BEFT—REERR. Shk& EVEAFTERAH, SISELXHSASH
REMLBMERE =LY RELR. SEXARAEZBRLERABRTFEFRREBEEENSG, UHHUTAITREIE.
PR, ZHE RSN T EFRUERR MAREFNIF—HEFLFAEERIE . MR E b B T
WA, S " BB+ RREFEN WEEX, RIFMRRES TR IFORB b L. FRA R M SRR A F
MMIE WK R T, KERNTREARRERASDEENBENATRARS, XHLLUFLAR. SHRBPEIEAN
RIE B EELXMBHRRRA67ZT.

In 2018, with the aim of fostering new sources of industrial growth, CDB focused on the priority areas of information technology, high-end equipment,
and biomedicine, channeling various sources of funding towards leading and strategic industries. The Bank entered into a strategic partnership with
the NDRC to promote digital economy, supported the areas of big data, the Internet of Things, cloud computing, and new smart cities in market-based
ways, and gave support to a number of priority programmes in digital economy. CDB accelerated its efforts to materialise the combination of investment
and loans for businesses engaged in scientific and technological innovation and piloted the business model of “investment+loan options”, benefiting 45
such companies. The Bank carried out pilot programmes to support SMEs engaged in scientific and technological innovation with development finance.
It worked in partnership with Shenzhen Investment Limited to draw on its operational strengths to support businesses innovations. Together with the
Ministry of Science and Technology, the Bank established a cooperation mechanism for major science and technology programmes, granting a total of
RMB46.7 billion loans in the sector over the year.

BEMESFEREMNARLLY, 2018F, KITABEME
B HZNRI B & E T4, TF/EVEIFHE,
Tongfu Microelectronics is a package testing leader in China. In 2018,

CDB pledged RMB1.34 billion loans for its package testing programme in
Xiamen, lending support to its business transformation and upgrading.
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Facilitating Balanced Regional Development

2018%F, AFTRARMEL "+=1" BXXE
REBERE, BREE KITILFT. BEER
AREXEERAXBEAMEF1.3T1ZT. EFG
BILRIEEEIE REEZFXSES. 5K
FER RUESHRESBETE RRRE
T THMEERESEN, RITEE "#HRER"

RIBHAKITIZFHRE, BHESERNE
LUNHIXSTME . FHESEEAERSET
e EFKITIARPIME FH, KRKITIE
FHRMII2 LT XFPAESFRRIEBX L
R EGERAXRAEZHHES "FILRX
SREEIS " SEFIERRAE3,542127T.

B

In 2018, to help implement the 13th national master plan for regional development,
the Bank issued RMB1.3 trillion loans to such priority areas as Beijing-Tianjin-
Hebei Integration, Yangtze River Economic Belt, and Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay. The Bank joined the efforts to relocate non-capital functions
out of Beijing, promoted the high-level development of the Xiongan New Area,
made a loan commitment of RMB32.7 billion to the key projects in the early-stage
of the development of Xiongan, and issued the first loans and Xiongan bonds.
It steadily promoted development along the Yangtze River Economic Belt by
issuing RMB31.2 billion loans to major programmes in the area, including the pilot
programme to realise the business value of ecological products and the pilot city
demonstration project for energy conservation and pollution treatment. In an effort
to support development of central and western China and the northeastern region,
the Bank worked with the NDRC in creating the financial cooperation mechanism
for the invigoration of northeast China, with the balance of loans to these regions
over the year increased RMB354.2 billion.
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ATRBIFLRBZREERZGUFHHALCEIFE— "=ZH— K HNERR, RitaHEFH
RERFIHRB R B KM TRBIL6012TT. KITHFMZT. REKFBI 11T,
CDB gives strong support to Beijing in its effort to develop national-level platforms for scientific and

technological innovation, issuing a total of over RMB6 billion loans, RMB5.3 billion bonds, and making over
RMB1.1 billion investments to help with the development of the Future Science Park.

2018F11 A 156H , Af7Hr R HEA %
REREERTETHRSHELEMN

hWET. AAEERGEH6IZT E@ PEEEZREA R AT
Flmasn BEASSHATRRrR [tk S ot H S

EFXEMEENERR. ZERSZ Zo-nm+-A+Ea
WEFEMIZAK, UHHUTAEE
NEERS NhRERTXAARE.
SIANFKE KA XFHERTIXE
BEBRREN,

On 15 November 2018, this financing instrument was issued successfully for a total of RMB600 million and
a 4.4% coupon rate. The fund raised will be used for infrastructure projects in Xiongan. It marks the first

time Xiongan mobilises financial resources in a market-based way and helps the New Area to expand its
financing channels to secure medium- and long-term, large-scale funding.

ZOEMEERNMSEBRNGEERAERMSREABMNE BN IARBXS5EEH
RLFHIBERRFRBEX. ATEARAZFKITAHIZIME RREFH21.18{27T.

This project strengthens the transportation and
expressway network connecting China’s inland and
Guangdong Province, Hong Kong, and Macau, and
enhances the social and economic ties between
the western bank of Zhujiang River and Hong Kong.
As the lead bank in the loan syndication, CDB
disbursed RMB2.118 billion loans.
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Pursuing Green Finance

RITBEPPPH R, SINTWKIRFREBH AR EMN ET KR EST
R O ERXHEARRKE, RAREHTEETETR, BAARE
RERREBMERRE ., AT AHIZT B KB TFE5.4127T.

Through the PPP model, CDB introduced professional providers of pollution treatment
services into the project to improve the waterways throughout Fuzhou and cleaned
up all polluted waters, greatly improving the environment in the city and delivering

a better and happier life for the residents. The Bank made a loan commitment of
RMB5.54 billion.
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20184, AFTRMB NITH S LM ATRE, RAEHREW
FEEER. BAXFMUKIXRRY HESKLE, RANER
SHRAE . RAKREEAESMKTERE, MSES
T BERR. BERBRAERNARRSENE. MR
HRERKEFARE BRRTIESNHTHRESSARE. B
B 0K S 3 AR R D o] P AR AR R S FE 0 E L I Eh M B TS R
ZEERMAREEEAR 2EHXIFH SN HEENEE
B BE0I8FRATRETRATEI 19512, B EF
EIBK16%, M EERRITV A, TR R HARAE
Y88 15,9037 /4, — S LB B HERE /114,055 7 /4, —
SRR HERE 116870 Ii/4F, A (L4 HERE /18977 i/ 4F,
UFFERERAE 44T /F, FRBHE NS H/E,

In 2018, CDB played an active role in pollution prevention and treatment
to build a beautiful China. We supported key projects of water pollution
prevention and treatment, such as the protection of the Yangtze River,
urban sewage treatment, treatment of pollution sources in rural areas,
and safe drinking water; air pollution treatment projects such as
relocation of highly-polluting enterprises, clean transportation, and clean
energy; and urban environmental projects such as treatment of polluted
waters in urban areas and sponge cities. We also stepped up support
for new and renewable energy to facilitate the development of a modern
energy system that is clean, low-carbon, safe, and efficient, supporting
115 new energy projects over the year. At the end of 2018, our balance
of green loans was over RMB1.9 trillion, up 16% over the previous year
and the biggest among Chinese banks. Our loans translated into, on
an annual basis, an energy saving of 59.03 million tons of standard
coal equivalent, 140.55 million tons less of carbon dioxide emission,
1.68 million tons less of sulphur dioxide, 890,000 tons less of nitrogen
oxides, a drop of 440,000 tons of chemical oxygen demand, and 50,000
tons less of ammonium oxide.

4 TERBEZEZHIEDNE
Phase-Two of Fangchenggang Nuclear Power Plant in
Guangxi Autonomous Region

ZUMBARHKEEHBEET=RAZEEAER-STEL
2, AT AR A F L7 A1 B K IE BERR3001Z T AR
M. 264ZETT.

This is the first demonstration project of Hualong One, the third-
generation nuclear technology by China’s own design. As the lead

bank in the loan syndication, CDB made a loan commitment of
RMB30 billion and USD264 million.
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FIGHTING AGAINST POVERTY

20184, AT RIF "BH . BA . BLE M =ZRKR
K, SERABBERRTR2,668{2T. LR Hit
KREMTE S, BB E. FrRREH (F).
BRBEA (AN B TR BEAE SERRERM
X E MR AT ERR B AR TO1812 7T, KM
. KFIEEAEME R AR RER,34012 7T, B
HERLMVEE KREFREAR, REG=LHER
BERR42212 7, SIB A MBI Z 28712t Rit X HF
FH2,6228 AR, BITEM ik 2 IE FE 1,133
270, XFHA2HHEEAD , R A RIKRB RS FKIE,
SEHETAE. 16338 T HbEXRIMIT T M &/
R, ERBEEGIR. SMITHRREMHESHMAL
B RESISHSRSBERIATURE ST,

THAERRAMRBEARE, R ERECGREML.
RAREMEML. FREEL. RREEEL. RS
RER R, £F6 ZX=EM REBEAKRR TR
MNZTT, | =R =M PUMORE R B i X 2 HE
FEIRBERFRASTIZ T,

MSRARFE IR A MMEN BRI, SR X BT B
BREEND FEAUMERIFRABKRAMEETE
EEL I SXFHRMBLVEAEBARBRKRE,
20K, EEEIEIILS0RA .

A A R B T B 45 5 AL ZREAR L EMEEREENEENS BRRY Y
AN FREANSTHA. KT HZRE RHHEHKE 5T,
N L2 LIS r IR

ABR. RERRENIBTSHAFER A5F This project ifs Sa; importa;t p?tr.t ofSt:z()igfrasFrLthtu(;al dcjeve\(?;?lmerw(jt
_ . programme of Shangrao, benefiting 37,000 registered underprivilege
= = b=l A0S — =
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Rdral Road Construction in° Wuchuan, Guizhou
Province
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CDB issued RMB980 million loans for road construction in

this partner county to overcome the adverse mountainous

conditions and enable poverty reduction.
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In 2018, CDB continued to implement its poverty alleviation
strategy of offering institutional, financing and intellectual support,
the Bank provided RMB266.8 billion loans to help fight poverty
more effectively. Through provincial programmes of relocating the
poor, county programmes for infrastructure development, village/
household programmes for industrial development, and student
loans, we, throughout the year, provided RMB61.8 billion precision
poverty alleviation loans for rural infrastructure building, RMB134
billion for transport and water projects. By partnering with major
companies and through on-lending, we issued RMB42.2 billion
to eliminate poverty through industrial development. An additional
RMB28.7 billion student loans were issued, bringing the number of
recipients to 26.22 million. A total of RMB113.3 hillion loans were
disbursed for relocation programmes that benefited 3.12 million
poor people. To tap into funding of different sources, we issued a

total of RMB16.338 hillion bonds for relocation programmes in four
batches, and underwrote seven poverty alleviation debt financing
instruments to the tune of RMB8.4 billion. This way, we managed
to mobilise non-government funding to support poverty alleviation
programmes.

Fighting poverty in extremely poor regions. With the most
preferential credit policies and pricing, streamlined approval
procedures, and the best resources allocation and services,
we issued RMB41.1 billion loans to 6 extremely poor regions in
Tibet, Xinjiang, and their adjacent areas, and RMB45.7 billion
loans to the rest extremely poor regions.

Supporting east-west partnership. CDB joined hands with
local governments in eastern China to run a programme
named “development finance in action for east-west poverty
alleviation partnership”, encouraging businesses in the eastern
parts to invest in the western poor areas, which involved 290
companies and over 50 cooperation agreements.

A multi-pronged approach to reduce poverty in regions with
partnerships with CDB. Over the year, CDB provided RMB1.2
billion loans for poverty alleviation in four poor regions having
partnerships with the Bank, liting 290,000 people out of poverty.
We also tried out the combination of investment and loans in
these regions. CDB Capital set up an Erlang featured town
development fund with the local government in the County of
Gulin, Sichuan Province. To fight poverty through consumption,
we directly purchased and helped sell RMB4.36 million worth of
agricultural produce from the poor areas.

Intellectual support to enhance the development capacity of
poor areas. CDB drafted 12 plans for combating poverty in
extremely poor areas, such as the Advisory Report for Poverty
Eradication in Nujiang Prefecture, and two plans for east-west
partnership, such as the Financing Plan for Ningbo-Yanbian
Industrial Cooperation. Tailoring its policies to the conditions of
each area, CDB is part of the poverty alleviation effort across
6 extremely poor regions in Tibet, Xinjiang, and their adjacent
areas. We also organised the first group of government officials
from the our partner regions to receive training at the Party
School of the Central Committee of CPC and extended training
programmes to the countryside, reaching a total of 3,305
officials. We continued to award teachers in village schools
with financial incentives and benefited 1,289 teachers in our
partner areas. We undertook the International Forum on China’s
Reform and Opening-up and Poverty Alleviation, presenting to
the world China’s achievements in this field.

ZHMABEXFLEIR. LEKE—FULERRGER.
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This project includes soil improvement, integrated irrigation system
for water and fertilizer, road construction, and storage and processing
zone development, creating a 3,000 mu (about 2 square kilometers)
planting base for kiwi fruit, creating jobs for 10,142 residents from

2,462 registered poor households. CDB made a loan commitment of
RMB25 million.
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Affordable Housing
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In 2018, guided by the national goal of full housing coverage for the entire population, CDB made its best efforts to support construction of affordable
housing, issuing RMB698 billion loans to the renovation of shanty towns over the year. Applying strictly a set of standards for the scope and degree
of renovation, we supported the rehabilitation of the shanty patches in poor conditions in the old urban areas and in state-owned industrial, mining,
and reclamation areas and forests. The central, western, and northeastern regions received 65% of our loans for shanty town renovation. We
pushed forward the programmes to finance leasing for housing properties, connecting 1242 pilot cities, and structured leasing financial products
and financing solutions in the light of the real conditions. A number of programmes thus materialised, such as relocation housing in Tongzhou sub-
center and the housing project in Chengshousi by Vanke in Beijing. With CDB'’s help, “CDB-Shanghai Special Asset-Backed Plan for Public Rental
Housing (1-8)” was approved; this is China’s first shelf offering of ABS backed by the right to rents of public rental housing, for with a value of RMB10
billion. CDB strengthened credit management and risk prevention and control for the loans to shanty town renovation projects, carrying out strict
credit review; established a standing mechanism for managing funds for renovation projects to increase their efficiency; scaled up checks over all
renovation loans; and carried out dynamic assessment and monitoring of the capital and expected returns to ensure asset quality.

P i S &R P Deaisn B
Renovation of Shamty Areasn Changdu, Tibet
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This project tremendously improved the living conditions of local
residents and complemented the housing protection scheme in the

region. By the end of 2018, CDB had issued RMB2.389 billion loans to
the project.
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Elderly Care, Education and Healthcare
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Elderly care. In 2018, CDB deepened its cooperation with the
Ministry of Civil Affairs and the NDRC to make the top-level design for
development finance to support institutions and industries for elderly
care and promote a three-tiered care of assisted living, community care,
and nursing care. To find new ideas, we completed a research report,
Development Finance Supporting Chinese Elderly Care Industry. At the
end of 2018, our balance of loans to the industry was RMB22.6 billion.

Education. In 2018, to meet the goal of developing modern education
at a faster pace, CDB focused on vocational education and the
integration of enterprises and vocational schools and universities to
identify new sources of growth for the educational sector. We worked
with the NDRC in drawing up the Implementation Plan for Strengthening
Investment and Loan Support for Training Base Development, and sped
up the pilot programmes for the integration of industry and education.

Healthcare. In 2018, following the “Healthy China” strategy, CDB
focused on the medical and healthcare industries, actively supporting
the development of hospitals at various levels and healthcare service
systems at the community level, promoting better integration and
allocation of healthcare resources within different regions, facilitating
improvements of the healthcare system, and experimenting with new
models of financing for this sector. A number of pilot programmes
following the Changsha model and Bengbu Model were created. We
also made vigorous efforts to develop health-related sectors and new
frontiers such as private supply of medical services, integration of
treatment and rehabilitation, and big data application. At the end of
2018, our balance of loans to this sector was RMB41 billion.
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Rural Vitalisation
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In 2018, to help build rural areas with thriving businesses, pleasant living environments, social etiquette and civility, effective governance, and
prosperity, CDB sought to promote supply-side reform in agriculture and upgrade rural and agricultural infrastructure, stepping up financing for
infrastructure, industrial development, comprehensive land improvement, poverty reduction, and international agricultural cooperation, issuing a
total of RMB175 billion loans, making development finance a main source of financing for rural revitalization. CDB deepened its cooperation with
the Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Affairs, the Ministry of Natural Resources, the Bureau of Forestry and Grassland and the MOF, developing a
strong knowledge of state policies. CDB produced Opinions of CDB Party Committee on Supporting Rural Invigoration and the Work Plan of CDB on

Supporting Rural Invigoration, charting the course of its work in the field. The various CDB branches set out their own financing plans in the light of
local conditions to provide intellectual and financing support for the balanced development of different localities.

ZIE AT M K EMRENRFEEREERNERNET. WET RUES KREWEF. XU
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This is an important part of the infrastructure and tourism facilities construction programme in Huzhou, Zhejiang Province, having a positive
impact on environmental protection, developing clean sectors of the economy, and rural invigoration. CDB made a loan commitment of
RMB5.7 billion.
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CHAMPIONING THE BELT AND ROAD INITIATIVE
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Shymkent Oil Refineries Upgrading Project
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Entering into operation in September 2018, this project upgrades oil quality to meet the local demand for clean oil products.
CDB, working with the Kazakh Development Bank, provided USD265 million through on-lending for the project.
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Extension of Credit Lines to Bank of Investment
and Foreign Trade of Argentine (BICE)
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CDB signed a contract with BICE to on-lend USD150 million to
local borrowers in Argentina, boosting agriculture, new energy
and many other sectors in the country and promoting its
economic development.

In 2018, CDB made steady progress in international cooperation. We made all-out efforts to implement the outcomes of the first Belt and Road
Forum for International Cooperation, took steady steps to deliver our commitments of RMB250 billion-equivalent special loans, completed
reviewing an equivalent of RMB466.5 billion of these loans, helping to facilitate the continued and solid progress of the BRI. To provide strong
development financing for the initiative, we innovated investment and financing models and enhanced financing support for priority regions,
areas, and programmes. With a total of USD18.5 billion loans headed for the BRI over the year, we supported infrastructure connectivity,
industrial and financial cooperation, and the development of industrial parks and SMEs in BRI countries, making a real impact on the living
conditions and sustainable development of the host countries. In 2018, to build closer ties for a global community of financial cooperation, we
initiated the China-Arab Countries Inter-Bank Association and China-Africa Inter-Bank Association, and continued to promote solid progress
under the multilateral and bilateral cooperation mechanisms, such as the SCO (Shanghai Cooperation Organisation) Inter-Bank Association,
China-ASEAN Inter-Bank Association, and China-CEEC (Central and Eastern European countries) Inter-Bank Association. We never ceased the
efforts to expand cross-border RMB lending and contribute to the internationalization of RMB. CDB continued to be the leading Chinese bank
for outbound investment and financing, with a total foreign currency-denominated loan balance of USD251 billion-equivalent and outstanding
cross-border RMB loan of 95.7 billion at the end of 2018.

In 2018, we contributed China’s wisdom to the BRI in various ways. Taking an active part in inter-governmental planning under the BRI
framework, we drew on our own plans to produce the Cooperation Development Plan for China and the Far East of Russia and the Guidelines
for China-Kuwait Cooperation, giving firm support to building international consensus, negotiating and signing inter-governmental contracts,
and delivering early harvest. By promoting the Cooperation Plan for Regional Comprehensive Economic Corridors in Indonesia and the Study
of Infrastructure Cooperation Planning between Lancang-Mekong Countries, we facilitated policy communication and the harmonisation
of strategies. The plans for production capacity cooperation between China and Kazakhstan and between China and Mozambique were
completed, providing important top-level design for industrial and project-based cooperation. We engaged extensively in international
academic exchange and think tank cooperation, joined the United Nation Development Programme in preparing the document, Harmonising
International Standards in Financing and Investments Towards Sustainable Development along the Belt and Road, and completed a number of
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HengyiPulau MuaraBesar (PMB) Petrochemical Project
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This-project contributes to the development and upgrading of oil and gas deep
processing in Brunei. Upon its completion, it is-expected to help the country
become self-reliant in refined oil, and by 2020, produce.an output of USD5.5

billion, and create nearly 1,000 job opportunities. By the ‘end of 2018, CDB
provided in total an equivalent of USD570 millien loans.

research reports, such as the Study on Financial Innovation for the BRI. Nine reports by prestigious think tanks in BRI countries were published
with our support. We sponsored training programmes to enhance people-to-people ties, holding 11 sessions of multilateral and bilateral
exchange and training over the year with a total enrollment figure of 264. We supported the NDRC in holding exchange and training sessions
for Lancang-Mekong cooperation. We broke new ground by holding our first international training programme on the topic of poverty reduction
to encourage international cooperation in this field. The CDB Scholarship was awarded 86 times to students from 20 countries studying in
China and stand-alone awards were given to 63 foreign students from 21 countries.
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This project supported by CDB, connects
the Indonesian capital with Bundang,
cutting the traffic time from nearly four
hours to 40 minutes.




52 | EEEEEEN OPERATIONS AND MANAGEMENT

ZEEHEBR

OPERATIONS AND MANAG

MR SR
PLANNING AND RESEARCH

20185, ATTHEAREBENUMARNMENE, BERSIAEET FR(ZEFLERAREXEZESRBKARD
FOMBRTUWAY, UEEBEHFX T LEFLIETUYNE AR REINIRXTHFELRER, T CGRIEWLkS
FXBARMDEESXFALY: REEAXBHRBME RSB THANER, THR(AX SR FEBROEXA L
BERRIENUAR REAFEBXEFRALIREN BEEREARAEZERARILABESEFHTRXREAL
MANEERZTH XLERINYHAR). KESKHEELS REER. 20, Tl REM KRR, ;7TE" —F—
% eRER. EEEFERTO. REZFMN. ZRA0T. EEHE NAAMRLE, 2EFER(PERERXE R
FRXSLEHZR (2018) W INKBIF AR A EHHBRAX (#) BESHARIBESHEZZNG RIILFHERRPD
ERAXBERS MRIRE. ZALTE 1230, REERSHEERSDE.

In 2018, CDB continued to carry out planning and research to strengthen knowledge support for its activities. To serve the real economy, we
conducted planning in priority industries, producing eight reports like Priority Green Industries Catalogue and Green Finance Policy Research,

and planning for clients in pillar industries, such as the strategic emerging industries. To identify pathways for rural invigoration and sustainable
development, we completed planning for some priority regions, notably the Financing Plan for Rural Invigoration in Xiantao of Hubei Province. To

serve major regional strategies and the development of priority city clusters, we conducted studies, such as Research on Development Finance
Supporting Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area Planning and Construction. To help resource-reliant regions transform their economic
model, we worked with the NDRC to complete the Planning and Research for Developing Ecological Economic Belt in the Western Part of Northeast
China and Planning and Research for the Transformation and Relocation of Mining Cities. With a focus on international, macro, industrial and
regional studies, we developed six flagship programmes of research, namely the BRI, BRICS, Shanghai international financial center, regional
economic analysis, macro-analysis, and rental housing and produced 123 think tank reports, research reports, and academic monographs, for
example, Comparative Analysis of the Development of China’s Provinces (2018), Greater Innovation and Openness for Offshore Finance of Free
Trade Zone (Port), and Eco-compensation Trading System for Protection along the Yangtze River, and submitted 25 reports to prestigious national
think tanks.
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In 2018, CDB followed a cycle-neutral funding approach, expanding diversified financing channels and building the primary and
secondary markets for CDB bonds, which provided strong funding support for the business development of the Bank. CDB issued
RMB1.84 trillion financial bonds and USD2.4 billion overseas bonds over the year; thus, the total financial bonds issued by CDB
reached RMB17 trillion. International ratings agencies like the Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s put CDB at the same level as China’s
sovereign rating.

Building the primary market. CDB pioneered the model of flexible bidding issuance, with automatic triggering to increase efficiency. We
promoted over-the-counter issuance of all types of bonds, with yield curves covering all key maturities and products for the first time. This
service was made available in 11 banks, extending the sales network to tens of thousands of bank branches in more than 30 provinces
(autonomous regions and municipalities under the direct supervision of the central government). We issued RMB35 billion financial bonds
under the “bond connect” scheme to expand the use of RMB overseas. We supported the development of bond market connectivity and
infrastructure, issuing RMB14 billion bonds in Shanghai and Shenzhen Stock Exchanges.

Enhancing interconnection between primary and secondary markets. We strengthened integrated management of the underwriters and
market makers of CDB bonds, increasing the investment and trading value of these bonds. In 2018, they were the underlying assets of the
bond index funds with the largest IPO. The annual volume of trading on CDB bonds was RMB35 trillion, taking up 23% market shares and
leading the market for five years in a row. The 10-year CDB bond was among the most traded on the market, and the yield curves of CDB
bonds were regarded as an important pricing benchmark.

Improving foreign exchange trading system. CDB signed the Foreign Exchange Global Code and Chinese code to make the foreign
exchange business more global and professional. Our trading of foreign exchange topped the inter-bank market for four years consecutively.
Piloting a new quote model that varies the spread at different levels on the basis of the base price, we greatly enhanced the time sensitiveness
of market maker quotes.
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INTERMEDIARY BUSINESS
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In 2018, our intermediary business grew steadily with a better income structure. We issued RMB10.8 billion credit asset securitisation
products, adding to a total of RMB315.2 billion, maintaining our leading position as the largest issuer of corporate loan securitisation
products. We actively channeled private capital towards the real economy, with RMB334.8 billion in loan syndication and our asset
management business investing over RMB10 billion in various debenture bonds on the primary market. To promote green development and
help prevent and combat pollution, we issued RMB3.1 billion green credit asset securitisation products and provided factoring business for
the receivables of new energy vehicle subsidies, providing RMB4.4 billion of financing through new energy factoring. We innovated in our
business activities and made multiple breakthroughs in our financial products: the balance of asset in our custody topped RMB400 billion;
we introduced factoring business for loans syndication that offers loans of varying maturities in a single contract, pioneered the use of
domestic letter of credit in engineering projects.

In 2018, CDB synergized the bond and loan activities to provide comprehensive financial services for businesses, mobilising market resources
toward the key sectors and projects of the country and lowering the financing cost for the real economy. Over the year, we served as an
underwriter for 136 clients, completing the issuance of 202 debenture bonds for a total of RMB267.39 billion and 65 local government bonds
for RMB251.637 billion.
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In 2018, CDB made continuous improvements to its settlement services, with RMB and foreign currency settlement reaching RMB30.48 trillion
and without any mishaps or loss. We steadily developed the new generation system for core business to better support our business. We
accelerated our efforts to build standard banking offices and developed our own style of OTC services. By promoting our settlement products,
including cash management, international settlement, trade finance, and foreign exchange settlement and sale, we enhanced our capacity
for comprehensive financial services, registering a year-round settlement revenue of RMB1.608 billion. We streamlined the procedures and

increased the efficiency of settlement, and supported innovations of funds transactions and bonds business, the total settlement amount of
which reached RMB201.91 trillion for the whole year.
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COOPERATION WITH OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
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In 2018, CDB continued to deepen its strategic cooperation with other banking institutions and brought this into new areas. We signed
comprehensive cooperation agreements with the Agricultural Bank of China and China Everbright Group to combine our strengths to support
high quality development of the economy. We engaged in business cooperation with over 70 banks in China and acted as the lead institution in
more syndications than our peers did in the financial industry, winning recognition from China Banking Association for its “best performance” in

syndicated loans for nine years consecutively. We also engaged extensively with insurance, asset management, securities, and leasing companies
in the fields of investment of insurance funds, asset management, and financial leasing.

ANFFESHELNE
HUMAN RESOURCES AND ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE
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In 2018, CDB further reformed and innovated with its human resources management, creating a talent reserve for postings to places of
hard conditions and overseas institutions, training and promoting young outstanding employees, and continuing the management trainee

programme. We organised research trips for employees working at the forefront of fighting poverty and stepped up direct HR management
by headquarters for overseas offices. We developed regular mechanisms for supervising staff members, delineated the responsibilities of
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different sections clearly, made heads of sections accountable, and build an effective evaluation system for staff members. In line with the
goals of supervision and the development strategy of the Bank, we improved performance evaluation and remuneration system and stimulated
workplace enthusiasm.

Over the year, we improved our organisational structure in response to the development of our business and the need to prevent and control
risks, adjusted the internal control and compliance organisation, and moved faster to set up branches in countries along the BRI. At the
end of 2018, our network included 37 tier-one branches and three tier-two branches; our overseas network comprised of one branch and 10
representative offices overseas; we also had five majority-owned subsidiaries.
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STAFF TRAINING
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In 2018, we conducted staff training in various forms with a focus on our main areas of business. The CDB headquarters organised 108 face-
to-face training sessions and 40 online sessions, counting 22,000 times of participation. On the topic of risk management, we made a new
move to select a real-life case of CDB and conducted case-study training. We ran training programmes for different levels of staff members
and in different fields: the managers and outstanding staff members were given opportunities to study and train in overseas colleges and
such international financial institutions as the Asian Development Bank and Barclays; special training sessions were organised on the topic
of poverty alleviation partnership between east and west China and the BRI; development finance lectures were given on the hot topics in
economy and society to build a balanced knowledge structure.
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IT MANAGEMENT
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In 2018, CDB enhanced its IT capacity through transformation, upgrading and innovation. To transform management, we passed the
appraisals for CMMI4 and put into operation a number of IT management systems, including technological risks and compliance
management platform and uniform information security monitoring system, greatly enhancing the IT management capabilities of the Bank
as a whole. We upgraded our technologies with the launch of Daoxianghu Data Center which marked the completion of CDB'’s plan to build
twin data centres in one locality and a backup center in a different locality. A number of technology platforms and automation tools, such
as laaS and PaaS Cloud, unified data interchange platform, and unified operation monitoring, entered into service, laying the foundation
for sustained IT progress. We made innovations in application by introducing new systems, products, and functions, for example the plan
for the new generation core system, the test use of a new OA, connections between our commercial bills system and the bills system
of Shanghai Commercial Paper Exchange Corporation, and comprehensive pricing management, giving strong support to our whole
spectrum of business. In terms of value increase, we launched group client management system and smart analysis for credit review, put
into extensive use manual data management, and leveraged the role of our innovation lab and the big data “100-persons programme”,
promoting deep integration of technology and business.
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CDB Capital was established in August 2009 with a registered capital of RMB61.05 billion. As a national leading platform for investment,
it worked in 2018 in service of key industries, including developing strategic emerging industries, promoting innovative development,
invigorating and integrating urban and rural areas, and the BRI, making RMB42 billion new investments. By improving the group
management structure and with a focus on integration, it strengthened management of the subsidiaries and enhanced the capacity for
development. At the end of 2018, the company had a total asset of RMB150 billion, with RMB290 billion asset in its custody.
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CDB Securities Co., Ltd. (CDB Securities) was founded in August 2010 and completed its restructuring into a joint stock company on
25 August 2017. With a registered capital of RMB9.5 billion, it is a class-A company that deals in seven areas: debt financing, equity
financing, proprietary investments, asset management, margin trading, brokerage, and international operations. In 2018, it underwrote
228 bonds of different types for a total of RMB122.73 billion; it was the biggest underwriter of corporate bonds and government-backed
agency bonds; for the seventh time, it was on the winners list published by the Financial News and the Institute of Finance and Banking of

the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences, winning the titles of the Most Socially Responsible Securities Company of the Year and the Most
Innovative Institution on the Bond Market. By the end of 2018, its total assets had amounted to RMB40.789 billion.
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CDB Leasing Co., Ltd (CDB Leasing) was created in May 2008 with a registered capital of RMB12.642 billion and was listed on the main
board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in July 2016. In 2018, it further improved its business mix, enhancing its competitiveness in ship
leasing, new energy and equipment manufacturing and building its expertise in such pillar industries as aviation and infrastructure. By the
end of 2018, its total asset had grown to RMB238.067 billion, up by 27.24% from the beginning of the year.
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China-Africa Development Fund (CAD Fund) was founded in June 2007 as the first equity investment fund in China specialising in
investments in Africa. In 2018, the State Council approved the plan to expand its size by USD5 billion, firming up the foundation for its
development. The CAD Fund was fully involved in the 2018 summit of the Forum on China-Africa Cooperation and the fourth Invest in

Africa Forum, signing 13 cooperation agreements. By the end of 2018, it had made decisions on USD4.838 billion investments, making it a
primary platform for China-Africa investment cooperation.
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COMPREHENSIVE RISK MANAGEMENT
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In 2018, to implement the decision and arrangements of the central government to prevent and mitigate financial risks, CDB, in light of the
complex and changing environment, strengthened its comprehensive risk management and ensured the attainment of its most crucial goals.

With a stronger focus on planning, we established a steering group on risk management to formulate action plans for tackling major risks and
coordinate progress in different areas. CDB continued to be moderate in its risk appetite and reflected this in its development and operational
planning and performance evaluation. We refined management through consolidated financial statements to ensure that the group acts as an
integrated whole in fending off risks. We implemented a new mechanism for managing group clients, under which the headquarters takes the
overall responsibilities and the branches focus on the clients of their place of origin, allowing both to play their role and work in concert. We
developed and launched a system for group clients management that integrates internal and external information, and enhanced the incentives
and restraints system for risk management to continuously raise risk awareness and strengthen the capacity. At the end of 2018, all of our risk
appetite indicators were kept below the annual targets, with RMB107.2 billion non-performing loans and an NPL ratio of 0.92%, an end-of-year
figure lower than 1% for the 14th consecutive year.
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CREDIT RISK
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In 2018, CDB continued to improve its credit risk management system. We refined our methods and standards, frequently calibrated our
rating system to measure more precisely the risks, and improved our group client ratings model to cover all group clients. We stepped up
risk analysis and evaluation of important clients, projects, and partner countries, hot spot issues, and key industries. We also included risk-
management in the early stage of our work, examined the qualifications of loan clients closely, and identified and assessed risks through credit
ratings. In addition, we reinforced risk monitoring and early-warning and developed rapid response to incidents of major risks.

The year of 2018 was the “year of enhancing credit risk management” in CDB. Ten targets were set for credit management and performance
benchmarked against the ten targets was constantly monitored. We stepped up the control over credit risk, refined its management, and resolved
the risks according rules and laws in an orderly manner. We prioritised both risk prevention and control on one hand and NPL resolution on
the other. Guided by the principles of “prioritising projects, applying case-specific measures, and focusing on major actions”, we resorted
to diversified approaches and tailored measures for each category. In 2018, we wrote off and transferred in total RMB14.3 billion of NPL. We
improved the collateral management system with a problem-oriented approach, and better organised the existing data, laying a solid foundation
for robust and efficient credit management.
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In 2018, CDB continued to strengthen its market risk management, following closely trends on international and domestic financial markets,
regularly examining changes in risk exposure, and carrying out bank-wide market risk stress tests to prepare for and prevent risks. To build up

a system for managing market risks for trading, we formulated the CDB Market Risk Management Measures for Trading Business and improved
the processes of identifying, measuring, monitoring, controlling, and reporting risks to enable rules-based management.
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LIQUIDITY RISK
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CDB maintains a balanced mix of and optimal matching between the maturities of assets and liabilities, and makes adjustments in response to
our business development and market dynamics. In 2018, following a prudent liquidity management approach, we implemented new liquidity
requirements determined by how development finance obtains and uses its funding resources, improving cycle-neutral funding and liquidity
management policies. Our liquidity management system covers the entire business process, dynamically monitors bank-wide cash flow gaps

and asset-liability matching position, allows regular liquidity stress test, puts in place liquidity risk buffers, and ensures adequate liquidity
reserves, protecting the liquidity safety of the whole bank.
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OPERATIONAL RISK
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In 2018, CDB improved the system, mechanism and structure for operational risk management, and refined the management on all operational
risk factors, including internal procedures, human resources, IT system, and external risks, keeping bank-wide operational risks at a minimal

level. We strengthened the mechanism and capacity for NPL resolution through legal procedures, and sought expert opinions and adopted
targeted measures for key branches, clients, and projects, aiming to leverage legal means more in NPL resolution.
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In 2018, CDB adjusted the institutional structure for internal control and compliance and set up the Legal and Compliance Department to
exercise more professional management. To better manage this area across the Bank, we were committed to building a good foundation and
taking proactive steps. We worked closely with the CBIRC in off-site oversight, on-site inspections, and regulatory interviews and researches,
uncovering and rectifying problems. We improved the internal control and compliance system that comprises of compliance management,
internal control management, authorisation, operational risk management, case handling, and related party transaction. We developed a
culture of compliance and the rule of law in our key business areas and carried out compliance education and training for all staff members
at different levels step by step to raise awareness. We reinforced the system and mechanism for anti-money laundering and tailored it to the
specificities of development banking.
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In 2018, CDB continued to develop the system and mechanisms for reputational risk management and further strengthened its capability in
this regard. The Bank increased its efforts in monitoring public opinions and addressing public concerns in a timely way, and developed crisis
contingency plan to enhance our capacity for handling emergencies. CDB made continued progress in its reputational risk management and
kept up a good image.
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COUNTRY RISK
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In 2018, CDB strengthened country risk management system, formulating the CDB Country Risk Management Measures and amending the
CDB Country Risk Limits Management Measures and the CDB Country Risk Monitoring Measures. We improved the country and sovereign rating
model and the methods for setting country risk limits, and strengthened country risk monitoring and the management of country risk limits. We
released quarterly risk analysis reports for international business, evaluated the impact of major country risk incidents timely, and strengthened
monitoring, early-warning and emergency response, supporting sound development of our international business.
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In 2018, CDB improved its strategic risk management system, formulated the CDB Strategic Risk Management Measures, defined the
governance structure of strategic risk management, and strengthened management by establishing a system for identifying, evaluating,
monitoring, controlling, and reporting risks, realising comprehensive evaluation of strategic risks.
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In 2018, CDB continued to improve its IT risk management system, relying on its three lines of defense for protection. We carried out bank-
wide IT risk evaluation to fully identify all types of IT risks and took effective measures accordingly. We strengthened information security
management by drawing up a new plan. To ensure business continuity management, we developed the CDB Business Continuity Management
Measures, completed overall business impact analysis, and conducted multi-leveled business continuity emergency rehearsals.
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INTERNAL CONTROL
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In 2018, CDB strengthened internal control. To improve authorisation management, we developed a stronger management structure, brought the Plan
for the Authorisation of President (Executive Management) by the Board of Directors in line with the CDB Articles of Association, started authorisation
of other members of executive management, and improved authorisation of the headquarters departments and branches. We improved differentiated
authorisation of branches and dynamic adjustments and drew up an execution plan for this purpose that covers all important management powers
of the whole bank. To realise stronger internal control, we revised the CDB Internal Control Rules and created Temporary Measures for CDB Internal
Control Evaluation Management. Putting in place a structure underpinned by the five factors of internal environment, risk evaluation, information and
communication, internal supervision, and control activities, we improved the internal control system. We instituted a multi-layered internal control
indicators system for different business sections of the group and conducted the first internal control evaluation for the whole bank which covered
the main business sections and all branches. In terms of institutional building, we formulated and revised a total of 30 internal control regulations and
developed a closed-loop management procedure comprising different layers, including rules, methods, and implementing measures.

In 2018, we further developed internal control evaluation system and audited the effectiveness of internal control over the year. Our internal
control proved to be effective, without any major flaws identified during the reporting period. In response to the areas that need improvement,
we have taken actions accordingly.
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The Bank’s capital management includes capital adequacy ratio management, economic capital management and book capital management.

We manage our capital resources to support national strategies, meet regulatory requirements, and preserve and increase the value of state-
owned capital, so as to effectively support, guide and safeguard our business development.

In 2018, CDB made steady improvement in operation and performance. With the issuance of RMB30 billion secondary capital bonds, we
effectively replenished our capital from internal and external sources. The total capital increased with an improved structure. In light of its mandate
and characteristics as a development finance institution, CDB continued to improve the capital management systems, including the capital
discipline mechanism based on capital adequacy ratio. We also put in place procedures to evaluate the capital adequacy ratio, and developed
the plan for capital management in the coming three years and the annual plan for capital adequacy ratio management to ensure dynamic
management of capital budgeting and resources. All these efforts improved the utilisation and returns of capital and brought into full play the role
of capital in budgeting, pricing and performance assessment, providing strong support for the Bank’s sustainable and robust development.

As calculated in accordance with the Rules on Capital Management for Commercial Banks and other relevant regulations, as of the end of 2018, the
Bank, in consolidation terms, had a total capital of RMB1,534,358 million, total Tier 1 capital RMB1,264,276 million, total Common Equity Tier 1 capital
RMB1,263,426 million, capital adequacy ratio 11.81%, Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 9.73%, and Common Equity Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 9.73%.
At the parent company, the total capital was RMB1,501,682 million, both Common Equity Tier 1 capital and Tier 1 capital RMB1,238,027 million,
capital adequacy ratio 11.73%, and both Common Equity Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio and Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 9.64%.
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As a development finance institution, CDB takes as its mission to strengthen the nation’s competitiveness and improve the
people’s livelihood. We uphold responsibility, innovation, green growth, prudence, and win-win development as our core
values, earnestly fulfill our social responsibilities, and seek to support high quality development.

In 2018, following the government's new development philosophy, we actively supported supply-side structural
reform and contributed to a more efficient, fair, and sustainable development. We carried out our first special training
session on the topic of sustainable development, deepened understanding of the strategic guidance on sustainable
development by the 19th CPC National Congress, firmly established the concept of sustainable development across the
whole bank, and enhanced our capacity for sustainable development. We increased communication and exchange with
such institutions as the UN Global Compact, the Global Reporting Initiative, and China Banking Association, took an
active part in domestic and overseas conferences to share experience and practices in fulfilling social responsibilities
and pursuing sustainable development, and promoted our own practices, making finance instrumental in realising
sustainable development.

CDB is planning to release its 2018 Sustainability Report to disclose our philosophies and practices in social responsibilities
and sustainable development.
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People.cn

People’s Social Responsibility Award (13th consecutive year)

Xinhuanet. com

2018 China Corporate Social Responsibility Summit Award for Targeted
Poverty Alleviation

State Council Steering Group Office of Poverty Alleviation and
Development

2018 National Award for Innovation in Poverty Reduction

Financial News and the Institute of Finance and Banking of Chinese
Academy of Social Sciences

Best Bank of the Year for Promoting High Quality Development

China Comment

Ten Most Valued Financial Brands Over 40 Years of Reform and Opening

UN Global Compact Network China

Best Practices Awards on Sustainable Development Goals 2018

China Banking Association

Special Contribution Award of the Green Credit Expert Committee
Professional Contribution Award for Green Banking Evaluation
Excellent Institution of Green Banking Overall Evaluation

Most Socially Responsible Financial Institution of the Year

Best Social Responsibility Owner of the Year

Best Institution for Special Contribution to Social Responsibility of the Year
Outstanding News Work in the Chinese Banking Industry 2018
Best Bank for Product Innovation in Trade Finance

2018 Best Performance in Syndication Loans

2018 Best Management in Syndication Loans

2018 Best Projects in Syndication Loans

Ifeng.com

Ten Charity Enterprises of the Year awarded at the “Action League Charity
Programme 2018 Ceremony”

Asiamoney

Best Green Policy Bank

The Asset

Best Investment Bonds

Financial Computerizing

Outstanding Contribution to Management Innovation of 2018 Fintech and
Service Innovation Awards

MerComm, Inc.

2018/19 MERCURY AWARDS SILVER Annual Report — Overall Presentation:

Finance Company
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China Foreign Exchange Trade System
2018 Core Dealer on Inter-bank Local Currency Market
2018 Excellent Bond Market Dealer of Inter-bank Local Currency Market

2018 Excellent Money Market Dealer of Inter-bank Local Currency
Market

2018 Excellent Derivatives Market Dealer of Inter-bank Local Currency
Market

2018 Award for Inter-bank Local Currency Market Trading Mechanism
Innovation (X-bond, X-Swap, W-Repo)

2018 Best Technology of Inter-bank Local Currency Market

2018 Market Maker with Best Overall Performance of Inter-bank Foreign
Exchange Market

2018 Best Forward Swap Market Maker of Inter-bank Foreign Exchange
Market

2018 Best Forward Swap Enquiry Market Maker of Inter-bank Foreign
Exchange Market

2018 Best Forward Swap Matchmaking Market Maker of Inter-bank
Foreign Exchange Market

2018 Most Popular Forward Swap Enquiry Market Maker of Inter-bank
Foreign Exchange Market

2018 Best ESP Market Maker of Inter-bank Foreign Exchange Market
2018 Best Foreign Currency Lending Quotation Bank of Inter-bank
Foreign Exchange Market

2018 Best Foreign Currency Lending Member of Inter-bank Foreign
Exchange Market

China Central Depository & Clearing Co., Ltd.
Excellent Policy Financial Bond Issuer

Settlement Top 100-Excellent Proprietary Institution
Excellent Issuer of OTC Bonds

Excellent Issuer of Sample Bonds in the ChinaBond Green Bond
Indices
Outstanding Partner in Collateral Transactions

Shanghai Stock Exchange
Top-performing Issuer of Policy Financial Bonds

Shenzhen Stock Exchange
2018 Bond Market Special Contribution Award

Shanghai Clearing House
Excellent Clearing Member
Award for Distinctive Performance in Proprietary Forex Clearing

Excellent Proprietary Clearing Members of IRS Business.

Chinese Institute of Business Management
Best Example of Corporate Sustainable Competitiveness

Organising Committee of China International Exhibition on
Financial Banking Technology & Equipment and Services 2018
Excellent Financial Market Services Award of 2018 China International

Financial Exhibition
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ERFRETESES .
—. HItER
(—) EMNFITHAE
BNEHTERFEET (NTER FEET ) MHEER, GE018E 12831 AMNAHRETAS IR, 0ISERNARETHNE. &3
BRREFEENRLHER. 2HRETNSRBENEMSREMDE.
(=) HMWER
BATAY, EHAVMSRREFAEATERBLVSITANMMERE . ARRMRT FLRT018E12831H A RRTY SRR K018
MAAREFEERRENASRE.
—. FEREITERNEM
BARBFEEMS T BEENGRENSTT FIT T, BIHREN SEMSTBNUSREFTORE HHE—SEE T RNEZLEEN THOE
£, BIVAE, BOFBROFIHEBREAS . BSH, HERTIHEIEMT 25,
ZRAETIMS T FRLEETN, BB FFREST, HEFTTRYEESENEMhEE.
=. XKEHEITEmM
*(RETERSRANRERLAE, AR AV SRETTRIEEOETR, TEEFHEN RS REERETRIHEAFIEA LSS,
AR XL E TR RFEN.
BANER T RIR M RF T ERCANT .

(=) RERRMER. RREKBENMSEREEDOWPEARKITE
(Z) BW&&, BFESCELSERENLIENEIT

HAEKE RS THITFE TSI (5% 5 i a 1k)
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AP +86 (21) 2323 8888, 14E: +86 (21) 2323 8800, www.pween.com
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(—) EMBFTIER. RIOKENMSEREENFHRERAREITE
SRFRBIMSRRMGED.7.(6). TR, HHE/N7. MHE/N29KMHE+HZ 2,
F2018512A310, ARARITEHMESRARPEMERMER U KB AITE)
BEIARM116,78234{Zt, EEEHINNMKAEZSARMTS,10251{27T « HFH&
MM EBR AR A ART36,955.36127T, EEREHIANTITAKART141.99
2., GHFBRPFHIAN018FEELMERMER . RRRKENYSEREERE
FREREEITHARTI60.311Z7T.

EHMBRFMBARREAE. BRRENYSERGRTAGRARRT EERER
AL ENE22S — R TARIASITE) MERRARE, ERRAX
TR IR A M R At
FERTBEIFHREAFRMER. RHRORENY SERSFNEANEBMRT
INEREREEM, cR=ZMBRAERATETREARK. ¥ TURERASITTE
MERRRMER. NREMBERKBENUSBREE, EHELEAEMELE
AEEENHE. BARAE. BANEEBENMAXREXRSHNRRSHIRE
ETEREAEE.
MHAERRAITEBREMBENEREERARMRRETIEERE
(1) BEEXMUEARKEFENLSYANB-MEEG, SREANTEER HH
B ERRAXBSH .
(2) FARKEEEEN. BAMEREFRRENABRE .
(3) ATREMITEBHNZFER. @FBERRENENRA .
(4) SEIHMBERMBERMEKMRRIASRIUN.
FFRBTHIMIE AR BRI TR XAEIE RS,
FRB|ITOTBEAREITE, EATERNRE, ERTAENSHNEE. B
REEENTOTABRLSAER, PREXEERANMBRE. HLRNBEH DX
BEITEL.

(D) BU &M, BREEEUELSHAXENEEENEHF
SREHMESRENEE.29, MEH.2, KHE/\.52,
FEROMEMELEIGRIECERT. 2. TERRANEM >R, RFEEHKL
. REEETYMES, F018F12831H, AHMEREPZENMAS
FEEMERUTERNBASIARRTEST. REREENRPANEGIHCEANL
MUTEEOR=RTDFIAART486.13{Z AR T2,207.0912 T, Meoh, F
2018 12A3TBARBARANBEMINMLT. XRREEBNREFEMLER
KO E M {E 9 AR 396.6212 7T .
EERBSITEUTAEHN LR ERLEREERTEMANEGHUESHRKEE .

o WEMAEERFTRENR
 BUSEHEMATIRNBEXEIMEETNTEER MK

s BRNZBMEMAEIERNRNNEZBFRRITERSFINITEER.

BAE BB EMLEERBH NS, SRERHAMNURENUEERNSMELR
EH R ERITUE.

[ FHRE ]

HAVER I PN RL KRB IT BRI

BATFATMA T 5RBERMAY . FREEFY SBRE FQTME AR

BRXNNBRART RETHARE, TROLE .

() FUREMRAIRMEAR, SFERTERRER. FHREA, MRS
RIS AR AR R B

() EEREAAMMBREXQABEH. SFEASUN BLEE SHM
it EARBEEEN. SHNSREERREAN, NRARERIEATR
452 9 9 LI 1 0 ) SR B

(3) BB X RER AR MR BB M B 15

() FIMBRMETRABIE K RI RN HARE OB

(6) A BAERNERRGNBEH.

RINNTHERMER, TBEHE .

BRMNEHTRMERRSMDT BN, NAAND . RUAE XRSH B

KABRBE WA T A, RIOBERIE T RROER, MUK B8R

BHBRE T BRERSHRETE.

T HRAGOMSREUS &L RAMINBIERTE DT, RIGREAFET

EREREANGEREEM. BANE R4 5 PR FRIRH 12 M

HTHEEITR RNERT ERRETEFAR. SRGRERENMLHHLE

R FETEFERENENSRYE, NI, SFHRRNELTT BB

HERL.

RAVARE 7R BAEANX R, 75 L ENIHEAME, DIFE

SUEMMAE RN, RN XREBEMIIT RS S8 REE S HOERER

EREHTHERS, NBIELERENTEN.

T ESNBMRHRIBR, RVEIHA, RETERRETHRATERA

BMMSES. RN BRI GO, S5 AT RSB SR i

Ht AR SR B RITIEI HOBORKE.

EFRMNAATHER. FRERARMBR, RWRENYSEREROANE

AREIHROEEFREN, FRBTEREFERFEBORE. EANXES

H.OBRMEXHNNRRR I RERETEEN,

BN ARERNERUER, HTT TR -

c BEFEAARIHMET ARXZEM THERNAMI S RARRTIEMLE
HERA

* EARTRIMTEERATANK, TERRBFERRFEIR~EEAR
BENMEBHMAE. BEOMRKE. NEREENEMLERREHT RN
ERFHAEMIEF . MUR

s HMARROELEMLIEZFPEERBALZZIEREIANAE. BRND
WA 7 FRBITNEMUEERENAGEE. BEEERARRESTEH
BRRSHRMAT. BEHEMNLERDHEMBNGEAIRIBT LR RE
MR HMS 5 FTHE KRR,

RERTHFEITES. EERNEMAIRELNSITHNRTREZN.
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FRATEEENRMLEERE, HbEaaEFREA018EEEREPARNEL, BREEMSRENRNQEIHRS.

RINNMERELRNFHBATESRMBEL, RNGFNEMELRFEAH RN LSITLER.

GERMMUSRENOAET, RNOFELATLMER, ElIRS, EEEHEAEESUSRERRNETT IR TRIQEREFEEAT

—BRENTHEEARR. RFRNCEAFHTHE NRRNBELLELFETASE. RNNYREZFR. AXHE. BNEEAFHE

B,

i, EEEMGEEMNUERERMIRME

FERAFEBERRRELUSIDENNARREV S RE, EEIAALER, FEH. AGNEPABONRLE . NEMSRERFEHTE

B HRSRNEABR.

ERHMSREN, SREARIHARAGNREEER). RESHEAERANER (MER). HEABRSERE BETER WAL

BT, AILEERER LI TORE,

REERKEEFRRGFNMSRETR,

N, EMSIHIRX M SR RFITHSRE

RNWEREN S REBSEE I AL THEELBRSHNEALRAMSRRIE, FHASAMIBANEIHES. ABRILHKTHE

i, EHAERERBRENATORHEL - BASREENARLI, SRTEETEELHRSH, N4 EMAMEIRBMIT ALK T

B SRR R ERIBY SRR AT RS, WBE AN BREEALN.

ERBELENRTET THOSRT, BIEAREHE, FRERLEE. BN, RIGAGNTIA.

(=) RAREEETEERERSRNMSRREABRRL S ARERHRFNENRERR, FRRES . EBUNEHIE, Ea%%
FHRAAORRM, ATSETESREA. (b, KL, ERMARABTAREHL L. RELAETEESHNEASRORRE
FRELAHTHRESHOBARRORAL.

(Z) TRSEHEXORMES. MM S NEIHRE, BRI ETRBEHOTEEEREA.

(Z)  FHEERRASHEEN Y HAEE SRR RE NS EN,

(M) NEEEEAHEAEREORYHEHER. BN, RERROFHIE RTESENFRRTREEEEN L EARSNERRE
REBHEEATHERBHER, MRRNBUELANFEEATHESE . BHENERBNETHRE RRBREEHTIRY SR
FRWAXHE . MEHERAS. BNNLUERELRBEL. RNOSRETREMHRSATRENEE. AT, KROBARER
T SHALRTREHERE.

(H)  IHMSREQRGIR. SHANE (QFERE) HTNUSRELSEAARRIEX S NEA.

(X)  BARRGRRASLSFDOMSELRMES . BY QTR NNEHMSRRLRTIEL, RNAKES. KERAGERDAS
. BRI S BEL.

RNSERRRIHNEIEE, BERHNEATTENSFILTHE, A DBRNE T IR HESXT R BEHIGRE.

RNEHREET SR HAXORYEEERDABRRERFE, #SAEEABTHERAEADENRNEIHNFEXRNLBER, MEE%

BB (MEA)

WEAERERATOERS RNAEBLERANARYSRETHRHIEE, EMHAXREHER, RNEDHRS FHAZLER, BiELE

EMBEATFRBEZLEET, RERSUELT. NRSERHERHRE TABRFTERN A AERBIEARFRTE~ENRL. RNHBE

R 7B HR S A EIZEA.

BEKBERRRUTWEST (FHREBEK) SEMETm
Tfh (MBEEHKA)
SEME W
hEe BT B
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BHRRITES A

2018%#12831H (RBHEEMWMIN. £HENMHYAARTEAT)

AR AT

# B P P
RN& RFHFRBITHA 1 275,168 264,868 274,737 264,460
R R 2 758,539 1,129,033 857,596 1,111,631
HHES 3 168,605 227,739 168,105 227,739
FTESBMA> 4 34,770 37,887 34,754 37,922
INEBESHMA~ 5 463,502 506,172 454,666 493,783
oAl elp=y 6 TEAR 52,144 TiEA 51,160
RGO 7 11,198,375 10,642,675 11,093,131 10,541,856
SRIRA -

ZHMEmA~ 8 1,081,732 TEA 951,228 TiEA
AR 9 1,458,663 TEM 1,450,264 RiEA
HAAFAURE 10 481,094 ER 468,379 RiER
HthAN% TRIER 11 3,783 EA 533 RiER
MARMETEEEERITALSHRANSHE > 12 TEA 1,151,030 TEA 1,030,863
ot & SRE 13 TEHR 522,396 TiEA 503,781
BEZEIERR 14 &M 28,388 REM 24,841
NI R 15 TEHR 1,201,815 TEA 1,198,790
KRR AR 7 16 1,686 1,835 80,817 80,387
& i # 7 17 87,053 72,762 19,996 19,270
TRR= 18 2,231 2,387 1,824 1,899
BE 1,256 1,250 = -
BIEFTSRLA 19 125,812 85,790 114,913 80,067
Hth# 20 37,551 31,117 17,525 12,172
RFERT 16,179,820 15,959,288 15,988,468 15,680,621

A EEH AT

stk WA P b0
B b 2 H At £ R AG 77 BRI 21 3,229,518 3,264,100 3,229,524 3,264,110
B B A H b £ BN E K 22 428,243 366,992 271,674 254,159
HARE 23 62,124 85,329 61,223 81,529
Z 5 M &R nE 24 119,226 164,959 118,670 164,744
PTESR A HR 4 38,570 33,495 38,309 33,489
ST Bl SRR K 25 66,249 19,327 56,682 7,790
RULTFFR 26 1,670,777 2,070,579 1,826,844 2,102,307
R AFER T3 Al 2,210 2,079 1,633 1,578
R 3B 27 59,947 23,881 54,858 18,061
RAHFIR 28 TER 172,887 TEA 171,598
it s 29 15,148 2,157 15,492 2,270
ERTREIES 30 9,108,416 8,446,592 9,037,446 8,372,128
8 IE TSR R 19 1,394 2,198 = -
HAh AR 31 77,275 64,238 36,504 24,661
fRAT 14,879,097 14,718,813 14,748,859 14,498,424
FAEEN G

ENU§/ N 32 421,248 421,248 421,248 421,248
HARNTR 33 182,650 182,636 182,195 182,195
Hithm A 34 (15,933) (4,919) 388 (5,090)
BREAR 35 143,315 121,672 143,315 121,672
— R & 36 227,633 213,934 223,507 210,397
RO EFE 37 319,068 284,876 268,956 251,775
AEFEAIFEERF AT 1,277,981 1,219,447 1,239,609 1,182,197
DI RNG 38 22,742 21,028 = -
FAENG &I 1,300,723 1,240,475 1,239,609 1,182,197
SR EN S ST 16,179,820 15,959,288 15,988,468 15,680,621

RIS IRRMEARY SREMERID .
BOTMEELNTUNUSIMERB TIATAEE

BEEK . BR BIEEK. 7K. V=K TEUMSETK DK WMERFA - RIL
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BHRIRITAER

20185 E (BRAFIWI, SHEMYHARTELTT)

R EEH] T
—. BB 252,338 166,311 239,647 142,557
ISV TV ON 39 182,948 180,250 174,700 171,077
EIBSYON 617,161 560,484 601,253 543,931
FlEX W (434,213) (380,234) (426,553) (372,854)
FEARAEBEN 40 7,698 9,773 6,758 8,634
FERRAEHRAN 9,009 10,900 7,455 9,367
FEH{RAS I (1,311) (1,127) (697) (733)
AU 41 19,979 20,525 6,907 6,377
Hep . ¥REMGELUHRARES 156 94 = 5
DU R P AT B () & R0 A = 48 AL TIA P A O U2 9 - - -
ARNEERHHRE 42 (16,925) 3,857 1,775 11,220
LR 43 48,859 (57,002) 48,189 (55,964)
Hethl SN 44 7,964 7,382 12 31
H bl 2s 1,815 1,526 1,306 1,182
ZBLEEH (120,894) (25,788) (109,707) (10,049)
e XM 45 (4,479) (3,899) (4,184) (3,560)
WEREBHE 46 (12,305) (12,177) (10,136) (9,985)
&R EIRE 47 (97,186) TEM (95,322) RiEA
HAE A~ RERE (897) TiE (65) TiE A
RERERK 48 E (5,080) FiE M 1,709
ot 55 B A 49 (6,027) (4,632) = 1,787
= BRI 131,444 140,523 129,940 132,508
LR ZIN ON 189 191 103 92
o Bl (73) (90) (62) (83)
M. F3E AR 131,560 140,624 129,981 132,517
o FTEBEA 50 (19,504) (27,035) (20,620) (25,449)
. OEFE 112,056 113,589 109,361 107,068
(—) HEBESFE 112,056 113,589 109,361 107,068
-~ BRTEASMEENRFE 110,758 112,387 109,361 107,068
- LPBBRERRE 1,298 1,202 = -
(Z) &L RESFE - - - -
. Bt ERENEER 34 5,910 (8,557) 5,423 (3,491)
AETFEASMAEENEMEERENBE S 5,741 (8,259) 5,423 (3,491)
(=) FEES L FRMANEBEERER (950) (63) (33) (63)
1TEHITRREZRITWENT (32) (63) (32) (63)
2 HMANE TRIEALAAMEE (918) TiEH (1) TiEA
(D) BESXHRANEMEE RS 6,691 (8,196) 5,456 (3,428)
1 HARBRAUR A R MEE ) 5,408 REA 5,335 RER
2 HM AR A EARKAEE 121 TEH 121 TiER
SHHEESRA~AANEED TEA (6,722) TEA (3,158)
AT SIRFITHZR 1,302 (1,437) = (270)
5.5 At (140) (37) - -
AR F O BB FENEM LSS RS NS 169 (298) = -
. REWHBH 117,966 105,032 114,784 103,577
AETHASIMAEENGEREBH 116,499 104,128 114,784 103,577
AR T L ERENLGS S B 1,467 904 = -

BN SIRRME AR S RERAERIBD .
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BHMEENDEHNR

20184 (BRBAETHIN, £HBEMHYIARTEST)

AETFEARKRAEENGL

—. 20174 12A31BREH 421,248 182,636 (4919) 121,672 213,934 284,876 1,219,447 21,028 1,240,475
SHBREE m. 30 = - (16,755) - - (14,451) (31,206) (359) (31,559)
—. 20181 A1 EEH 421,248 182,636 (21,674) 121,672 213,934 270,425 1,188,241 20,675 1,208,916
Z. FEHEREHEM
(—) %#E - - - - - 110,758 110,758 1,298 112,056
(Z) Hftrir &z I\, 34 - = 5,741 = = - 5,741 169 5,910
SHEBEHR - - 5,741 - - 110,758 116,499 1,467 117,966
(Z) REERAFRL AK = = = = = - - 938 938
(M) 5LHEBRFEZENXS = = = = = (6) (6) 6 -
(&) FiEHE
1TRRBERAR . 37 - - - 21,643 = (21,643) = = =
2R —RAE A E \. 37 - - - - 13,699 (13,699) = =
3 EEMNDE \. 37 B - B - - (26,767) (26,767) (344) (27,111)
() Hfth - 14 - - - - 14 B 14
M. 2018412831 &% 421,248 182,650 (15,933) 143,315 227,633 319,068 1,277,981 22,742 1,300,723
AR TFEATNAEENG
—. 20171 B1EREH 421,248 182,637 3,340 100,485 186,732 247,104 1,141,546 21,174 1,162,720
. REMBEHNEHM
(—) % F)5E - - - - - 112,387 112,387 1,202 113,589
(Z) R &S 34 - - (8,259) - - - (8,259) (298) (8,557)
ZElRE 2| - - (8,259) - - 112,387 104,128 904 105,032
(Z) B BERARRDHAR - - - - - - - 471 471
(M) 50BBEZEHZS - - - - - (27) (27) 27 -
() FAHER
TRBABRAR 37 - - - 21,187 - (21,187) - - -
2 R — RN 37 - - - - 27,408 (27,408) - - -
3 EFTHEENIE 37 - - - - - (26,200) (26,200) (432) (26,632)
(7%) At - (1) - - (206) 207 - (1,116) (1,116)

. 2017FE12A31 B & 421,248 182,636 (4,919) 121,672 213,934 284,876 1,219,447 21,028 1,240,475
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20185 (BRHBEZHSN, STEMHYIARTEAT)

—. 20174F12A31BREH 421,248 182,195 (5,090) 121,672 210,397 251,775 1,182,197
KUTBREE /. 30 - - 55 - - (30,660) (30,605)
=. 201851 A1HRE 421,248 182,195 (5,035) 121,672 210,397 221,115 1,151,592
. AEHEEREHEH
(—) %#5E - - - - = 109,361 109,361
(Z) Bfhz a0 J\. 34 - - 5,423 - - - 5,423
SEREBTM - - 5,423 - - 109,361 114,784
(Z) FiEHE
1LRREEAR . 37 - - - 21,643 = (21,643) =
2RI — RS & I\, 37 - - - - 13,110 (13,110) =
3XFHENSE . 37 - - - - - (26,767) (26,767)
/. 2018412831 &5 421,248 182,195 388 143,315 223,507 268,956 1,239,609
—. 20171 A1 B 421,248 182,195 (1,599) 100,485 183,336 219,155 1,104,820
. REMREHEH
(—) % F)5E - - - - - 107,068 107,068
(Z) R el 34 - - (3,491) - - - (3,491)
ZElkE 2| - - (3,491) - - 107,068 103,577
(=) FEAHER
1TRBABRAR 37 - - - 21,187 - (21,187) -
2RB—RARAEE 37 - - - - 27,061 (27,061) -
3XFTHENSE 37 - - - - - (26,200) (26,200)

. 20175E12A31HRE 421,248 182,195 (5,090) 121,672 210,397 261,775 1,182,197
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2018 E (BRBBEFWIN, €MBAHHIARTEIT)
AR T
FEIN 20184 20174 20184 20174
—. GEENFENAETRE .
B P FF R R b R T A N AR - 943,796 - 968,967
TR R RARAT AR W R TU% R D 320,399 - 256,462 -
5] H At & RAALAG IR N F 818 i0ET 23,203 19,836 28,099 24,126
& H b & B HR H R SRR B 20,251 19,731 20,256 26,950
EmF L. FEERBENAS 586,274 544,004 567,716 526,433
BB R SREEDEENAS 114,156 117,474 110,855 121,811
ZEFDRETNNT 1,064,283 1,644,841 983,388 1,668,287
RGOS G INER (814,088) (1,610,444) (810,497) (1,614,019)
FFHR P SR AT ) Ak 3R 4 486 A - (583,618) - (681,019)
&P IER A E A BRI B D A (461,298) - (337,522) -
EAFE, FEHARASHAS (114,645) (100,286) (113,623) (93,450)
ERNARIRARI LRSS (6,681) (6,159) (5,404) (5,116)
XA B TR B (49,243) (82,546) (43,701) (79,728)
XARMEZEENEXNAE (52,211) (8,084) (43,555) (3,419)
ZEFHRETH /N (1,498,166) (2,391,137) (1,354,302) (2,476,751)
BEFDTENNERE S 51 (433,883) (746,296) (370,914) (808,464)
Z. BABRHFENNERE
W B KR L& 434,374 310,541 426,015 293,966
BERARFRENRE 61,475 44,205 62,651 43,530
WETFATREAME b B AIKE NS5 E 1,121 - = -
WE Rt SRFFHELNIAS 8,899 9,958 1,058 344
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N& RFMFRBITHIA RERBLA 264,460 HRA 264,460
R R R RBLA 1,111,631 PR 1,111,421
FHES R RBLA 227,739 PR A 227,733
PO MARNMETEEHTHITALHRS A RMHETT 8 B H BTN L HRS
PSR (25t 37,922 (25 1) 37,922
INEESHMA~ R RBLA 493,783 R A 493,783
RIGERFLIK PR AR A 10,541,856 AR 10,509,151
A SN ETTE BT AL E RS 3666
(CEMZEK) '
- o MARNMETEERTHITASHRS AR ETTE B ERHIT AL ERE
SR TRRE (5 117,325 CRTIER) 895,934
uﬁﬁmﬁﬁiﬂiﬁﬂﬁAﬁﬁﬁﬁ 913,538 uﬁﬁmﬁﬁéﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁAﬁ%ﬁﬁ 144750
(*EIIT_) (?E/TF_)
UARMETEBRENITARMEE 503,781 U2 RMETT R B EHITAL MG E 502 652
% (THHEESME>) ' s CEMER) '
A RMETTE BEEHIT AL MG S 33
W% (18E)
WERA (FEEIHRAE) 24,841
P RBLA 1,193,161
RERBAR (KBRS R ) 1,198,790

XTERMOFNDVXSHEER, ERFSRIAANNRAE-WEL, B, FFRIEEIUAANETEEATIHNITALHREN AR, EA

BEERARRESNTSRAAAMERD B FELMEERE TR, ERRUNAEARKTHLERT W,
(2) BHEFAGRPHRTNEESHTEANBEAFTEHRTIREAENNBETER

AEAMAERESRASHLSRAMERASNASREFBMAEET T M. TRERBRESRTEENTT 25T RHOSRE > KANMEREE

A2018F 1 B1HLREH SR T RANSLIEEZRIITEBLT THKENE

A H

20174£12A31H

BRREMTIEEN
JIRHIKERE

201841 A1H

RRETRAER (AR AT E)

ZEREmMTRANI TR

10,642,675

B EHERMERRER (UARNETTZERE TSI NS HHRE)
(FemITAAEN)

(3,837)

MR . MAERRKES

(29,669)

EHER TRAENSTHRE

10,609,169

REERAEBR (U2 R MMETE BEEZHITN LR

ZREmITAAENIITHRT

M. BRBMERMER (MERRATTE) ((REmTREN) A

3,837

TR ARKRRATERANARNETE

(171)

SR T RANI TR

3,666

WMARMMETEBEEHITANLHRGENESRET (X5 (RERITEAEN)

BEERTRAENT TR

124,467

B HHEMAANETEARTNITALHRENSRA CENEX
(HemITA2AEN)

(124,467)

EHERTRAENF TR

AR METEBEEHITALBRANSHME (8E) (REMITAEREN)

BEERIRANTITHRE

1,026,563

B HHEMAANETEAATHITALHRENSRA CENEXR
(FEm T AL

(883,184)

B BHENAAMETEEATMTANLHRBNSRA> (EE)
(HEm T AN

(143,379)

B ER TRAENS TR
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AR 20174128310 201841810

BRERTREN

AT & RA

BRSR T EAENI R AR 522,396

B HFHEMAANETEARBTNTALHRBENSRA ENER)

(e T EAN) (11,496)

B ERNURE (1,725)

B B E H A AR E (504,704)

B FHERMBNETRRA (4,471)

B SR T RANTI TR TER

BEZIERA

ZRERTRAENT AR 28,388

A R ERUR R (4,416)

HHEMAANETEARENTALRREOERAS (EUEXK)

(FemTARN) (80)

B E H A AU E (23,892)

B ERTRAENITHRE FEA

R MR AR

BRI AN R R 1,201,815

o B E AR (1,197,525)

B FHEMAANETEARBNHTALHRBENSRAS EMER)

(FeRTEAN) (4,290

R & a TAAENS] R R FiE A

EREE - UARMETEEESHITANLHREMSRAE CENER)
(FERTEHERN)

%R & a T AAENS] R -

e BMARNETTEEATNITALHRENSHAS (X5HH)

(REBIEAN) %A 124,467

e BMARNETTEERTNITALHRENSRAS™ (EE)

(RERTRRN) HA 863,184

. BUHEESMES (RERTRAN) &N 11,496

M. AREEINRSRAS (REmTEAEN) EA 80

e BRBGRIERE (RERTAEN) #A 4,290

IR . ARSAATERAAANETE 28

B ER T RENTITHRE 1,023,545

EREE - UARNMETEEESHITANLHRRENEMAT (BE)
(FERTEEN)

RS TRANTITHRT -

me.BMARNMETEEATHITALHRENSRAS (EE)

(FERMTARN) #A 143,379

B SR T RANTITHRT 143,379

ERRH - HRUR A

EREERMT AN THRE -

m.BRAERHEE e TRAEN) A 4,416

EFITE . MMERRKEE (©)]

. BEKERIERE (R TAAEN) A 1,197,525

EMTE . MMERRIEE (2,280)

. BTHEESEES (RERTAEN) HA 1,725

IR MMERRIEE - 000-

EHER T RANTTHRE 1,201,383
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b 3| 20174£12A31H 201841H1H
BRERMTREN

EMIRA - EbEAUREA
ZRERTIAAENIITHRB -

. BEAtHESREAS (RS TREAN) #A 504,704
. BFAEISMRE (REmIEAN) A 23,892
EHUE . BERAATET AU ANETE (34)
B em T RN RARET 528,562

SRR - AMMETRERR
RS T RENFIRORE -

. ATREESEES (FEmIEEN) #A 4,471
EH R TRAEMNIRA R 4,471
FERE SR
RIRER T AN R R 1,129,033

EWITE . MPERREER (210)
SR T RANIRHRA 1,128,823
wHEE
RIRER T AN TR R 227,739

EITE . RHGERRAESR (6)
ZH SR T RANF TR 227,733
Hip&Rs>
BRI EAENIIRARE 15,508

EWITE . MPERRAER (223)
ZHEMTEENTIROER 15,285

x1T 2017412A31H 201841A1H

REEMITEAEN
RISERAER (UMK E)

ZREmMITAAMNITHRH 10,541,856

B BEHERRERRER (UARNETTEERE TSI AL HHRE)
(HemTAAN)

EHITE . URERRAAEE (28,868)

EH e TRAEMNIRA R 10,509,151
RIGERABR (UL R HMET R BET TN LR
RS T RENFIRORE -

. BRMERAMER (UBEHATE) (RERTIEEN) #A 3,837

EFITE . ARRRARTETIUARNETE (171)
B SR TR NIRRT 3,666
AR METEBETHITANLBRENSBE (X514 (RERIEAEN)
ZFEER TREAENT AR 117,325

Ao HRHEMAANETEEATHITALBRENERAS EUEXR)
(FemTAAN)

S TR NG R REM
A R METR BTN LIRSS RMAR (58) (EERmTREN)
E ST AR R 913,538

B HHEMAANETEAATHTALHRENESRA CENER)
(FEm T AL

A HRHEMAANETEBRTHITALRRENERA (15E)
(FemT AN

B e TEENTRARE &
A HEERE~
ZFEER TRAENT RARE 503,781

Ao HRHEMAANETEEATHITALBRENSRAS CENEXR)
(& TREN)

B EEMERURE (498,790)
A BHEHMNG TERRE (33)
EH S E T AR R RER

(3,837)

(117,325)

(768,779)

(144,759)

(4,958)
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2017412H31H

201841810

BREEMTEEN
F R E N E

BHEEHHREA

BREMTRANTTHRE

24,841

A R ERUR R

(989)

B HHERMBEUR R

(23,852)

B SR RANTI TR

R MR AR B

BEREEmMTRAENTTHRE

1,198,790

A B E AR R

(1,193,804)

B FHEMAANETEARTHTA SRRSO SRA CENER
(e T RAN)

(4,986)

B e T RAENT TR

ERRE - UARNETEEETHITAN LSRR ERBET CENEXR)
(FHERTEEN)

BREMRTRAENITHRE

m.BMARNMETEBEATHMITALHRENERAS (XHH)
(RERTREN) A

117,325

e BMARNETTEERTMITALHRENSRAS™ (EE)
(FEr TREN) A

768,779

m. BUHEESRE (RERTEEN) A

4,958

e BRBGRIER R (RERTRAEN) #A

4,986

EMITE . ARSI ERAARNETE

(114)

BEHERTRAENITHRE

895,934

ERIEE - UARNETEEESHITANLRRENEMAT (BE)
(FHERTEEN)

%R & E T AENS] R

m.BMARNMETEBATMITALHRENERAS (ER)
(RErTREN) A

144,759

B eI RANTI TR

144,759

ERRE - FHRUR A

EREMRTRAENTTHRE

m. BRAEEHEE (e TARAEN) #A

989

e BRBGRIER R (RERTRAEN) #A

1,193,804

EMTE . MMERRIAEE

(1,632)

B ERTRAENSTHRE

1,193,161

SRR - HA AR

RS TRAENTI TR

. BUHHESRES (RERTEEN) A

498,790

. BRAERSMER (REmTRAEN) A

23,852

EFTE . ARSAATETAMAANETE

EH e T RAENTTHRE

522,652

SRR - HA S TR

R & E T AENS] R

. BTHEESMES (RERTRAEN) A

33

EH e T RAENTTHRET

33

AR LTI

R & a T AAENS] TR

1,111,631

EFITE . MMERRKEE

(210)

EH e T RAENT TR

1,111,421

HHAE

BREERTI AN TR

227,739

EWITE . MMERRKEE

B e T RAENTTHRE

227,733




84 | REEEEINRS

(3) HREAERFUTHGERFMNEEH T RAENFEAH SR TRAMNNETR

F2018F1A1H, AKARREMASRELESBEARBISR T EANRENRIEENFTE .

A EEH

R LRI - - 210 210
FHES - - 6 6
R ER 394,157 (371) 29,669 423,455
NGRS (REm TREN) 3,428 (3,428) - -
FRE (eI EEN) - 3,428 2,283 5,711
THEESEAS (Fem TAAN) 18,215 (18,215) - =
HAERRE rem T RAEN) - 150 106 256
HAtb 359 - 223 582
Ait 416,159 (18,436) 32,497 430,220
RRHRERMESERER 1,243 - 9,548 10,791
T

FILE R - - 210 210
FHES - - 6 6
R ER 382,288 (371) 28,868 410,785
NWHIMERR (Rerm TEAN) 2,951 (2,951) - -
FRERE (eI AEN) - 2,951 1,632 4,583
THEESHMAS (REmITAEEN) 67 (67) - -
HAtb AU E (rept TREEN) - - 95 95
&it 385,306 (438) 30,811 415,679
RHRKERMEERER 1,356 - 9,825 11,181

ZEERPAESHENREZ N, ARAHMEERFERDPARTI6755ZT, RPEFERDARTI445MZT . ATHMBEEWHAEMA
R0.55(Z7T, kHEFAEMD> ART306.60{27T, i, ERDESHERMBENTAERARARITEERSHROTWH N ART105.55{Z7TH
102.13125T, S RKE/N. 198 EREH A~ R NEK,

. ERSTERPAMHNEZAEMSIHE T RANXRBRIENAHERDE

AEAFZAMENA#HRNSUTBRLRES, BTELEEINENTHEN, ARAFTENTEZARITBMOREIE NKENEXTHN . GiTH
BRi%, XLEAW, GFIIARIRETEERIENHLER, FEEZREMEXREARNEM EERY, IRNERTESASANGITEEES.

AEAX AR AW, GHFARREFSZLENEM LHTEMNER, JUHTHLERTHEELHN, AXWEERTLHTURA  B¥HEE
HHXEmAKRREL, EEmBETE L BIARKDBE T NI,

TRFARERE, ARABNYESRERME SFHTHE. HHNREATESSBEASMAGNKENEERRI2DARAETRNRBENEZNRE
RBIRAOT -

1. FEERBRENITE 2.

HFUEEBATEMAANETTEEETHITALMEERENS

BRE, MRBERKERMSIERER, NEAZEGHEMEERET

TRHA(S R TR .

WEAEAMA, RIENAXETANNEANENSRTIAGFARKLN

MNEIE. FRMRK, BIEAEAZRBEIGHERAY. REE

ENBHFAEERAESTESTHERRNAEREREZ BNER,

AeBlelrnilE. HY, ITAEAMINEENEREREH

BENESRET, NEBIZEREA~REABENIERAERN.

MEAERRAREF SR AREX. SHANRENBELINEHER,

Bl & kAR ME FiERERANE BT HNGET (G, &2A

BANTRMERBNRK). STHEARANITEFETFSEXRH

Wy, i .

s BEFXMUEANREFTENLESIAB—TEE, EFBHHIT
B, FHEITEEXNXBSH .,

s FANKEZEEM SANELXEERRENAWIRE

o FATHEMITENZFIER. @FEERENENRA

o EIMBMARBMBHRMERNRRASHIUN.

EMLEENEHF

LAKAAEHUIETHRSEEATIEAREAN, £EEAF
EREAEMIZENLIERIBHEANGIEENMEERHM. K
FEIHET X HEMT SRR X S RIS S TR,
DM T EMUEENTRER, BRETRTENASEESE
HRENHRBHFEBRARATEER. BEOMRKE, MR
RENEMUTHRRET R FREMIF. i, AEAESE
BMUTEZZHAEETERTARIREBEANACHT T HET, &
AN T WEM L EERRENEEE . RIEER~EEENR
SHMREA~EERSMRSORMKAT. BEFEMLIETH
H AR P A& B O] T ER AR IR H AR S 5558 A SKRMEARAL.

. ERMTARARNMME

MWERBRXZTHNERTIR, ARARBGEERARBEELARN
B, ZEHERARTIRZEEASRITIE. BRSE. THITLLAE
BEES. ARANERIEAAMENHERERTREBERATN
SKMTHHEIE, EN—L9E, NAKRANZHZFHEARE. i
BFRARBAR. KEIEKE . RApMIFN. BEX. THILAT
BHREEXRE, UBREEEMEFTMEIT, ZEBEXRENEL
SNERTIENAANMESETMW,
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4. SRLRFHEBAILIERIA . EEBIM
ZK%!Z:IEEﬁé\é%‘iﬁ%ﬂqﬂiﬁéﬁiﬁ%mﬁﬁf%‘ ;ﬁ}"ziﬁ‘#ﬂc‘ 32[-‘.!:‘:@ 1. {AVFTEES
BIHPWESZTHITREIULSRA”, ERELBNERASRERD .
SEHEBH R FINGTIRD, AEFAEBEYE AN HKAG RIFBAPEARLFESWABEEY, XEABERNTBELAN AL AT
it. BBHBIE H25%,
HFVRHS 54K B SRR 2 (B0 % R R T R R B A 45K B B BRESHAREERDHEATELRE—HEAQL.
LHAFESATIRETEH. A ETER B AR B R RBRERE XNERTT.

FREBEATSLMAFKRBAXNERRSRMARNNES, N 2. HEFR

AR TARRERRERELLRNE AREATHES . EEKRSRESESRE A% L% KN E A
- REHBERARRSRNRN . AALKEECAR HF 5, B oo,

NEREBAMTES |
MEREB B TE=T RENERNERSRB (AT HHeH, BRFAE. AR

- HERRAFMAEREOREMEMEBRE ZWERBEGBA) (UH[2016]140S) . (EFAE~SMERE

L EARARRARBOREREEMAS AR L FHEEN £ A MR[2017122 ) BE (LT AR > RSERE
R TR, & ERAEN AR R EHE T X SHA X EEBA) (MB[2017]56%) . REFQEBATEAES
PR DA R A A B AL (SR QTR 4 AR B . B201841A1E (&) k. HiEA
L BB HI3% Y T A S

5. FiEH PR
EEEMAEFEDT BAXSNENNBARSYHEE R O DL AT REIEH
M. FRTRENER, AREBEALE AN, NRXERS SR 1 LA R A 1% 7% T 4 R S

FANBLNEERSROEUNSHHELR, RERBIEE 4 ypo sy
FRBEINE AN ER ST E T, CoEmEE
24 55 P LM B B B 3% 5% LB B BB,

+. ERFRAASEHER
HABHEENEETFAIERBRIIFOT .

EF&mERFIEAT EPN HERAUEHE AR61,055 100% E#EHFE
EFRRELARAD hE AR i AR 50,000 100% B 45
FERRESBRAT RE KR EeRARERE AR32,548 84.99% a5 H
EREHUERRHERAD EPN E AR 12,642 64.40%H EHH
B FFHE 5B B BRA S o E K B e AR9,500 B0%HEHE
ERERAFRAT hEEE R 41,584 100% B E55

FEFARANFANOHFRILHRTHRAAAIARRETA., F2OIBFEM017EE, ARATHFEREBRAR VB EREARFAEOERRH,
N, MEREREZDBMIE
1. RERERPRRITHIRN

AREEH AT
EBFNE 2 2 1 1
FHRAPRBITEEFREE S 425 353 = -
HAtbF R R RBITRIM 274,741 264,513 274,736 264,459
&it 275,168 264,868 274,737 264,460
2. TR
AR T
FRER HABRT 661,022 1,036,582 771,532 1,031,046
BHRIEAIFRTERIM 11,959 5,014 11,959 4,717
TR A RTT 82,363 87,435 70,924 75,868
FHEESNERIT RN - 2 - -
755,344 1,129,033 854,415 1,111,631
R R 3,521 &M 3,507 TiERA
B 758,865 1,129,033 857,922 1,111,631
B RIEES - BINR (326) TiEA (326) FiE A
B 758,539 1,129,033 857,596 1,111,631

F2018F12A31H, AEBAFMRELRMARH MEFRAART126.47{Z5T (2017512310 - ARFS0.3712T), TEAGFREBEX SR
RIEE.
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3. IFH&EE
M AT
- R e R < eRE
FRE A EAMRT 124,744 166,256 124,744 166,256
FRERIERT LRI 6,000 8,000 5,500 8,000
FRURINE A RTT 37,681 53,483 37,681 53,483
168,425 227,739 167,925 227,739
RitF 8 195 &R 195 & A
BB 168,620 227,739 168,120 227,739
BoOREAES - 1M (15) TiEF (15) TiEA
B 168,605 227,739 168,105 227,739

4. (TEEMB~R A
(1) fTEEmMIA
PESMIANSR/AXEFTUARS AHERABIANT S I AROAANERBILBREM, EFFT-EARZIEARKRALREBL LT
ANE, BA—ERRBRAKARARNEAREITHAR. TESRTIANAANERESESAZFKBEXNTHHNEMIMNCLEETEN
BER RN, EAMARATRN (H/=) SAH (AR %W, XLEPmEERRPEERAME.
THRAMRERA, AERAFENTLEERIANER/EXETAREAANEIFNOT -

AER 201841283180
CELFETR
KHEHK (BEIXRTHARER) 3,195,290 22,907 (28,290)
SN EAFSMTHAR 152,769 1,375 (81)
Nt 24,282 (28,371)
FREFTETR
TR E 2,235,329 10,391 (10,102)
FI FRHAIR 9,715 97 (97)
it 10,488 (10,199)
Ait 34,770 (38,570)
20174128310
R
o w am
CELHTETR
HWHE#R (BEXXETHHERER) 1,970,083 28,421 (27,198)
SRS AL 205,913 2,347 (41)
N 30,768 (27,239)
FEFTETR
FEE# 1,282,188 6,942 (6,079)
F AR 10,152 177 (177)
N 7,119 (6,256)
ait 37,887 (33,495)
1T 2018412H831H
B
o w
CELTETR
KHE%R (BRIXBEHHERER) 3,193,610 22,907 (28,287)
SMCITHAFN ST IR 148,515 1,375 (67)
Nt 24,282 (28,354)
FELGTETR
FIEE#H 2,219,431 10,375 (9,858)
FJ AR 9,715 97 (97)
it 10,472 (9,955)

&it 34,754 (38,309)
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20174£12A31H

CRFETAR

KHEHR (BEIXEHAERER) 1,970,083 28,421 (27,198)

ST EAFSNTHIAX 205,913 2,347 (41)
Ny 30,768 (27,239)
FEFETR

FRE B 1,278,355 6,977 (6,073)

FIEHR 10,152 177 (177)
it 7,154 (6,250)
Ait 37,922 (33,489)

(2) Ef=I

FARFAGRRE, LRTESRHTATPEERIEENEPIANIBIRNT

KEHA 20184 12831H

ARMEEHTIR

FIERE# 11,437 393 (146)
NEREEYPTER

F R E e 15,890 17 (208)
Ait 410 (354)

20174£12A31H

ARMEEH IR

FIEH#% 17,948 655 (81)
NERBEHPIR

R BB 6,919 21 (17)
it 676 (98)
1T 20184 12A31H

ARNMEEHIA

FEE 11,437 393 (146)

20174128318

AANMEEHTIR

FIRE#H 17,948 655 (81)
(i) 2RMEEH

AEAFAMNEEREENFEEZNSBNAANEZNHTENRE, HEHAMEAXEARTHAMTHILEHFE, TR ARR R
WHER" H.

AEABSEHNTENAANEZTHRNEENNE AEHXEEANERAETNARNMEZTNRAEFFINNERLLBS =ENRBHLEX,

(i) WEREEH

AEAFAMNEERERNFEEZHSENASRELHHTERRE, HEHNE HAXAEAFREZ LS HEEMBRITRANNER.
F2018FER2017E12A31H, AKAEKITAEMESRANASAEERTRELAANETH~ENRITRERTEKX.
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5. ENBRERRAT
AEHA T

20174128318

HIBRMFI R
% 455,665 497,965 454,402 493,783
Hits 7,950 8,266 - -
463,615 506,231 454,402 493,783
RitF 8 408 iEA 264 TiEA
BE 464,023 506,231 454,666 493,783

AR EEE

Hep . BIFE EA (59) ER -
ERlize (33) RiERA = TiEMA
EEIRES (488) TER - TE
(521) (59) = -
B 463,502 506,172 454,666 493,783

AEATFRNEEXHHRHGBRYERI+—. TERUTHEE.
6. RWHE

20174E12A31H

A& T
HFHE LRI S 3,895 3,783
FEEEHE 389 389
EINBESRA~F L 340 319
RIMGEARTERF S 25,920 25,471
FEEIARAFNR (1) 21,523 20,917
Hitb 280 281
B 52,347 51,160
B OREEE - BURE (203) -
HE 52,144 51,160

(1) BBHESFIARANEBESNAANETEEARMITALSHRENSHAS . THREESHAST. FHEZIHRAMYERER AT
ROFIR. F20185F12R31H, KA BEENKEHME™.

7. RIGTRAMER
(1) BMSFMERNFERMT -

FEH T
_ 2017412H31H _ 20174128318
I3 SR THE % 8 (a) 11,167,983 10,642,675 11,062,739 10,541,856
MARMETTEEHESHIT AL HHRE (D) 30,392 TiEA 30,392 TiEH
&it 11,198,375 10,642,675 11,093,131 10,541,856
(@) MBERBAITEHRMERTERIFTOT -
P Sl T
_ 2017412H31H _ 20174128310
PRSI 11,509,779 10,933,412 11,528,536 10,924,144
ROAR TN R R H A 138,508 103,420 - -
11,648,287 11,036,832 11,528,536 10,924,144
RiHF 8 29,947 TiEA 29,998 &R
B 11,678,234 11,036,832 11,558,534 10,924,144
AR EEE
Hep . BTG &M (40,087) FEA (38,475)
HETE TEM (354,070) TEA (343,813)
BN (201,452) TEA (198,713) ESc]
HOM R (217,366) REA (207,723) TiER
ERINES (91,433) &R (89,359) FiER
(510,251) (394,157) (495,795) (382,288)
HER 11,167,983 10,642,675 11,062,739 10,541,856
(b) UAANMETEEREENITALBRBENRKMERFERSFTOT
NS M AT
_ 2017412H31H _ 20174128310
BRRRMBEREE 30,642 TiEA 30,642 FER
ARMEED (250) TEA (250) REA
&it 30,392 TER 30,392 RER

AEHARERAYHNRARE N BGRER T +—. 7ERYPRE.
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(2) RBUBERREMERTIR -

AREEH
S wmR sz wwR &

RIMFFRFLRRT 10,306,130 1,250,794 121,310 11,678,234
B (201,452) (217,366) (91,433) (510,251)
RGN SR K TE 10,104,678 1,033,428 29,877 11,167,983
AT
R GERAER R 10,216,091 1,224,780 117,663 11,558,534
BEEE (198,713) (207,723) (89,359) (495,795)
RIMGFR LR E N E 10,017,378 1,017,057 28,304 11,062,739

(8) EMBRMBIBELAETD
AREEH
2018418180 190,559 179,247 53,649 423,455
5% .
ME T RS ZHE2HMER (11,235) 11,235 - =
MEH BB EZE 1N 8,555 (8,555) - =
MEE2B B 3T Z M B - (11,910) 11,910 -
PN RIS ST 2 Pl NEY - 4,179 (4,179) -
g 24,148 - - 24,148
EHITE(Q) 8,339 46,707 42,100 97,146
ER K (20,946) (7,454) (210) (28,610)
(3] - - (13,686) (13,686)
SN HTE M 2,032 3,917 1,849 7,798
20184128318 201,452 217,366 91,433 510,251
1T
201841818 189,041 170,060 51,684 410,785
=228
METNBRETSEL2MN R (10,758) 10,758 - =
MENBRETFBELINER 7,918 (7,918) - =
MEE2R BB E MR = (11,460) 11,460 =
MEESM R TS EHE2M R - 4,179 (4,179) =
i 22,421 = = 22,421
EHitE() 7,691 44,910 42,396 94,997
ER R (19,167) (6,721) (165) (26,053)
%5 - - (13,686) (13,686)
SR HTEZE 1,567 3,915 1,849 7,331
2018412318 198,713 207,723 89,359 495,795

(a) BREENSHENEATNENETAME. SARIXRFAMANEN  BTEFARRXVNLEREANREZENILEGEARE TSEE
FRRMEREZINR. F2NER. BMBRZBRERY. NEREESBERAEZNITEEMERNANENEELHANMHAERREZEH

B
(i) 2018 EF, HMEINBREABMRARAER G ECLBRATERESHMN9%, NAAENE KT EHAAEIMBRRMERMLRKE RN
T A%FTE

(i) 2018F &, HMMEMBRRAMERNER L BALHMRAAMEREHA10%, HREOEBSBEARARATENREMTRMER A £
m, EBETHEXRANERASHEINBRFRASH, AFIMREEBEFENBROASHE1NRPUAESLA3% |

(i) 2018F &, HIMEBIMBREMTRMER S BELMRAMBERSHN1%, AFEHNBSHBEZESNROAE & B2 BRI A £26% ;
2018 EHE SN BRAM R RN ARA SRR EZE ST B RIFA27%, MEWN AN REHR SRR EAEZEM.
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R EEH]

BRI HEFE Ait
20174E1 B 18 57,645 366,329 423,974
itig 21,844 119,275 141,119
#%[E (14,823) (121,574) (136,397)
R (22,779) (3,565) (26,344)
EF MM E L F SEME T (663) - (663)
SN EEM (1,237) (6,395) (7,632)
20174E128318 40,087 354,070 394,157
4T
201741818 55,950 361,413 417,363
iR 20,919 113,004 133,923
=45 (14,407) (121,255) (135,662)
R (22,197) (2,986) (25,183)
BT AMNE L F S B H (563) - (563)
ShHTE =R (1,227) (6,363) (7,590)
20174E128318 38,475 343,813 382,288

(4) EEAGERFNBERIRANT -

MRARRASHA @I, WiZRREDRKAEPRAR. N TUSACGRATRNBENRRIER, ARAHHHEREH, WiZRRE BRI

&R bk
| stAMA ShAER ime sEME A

2018&£12A31H
ERR 5,281 559 3,615 - 9,455
RIUE TR 7,947 11,361 5,995 2,134 27,437
HHBR M 5E5K

— MR 22,524 17,826 7,875 4,686 52,911

= FUREERK 10,006 16,094 7,988 49 34,137
&it 45,758 45,840 25,473 6,869 123,940
2017412H31H
ERR® 2,665 1,343 156 374 4,538
BRIEFTR 2,307 9,582 2,696 2,365 16,950
B R Y B3R

— MR 2,058 5,353 6,370 2,957 16,738

- R 3,805 1,278 4,799 2,561 12,443
At 10,835 17,556 14,021 8,257 50,669
AT
2018412H31H
ERR® 5,281 559 3,615 - 9,455
BRIEFR 7,947 11,361 5,995 2,134 27,437
B R T 3K

— AR 22,444 17,520 7,325 3514 50,803

- RIRR 10,006 16,094 7,988 49 34,137
Ait 45,678 45,534 24,923 5,697 121,832
20174128318
ERAER 2,665 1,343 38 8 4,054
RIESEK 2,307 9,582 2,696 2,365 16,950
HHHBIR M 523K

— MR 2,043 3,763 4,775 2,732 13,313

- BRHRER 3,805 1,278 4,799 2,561 12,443
&it 10,820 15,966 12,308 7,666 46,760
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MARNET AR RHITALBRENERAS EMER)

2018%12A31H

B R AR RS 5H5S 11,521 11,069
SRS 16,938 14,929
AERE 18,759 16,446
R ZFFES 134 1,191
B e 107,028 107,028
ArEEit 3,853 -
BERESRAE 7,716 =
AT RATHIIE = & 8,672 -
M#E TR 808,542 701,834
983,163 852,497

MARNETZEEZDITALHRENSRA™ ($5E)
BN R AR5 13,785 13,785
SR RS 1,979 2,141
NEF 42,739 42,739
R ZHFIES 1,785 1,785
B 77 8 17,060 17,060
FENBESRA 4,933 4,933
7R b R 5 M AR 13,767 13,767
HEEEIT 2,521 2,521
98,569 98,731
&it 1,081,732 951,228

FERABEAUAANETBEEZTNTANLPRENSHRAFTENAEAESARTRAEU - RAHERNA S, BATHS. EREARL

BRSBTS,
9. ZRRE - FAURRE

2018412H31H

R SBATE
BUN RABRHE 525 1,328,591 1,328,491
SRS 2,588 2,009
A8 104,776 102,579
ERT R EAM 6,977 293
1,442,932 1,433,372
RIHH R 22,002 21,915
%l 1,464,934 1,455,287

B REEE

Ha . 1R (5,086) (5,023)
BN ER (110) =
ERIEN (1,075) -
(6,271) (5,023)
B 1,458,663 1,450,264
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(1) RBHRERBREMETIR

‘
i
=

FERRARR 1,462,181 700 2,053 1,464,934
RS (5,086) (110) (1,075) (6.271)
AR A KA A 1,457,095 590 978 1,458,663
X

FERR AR 1,445,287 - - 1,455,287
REAEE (5,023) - - (5,023)
AR A KENE 1,450,264 - - 1,450,264

F2018FE, AKARKTHENRAETMBRERZERBHSTRERK.
(2) R EREEEES

A EEH

20185 1H1H 4,658 134 919 5,711

®1 .

MEI B 4TS EHE2M B (18) 18 - -
MEE2H B4 T Z S IM B - (134) 134 -
i 230 = = 230
EFitEQ) - 92 12 104
ERC R (10) - - (10)
SEITEER 226 - 10 236
20184F12531H 5,086 110 1,075 6,271

&7

20184F 15 1H 4,583 = = 4,583
i 214 = = 214
AT EER 226 - - 226
20184 12831H 5,023 = = 5,023

() EFTEIBRFEZHME BARKEZSENER. ERREBIHBROEARELS.
10. &R — H AR

2018%12A31H

B FOf B RFAN M 1 144,763 142,405
SRAAEE 81,362 81,732
ATER 32,251 24,578
R IHES 196 -
Atz 219,336 216,772

477,908 465,487

RITFIS 3,186 2,892

& 481,094 468,379

(1) EmBERRENRIIR

]
o wwe wmm R &
HAtb AU A KA NME 480,918 9 167 481,094
IS (224) (3) (150) (377)

4T
H A AU A IKENME 468,379 - - 468,379
HEAEE (216) = = (216)

T2018E K, AKARATEMANEAEENRERERBHESTTEK,
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(2) B RRERESEEE

KEHA

2018418 1H 106 - 150 256
g 121 - = 121
EHfitE () = 3 = 3
ERiEE ] ®) - - ®
20184128310 224 3 150 377
T

20181/ 1H 95 = = 95
g 121 - = 121
2018%12831A 216 = = 216

() BMTRIBQFABAME. SHRKEESHNEN. BHNBEBIHYBROERRELS.
M. EMBRE - B aETRERE

2018%12A31H

AR 3,250 =
3E _ETARAR 533 533
Ait 3,783 533

EFERIAENT, AEAKEXIHFUNETERAFTRHEBIET I UAANETEEARHNITANAMBGARENSRMAS, £LEN, Z
SMBETRRARTHTARMGESRENAANERDEASEES LSRAE.

12. U2 METEREZTHIT NSRRGSR~

2017412H31H

ZHHERA

B RO B 6235 19,017 18,912
SRS 1,677 324
NEFZS 11,777 8,907
BN 89,182 89,182
BERESRHE 2,814 -
124,467 117,325

EEANARNETEBE T AL PRAENSRA
BUE RABUHE 535 15,062 15,062
SRS 1,757 3,137
NEFEH 51,488 51,488
A= RIHESH 4,427 4,427
BN 19,640 19,640
INBESFA > 19,418 19,418
oo (N AE N AE 26,043 26,043
RGBT 7,417 5,544
TR ITHIIR - & 10,323 -
NHEIR 870,988 768,779
1,026,563 913,538

it 1,151,030 1,030,863
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13. ATt EERE ™

2017412A31H

FEIR
B BB AR 535 135,736 134,397
SRNBHES 37,345 37,885
AEfRSE 37,890 33,155
A XIS 216 -
k7 301,053 298,311
512,240 503,748
WAETH 9,439 33
EERA 717 -
&it 522,396 503,781

F20175123310, AKFARATIHEESH AT RNBTUHES I AHART182. 15T X ART0.67127T.

14 FFERPRE

20174128318

B RO 635 98 -
SRS 25,093 24,641
NEFE 3,197 200
&t 28,388 24,841

15. R W RT3 48 BF

20174£12A31H

B BOEB R 5HRS 1,096,088 1,096,088
SR HES 5,571 5,571
NEFHE 97,587 97,370
H XIS 713 2,712
ERH R H A 5,284 -
1,205,243 1,201,741

o R EAEE
Heb . BTG (488) (1
AR (2,940) (2,940)
(3,428) (2,951)
BE 1,201,815 1,198,790

16. K HAR IR &

A EH T
I DR T
X F AT HIRE (1) = - 99,770 99,340
MEEMGESWHRA @] 2,214 1,835 - -
&it 2,214 1,835 99,770 99,340
B REAEE (528) - (18,953) (18,953)
el 1,686 1,835 80,817 80,387

F2018F12A31H, AKBANBKEMEELVHRFTMELAZTRTMA5.28125T (2017F12A31H : ) ; ATNF AR ABEAERIMH189.5312

7t (20174£12F31H . 189.53ZT).,
(1) MFREHSE
FTETAFNRKGEL, HRHEL.
ATHFARRBEOESDERDT -

FYRA 80,387 80,749
R 430 367
KERD - (729)
FERRR 80,817 80,387




(2) MEEMEERWHIRE
FEFEMEELVERELRIRMOT
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REESHRAFRERAT =P T REERFL=FR AR 3,000 20%[8) EHE
EFERZHRRABRITELS RE KX BABEEREN AR 1,250 40%[E) EHE
BRTERE S~ LR RHRAT PN MR E IR RS AR 400 44% (8 12
EFERNRERAS o E K B BFEBREES” ARM213 25% [ HH
WHEMEELURANEHERMNT .

AR EEH] AT
EMRET 1,835 1,762 = 128
AREEIN 413 209 - 5
REFD (34) (136) - (133)
FERREM 2,214 1,835 = -

17. EER

AR EE ] AT
FRiE() 106,769 89,665 25,437 25,117
Zit#r1A(a) (19,956) (16,661) (6,819) (5,847)
BEAE ) (487) (242) - -
B E R E 727 - 1,378 -
Ait 87,053 72,762 19,996 19,270

RIEY B EB2018EF6 A ENK MY (R TRITEN K018 F E— RO U M FIMFEINMBAMY (MK[2018]155), "EEH>"TEH, RBEFAfFxRAD
VEERNHARKEMENS Y ERERTENEEREERPRE., T018F12ANBAKARKNTEERFEI T EER>" MH
o F017HF12A31H, ERASFEITT HittE >~ MBEF. £HFEK.

(@) BIER&RE. BIHTARBEAZHNEDNERLNT

‘
m id
=

201841818 21,185 2,619 1,568 60,340 3,953 89,665
ARE 280 5,097 3,119 16,468 1,396 26,360
REFN/ (B 2,826 - = - (2,826) -
RERD (2,062) (160) (16) (7,008) (10) (9,256)
20184128318 22,229 7,556 4,671 69,800 2,513 106,769
Kit#IA

201841818 (4,327) (1,853) (370) (10,111) = (16,661)
REHR (918) (724) (85) (2,761) - (4,488)
RERD 150 81 15 947 = 1,193
20184128318 (5,095) (2,496) (440) (11,925) = (19,956)
REEE

201841818 - - = (242) = (242)
AR = - = (245 = (245)
201841283180 - - = (487) = (487)
TEHE

20184128318 17,134 5,060 4,231 57,388 2,513 86,326
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FEH

e ait
RiE
201741518 19,930 2,785 1,130 56,697 3,924 84,466
AREFIEM 689 109 452 15,451 787 17,488
AEHN () 755 - - - (755) -
AR D (189) (275) (14) (11,808) ® (12,289)
20174£128318 21,185 2,619 1,568 60,340 3,953 89,665
RitifIE
20174E1A1H (3,607) (1,667) (313) (9,745) - (15,332)
AR (804) (295) (69) (2,551) = (3,719)
AR 84 109 12 2,185 = 2,390
20174128318 (4,327) (1,853) (370) (10,111) = (16,661)
A
201741818 = - = (319) = (319)
AREEM = - - (61) - (61)
KERD = - = 138 = 138
20174125318 = - = (242) = (242)
TEEHE
20174128318 16,858 766 1,198 49,987 3,953 72,762
AT
RE
201841 1H 19,719 1,998 244 3,156 25,117
KB 360 437 3 622 1,422
KREFEN/ (BH) 1,749 - - (1,749) -
RERD (1,031) (50) (13) ®) (1.102)
20184F12831H 20,797 2,385 234 2,021 25,437
RitifiE
2018415 1H (4,082) (1,535) (230) - (5,847)
ARETTR (834) (259) @] - (1,095)
KERD 71 40 12 - 123
20184 12831H (4,845) (1,754) (220) - (6,819)
EMNME
20184128310 15,952 631 14 2,021 18,618
RE
201741 B 18 19,019 1,934 253 3,482 24,688
AREEBM 35 92 1 429 557
REHN () 753 - - (753) -
RERD (88) (28) (10) @) (128)
20174£128318 19,719 1,998 244 3,156 25,117
RitifIE
201741818 (3,357) (1,347) (232) - (4,936)
AR (764) (214) @) - (985)
KEH D 39 26 9 - 74
20174125318 (4,082) (1,535) (230) - (5,847)
EMME
20174128318 15,637 463 14 3,156 19,270




18. T &=
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A EEF

RiE

201841818 2,011 1,345 3,356
AEEIEI 31 164 195

ARER D (171) (39) (210)
20184E12H31A 1,871 1,470 3,341

Kt

201841518 (329) (640) (969)
AEITR (31) (136) (167)
ARER D 26 - 26
2018412318 (334) (776) (1,110)
TEHE

2018412318 1,537 694 2,231

FIKRMHER (5F) 28-42 1-10

BE

201741818 1,998 1,236 3,234
AN 13 167 180
RER D = (58) (58)
20174E12F318 2,011 1,345 3,356
RitHeH

201741818 (266) (522) (788)
AREIHER (63) (131) (194)
AREF D = 13 13
20174E12A318 (329) (640) (969)
T E M E

20174E12A318 1,682 705 2,387
FIFMHER () 29-43 1-10

1T

T e
BE
201841810 1,489 1,189 2,678
AN 16 147 163
RERD (49) (39) (88)
20184128318 1,456 1,297 2,753
Rt
201851818 (230) (549) (779)
REIHR (37) (122) (159)
RER D 9 - 9
20184128318 (258) (671) (929)
T E M E
20184 12A318 1,198 626 1,824
FIRMHER (£) 28-42 1-10
RiE
20174E1A1H 1,488 1,081 2,569
AN 1 168 169
RER D = (60) (60)
20174 12H318 1,489 1,189 2,678
Rt
201741818 (193) (442) (635)
AEFIHR (37) (120) (157)
RER D - 13 13
20174128318 (230) (549) (779)
TKE 8
20174 12F31H 1,259 640 1,899
FIRMHER (5) 29-43 1-10
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ZEH &7
3 FE TS BLAR 125,812 85,790 114,913 80,067
% JE PTG T R (1,394) (2,198) - -
R 124,418 83,592 114,913 80,067

(1) BEMEHROEHERIITUT

20174E128318 83,592 80,067
KUTBEREREHZ M (FEM. 30) 10,555 10,213
201841818 94,147 90,280
TEARRES (HfE/\. 50) 32,042 26,411
ARG ERE (FHE/N. 34) (1,771) (1,778)
20184128318 124,418 114,913
20171 B1ASH 87,537 89,017
AR (6,113) (10,0083)
ARG E RS 2,168 1,053
20174E128318 83,592 80,067
(2) EIRETHNBEMRERESRAGRI AT EERIITNOT
&M 2018412H31H 2017412H31H

BEFRERE™

HEREEE 450,561 112,640 327,682 81,921
SERBAARMEEE 75,689 18,922 50,626 12,656
it i 14,199 3,550 1,243 311
Hit - - 1,418 355
N 540,449 135,112 380,969 95,243
BIEFRER AR

SRMBEAANEZH (41,857) (10,464) (46,601) (11,651)
Hith (922) (230) - -
N (42,779) (10,694) (46,601) (11,651)
B 497,670 124,418 334,368 83,592
AT

BEFREB AR

HREREE 436,237 109,059 316,839 79,209
SRBETEAANEES 46,480 11,620 41,944 10,486
Tt i 14,543 3,636 1,356 339
Nt 497,260 124,315 360,139 90,034
BIEFREH AR

SRBALANELF (37,606) (9,402) (39,869) (9,967)
% 459,654 114,913 320,270 80,067

20. Hft &=

FEH AT
| o1F12A31A 2017£12R31H | 2018F12A31A  2017%12A31A
SR PEEESE 735 4,586 - 3,945
TS 55 R AR 7,409 409 7,409 409
R F B 1,084 E 828 -
FAHEER B 2 11,080 7,828 233 195
G B AT EIRFT R IR - 1,087 - 1,087
ERAFIEHLB TS NE 328 575 577 296
BAEM B> 3,722 1,755 = -
KA 510 277 200 152
Hits 13,156 14,959 8,391 6,135

38,024 31,476 17,638 12,219

B R EEE
Heb . RIEFE (165) RiEA = RiEF
Hit (308) (359) (113) (47)
(473) (359) (113) (47)

B 37,551 31,117 17,525 12,172
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21. [l K H At & B TF BRI

HRE 17
[ o1s£1ASIA | 2017#12A318 | 2018£12AS1A 20175128318
BAHEMRT 3,109,716 3,186,470 3,109,716 3,186,470
BRIERT SRS 60,776 34,993 60,782 35,003
MR A RTT 53,435 42,633 53,435 42,633
HIMERIT SR - 4 - 4

3,223,927 3,264,100 3,223,933 3,264,110
R 2 5,591 il 5,591 TiE A
&Hit 3,229,518 3,264,100 3,229,524 3,264,110

22. [ B FY A B Ath & RAMLAGFE TR

A EH *17
| 00&RASIA 207§12ASIA | 2018F12A31H  2017F12A318
B HMBRTRIFRTERIMER 362,343 324,650 229,917 219,549
BN AMRITRIFRITSRNMER 46,783 33,371 22,662 25,639
SNEBUFERR 16,130 8,971 16,130 8,971

425,256 366,992 268,709 254,159
R R 2,987 TER 2,965 ER
Ait 428,243 366,992 271,674 254,159

PER TIN5

74 AT
BREMRTHRA 7,940 21,800 7,040 18,000
FOMEABRITIRA 53,718 63,529 53,718 63,529
61,658 85,329 60,758 81,529
RIHF S 466 FiER 465 TiE
Ait 62,124 85,329 61,223 81,529

4. xSt EM AR
ARANZHUSHABTEDRTORAEM” R F N RAEM = 2TAMHTHEM, 2018K2017EE, LRSMAKNIANENRREE
MTAKAESERRBELSBNEAT,

25. ST H M & R 3R K

AR EEH] AT
HERMIIR
R"% 66,201 15,577 56,660 7,790
Hith - 3,750 - -
66,201 19,327 56,660 7,790
RitFR 48 TiEA 22 TEA
it 66,249 19,327 56,682 7,790
AEFRTFREBEZZORAPYERE+—. 7HERYHHEE.
26. UL FFFK
AR EEH] AT
DA SEERER 1,399,456 1,774,162 1,545,206 1,794,986
B R 99,501 121,761 109,788 132,665
AW RIES FR 4,833 5,261 4,833 5,261
KA i EE 163,896 169,395 163,896 169,395
1,667,686 2,070,579 1,823,723 2,102,307
RHF R 3,091 TiEA 3,121 RiEHR
&it 1,670,777 2,070,579 1,826,844 2,102,307
27. MR
AR EEH] AT
A FrEH 49,842 15,869 44,983 10,283
HER 8,808 6,926 8,606 6,747
Hite 1,297 1,086 1,269 1,031

&it 59,947 23,881 54,858 18,061
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28. NI 7R

20174128318

B 00 e E At & B T2 R TUF B 4,915 4,915
&R F 2 2,936 2,132
e 7 5K F 2 3,182 3,198
RITHFIEHFIL 160,727 160,256
Hit 1,127 1,097
Ait 172,887 171,598

F2018%F12A31H, RAFSEED X EHMALR.
29.Fit fa

AEH AT
TR (i) 13,760 TEA 13,760 TiEA
WEIER (i) 439 1,243 783 1,356
BB F RN MESIRE 949 914 949 914
At 15,148 2,157 15,492 2,270

() B2018FIR1ERETHEMTRAEN, AKRAXRBIPEARARBEHERFRERUSEREE. N EYRDEF 0 WS I HE
M. EBRRUBELE. AFHTUSIHTANEARERXK.

(1) FitHENES

A M

20184F151H 9,044 1,650 97 10,791
%% .

MEI BREETS EHE2M R (168) 168 - -
NEHBRHBEEINER 1 ) - -
MEE2R B 475 Z M B - 7 7 -
EHitE Q) (1,498) 2,481 768 1,751
#ig 4,126 = = 4,126
potly (2,346) (222) (75) (2,643)
SNBIEER 87 70 17 174
20184125318 9,246 4,139 814 14,199
AT

201841518 9,434 1,650 97 11,181
®1 .

MET BREETS ZHE2M R (168) 168 - -
NN BEBE SN 7 ) - -
MBI R TS ZH MR - 7) 7 -
EfitEQ) (1,544) 2,481 768 1,705
g 4,126 - - 4,126
> (2,346) (222) (75) (2,643)
SNPHTEZR 87 70 17 174
20184 12831H 9,590 4,139 814 14,543

(a) BREBENSHENEATMENEAME, BARIXREARANEN BT HRRRELYSEREANLREZEMIZEFEARE TSHRRE
HORERMSERERINER. F2NER. FIMRZBREEY, NRANSERAEZNITEEMAI12DANMENFERPHTHE BB K ZHEE
58
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(2) E&*iE
2018412H31H
ELE 3,649,401 3,659,264
ERES 41,383 41,383
ERIE 4,752 4,752
At 3,695,536 3,705,399
20185 E, ERABERMBRLETHEI%, MITARNENTEHTFITRIEEZTLSE.
30. BRITEREIES
ANEEH] AT
20174127311
KA &R RS 1) 8,783,105 8,316,281 8,725,697 8,270,361
R AFRB RS @) 64,995 64,925 59,996 59,926
RN RALE () 71,893 41,841 71,893 41,841
RAFH = ZFES (4) 7,830 23,545 - -
8,927,823 8,446,592 8,857,586 8,372,128
RiTFR 180,593 TiEA 179,860 TiEFA
&it 9,108,416 8,446,592 9,037,446 8,372,128

F2018FER2017F12A31H, AKARAFTEATHNRFIEFZBELNEXAS. FEARERMNFENER.

(1) Eft&mRs
20184£12H831H
o aeEs mess wEeRx s
BRETARTEBEH) 2001-2018 2019-2065 1.50-5.90 7,232,285
BRETART LMK 2015-2018 2019-2037 2.65-4.62 1,356,994
FHRTARTERMES 2012-2014 2019-2032 3.60-4.50 6,292
BINR TN RS 2015-2018 2019-2037 0.13-4.00 130,126
TR AT & RS R 8,725,697
FABFIRTHETEE 2012-2018 2019-2027 2.25-4.00 35,450
FARERNRTHARTHRSE 2014-2018 2019-2023 3.00-6.05 24,420
B REARNERHENREAR TGRS (2,462)
KEF R ERRSF R 8,783,105
20174128310

RITEE FERE ZEEME% RER
BRXTARTERES 2001-2017 2018-2065 1.93-5.90 6,728,379
BRETARTERR 2015-2017 2019-2037 2.65-4.58 1,395,183
FHRTART ERES 2012-2014 2018-2032 3.60-4.50 7,992
BARTING SRS 2013-2015 2018 2.39-2.69 18,702
BINRITINT £ RS 2015-2017 2018-2037 0.13-4.00 120,105
AAT R & RA RS R AR 8,270,361
FRAEEIRITHETER 2012-2017 2019-2027 2.00-4.25 25,588
FARRRETHART RS 2014-2017 2018-2022 3.00-6.05 23,254
B EHAATMRE N ARERRTHRS (2,922)
KRR AT & R RS R 8,316,281

(i)

FT2018F R2017F12A31H . ATERRNLTHARTERESET. ARARFEAHERELTERBREPE . FRKH) 5] HEEFRM
FHFER, FHERESTAITHIART200.00ZT, WEAFGRSHEACAZAHRARAKEHENEBARD RS ZREREEKETHE

HIRBMAEK.
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(2) RfhRFEHES
HEARET 2018412A31H

AFTEARTARTRRFHH 2009-2012 2024-2062 5.00-6.05 59,996
FAREARTARTRRFHES 2016 2021 3.58 4,999
REARTRAFBHET 64,995

2017£412A31H

AITERNRTARTRAGS 2009-2012 2024-2062 5.00-6.05 59,926
FATERNEFTARTREES 2016 2021 3.58 4,999
RERARTRAFGHET 64,925

AITETHRBREYRBEAFATRIIEEMNER., EAOEKEAHERTRTERENF, BORENZEANERSBEIRSKE.
(3) MfF=HEAMR
AN EEH R AAT 20184%12H31H

ATERAETART ZREALRR 2014-2018 2024-2028 3.65-5.30 71,893

20174128318

AFTREANRTART ZERARK 2014-2016 2024-2026 3.65-5.30 41,841
AT HF201445F, 20165 R2018FER1TT —RAAMSE, WHAEHEMRSE, EEHNERESHAEBERTXHPAENEE K HNER
T, ATENEFTRAOTEELFERMIEABELTKEIZGS ., MATATERBER, EEHEERFAE,

ER=RAGHERAFARATANRLEE. SRELTXGPTAOENEEREEHN, ATENEHEERESNASHTEHAL. FAEHRX
FHRERE AT BB RFEM,

(4) RIfdEP>=XHFIESH
ERRAFEFAZ ST, ARATEEESRHABEENGET. FETUHHERSEBNERITNANGIERES (FE/N\. 52(2).

F20185E12A31H, L RMASGHEREMNBHRENGERRTNAFIIHEISEESITAARM7830{ZT, #MEHMANNEESE, ZTEFEN
2%ZE5.7% (20174128310 . ESITHART235.45127T, HRATNEE6E, EEMEH2%ES.7%),

31. b safk

vl AT
. | o01£12A31R  2017#12A31A | 2018F12A31H 2017412318
R AFERLTEEAMEE ERRA 21,746 24,897 = -
RFR RN AR 2,768 - 2,768 -
EIRB B FE RN MRS 20,434 16,789 20,434 16,789
HAERIES 7,126 5,291 - -
Bt 2,003 2,115 = -
BRAFEN AR 798 921 = -
R EZSHEHHR 867 1,053 = -
TR 11,752 4,419 7,402 2,666
FERAFIESH LGS N AR 328 575 577 296
Hit 9,453 8,178 5,323 4,910
&it 77,275 64,238 36,504 24,661

32. LW B A

20184 %20174£12H31H
.
FAEAR AR Y B 153,908 36.54
HRICERABRFAELT 146,092 34.68
ERHRAFABRIELT 114,537 27.19
PEMSREESEES 6,711 1.59
‘it 421,248 100

2018 R2017THE, ATBRAREFBRAAR SLLHRRERL.
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33. HALRR

AEH 20184
B 182,636 14 = 182,650
20174

BRA N 182,637 - (1) 182,636
FT20185 R2017F12A31H . AITHALNRKHH N ART,821.95Z7T.

34. Hith 4R & W s
(1) PR E S SR EOAERER -

S v AT
L oE . zot7& | 20teE 2017
TRESLXARBOHMBEERER (950) (63) (33) (63)

EFITEREZFIREAGIER~HEF (32) (63) (32) (63)
HpBTERALNANMEE (918) TEA (1) FERA
BEHXFRANHBEEREA 6,860 (8,494) 5,456 (3,428)
HEESMAT A ANEEH TiEA (9,070) TER (4,220)
Htb AR R A RMEE 7,292 RiEFA 7,116 TEH
HtRHFRAFEABRE 121 TiEA 121 FEH
o BT ARG SRR SR ARR (108) 122 ) 9
FRSRI% M (1,771) 2,168 (1,778) 1,053
SNRIRFRINEZR 1,549 (1,710) - (270)
Htt (223) (4) = -
it 5,910 (8,557) 5,423 (3,491)
(2) FEABRRTABRTEARAMEENEMEAREH
A

201781 B 1H (74) &M TEA TEA 3,304 305 (195) 3,340
AEERER (63) TEA TEA TiEH (6,722) (1,437) (37) (8,259)
2017 12H31H (137) el TEHA &M (3,418) (1,132) (232) (4,919)
SUHHREENF W - 378 (20,777) 226 3,418 - - (16,755)
201841 F1H (137) 378 (20,777) 226 = (1,132) (232) (21,674)
KEBR LD (32 5,408 (918) 121 FiEM 1,302 (140) 5,741

20184128318 (169) 5,786 (21,695) 347 RiE 170 (372) (15,933)

(1) FTEERALTEEHANEEBY .
() AFAERPHEMEAUE

T

20171 R1H (74) TEM FEM FiEM (1,769) 244 (1,599)
ARERE L (63) TER FERA TER (3,158) (270) (3,491)
20174128318 (137) FEM TiEA FEM (4,927) (26) (5,090)
SUTBEEENYM - (4,917) (50) 95 4,927 - 55
2018418 1H (137) (4,917) (50) 95 = (26) (5,035)
RERE LR (32) 5,335 ) 121 FiE - 5,423
20184128318 (169) 418 (51) 216 - (26) 388

35. BRAR
RIBERWAALEAENE, AFFUEBEVSTHEN TS FEII0%E DA EREAR. YATEER AR 417U H A 1950%
B, TNAEER. SFEESHE, ATRRNZERRARTETHRIATHSRAERMATRRAL, REIKALE. FBENEER
SARTELFATLKAARN5%. B, AFEEELHARTEIRBRLAR.
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36. — AR R /& &

AEH T
ARF7(1) 223,507 210,397 223,507 210,397
FAF(©2) 4,126 3,537 - -
Ait 227,633 213,934 223,507 210,397

(1) AITERMERB(SREVERSIHRE

BEAED (M£[2012]205) MWAE, ERBRASREEZOERE,

RIRBIA SR T~ ARAEETERE, BN E—RREE AR AET RS R~ FERRTA.5%,
(2) HEXLEENE, AEAFAIERDPEFNBHRR—ESTEI RN ES.,

37. RS ELFE

3 — AR PR A 2 PR SRAMR AT 14

&R AT
2o
EEREH 284,876 247,104 251,775 219,155
SUHBEEE (14,451) TiEF (30,660) TiEFA
KEYRI 270,425 247,104 221,115 219,155
e AR TEA SRR EFE 110,758 112,387 109,361 107,068
REFAT - 207 - -
R RBCEERRAR(Y) (10,936) (10,707) (10,936) (10,707)
RBEREREAREQ)) (10,707) (10,480) (10,707) (10,480)
R — MR KBS A (2) (i) (13,699) (27,408) (13,110) (27,061)
B4 (2) (i) (26,767) (26,200) (26,767) (26,200)
508BEZENES (6) (27) - -
FERRY 319,068 284,876 268,956 251,775
(1) 2018 EFIiE5H AL
AIT2018EEEFANES, RECEERKARARMI109.36127TF 1T AN2018FF, 2018 FHMFENE T REGTEESHAE.
(2) 2017 EFEH B
BFBEST2018F 11 B26HHERT20I7TEEFEDEATRMT -
() REERBRARARMI07.071Z7T.
(i) RER—BREAEART131.101Z7T.
(i) HEMESBRFIART267.671Z7T, LFEHEITA2018FE,
F2018F 128310, BREF2017EEEFHRBMNZERRARARTI07.07ZTEIT N0 7TEEM FiRF, EIRFIESEE T AN20185F E

Sk, LRASRFIELTURE.

(3) T2018FER2017412A31H, AKRARNEIARTFAT LS TANVRBFALTZENBRAMKFUTART18.35ZTRART16.99Z5T.,

8. DA R a
AEE D BRFRAFITAT -

EFERBRIELS

. LRt E

10,833 9,492
EREMERRNERAS 8,616 8,369
EFFEHRHBERAF 3,293 3,167
Ait 22,742 21,028

39. %Ull_,\l%”&)\

g vl AT

LT 2017 | 20188 20174

FRBN
R RFEIK 500,149 457,467 485,902 442,637
REIRREW) 65,188 50,987 65,669 50,573
HERSRINBEESMA™ 16,763 21,640 16,255 21,123
PSRBT RIFHE LRI 34,243 30,325 33,427 29,598
Hitp 818 65 = -
617,161 560,484 601,253 543,931

FEZH
ERTREFIES (308,040) (275,602) (305,772) (274,671)
8\ R HAth & B AR TF IR IR (98,958) (78,329) (98,739) (78,503)
0% R 73K (12,794) (13,067) (13,179) (13,135)
B BUF A H fh & B AL AR (12,182) (10,151) (7,190) (5,304)
Hitp (2,239) (3,085) (1,673) (1,241)
(434,213) (380,234) (426,553) (372,854)
F 2 EBA 182,948 180,250 174,700 171,077

FRBANREIE .

EIRBIEE S B E = F BRA 638 563 638 563

(1) REIARAFSBRNBERDRA.

Htb B H R 2N
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40. FEBRAEFIN

A EEF AT
FHEHERAEBAN
ZRVESEERS R 3,470 3,804 2,842 2,882
TWRRH R 2,344 3,025 2,344 3,025
ERXER 1,638 2,414 1,638 2,414
e #1518 2 80 197 40 98
RELFZEH W SBWA 25 79 - -
Hith 1,452 1,381 591 948
9,009 10,900 7,455 9,367
FHEHERAEIH (1,311) (1,127) (697) (733)
FHEARMEFERA 7,698 9,773 6,758 8,634
418 EI S
A EEE AT
PTEEMIR 111 327 11 329
ZHMEmA~ 19,619 TEA 5,674 FEHR
FAIR A 9 RiER - ~ER
Hp AR #E (33) iE A S RiE
HithAlas TEEH 100 & 1 &
A RMETTEEEEDIT AL HRANSRA = &M 18,932 RER 4,873
T ESRA REM 670 & (8)
R AR & A 559 & -
KHARRAIR 7 173 37 1,118 1,183
&it 19,979 20,525 6,907 6,377
2. nMEZHIRE
AR EEH] AT
112 S 1
fTESMIA 15 11,009 (29) 10,886
ZHMEmA~ (17,225) TEM 1,519 FEHR
A RMNMETT B BEEEDIT AL HRANSRBE = RER (7,152) iE A 334
R GERIER 285 TiEA 285 TEA
At (16,925) 3,857 1,775 11,220

43.C 2
IRIEM B ETF20184 128 1K A9 CETFBITENR2018E E R A U M SR EHRABA) ME[2018]365 ), 20184 FL HRK T EOFITE
A MRS f9R% . MESNCATE SR T A 4 1iRa%.

2017EBINCATE S BT RS £ WERIRH BA IR S HRNE RARS B AANEZDRE" +.
44. H Al 5N

AREEH] AT
FAEBA 6,515 6,054 8 4
Hity 1,449 1,328 4 27
Ait 7,964 7,382 12 31

45. B & R M

AR EEH] AT
WP RRE 2,324 1,993 2,199 1,838
HE RN 1,717 1,486 1,623 1,371
Hite 438 420 362 351
it 4,479 3,899 4,184 3,560

46l R EIB

S-S5 AT
RI%A 6,811 6,382 5,458 5,250
VA 4,103 4,505 3,415 3,568
HIRFIR TR A 1,391 1,290 1,263 1,167

Hit 12,305 12,177 10,136 9,985
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47 fFRBER%

20184
RIGERFLIR 92,684 91,365
FANIR A 324 214
HRRIRHE 121 121
BERRIE 3,281 3,281
MEBRER 66 82
Hit 710 259
&it 97,186 95,322
48. FERERR K
20174
RIGERRFLIR 4,722 (1,739)
o it & S RAA - 4 4
Rz WSR2 A% R 136 (7)
HAth 218 33
&it 5,080 (1,709)
49. H Al 55 B A<
AR EEH &7
ZEHRBZH=HIA 2,966 2,760 = -
MEERER TiEH (1,749) TiEA (1,787)
HAth 3,061 3,621 = -
&it 6,027 4,632 = (1,787)

B2018F1A1ARTHEMIEAN, AEEAXATHAEARIRETERFKBERYSERER, 2018F A RHKERY FERERIHRENTR
REE FERRERK NERIE.

50. Fr S8t 2% A

A EEH] AT
ER RS i 51,546 20,922 47,031 15,446
BIEFFGBLZR A (HE/N\. 19) (32,042) 6,113 (26,411) 10,003
&it 19,504 27,035 20,620 25,449

AEARATHBHREMSSHFENBETROT -

A%EH F17
1 T
BarFi 131,560 140,624 129,981 132,517
R EBE25%ITHNF SR A 32,890 35,156 32,495 33,129
FrERAREBE A £ #0 (425) (140) - -
Al O A (13,768) (9,735) (12,687) (8,576)
ARBINTIRING B 1 2 R ABZ 0 69 616 = -
TR 69 % A R E At B AR F 00 738 1,138 812 896
Fris®ist A 19,504 27,035 20,620 25,449

51. M&RMEBRIIEHH
(1) BENBETAEEEDRERE

M T
11 S S
A 112,056 113,589 109,361 107,068
. FEERERE 98,083 5,080 95,387 (1,709)
HrIBFRESH 4,425 3,971 1,301 1,151
BWRREESITHIAE (638) (563) (638) (563)
WEEERS. TRAFMEMKBR=0RE (652) - - 1
AAMEER R 16,925 (3,857) (1,775) (11,220)
FREFRN LML EM 255,034 229,994 247,293 229,402
AU (249) (1,266) (1,121) (1,175)

LR 10,611 (11,782) (1,551) (11,967)
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AR AT
_ 20174 _ 20174
BIEFEREA (42,597) 6,113 (26,411) 10,003
M BT B #%EINET (430,935) (2,077,824) (514,378) (2,152,641)
ZEMNHTE NS (B AEINE (455,946) 990,249 (278,382) 1,023,186
BEFHEENAEREST (433,883) (746,296) (370.914) (808.464)
(2) AERRELENMWETHER
PSSl AT
_ 20174 _ 20174
W& RIS ENWHERST 1,031,679 1,151,594 987,665 1,052,056
B R RMEENWHNEDRT (1,151,594) (1,388,154) (1,052,056) (1,340,124)
NERMEFNYER D (119,915) (236,560) (64,391) (288,068)
B) IRFRERERHIHAERAEZMMYER -
ANEEH] AT
_ 20174128318 _ 2017412H31H
ERFRE 2 2 1 1
oI AFXMAHER P RETHR 274,741 264,513 274,736 264,459
FHRFHATBI=ABE
INEBEESA~ 455,425 497,946 454,403 493,783
TFIE LRI 134,582 188,169 92,096 92,849
HERE 161,908 200,964 161,408 200,964
BUF RS 5,021 - 5,021 -
&it 1,031,679 1,151,594 987,665 1,052,056

52. fE&E Mk E P A AR
(1) FERARTREBORALIEM =S
FEALTREBRANBY S, FABLSBUNBERTEL ARSI IHTARSELBA~NLBAE.
(@) FERLT. FEREENMANSIEEENELMEELEE
AEFALT. FREEBHMASHEEANRMENLIFAOEAEARTARAS IS LERESFEAATRIMBEANGT. K50

REREENRSEETWEES, ATFAKANLEEMLIEAENN, BISS5HXENZHITRER, FEHEDEANEHEEEHL
MAFMETEER, HEAREANIEERUEEFEES.,

FT2018F12A31H, LR(MMQ)FANEGIFERMNLE WU EEMASMRAART,486.13{Z5T (2017F12A31H . ART2,116.09Z7T). XF
FHNEFEENEML IR, AEARRHRYSRAMIE,

(B) HFEFLIT. REREEMARNNGHEENEBLER

AEARBRIFERTBNNEMLIE, BRERAEBY >R, AFXFHIES. AFEETYNEESSE, IRAFRMASEERS. £
SARBENRPNEICENEMUETERHEYSRAM AT,

F2018F12A31H, AKARRRIMNKREIFHNEMLITHRMEDART2,207.09Z5T (2017127318 . ART2,263.92127T), AEARATF
XL LA EAER B KE N E N AR T50.26127T (20174128310 . ARM33.26127T), XEXFHRMART ALK XLELEH UL ER
BIRAIRKHA .,

Fo018F K, AEHAFEREMUTERTRENIEIRZAR/FEARAN. RAKBRF BN, HIFART10.80{Z5T (20174F . ARM11.25
fz).

(4) AEARBHRNNGIEERLSRLER

F2018F12A31H, AKAFARDHME=TTNMETREENEHUIANE . BINAXZHERAS, T017HF12A318, ERAITA
UARMETEEEEHITASHRENEREAS. THUESHASMERRTERER. I TIZERAANGTH RS WU ERR S HNER,
EAFIARENTHHE. FR&EAUHEERE, AEAFEHBNBETHENLIEHNAFESITAT .

AEH

T HUERA> 39,662 FiEH
MUARMETEEHEIT ALY HRANSHA™ NiEA 34,489
oSSR RER 900
R R 7 TiER 3,361
Ait 39,662 38,750

53. &R TH®

EAEXST. ARABERAFHEARKRBNGERE. BFARKENGERRRAZFRTAS LS. RBEMEMW. 7@)MMGIE. 4 HHUR
. FEASZRARMEMOREEERZEHRA T EH, MMARERLERIAMIXERA.

F20185F 128318, EHILERIMNERE = RENKERENART189.831Z7T (20174128311 . 506.641Z7T). HH .

- WFERAFHILKEREART157.96{27T (20175128318 . 327.831Z7T) . AEEIAAKREEARE T HX45% B HETTHE XIS KE
TIRE, HEMNKEHAEGITEE

- XWTFERESHILKEREARTI.61/Z7T (20174128310 . 36.21127T), WMAMERZE AKX O 43.281Z7T (20174128318 . 5.751Z
o). AERSRSSANTIZEIULNERES

- WTFERAFFIUEKEREART22.26/27T (20174F128318 . 14260127T), AEFAINATFETRELIETINGMG.
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. SEIRE

AEHABYRHDEBIREATLEINHFREXFNOE, PHESRBEAEARNDERNRE ST RIHTIIR.
DWERZE—RBLZFREEMHT. ABKILENSRTHARER, FETEIBOLSRRAHRBR,

AEAFTEZUT LSO BRTIIR -

RATILSS

ZAMERBEANRTLS. KORFLERFLV S, AIRTULSEBERERTRIR. FXRS. RERS. BEA5458KRS. NSEER

% LRNEERS. RERSERERRSE. ROGEFLSARNRTUSIEAS KR, RELUSBERTTHRS. MLHHRS. HETH
X5, REMCEREFTEXHGRAFAHERE,

BRAL % FE b 55

KD EEFERBIRA LS.

HE S

AAMEERAEAEAHEANRARTVSREERARLS.

IES AL %

AAMEFESNEL NS, BEVSRIEFKELS.,
A EEH]

L A
20184
F 2B 609,306 1,124 7,393 1,533 (2,195) 617,161
FEZd (426,434) (2,138) (6,863) (980) 2,202 (434,213)
RN RER 182,872 (1,014) 530 553 7 182,948
B . WX GFEYNBET 181,061 71 1,287 529 - 182,948
2 BB ] FI B KN 5 BT 1,811 (1,085) (757) 24 7 =
FHREARMEZFHRA 6,621 382 (75) 771 1) 7,698
B . X5 FLELRMEFEN 6,715 387 (29) 625 - 7,698
S EBIEF 4E 2 R 2 FN (94) (6 (46) 146 (1) -

HAA 50,228 3,697 8,132 574 (939) 61,692
Bl (110,091) (4,428) (5,324) (1,094) 43 (120,894)
B SR SR 39 56 11 10 - 116
A A 129,669 (1,307) 3,274 814 (890) 131,560

2018412318

BRE 15,856,948 182,011 238,067 40,789 (137,995) 16,179,820
BRAR 14,617,753 82,627 213,864 24,380 (59,527) 14,879,097
Hith -
7 IR F 55 1,301 129 2,948 47 - 4,425
RAMEE 1,651 5,357 20,123 106 - 27,237
ERRERK 95,516 68 460 992 150 97,186
HAtb B =B R A 65 530 302 - - 897
BRI 3,705,399 - - - (9,863) 3,695,536
FIT % BAR AN & RS 5% EHRIFE At
20174
FEBAN 554,021 1,354 5,889 651 (1,431) 560,484
Flaxd (374,040) (1,650) (4,985) (1,040) 1,481 (380,234)
F BN E 179,981 (296) 904 (389) 50 180,250
B . XI5 F BN EE 178,834 486 1,319 (389) - 180,250
7 EBE]FI BN BB 1,147 (782) (415) - 50 -
FEHRRAEHEN 8,614 427 (62) 815 (21) 9,773
B X5 FEEHR ML RN 8,578 427 (26) 794 - 9,773
5 5B [E] F £ R 2 N 36 - (36) 21 (21) -
HbA (38,825) 8,190 6,603 1,307 (987) (23,712)
Bl X (16,531) (4,266) (4,643) (624) 276 (25,788)
B SN AR 133 23 6 2 (63) 101

F8 B E 133,372 4,078 2,808 1,111 (745) 140,624
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RITW S BARIE W 5 ARYE EFH W & BFRIBE &1t
2017412H31H
BAF= 15,689,483 170,078 187,099 43,559 (130,931) 15,959,288
BRAR 14,505,925 72,194 163,590 28,173 (51,069) 14,718,813
HIRFIRESE 1,173 50 2,699 49 - 3,971
RAMZH 1,113 240 16,941 96 - 18,390
B PRER K 4,193 215 913 28 (269) 5,080
ER&E 3,761,863 - - - (19,155) 3,742,708
T. XEAXERXS
1. MEER

F2018FER20174F12A31H . MEEHFE £ 1736.54% A9 BN
WBHEESRENARS], AEASHERHATHEZLSXZREFHULERAT TECREATTHUIREILIMBEBELTHERS.

FHREMGRA, ZEXHNFERERMOT .

E IR A LM 90,215 95,971
R R 1,194 1,365
FIE X [8](%) 2.22-4.68 2.29-4.68
F BN 2,800 2,854
B FE M 201 146

2. iLERTA
F2018ER2017E12831H, L&A THHH A1734.68%H9 AN .

C2ARRTERRARTEAINEEFAS, M IHELER, FMAARAAHIARTS,282.09Zx. LE£AFLESRER, WEESHIY
HTRIURE, FANERMHIHZEEFRS. LLAREPEBUFMRETENS RTINS,
FHREMERE, ARASLEATNRHERFNOT -

ZHMHEERA~ 2,055 &
HABHAURHE 8,433 TiEH
AR M ETTEEREDITALHRBHSRE > TEA 148
T E SR &M 3,335
FI % X 8] (%) 3.12-5.15 3.32-4.38
F BN 336 114

AEASTEATREBRHRAEREHNADFTHNAZLERS, REFRHLERET.
3. BRMEREERRTELHT
F2018ER2017E12A31 8, BIAHA TIHFE RFT27.19% AN,

BIAMRAFEERTELS (NTEHR BEANAE)ZEFRMLEERERRIN—ABRREAS, SECEARAIE. B’ HX
EE BHRA . AFZIREE. RAEE (GEAEHMENTIE, 2AXBIMAERTIFREEE).

AEASERNASREEHELREHNASTHTHEELEZ S, REEHLERHET.
4. 5FAANES
ATAFARERIEFEEEFARNNRAITNOT .

R

PTTEERAS 5 56
R 42,142 36,863
ZHMERA 365 iEH
HABFRURE 713 TiE A
MARMETEBEREFHITA L PRANSRA TEM 1,675
HEESME TEM 1,286
HA A 430 123
fuf

)Mk B H At & R A TR KR 6 11
FTESR MR 16 7
R R 156,067 31,728
ERTHRESIES 961 900

F2018512A31H, 5F R FEEXNRFRKERFFEREKXIERETMAARTI8.631Z7T (20175128318 . ARM161.54127T).
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AOFBARRETEE5FASNRETI AT .

FEBA 2,004 1,304
FEXH (454) (195)
FEHRRASBN 51 52
FHEHRAEXH (23) (28)
RABE 1,123 952

RIT5FAZENR SRR —RHUERAER L SREFHET.
5. SHREMGELTANZS

AFTSHKEMEELADZBNRZN—RZANEAENEM, ZEBHLEFRHT. T2018FR2017F, ARARSKEMNGELTREEX
RENTRS, ERBEERRKTRI.

6. XEEEAR

*BEBARREENF AT, BENEHAEBEIMAR. F018FER2017E, REFZRHAFMIN, AEAEXBEEARNIH LM
FREKX,

7. tlEE
BRE#MHERKS, FO18ER20174, AEARATSATRINELTURREBALBALS.

T—. HBEBFWRKIE

1. EBIRD
;g:;gf;£;$$H&¢ﬁﬁ&%$i%ﬁw$ﬁc$ﬁ%ﬁ%%%&%%@ﬁﬁ%%£ﬁm#%x%ﬁ$%@&$ﬁmw%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

2. TAMRIE

R EEH] T
| 2018F12AS1A | 201712A31R | 2018£12AIE | 2017#12A%1A
EEARNT
— BRAURHE 37,972 50,201 - -
- ERARA 68,193 99,130 2,366 2,459
&it 106,165 149,331 2,366 2,459
3. EHKis
&R AT
2017412H831H
BRI 3,622,583 3,649,438 3,625,583 3,659,059
FFHRERIBR 59,968 60,039 66,831 69,573
RITRRILE 8,001 18,441 8,001 18,441
FFH S AIE 4,984 14,790 4,984 14,790
&it 3,695,536 3,742,708 3,705,399 3,761,863

F20185F12A31H, RAKEFERIFAE—FEUTHEHMAART266.14Z5T (20176F12F31H . 62.571Z7xt), HERAKEEREILHAY
E—FME.

4. ZEMEKIE
FREOERD. AEARATHIETHRTRENEERRSOERNT -

A EEH T
—EMR 586 528 488 334
—EZfF 312 286 274 187
—E=F 207 246 184 119
=EME 796 481 675 395
&it 1,901 1,541 1,621 1,035

5. RAEMEEKIE
FAFRERE, MMETORTHEORARL SHERNT .

AR EEH
BAMEERSH 27,002 7,790

F2018F R20174£12A318, AKHAMNRAR T KB A—FNUA,

6. IEFAIHAIE
F2018% R20174 126310, AEEABERBTHIESFEKE.
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7. FBRY
(1) {ERBRHE
FAEOGERE, WAESEE MY RIBDOEEKENEDT .

AREEH

20184 12H31H 2017412HA31H
e 67,487 16,130
Hits - 3,750
Ait 67,487 19,880
AT

20184 12H31H 2017#&12A31H
% 56,660 7,790

F2018F12A31H, AEARATHRHEIMESEE = (ME/\. 25)K&H 5N ART662.01{Z TR ART556.6127T. (2017612831H : AR
M193.27Z TR ARM77.9125T) . B B Mt 97 il A 3R 5 E A I HA.

o, AEAMOMAREFRRRELERLNASATEROEREY. T2018F128310. AKH LR RAFVHNKENED S HARD
72.84MZ TR AR M40.161Z5T (201741283180 . ARM64.85{ZTTRARM23.261Z7T) .

2) UrBIEHERY

AEBAEXINRE (FE/N. S)UHFERZTIESHSEAMAIAY. T2018FEK2017HF128310, AKALERHN BT INE & H R EIMEHAYIE
FIRAEY.

T=. KEEHE

1. &FLRE &8 KBS
ARANSEEDAREHERAR, ARAELELRTIRESBNRELASHETAZN. M7, LEHRE, KEARELBYSHD
BIE, ARVEOFRTBEHEARSERE. BEAEANEHFENREFRRNDROTE, RIS Rk EEN IS b5 B ERFY
",
AEATBENRTARSROEEHERIDARESEEAS, HBASEMT HE—X TRMTHARKNFEHNZE, ZER, TEARE
ARAKHEATRERRUSHEENE, AEAREESAS ARERBREARBENRETHEHAFHILTBITRTRE RMEOHS,
RTHE AR 75 & A A U0 FL 38,

ARREERNEARE, AKART T - LENEENTESMTIAR S, BREEHEIH. KHMARTHRMFR TRANE.

ARANREEERRRET ELAMNRRATNESFER, FBLITENRNNESRGRENNIEMRFAIANTER. ARERRITD TR
. AEAEHEERREERRANASE, RNRERRTS. mafR4, HIAREXRNAHTENREE. AEARGRNEIEZSRAR
KB . FEARE. REIERERTHNE,

2. AR
ARAFERNERANERETFAIXFINFNENREAEATRTENEERINORE. FANKRAKAVSHRNRERZNR, FILER
EXMERAREREEREE, FARNRIESETEARRMEERMOER LS, NMENERERENTESERS LS, RIS IEFME
HEREREAMEARERFEERNR.

AEAZBERESKAHABITRERARLEEES| S6AKALERHERITERIRGR, @FTRATE. BXR. RE. B HEK
£ TERHRGE. ZERAZEEAITRGER . HEERNE A SABMENE A EAITEMTHEE A S AR HRIURARNFIERTR, B,
ATRIEFENAERS ST, EHETBRITR. TR, BTBUFTER. RITEMTLITRENRA.

(1) ERARKKEHER

AEAMEERERAENRR. BEFEFM. BREAN. RREFNFRBFEEFATNERLSEREXISTACHEE, BIHNERE
FRERE, BARAE. TARE. FEFEH. IRFERIRELEESREEE. ReWaNRERAR. MRARRFIBRLE, #HitE
REERY #%&Ei1”¥Exﬁﬁim%2k%@m1pﬁﬁﬂﬁbE.EE7J<3F

LEAREART T AL ENBFEMAATERETATRE SRA N EERR— MO, WEHETZE., RPTESEaHTRERRN T
KEHE . (NEHIRTELLE, MERQAFANKEITERZBTLELRRR, BNEMERGNNETEEZEHEAL.

BERAFSGAGATREARKES, MTALZELS, ARAEREFASELEAKTINIHGNF. FTEEARRESRAKAR. G4
SENIBERTRELS. PRRE, FTCHENNIEEERAGHEREREIEE TR, IRSEELSNERNKRHTER, Wb X%
AAEFRERIKENERLS, AGFEZFEAMTAKAREEAAROTEN, HRESRFBENRE, FHIEREEAN LY SE
FRE5E AL S5 4R S 0L A0 MBS 12 ) F2 P R BUR SR PR IRIZ 5 KB

(2) B

AEAFET —FIEAREERNBENERE RALBXAN, SERCANEREEREIARERAFY . KEENEERSZHIRY
MR MSEARRERRESE T REES HEMEHRRFMITEER

WY EEINARELFE >, R, Fibe. L E AR, #Xﬁﬁ# REHFRUBRNMEE. RERRRINER I H b ERA
FRRETY, AR IAXSHURRE., BEBALT. [5%u%mﬂIEZHA?ﬂ#\VFﬁi?#ﬁ’]ﬁfksiﬁIiﬁ%j*fu%mﬁlﬂﬁl\, =%, Bfm
Hh B RERFBER. F2018F12A318, AEARFEERNIRHEH™.

(3) ERRKITLE

AEAXAABERNRIFERRENZZHFHBARRITHER, ENAREINNZZSFRARRMAMIFRER, ERKXBEHRERN
ERARFERRER (10 . ERANEERAMITL %) BRANTFREE, BN, AREARBLEEIBERATREINBEEEINTE
B o, AEEEEEAREEEARNERANNAZTZEGEARANREANDERATR T, NTBTERFEEMIOFEENEEHNTR
®RE,
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(4) FEERBKITE

B2018F1A1BHMEM T RANNT, ITURAEATEMNAANMETEERTHTARBGZARAENGS TRSHMAS. HMSRE~ N
ERRFAENMESERER, AREEHA MHAEHERAEE TRAELASE, AEAETERASTHAERRKBEN LT E D RKESHER
%

NTAANFPERRRATENER TR, AREATEEXERIANGARNKAMERINEEEEEEBM, A" =M AERESHITER
MEAER. WINTHERRE .

BINE - BVERIAGERAREREZEZMNERTE, REANEIIAEIMNER,

MR - BVERIAEEARKREZEMN, EFREHAAAEREEARENSRIA, REANRUDS HE2MNE.

EINER - WTEREGFARENSHIR, REAMBRYD AEINER,
BMRERIARREYTZERIARKIHNBAMBEAREANSTOIEHRL AR, LMBRNEMREMTARREL T ZERIAR
MEEHATERREANSTITERRA AR,

HASREEREERRENSRATREENERIANEFECARENSRAS. RERAFHAEESAENFEHNTURERRE.
AERAGRHEMEESHTHAGEARAITE, THEARELMTETEAT ERMEBMNRE., XERDMERFRRKRORNELFELNE
RAMGERRRL (B, ZREANTEERENRE). AREARBESITDENNEREMAEARENTERERT AE . REMET, 845 .
- RWUERARKRAED

- PERBRAITENSH. RERMEITTEA

- EFARE R E G0 H U AR A

- BAMERERFARERAMRAE

- MATHEMITEBNEFER. 2FERERANENXA

- ESMBRRMBERMBRNARA S TN

REARRAE R
AEFABRFEUNEEENRAETHE, EHRTHOAN, AEAZETHERALE, TUEH. #XAE. BRAXVERE. BREGH
R B3 T Stk

BHERRRITENS S, RREMGETRA
RIEEANERERESEZEMNUERTEREGARE, AKAMATRNE~S N2 ARENFEANTREARKITERELEE. MH
ERPARTENXBSHOEEAME. SARKXMBARGHO. AEEAN LSRRG EEMEANRBITRER D EM, REFSRIAE
WHEXR, FERDELGUHEE (NZXHHFFE. BRARNKMAANER. ERTRE) NESPMREENREE. BUSOHE. SHRKEK
RELARNE M AEE,
AREXMT -
- BAMRRERSAERKLCNAREBIMAGTEY, TERTHEMXSHTEN, ARANSAME NABITRIREER HRM T
BE, MAREEER, MRREBFTEUEFHETHRS AN LHHOHER
- BARKEREAFHAMNBANKRBERERIBEMDOTE, REXSITFHER. BROTXAULLER. MERERROAE, 4R
REBERAE, FARMKEASFARENKERARKOESLL
BANKBARYE EFAREN, AEANHEERTHESHA,

AERAXBABREANEITIERRENZZHFHEAMRTHER, ENFRXINZ G FXBRARNATRELR, ERAAIBHKEN
ERARFERRESBRANTEEE, AEACHEEFERTPERRETERXNRE. SRSHRTHEARXRERYNENZS)
EA.

T2018FE, fAitRAHXBRERREERRL.
15 F B 52 2 18 n B9 34 BT A o

AEAESI A UREBITIEEXERIANGEAREAVMHERIAEEECEERBM. AKRAHXTERATNRENERI DN EDFERRE
FERARRREHAEEZTMNEMESEEGRENELS. SFRTELEER. AEEANANSRTANEN BILRERIAEASARERAX
EHEANNESENERIABRESANNE, MRESHITATITFEARNKESARRNRLER.

AEFARIREEE. EMRENHMSRTIANGEARNKREVNEFRIAGEEREEZEM, ANGETEERRSABORINEL. FAR
RN TANRHMRBEANKEEZEMNER, EANSRTIANERNEBMERINEEREEZ LMY, RELDRERENX TS
H30REIAEARKEZEEMORE BN, BMHETIAE, ERATARRLH—F, EEEAIEANKEZ L7, MRERSEASHMIA
HHEARBRMEARE, AFARRZERIANEANKEBENHEFINEFAESZEMN. IRSRIAAFRMNBANG, BERAEEH
NEARBNENRBERGRAESRNS. BEBTXSERATHERPEAZFNE LZF ORI ZAMER. WiZeRBEAARFTREE
AR,

BATE R E1ERRENAERE
EFERMIAENTARERTREGHAEN, AKRAMXANRERE, SABHNEXSRIANGEARKEEEERRE -, RANXEE
8. EMER. ARATERSARBREGAREN, TEXENUTEE .
- ROAIESAREERMESERE
- REABERER. MEMISHALFANEHRIANAEANEAELE. 2. ASHIRANQIRFALBILOX
- ERARTERSAMSEREXNEFRERERE. BTHESAEETTEMER THFISHMEBILS
- REARTEB S HHTHMRSES
- ROAIESAVSEARSBIZERASHIERTHIEE
IMKIBHT KSR E — SR A, ZFMRRT REGFARENEL.
ERMAFREFARE, FUERSNIEHNEMERAME, ROZTRMIRAIAIEFTE,



[UEEreted | 113

ATFRENITENETIER. EFERRANENRA

ERREZZEMATEHERMPERREIOUTEYSRIELER. AEHBTHTHELEEDT, R0 E 0L 5 KEE AR L RHER
REAPNRBETFIER, NWRALFRSER. CUESER SREHE, FELFBERTEAMENBEARKIRNZN, FRELSESE
HERAE., AERAGEFEAIINBREH R DTREILETFIERSEAMEMBEARERZENRER, AEARHNXELFERETIT
BRI, FHHEMRRMREMT FEHRNITHELE

FEAFRFUIDMERKRBERN. BEREABRTHEFINEANE, AKANSHERLFTNCERTRRENBEBRRETR
REFHNITHNLUEBNTEER. 2EATFEFRETFRBERONE, AEAEANRMZIINESTHEMBH R ZM. KEHAMNE
120 BEHAERBRE (B1HR) MR BN FEAMSERARE (F2MREEIMNR) ITEBAXNOREES. ERMRERREZBLIFN—FK
FI o] B A9 25 R E B TR BRI S5

FHERRARREMTEEANERNIMAFEARKOZNE, THSREPANTHEARIONMVNET RS THURAREBERITESH
R, TO18F K, AKHAZET FARNERNEFER, ATFHETTHAGEARINRBEFETRRESERENEFBRAFHERFT -, X
BIEARMT -

il SER
ERE=BERLEKE 6.0%-6.5%

REO R BEFIEAR LIFHTFI10%, AEEATF2018F12831 AT RABERERTENLFIREBILE%,

F20185F12R318, AN, BAREU=FHIZEMAN, ERLA=ZMEIMHESENTBAERRESNXAEABRTESHOMBE
B KA EFHIEE A EBE5%.

BIRBERNEREH IS

BEENELFRUSTHEETRNZ—, REFUEHONEELMI0%, MEEERANERL10%  AHEREENEHHONEZMI0%, MLk
BRANERL10%, MWAKHEFFHHF @9/ T5%,

EIM R R SN TR R SR I & R

AEAESMNHN AP SEREGEARERSHRORARSHASAN, FREB-ENFURFABME, FEASRKRALRANIE,
(5) AEERMBRYHEMERBRIERNRAERARERE

THRAMERA, RAEAREHBONEISMNT .

AR 4T

20184£12H31H 20174128318 2018412H31H 20174£12A31H

FRHATE
B REBITRIM 275,166 264,866 274,736 264,459
R E R 758,539 1,129,033 857,596 1,111,631
HHES 168,605 227,739 168,105 227,739
FTESMA> 34,770 37,887 34,754 37,922
ENBRESFE 463,502 506,172 454,666 493,783
R ER 11,198,375 10,642,675 11,093,131 10,541,856
ZHMEmA~ 967,278 & 951,199 ]
BN 1,458,663 &R 1,450,264 i H
H A AR H 481,094 TiEA 468,379 REA
MARMETBEHEINITALSPRENSRA &M 1,046,007 & 1,030,863
o it & S RAA - REH 512,240 & 503,748
FHERHRE EA 28,388 ] 24,841
ISA ERIE 317 &M 1,201,815 FiEM 1,198,790
HAth 22,605 66,450 3,234 54,988
15,828,597 15,663,272 15,756,064 15,490,620

FIMRE
BREKM 3,622,583 3,649,438 3,625,583 3,659,059
FFHARE 59,968 60,039 66,831 69,573
RITRRLICE 8,001 18,441 8,001 18,441
FF 5 FIE 4,984 14,790 4,984 14,790
3,695,536 3,742,708 3,705,399 3,761,863
Bit 19,524,133 19,405,980 19,461,463 19,252,483

ERADFIFIRT T2018FK2017F12A31H . AKARATERFHNER THEARNKRE, BARZEERAFRRTYREMERBREELN
ERRRRE. ¥TFAFARERAE, LREANRREETAS ARRKEAEYT,

(6) FEMBMFERRKEONHT

AEAXBMRARMEZRNEASRAX A" KRR "FRE". "sRE", AR BEEIANERREKHRE BARNTIEERREN
SFFHENEEENTW " FRE EERABSLERARE, BIMMEAINHEERSE—EXN. ELFTTPBARKRSFAEM . "
B EEXABSEERNTRAERE, AREREMIIMBERNHMNELYTRSHEAEY, FARREX.
MANRETFEEEN SR TAREMATRTHRERRENEAITOT. RIEFHNER, BIMRARIONAMHAEARL, L2REMPRAETE
NEEEE Rk,
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R GEFRFETR
N EEH]
RECIEE LY 17: T 117 SR - S U S

ERER

1R 10,276,183 - B 10,276,183
RS - 1,250,794 - 1,250,794
=R - - 121,310 121,310
Ait 10,276,183 1,250,794 121,310 11,648,287
o ERREREE (201,452) (217,366) (91,433) (510,251)
A 10,074,731 1,033,428 29,877 11,138,036

#
i

1R KBS 10,186,093 = = 10,186,093
RS - 1,224,780 - 1,224,780
BRE - - 117,663 117,663
&it 10,186,093 1,224,780 117,663 11,528,536
A ERREEE (198,713) (207,723) (89,359) (495,795)
A 9,987,380 1,017,057 28,304 11,032,741
AR

NS

CeomegreAIR L ®mR EmE sm@ A
BERER
Y 1,461,682 - - 1,461,682
R 499 700 = 1,199
=R - - 2,053 2,053
&it 1,462,181 700 2,053 1,464,934
A ERREEE (5,086) (110) (1,075) (6,271)
HE 1,457,095 590 978 1,458,663

‘
=
3

1R MBS 1,454,788 - - 1,454,788
RS 499 - - 499
&it 1,455,287 - = 1,455,287
AR FAREEE (5,023) - = (5,023)
B 1,450,264 - = 1,450,264
HARBIRE

R[]

ERER

1R 480,918 - - 480,918
R - 9 - 9
S - - 167 167
Ait 480,918 9 167 481,094
A ERREES (224) ) (150) (377)

7
o

KRB 468,379 - - 468,379

ERREAE (216) - - (216)
SR RIE

N EE ]

BERER

1R 3,649,401 - B 3,649,401

RS - 41,383 - 41,383

BRR - - 4,752 4,752

Ait 3,649,401 41,383 4,752 3,695,536

‘
=
3

1R MBS 3,659,264 - - 3,659,264
R - 41,383 - 41,383
=R - - 4,752 4,752

Ait 3,659,264 41,383 4,752 3,705,399
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it fufiR
AEH
ERER
1R MBS 10,195 - - 10,195
R - 4,139 - 4,139
= R - - 814 814
At 10,195 4,139 814 15,148
&7
1R RS 10,539 = = 10,539
RS - 4,139 - 4,139
=X - - 814 814
it 10,539 4,139 814 15,492

BREMEAME AIER

FEABRVEECREGARENSRESTENERS, BANBRTEMERR, ARANBRREEFARITMIRXLERINTEEE
K. EREGEARENERES, MEIRREBERITMHENERLMNEITAT

A EH

BEREERRERNE™

R GERIER 121,310 (91,433) 29,877 54,132
FAIR A 2,053 (1,075) 978 -
HApHRRR A 167 (150) 167 -
HE 123,530 (92,658) 31,022 54,132
K17

BEREERREN R

BRI GERIER 117,663 (89,359) 28,304 54,132
B 117,663 (89,359) 28,304 54,132

AEASHRBERBERNBRTREPEORAREETALE, BAFARL—HENRFENERANBEAREBLREETRNAE.
(7) RrsEsRnEaR
RHRASMERZTRERARHREERARNSGERMAT

AEH
CavtegzAIIAR L wEew o 1Es& sEME A&

ERER 272,933 507,893 1,829,441 2,610,267
RIEBERR 162,691 226,295 1,274,627 1,663,613
AR TR 55,523 110,806 1,091,761 1,258,090
TR TR 36,496 85,218 6,025,245 6,146,959
Ait 527,643 930,212 10,221,074 11,678,929
2017#12A31H

ERER 378,725 383,282 1,763,138 2,525,145
FRAE BE 7K 188,477 207,545 1,104,322 1,500,344
ARG 64,664 117,451 1,087,689 1,269,804
TR TR 39,719 95,419 5,606,401 5,741,539
it 671,585 803,697 9,561,550 11,036,832

‘
S
i

ERR® 259,523 506,150 1,851,960 2,617,633
FRAEBE7R 165,436 228,561 1,274,700 1,668,697
AR BTN 24,762 42,252 1,059,203 1,126,217
TR EE R 35,915 85,218 6,025,498 6,146,631
it 485,636 862,181 10,211,361 11,559,178
20174128318

ERER 375,426 381,955 1,773,812 2,531,193
FRIE BEK 186,633 207,130 1,101,135 1,494,898
HRAR TR 42,874 62,642 1,062,404 1,167,920
IR TR 37,995 95,090 5,597,048 5,730,133
Ait 642,928 746,817 9,534,399 10,924,144
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RERSMBRERE A OTLYHERLOT

R EEH] 2018412A31H 20174£12A31H
I T
P X s 3,041,138 26 2,728,850 25
B B AE 1,812,274 15 1,792,708 16
B, MR RKEEF R 1,068,583 9 1,048,395 9
SRERE L 972,949 8 929,434 8
KF . IRBERIPAA RSB IR 878,469 8 860,768 8
Al AL 764,554 7 745,828 7
W ARRBE 657,229 6 412,919 4
s 540,960 5 551,846 5
R 284,421 2 300,629 3
H izt 264,543 2 208,577 2
SRh 227,165 2 246,855 2
HE 137,665 1 129,289 1
B HAE R ERRS L 109,690 1 95,688 1
Hit 919,289 8 985,046 9
Ait 11,678,929 100 11,036,832 100

4T 20184£12H31H 20174128310
e T
X E0E 3,039,787 27 2,700,047 25
T B 1,791,396 15 1,784,213 16
B, R RIKEEF 1,055,927 9 1,001,172 9
BRI 970,260 8 925,884 8
KF . RIRRIPAA IR E IR 818,286 7 856,688 8
A, AALT 763,982 7 740,756 7
W AHRE 638,345 6 407,232 4
s 570,524 5 564,682 5
R 284,403 2 299,809 3
Hthiz sl 250,088 2 211,138 2
SR 232,363 2 237,578 2
HE 137,584 1 129,165 1
B HAE 2SR RS L 109,656 1 95,397 1
Hits 896,577 8 970,383 9
Ait 11,559,178 100 10,924,144 100

REFRMBR G R AEERT =0T

2017#12A31H

BARBHthRE (i) 10,951,827 10,844,284
WK RE (ii) 8,207 8,207
ERE (iii) 76,798 71,653
11,036,832 10,924,144

B OREEE
Hep . BTG (40,087) (38,475)
A (354,070) (343,813)
(394,157) (382,288)
R 10,642,675 10,541,856

(i) BRESRIHA th R (R & A SR R R
BAREHORBENRBRARNERNEARET BT SEARARITHA S RE D KHETITME.

2017412A31H

N 10,258,048 10,154,818
*ix 693,779 689,466
&it 10,951,827 10,844,284

(i) MHAREER R ST R

F2017512A31H0, AKAGHRBERRT, SEPERRARTI8.16/Z7T. REBEERBXBERME, 2B FERNEIMES T HFRW
BERHRBL, BTZRARERRER, BERIRRIAAE. HEEPRRERRARTE391MZT, ZEIEXTRREMAEERER, HK
RIAIE.
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ERERMBFIZAPERITOT -

2017£412A31H

EHEIOK XA 6,453 6,453
EHIOK U £ 1,754 1,754
&it 8,207 8,207
HRFYEE MO 3,873 3,873

(i) BRERZRETRIRR
ERENERRRMERERITOT

2017412H31H

ERE R R R 76,798 71,653
Ao REEE - BIUTE (40,087) (38,475)
B 36,711 33,178
itk EAol ¢l 25,039 23,622

(iv) EATRAER

FARRRIEEAERARUVSRABLNBLTEZRERRERERNBELT, ARANATSERAENREERATNER. TABBEM
EEEHMERARTELSEERAWRME . ILFEBREERFLMERN. T2018F12R31H. AKAMATEARRESHAIART
246.61127t (20174128310 . ARM123.10127t).

(8) fiRiEIRHA
FemTRAENTERMERTEHSREBRT=NT

2017412H31H

B sk 36 B th oAU (i) 2,017,851 1,989,463
ERfE (if) 2,458 11
2,020,309 1,989,474
B RIS - BIURE (638) (11
X1 2,019,671 1,989,463
(i) BEAREHth RBENHFERNMERE
AEH

BURY Bof B AL AR 5255 34,079 135,736 98 1,096,088 1,266,001
SRS 3,434 37,345 25,093 5,571 71,443
NERHE 63,265 37,874 3,197 94,458 198,794
B LRHIES 4,427 216 - 713 5,356
SRz 108,822 301,053 - - 409,875
INBEERT™ 19,418 - - - 19,418
FFRED L R Bl iR 26,043 - - - 26,043
AT RITHIRM 7= & 10,323 - - - 10,323
ARG 7,417 - - - 7,417
ERITRIREA - - - 3,181 3,181
&it 277,228 512,224 28,388 1,200,011 2,017,851

‘
N
i

B R ABRE A ES 33,974 134,397 - 1,096,088 1,264,459
ERMIIEERS 3,461 37,885 24,641 5,571 71,558
AAMESE 60,395 33,155 200 94,419 188,169
RIS 4,427 - - 2,712 7,139
Eldk 77 8 108,822 298,311 - - 407,133
INREERE 19,418 - - - 19,418
FH R R Bk AR 26,043 - - - 26,043
1T RATHOIR = 5 - - - - -
RFEEEITR 5,544 - - - 5,544
&it 262,084 503,748 24,841 1,198,790 1,989,463




118 | RS

(i) SREMNFERRERR

20174128318

NEfEE 189 11
fERH R HA 2,103 -

2,292 11
B BEAEE - BT (488) (11)
kil 1,804

AERAXM T HE SRNER T LI A RERES. T2017HE128318, ARAERETHHEERNERRTNKEAENIART016/ZT. RitiTRM
BEAEERTAART.501Z7T, F2017412831BAGTLE BIEM T H EMENHRE,

TRIRT AEEARATHEAMR A WENERT 5L B IN T HEBITENAENEBITRD EKER .

7

20184 12A31H

BUF BOEB RS 5HRE = - - - 1,495,400 28,421 1,523,821
SR HS 21,205 997 - 2,918 - 79,405 104,525
AEFF 46,667 15,029 92 8,644 - 126,910 197,342
B XIS 1,273 20 - - - 1,682 2,975
Bk 778 (1) 340,474 899 - - - 2,052 343,425
EINBESRA = = - - - 4,933 4,933
IR e R[5 Mk A5 K = = - - - 13,767 13,767
AT R ATHIIE = = = - - - 8,059 8,059
FIH R A 437 164 - - - 3,261 3,862
SRR = - - - - 2,521 2,521
&it 410,056 17,109 92 11,562 1,495,400 271,011 2,205,230
E&EMH 2017412H31H

B R AR ES 14,082 - - - 1,250,817 202 1,266,001
SR GRS 10,276 1,605 650 1,035 - 57,877 71,443
AT HEH 31,810 13,327 21 3,627 - 150,025 198,810
B XS 2,398 - - 131 - 2,827 5,356
& 778 (1) 409,875 - - - - - 409,875
INBESRE - - - - - 19,418 19,418
IR b B 5 Mk 1A K - - - - - 26,043 26,043
BRI - - - - - 7,417 7,417
AT RITHERI = & - - - - - 10,323 10,323
ERIT R A - - - - - 4,985 4,985
&it 469,341 14,932 671 4,793 1,250,817 279,117 2,019,671
T 2018412H31H

BT RABUFNAE RS = = - - 1,489,900 28,040 1,517,940
SRIMBHES 20,572 768 - - - 79,406 100,746
AFFEH 40,522 11,767 = 6,442 = 125,268 183,999
A= LIS 1,273 20 - - - 1,682 2,975
Bk F7 8 (1) 339,961 899 - - - - 340,860
ENBRESFA - - - - - 4,933 4,933
R K 8] b K = = = - - 13,767 13,767
ERIT R HAR 219 74 - - - 3 296
HEEEITY = = - - - 2,521 2,521

Ait 402,547 13,628 = 6,442 1,489,900 255,620 2,168,037
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AT 2017412H31H

AAA AA A AT H8(3) it
B B A BRI S 14,530 - - - 1,249,727 202 1,264,459
SR G 12,481 1,228 - 696 - 57,153 71,558
AT 30,855 13,194 - 3,568 - 140,552 188,169
=R FES 3,907 405 - B B 2,827 7,139
778 (1) 407,133 - - - - - 407,133
INEESHA~ - - - - - 19,418 19,418
FRE K F L ERK - - - - - 26,043 26,043
FERT R EA - - - - - 5,544 5,544
it 468,906 14,827 - 4,264 1,249,727 251,739 1,989,463

(
(
(

1) EFERTAFEANERLFRERRE.

2

)
3)

(9) EMAFREPHEESH
RIS HoAth £ R BY

RITRAMBERHRABEREASRAHR. BREMRAS. AFEETY. FLRTRAEN>RMNERITIE.
RIFEBN R EBSNMREFNETABRETEBRNREBNNY, MWEE. PEARRT. C£ASMBKMRT.

3wl

2018412H31H

P KRBT 275,166 - - 275,166
FFHE R - 758,539 - 758,539
HHES - 168,605 - 168,605
PTESRA™ 2,204 30,782 1,784 34,770
ENBESRAE > - 455,950 7,552 463,502
T HMERA = 239,868 178,243 549,167 967,278
FARIRHA 1,348,631 2,632 107,400 1,458,663
HAFEAURHE 146,027 301,178 33,889 481,094
HibemA™ 942 1,756 19,907 22,605
2,012,838 1,897,685 719,699 4,630,222
2017412A31H
FHFRBITHRIA 264,866 - - 264,866
FRE LRI - 1,129,033 - 1,129,033
KRS - 227,739 - 227,739
FTE SRR~ 6,408 29,263 2,216 37,887
ENBE SRR - 497,965 8,207 506,172
MARMETBEHEHITALPRBNSRA > 286,759 157,717 601,531 1,046,007
TS SR 135,736 338,398 38,106 512,240
FGES LA 98 25,093 3,197 28,388
R R R 1,096,088 5,571 100,156 1,201,815
Hitb&m R~ 20,794 7,524 38,132 66,450
1,810,749 2,418,303 791,545 5,020,597
AT

2018412H31H

FRF RBITHRIA 274,736 - - 274,736
AR R IR - 857,596 - 857,596
FHAS - 168,105 - 168,105
TE SRR 2,204 30,766 1,784 34,754
ENBE SRR - 454,666 - 454,666
ZHMUEERA™ 247,395 163,544 540,260 951,199
AR 1,348,813 2,054 99,397 1,450,264
HRERURE 143,669 298,678 26,032 468,379
HibemA™ 942 1,019 1,273 3,234
2,017,759 1,976,428 668,746 4,662,933
20174#12A31H
FH P RBITHRIAM 264,459 - - 264,459
FHE LRI - 1,111,631 - 1,111,631
KRS - 227,739 - 227,739
FTE SRR 6,408 29,298 2,216 37,922
INBESRA ™ - 493,783 - 493,783
MARMETBEHEHITALPRBNSRA™ 286,654 157,744 586,465 1,030,863
TS SR> 134,397 336,196 33,155 503,748
HEEE BT - 24,641 200 24,841
R R R 1,096,088 5,571 97,131 1,198,790
Hith&m i~ 20,794 6,915 27,279 54,988
1,808,800 2,393,518 746,446 4,948,764
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. AR
HHAREEETHME (AR, TR REMENESNE) BT
HERHRBETRAMNR S % ERAORG ., KEFAE G5
RKTEQFERGKASZPKANTE, TERK.

A R BB B ARG T RS BB HIE— A TR
BEK, NRBRANAKER. XENERRARERE A2
B RK KT TR e RGN, 3 ARIESARAD SRR EE
AR HLENHHRL.
ERFRREFLRELFBE RS BN RR R SR D HRE .,
REEBTKNASBEAF NEERERS KERATHAR, B
EHEGRWFFARRLLRE, BRENTIRROERER,
E PP SRTIS RIS
AEFEROTHAR T EEETRAMS SR,

ZHU P RIEHTS B I AT E ORR T A TN E B
PHERIAMBRLT. BAKARENERDANTEE, &K
SR UAZ S AR AA AR S EL.

25 A TR RS R RS BES B WRIE
Bz FERTLE, it RREERAKLERKRER, F2H
PR ERGEAALRIBHERARES | AL RBAGAS ANEE
BAEANHT, Hb@ERaKATRRARRARARER, 2HEA
FREEEERSRRBAK LRGN TR EERE,
AR B ARG S %
THHRRBSRAEE. DEEME APHF. ROMT. SURMIE
REHRBTRE,

5

MHEFUS, ARARAXHRARH . RERTLH . LRRER
. HBEATETRRREHELRBRR.

AR R 5 2 AR R B T 3 L 2 4R 2 i 1)
s, RABRAGWR, SHeRBHED, FRDRHIHERN

REAZETHREHETAGEERZENMHERRZENERTERE
HXRH, RNHNEIREE. XHEGRESEHRERA.
REEERMFTXHMASEETHRRH ARG, T8, KRR

==
Ao

RITI
METHS, ATEBRSMTEAR, HEARGMBLNF, 2
BEETHRARRR. Hh, REEEBRLTHERS. ABHTS
PRARLERGRALLBERRITEESR . ALBEAOERD
SHEAHERR AL ERRETERRS. T8, FEMRAP R
FERERSRE.

HARHERR L EAR OB S TR, FRINHERE R
3TEAR (BEREKANZHMS).

(1) AR

REKAFERBRIENTAT, HRENFEFRETHENSH
R BER SRS TN EEEREOAR
ARBAEREARLROETYS N EHRNEFLBNAR R
HERRHE M, PEHARRIHARTRANEEYTHE, 18
SHABRENLENE TRERBHNEKE, —BAE, A—
. EEBREL 8RN A REHAER AL, 2018F, @
HARSAIRBESBIAR T ERAERBAHE,

M AR AR EE TR DEF BR8P AHE
MEEOEW, GEEHRONT. RS, BROEH. B
BEABIUES, B TR B R EEHRIDNE S S TR
ROBAHERRERE, THUA OHEAR BB EHHERE
RGBS, HERORBBOSS. THRRSHIEEEE,
EHENEEHNEARSE, ARATHTENEERN®RO. AW
Sighn, WEERRHEER IR THH MRS TEN
GES ST

%8OS
BARNEEENBRIMAPREES %, FARAERERAT R

TEXHKAENNABERITES %, BRTHNERNRNE

AN HTEFNE, ESTHREIRAEN.

S BRI FTFI R RS A 2 IUKENMES =0T .

p.3 vl

3MARA 3E124°A 1ZE54 5Z 104 104 E SEER &it
2018412H31H
SRR -
Ne RFHRFRBEFTHIM 275,023 - - - - 145 275,168
FHE MR 715,960 10,572 5,093 105 - 26,809 758,539
HwHHES 161,896 6,515 - - - 194 168,605
PESMA~ - - - - - 34,770 34,770
ENBRESRA 455,665 7,573 - - - 264 463,502
R RFHLIR 5,457,359 2,898,294 262,339 234,145 2,311,307 34,931 11,198,375
XHUERAF 67,180 108,555 52,376 41,066 1,538 811,017 1,081,732
(€ 106,911 49,376 710,996 569,378 - 22,002 1,458,663
HAth G & 111,194 211,205 100,370 51,652 3,471 3,202 481,094
HtiRAE TRER - - - - - 3,783 3,783
Hith 912 5 (950) = = 22,638 22,605
ERA~ G 7,352,100 3,292,095 1,130,224 896,346 2,316,316 959,755 15,946,836
SRR -
5\ & HoAth & BRALAG 7 AR I 98,549 821 3,122,150 - - 7,998 3,229,518
1B BUF A th £ AL AR 159,552 228,366 23,395 10,437 - 6,493 428,243
HwAR S 16,480 41,655 - 3,453 71 465 62,124
ZH LR AR 85,744 32,643 - - - 839 119,226
PTE SRR - - - - - 38,570 38,570
St Bl SRR K 66,227 - - - - 22 66,249
R TFFR 1,481,313 110,160 64,718 3,518 6,093 4,975 1,670,777
ERTHREIES 1,069,926 1,160,910 3,282,209 2,697,168 717,595 180,608 9,108,416
Hit 869 1,084 (52) = = 27,696 29,597
ERAFRET 2,978,660 1,575,639 6,492,420 2,714,576 723,759 267,666 14,752,720
FREHFEMNGRO ST 4,373,440 1,716,456 (5,362,196) (1,818,230) 1,592,557 692,089 1,194,116
20174£12A318
ERA~ G 7,794,989 3,243,916 844,285 834,900 2,058,387 1,001,976 15,778,453
EMABET 3,816,838 1,456,830 6,127,851 2,287,235 725,518 208,296 14,642,568
MEEBHEMRASIT 3,978,151 1,787,086 (5,283,566) (1,452,335) 1,332,869 773,680 1,135,885
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AT

20184 12H31H

ERA

N& RFHFRBITHRA 274,592 - - - - 145 274,737
R E R 830,754 59 - - - 26,783 857,596
HHES 161,396 6,515 - - - 194 168,105
TTEERA~ - - - - - 34,754 34,754
INBESRA 454,402 - - - - 264 454,666
R ER 5,469,883 2,882,690 198,464 203,703 2,308,122 30,269 11,093,131
R HHERA> 62,431 113,345 46,533 24,978 1,538 702,403 951,228
B 106,890 47,958 705,050 568,451 - 21,915 1,450,264
H A AR E 110,321 208,872 94,177 48,854 3,264 2,891 468,379
HpRE TREA = = = = - 533 533
HAth - - - - - 3,234 3,234
SRAE~ AT 7,470,669 3,259,439 1,044,224 845,986 2,312,924 823,385 15,756,627
SRR -

B b 2 H At & BRATLAG 77 BRI 98,555 821 3,122,150 - - 7,998 3,229,524
15 B FE Atk & R R SR 114,007 154,702 - - - 2,965 271,674
FAHE 14,667 42,567 - 3,453 71 465 61,223
X5 ER R 85,218 32,643 - - - 809 118,670
PSR AR = - - - - 38,309 38,309
SR B SR K 56,660 - - - - 22 56,682
R 773K 1,628,896 118,615 64,718 3,518 6,093 5,004 1,826,844
EXfTREIES 1,061,833 1,151,268 3,232,439 2,694,451 717,595 179,860 9,037,446
Hito = = - - - 10,736 10,736
ERARET 3,059,836 1,500,616 6,419,307 2,701,422 723,759 246,168 14,651,108
FEREBHFENRA ST 4,410,833 1,758,823 (5,375,083) (1,855,436) 1,589,165 577,217 1,105,519
20174128318

SRA AT 7,727,268 3,175,099 815,086 830,431 2,058,060 884,710 15,490,654
ERAKEST 3,775,743 1,394,240 6,079,050 2,268,150 724,211 214,103 14,455,497
FEEBHFENGRO ST 3,951,525 1,780,859 (5,263,964) (1,437,719) 1,333,849 670,607 1,035,157

FRFRNRHEMES

W 28 OB AT

TRITFTABEXBARB L RN TTEALTHEIONERNEAT, BTREHRAGANESHETSHEOBEMNEN. WRKI12PARFE

BB E bR S U PR R EERL AT 08,

ZoREMAHROMEYUERBERLD . KRREZLENR G T EMTREFITHE

R,

p il 20184 20174

WEERRTH L RBSMA EemakE NEBEA S ey
EF1001ME & 44,704 (6,922) 41,510 (6,240)
TRA00M A (44,704) 7,294 (41,510) 6,616
AAT 20184 20174

BB AT IR TV N 7" S 1) VTN Hps Ak
EFH004 8 A 45,190 6,911) 41,254 (6,196)
TFE100MNE & (45,190) 7,283 (41,254) 6,572

M EFBEANNEMRIE - EFN R TN ARFENTIRR-—FERN#THEREENNERA T RERAGHA T ENT S EBRANEIE. ZIHT
BRESAFENERA S RAENEVRFTE, KEFEFTH. BERRABHFENEENANEFLUEERERN.
MHEMGERENFZMREETE-EANE LN PAFENHMENRARTEGELAANEZNHIZE,
FERANAZBEEHREBRARANASEARMNETREEENER, A LAFMTRSKFERFEER. B LRFIREIHZEITN
RIEAPHE, ETFEENMTUTREBHEEAEARAMFERERLT, ASFRAMEMEERENMEITED. BZPWHREREERHRMK
FER A 0 =] RERERBY R B B IR AN

(2) CERE

ARERARIBITCREN=ENTCERE, ZREEEHEMSRATNAESRE.
REFAPHABHLERZARTLSE, HMFET. Bx. BxMEMNFITLE, BEMIETEREY, AEANCERNREIEEREE
Jt. AEACFATELTAETEXNIBAETHOBETIF, 2018FE, ARMXETTCEFAE.3297t/1% T (20174 E K 1E0.40287T/1%7T) .

FAEATEBINCHA . CREBMSTMNERKE (EaR) ZFHBLRLANRITEE

MR 5E TRETIEREER.

IF, FERTITEED

S EFHFEEHR > AR PGSR
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AEAEHMCRRRE M AN,

MERBE~MARTEARTIKENES =OT.

i

20184£12A31H

ERBEF

M RIFH P RBITHIA 275,004 161 3 275,168
R LRI 641,543 93,477 23,519 758,539
FHES 27,055 138,579 2,971 168,605
PTE SR> 32,324 1,566 880 34,770
INBRESRA > 463,502 - - 463,502
RIGETARFER 9,655,164 1,373,564 169,647 11,198,375
ZHMERA 1,051,308 30,266 158 1,081,732
BRI A 1,359,155 99,508 - 1,458,663
HAb AU R 401,012 71,383 8,699 481,094
Hipins TEERA 533 - 3,250 3,783
HAtb 18,723 3,607 275 22,605
SRA~ AT 13,925,323 1,812,111 209,402 15,946,836
SRR

84 % EoAth & BRAN A TF BRI 2,997,917 212,411 19,190 3,229,518
8 BUFY 0 EL A SRR K 133,892 280,642 13,709 428,243
wAES 3,684 37,135 21,305 62,124
ZH LR AR 119,226 - - 119,226
BT SRR 36,251 1,800 519 38,570
S SR K 66,249 - - 66,249
WU 7R 1,426,079 167,907 76,791 1,670,777
ERTHREIES 8,942,297 117,154 48,965 9,108,416
Hit 19,719 9,848 30 29,597
SRAHBET 13,745,314 826,897 180,509 14,752,720
RWTLE LT3 180,009 985,214 28,893 1,194,116
CRETETIR (AR/BXEH) 276,282 (262,113) (14,859) (690)
ERKRIE 3,355,632 295,721 44,183 3,695,536
20174128318

SRMA~ AT 13,696,692 1,861,756 220,005 15,778,453
ERAHBET 13,644,077 830,281 168,210 14,642,568
FRWTE L4 52,615 1,031,475 51,795 1,135,885
CELFETR (BR/BXEH) 350,772 (307,510) (35,717) 7,545
BRI 3,383,314 296,758 62,636 3,742,708
AT

2018412H31H

ERA

&R RBTHRI 274,621 113 3 274,737
FIRE e FRIR 765,978 67,624 23,994 857,596
FEHES 26,555 138,579 2,971 168,105
PTEERA” 32,325 1,549 880 34,754
EINBESRA~ 454,666 - - 454,666
RILGERFER 9,550,521 1,373,047 169,563 11,093,131
ZHUERAS 949,836 1,392 - 951,228
B H 1,351,475 98,789 - 1,450,264
H At AR H 388,297 71,383 8,699 468,379
HR#TRKE 533 - - 533
Hit 2,375 584 275 3,234
ERMA~EI 13,797,182 1,753,060 206,385 15,756,627
SRR

5] Mk % At & RAMLAD 77 BRI 2,997,921 212,413 19,190 3,229,524
5 BURF A EL A 2 B K - 257,965 13,709 271,674
FARE 2,784 37,135 21,304 61,223
e ki 118,670 - - 118,670
£iE SRR 36,251 1,538 520 38,309
ST B 1 R R R R 56,682 - - 56,682
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1T

AR EXHART  HtpH#HEART &it
TR U7 5K 1,569,182 178,977 78,685 1,826,844
EXfTREIES 8,906,841 83,097 47,508 9,037,446
Hith 8,775 1,936 25 10,736
SRR 13,697,106 773,061 180,941 14,651,108
RAWTE LT HH 100,076 979,999 25,444 1,105,519
CERHFETR (BR/EXEH) 276,283 (268,047) (14,859) (6,623)
(S HRIE 3,358,631 302,585 44,183 3,705,399
20174128318
SRA AT 13,466,775 1,806,171 217,708 15,490,654
ErRAFAIT 13,487,494 800,092 167,911 14,455,497
RATE LT %5 (20,719) 1,006,079 49,797 1,035,157
CERLTETR (BR/BXEH) 350,772 (307,510) (35,717) 7,545
fEREIE 3,395,858 303,369 62,636 3,761,863

MRARDHEMITACEERN1%, WAKARBGERAFWAEXR, NBRTFENZWIRMOT
p:¥- v

20184 20174 20184 20174
ETRBARTILEE
FFH% 9,852 10,315 9,800 10,061
THE1% (9,852) (10,315) (9,800) (10,061)

DINCR BB FHOE N, AERAZAFHLORENESR. FREEUTEE .
- HFERRRERAEHAZETATHANEL .

- CEREMNNEFTANTE

- BERFENTEXHINAEEAETLTRAETHEFES

- CERESNTHNENTE,

ull. HE}_[.B_L

RHUERERIEARAREEREN, ELERNUGERARSREZAS MUY A B KA ZAEMRESARE . R TR TEENLEE
TEEFRA. BRANXSURTEZBRERRERASHNER.

AEARY-BERNMERBRNER, ERIAREHRAASTHEHINEE. EANKITURE2TIE, BRI TR,

2018&, ATHSFBIETEREFHEMABTR. REFRESHMEXH, EAFGRNRERKPABEETSRENKSE THREREIH
L BEATEBELETH LNERERRTHEATFEMA,

XS E B R B iR FRiR R

AEFAARSXEBERASRERNER, HPEFEFHER. NPNEHNER. BEFSF. RREAN. BTEREREMASEENTESHRTIRN

TRER,

BARAFAGREHPEHRAIASTERENESELEZARAEARNIMNREENEZER. ATLSFAEFTTHENHARNABDNX A&

ARBAFHMAFRENTEEREIFUIMN., REERMLTITRSRESRE ERNGEFESERANNE, AEASNHRTENE ™Rk

ETRHESETEZMA.

ﬁFﬁ%%iiiﬁ/ﬁ\%mLﬁb|§ﬂ5¢ﬁﬁ%fi$ﬂ*’] iE/}Isz”gﬂBAEI]Eﬁ:E{D%IEjM—J 2&%@5‘]/}11. 'gﬁigun.fig?ﬁ

- FNEELETHIESRE. ##Hf%)ﬁmﬁbﬁ?ﬁ%ﬂ?

- BEFEFAGASMERD

- EEGSIPBEMNETEMRIE

- EFEGRSRATLY.

AEARAEBBIATS LRXTHRHARNETERE UM TR, THEHEFREMAEATREROGRNME. I, REHLER, HE—

DEHALE, WEHFR, FFASEINHRREE TREBAKE. EXHRENATHANREHER. AEARFT ﬁf“%ﬂ%ﬂ’]n%ﬁzﬂriﬁ

o

BEBLT, REAHFTNAE=ZASERERAAEANGHILEMRKENSTLARRAS, AHREERNARGEHIEMBN RS —RSMETA

RIENEHM. RN, BOERARKETERESH. PESFEFHNAENRRXUMERBLEET, BLRERRKENEGRESTITFTLARRRKAE

HEBASTFR.

ﬁnﬁlﬁuu}ﬂ'liﬁ*ﬁ

AEFAEMEARDNERER, WRFRSMERGBT. & #WR. HMHMBEaS 8.

FAEANRABRRNEBIRFESARATINSERNESHATHNELENER, EIRAFTRNBAEFTENKHRRTE, #Hmik
HREFARNNRANTRABRAFTASHELN. Zk%lﬁfiiv:ﬁ@m%lT&%z?ﬂ]ﬂTh#ME%EJ@mL\ K. XERFTRERHRNEFN, UE
AEASERHFHAACRSHPZAKEE. B, RAEFENARERIAEARTHESTORDOBA. F018F12831H, AEHAKHR
(BHEE—FH— EML)EZiﬁF“&#’f%ﬁ THARM7.69H1ZT (2017128310 . ARM7.1471Zx), HKIRHES (BHERELK
Htb ERAEFHRI. mBUFME SRS ER. THEBERASRNBREFR) TSI AARTI1AFZT (20174128310 . ART
3.281Z7).
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AEH 2018412H31H
R s om we me we me wa
TS RA
W& RIFHHRBITHRIRA - 275,162 5 B 1 - - - 275,168
FE R 33,891 704,653 4,986 11,281 4,453 - - - 759,264
wHES - 500 152,207 10,262 5,914 - - - 168,883
INBESMA~ - - 456,275 - 7,967 - - - 464,242
R FR LR 81,710 - 116,381 228,857 1,523,619 5,062,860 4,257,012 4,800,596 16,071,035
ZHMERA” 106,792 1,797 22,632 26,413 135,759 199,089 209,042 401,309 1,102,833
FERIRE 8 265 484 15,391 89,976 874,190 627,662 102,262 1,710,238
HAER R = = 21,167 78,909 222,204 123,826 57,988 50,524 554,618
HthE TEER 3,783 - - - - - - - 3,783
Hit 1,968 1,630 1 37 15,916 (588) 9 20 18,993
EATESRT B 228,152 984,007 774,138 371,150 2,005,809 6,259,377 5,151,713 5,354,711 21,129,057
JEiTEER AR
B Mk 2 b £ R A 77 AR TR 5,584 92,517 6,642 2,495 312 3,122,150 - - 3,229,700
15 BUR A1 E tth £ AL fE R - - 26,335 123,789 142,229 128,149 6,860 20,294 447,656
/AKS 30 = 6,979 9,125 41,622 739 4,217 961 63,673
T HU LR AR 30 - 57,630 29,964 33,469 - - - 121,093
ST E SR K - - 65,410 855 - - - - 66,265
R 7K - 1,407,285 46,728 32,372 111,476 69,232 4,491 10,924 1,682,508
ERTREFIES - - 189,337 254,344 1,190,553 4,951,214 3,315,589 1,325,199 11,226,236
Hits 1,873 3,245 1,203 139 19,236 711 - 2 26,409
ELTESRARBI 7,517 1,503,047 400,264 453,083 1,538,897 8,272,195 3,331,157 1,357,380 16,863,540
3kt 220,635 (519,040) 373,874 (81,933) 466,912 (2,012,818) 1,820,556 3,997,331 4,265,517
TESRTAENER
RETAENITESMIA
WEFERAN - - 14 (57) 287 20 347 302 913
REFEHENITEERTIA
WERAN - - 1,063,995 752,240 1,518,891 146,064 811 19 3,482,020
WE A - - (1,064,216) (752,254)  (1,524,086) (147,374) (843) (16)  (3,488,789)
FESRTENERAIT = = (207) (71) (4,908) (1,290) 315 305 (5,856)
2017412H31H
T Sin  EBE  MAM 1E0A 3E120A 155 5B105  10EMLE ait

JETEE A
R& RFHHRBRITHRMA 408 264,460 - - - - - - 264,868
FHE MR 22,950 1,156,788 7,430 373 16,997 1,244 105 - 1,205,887
biidehak - - 144,093 84,376 - - - - 228,469
ENBESRA ™ - - 499,021 641 5,289 2,243 - - 507,194
R FREK 15,561 1,256 93,526 262,995 1,566,562 5,747,808 3,809,355 5,098,499 16,595,562
A RMETREHE

ITTALHRB N SRA™ 91,295 5,619 226,220 49,950 94,306 241,044 201,457 320,594 1,230,485
TEEESRMA ™ 9,139 4,437 84,152 145,775 153,187 110,349 53,637 3,860 564,536
BEEIERR - - 5,423 10,681 8,975 2,780 1,528 - 29,387
R BGRIEARE 142 - 336 5,454 55,198 667,610 630,227 97,576 1,456,543
Hit 599 4,355 168 618 4,001 3,977 1,790 - 15,508
ELTESRA B 140,094 1,436,915 1,060,369 560,863 1,904,515 6,777,055 4,698,099 5,520,529 22,098,439
EShES g
15 Mk B HAth £ B ARG FF BRI - 68,880 5,864 242 39,808 3,150,153 - - 3,264,947
B BUF A E fh & AL AR - - 14,442 74,581 187,026 68,938 14,789 25,773 385,549
HARS - - 27,777 15,810 43,479 - - - 87,066
MARMETBEHER

TEA L EIR A S B 27 - 72,293 63,808 29,263 1,598 - - 166,989
S E SR K - - 7,810 7,810 3,971 - - - 19,591
R 7K - 1,766,071 71,131 53,187 102,692 69,464 9,728 10,707 2,082,980
ERTESIES - - 280,618 271,550 1,032,410 4,733,334 2,892,336 1,408,531 10,618,779
Hit 176 4,037 882 1,202 2,227 5,898 5,783 2 20,227
ELTESRARBI 203 1,838,988 480,817 488,210 1,440,876 8,029,385 2,922,636 1,445,013 16,646,128
skt 139,891 (402,073) 579,552 72,653 463,639 (1,252,330) 1,775,463 4,075,516 5,452,311
TESRTAENER
BETAENITESRIA
WEFRAN - - 104 (111) 162 735 878 1,919 3,687
BREFGEHNITEERMIA
WERA - - 440,075 554,515 1,036,787 49,038 815 12 2,081,242
WE - - (439,733) (555,207)  (1,032,807) (48,481) (807) (16)  (2,077,051)

TEEMIARERAT - - 446 (803) 4,142 1,292 886 1,915 7,878
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T 2018412A31H

P ms o w we me e s
T E &R
& RAF P RBITHRIA - 274,737 - - - - - - 274,737
TR R 23,276 834,320 - - - - - - 857,596
HERS - - 152,207 10,262 5914 - - - 168,383
INEESHMA~ - - 455,017 - - - - - 455,017
RILBERFHEIR 76,369 - 115,790 213,781 1,499,453 4,977,027 4,217,686 4,791,997 15,892,103
THMERA = 29 = 22,582 26,100 141,032 176,729 203,287 401,309 971,068
AR R 8 = 484 15,352 88,802 865,884 625,670 102,262 1,698,462
HARR R - - 21,167 78,037 219,700 118,259 54,069 50,193 541,425
Hpism TERE 533 - - - - - - - 533
Hit - 1,629 1 37 1,230 308 9 20 3,234
ELTELTA BT 100,215 1,110,686 767,248 343,569 1,956,131 6,138,207 5,100,721 5,345,781 20,862,558
EATE SR AR
8 b 2 Ath £ BRALAG 77 RO TR 5,591 92,517 6,642 2,495 312 3,122,150 - - 3,229,707
B B H b R K - - 7,215 91,826 64,041 112,898 8,141 - 284,121
WARE - = 6,979 8,588 41,622 739 4,217 961 63,106
ZH ML RHR - - 57,630 29,427 33,469 B - - 120,526
SEH 4 Rh FR 5K - - 56,691 - - - - - 56,691
TR F7 K - 1,553,065 48,377 32,557 120,039 69,232 4,491 10,924 1,838,685
ERTREFIUESH - - 184,047 251,079 1,149,138 4,866,628 3,309,598 1,325,199 11,085,689
Hits - 3,245 1,180 139 5,407 763 - 2 10,736
ELTESFAGEM 5,591 1,648,827 368,761 416,111 1,414,028 8,172,410 3,326,447 1,337,086 16,689,261
3~ 94,624 (538,141) 398,487 (72,542) 542,103 (2,034,203) 1,774,274 4,008,695 4,173,297
TESBRTAENER
BREMEHNITEEMIA
D ON - - 35 (11) 400 404 380 302 1,510
REMSEHNITEEMTIA
MERA - - 1,063,995 752,240 1,518,891 146,064 811 19 3,482,020
fikc oy o) - - (1,064,216) (752,254)  (1,524,086) (147,374) (843) (16)  (3,488,789)
TEEMIARERAT - - (186) (25) (4,795) (906) 348 305 (5,259)

2017412H31H

mE Eiiga’fﬁ’ HEEE  14MAR 1E34A 8E1241A 1m5E  5Z10E  10ELLE ait

ELTE SRR
& RFH P RBITHRIA - 264,460 - - - - - - 264,460
TFRUE LRI 22,943 1,088,688 - - - - - - 1,111,631
biidei - - 144,093 84,376 - - - - 228,469
INEBESRA~ - - 494,209 - - - - - 494,209
RILBF R 15,069 - 92,816 258,101 1,545,680 5,676,334 3,780,426 5,099,679 16,468,105
MARMETEERE

TTASHRE N SR T~ - - 225,860 46,474 91,607 225,641 201,181 319,816 1,110,579
o it & S RAA - 4,444 - 84,151 144,854 149,667 106,187 52,203 3,860 545,366
HHEPRE - - 5,423 10,781 8,835 - - - 25,039
R R 3% R 11 - 336 5,435 53,713 659,397 626,563 97,576 1,443,031
Hitem A~ - 1,348 66 1 2,654 224 - - 4,293
ELTESRE= B 42,467 1,354,496 1,046,954 550,022 1,852,156 6,667,783 4,660,373 5,520,931 21,695,182
ETEER AR
& b 2 HAth & R AG FF BRI - 68,891 5,864 242 39,808 3,150,153 - - 3,264,958
15 B A0 EL fth & R AL A 3K - - 706 73,765 132,830 47,602 5,962 1,054 261,919
HARE - - 23,974 15,810 43,479 - - - 83,263
MARMET B BEHES

TTA YR SR R - - 72,293 63,808 29,263 1,598 - - 166,962
S A S AR - - 7,810 - - - - - 7,810
LR N - 1,786,893 71,132 54,225 112,558 69,464 9,728 10,707 2,114,707
ERTHESIS - - 280,617 271,550 1,022,347 4,689,048 2,875,694 1,408,531 10,547,787
Hber iR - 813 858 403 923 651 5 2 3,655
ELTESBAELT - 1,856,597 463,254 479,803 1,381,208 7,958,516 2,891,389 1,420,294 16,451,061
3kt 42,467 (502,101) 583,700 70,219 470,948 (1,290,733) 1,768,984 4,100,637 5,244,121
TEEMIARER
BRETEENITESMIA
MEH RN - - 108 (100) 158 739 876 1,919 3,700
RASEENITESRIA
MERAN - - 440,075 554,515 1,036,787 49,038 815 12 2,081,242
WE R - - (439,733) (555,207)  (1,032,807) (48,481) (807) (16)  (2,077,051)

fTEEMTREREREIT - - 450 (792) 4,138 1,296 884 1,915 7,891
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# =R HRRIINRE

AERARFKE. FHRE. fORRCERAHEHIINGEASMZAREIEBESHIIRAOT.
AEH
2018512731 8 CtMAMA 1ESTA SER20A 1EsE SE0R  foRME AN
TR 4,484 8,657 65,066 224,293 269,230 3,050,853 3,622,583
FFHAR R RIBR 3,223 2,113 4,222 40,243 9,685 482 59,968
RITRRILCE 1,619 1,628 4,754 - - - 8,001
FF = FIE 1,776 1,510 1,585 113 - - 4,984
&it 11,102 13,908 75,627 264,649 278,915 3,051,335 3,695,536
20174128318 16,050 25,107 147,124 221,429 344,699 2,988,299 3,742,708
T
2018512731 8 ©tPAMA 1ESTA SER20A 1Es&  SE0R  foEME AN
TERK 4,484 8,657 65,066 224,293 269,230 3,053,853 3,625,583
FFHAR R KIBR 3,223 2,113 4,202 47,106 9,685 482 66,831
RITRRILCE 1,619 1,628 4,754 - - - 8,001
FrHEE FAIE 1,776 1,510 1,585 113 - - 4,984
&it 11,102 13,908 75,627 271,512 278,915 3,054,335 3,705,399
20174128318 16,050 25,107 150,163 228,030 344,699 2,997,814 3,761,863

5. EMBF-MERMABRHIQRMNE
SRIAMNAMENREIERREBA SR OGEZRTH LRLARHRM . YXLENERTH LRBRNE, AEABIHRERARBES
MIAMNARNE, FERABGRAREREAIWNEATHEE, BINRTRMEBASEBRSEE, DAKAMXANGERRESRS
ERTHSEFECEENIRTESENRBERE, FEAANNERTIEENEFERFRET .
AEAUDIE-—RRANERIATBZRAERSIMXZNIESEES, XAMRRESEERTHTHRNITE (REBE),
AEAYNABEANERIEIRAFBIESRRA. FTEEN. BEEANAANETEEETHHTALHRENRAEY >~ 2R AR~ RRE
BEMBEREEF. ARTHRFHAANERBRIRERSILATERRTALAINEEERHE. ITRENLOANEZBZENGEEERAT.
PESARBIFAALTRENHRR - TR RGRBETESHETEE. RAEV”RREAATRRAEVEERSXAAARSRESH
ThE. MRERGESHEHITHINE.

AERUD AZEZERANERIATEAREARENRLER I TRV EHATELRTANERN, EERERAERAREAAMNE. BX
MEERAZEZRRASRFIE. FHASZE. THASE, LRRMANENHTERATHHEEFEEATHNFTTUESH, ILESHITEC
XS FHERRR. MRCFYRARMA . KEEKER . RAMFN. FEE. HTHILLASEHE.

(1) UARMETENERMTIE

AEAUAANETENERTAR=RRIIFOT

N EEH]
20184124318 . ®-BR&  ®=Bx  ®=Ex &
ERE
TTESRE >
CRETETHR = 24,282 = 24,282
FEFTETR - 10,488 - 10,488
RIEFEFRMBEK - - 30,392 30,392
SRIRE
ZHMEERA
UARMET EBEEEMITALPRANSRAS CEWER)
% 216 43,578 3,558 47,352
EfFE - 107,028 = 107,028
BRERESRE 2,760 4,956 - 7,716
AT RITHEN R - - 8,672 8,672
N#H IR - - 808,542 808,542
REEETR - 3,853 = 3,853
ARMETBEEEMITALHRAENSRAS 5E)
% - 60,288 - 60,288
[ 75 - 17,060 - 17,060
TNBEESRA - 4,933 - 4,933
FE e K [ b 3K - 13,767 - 13,767
RAEBEEITY - 2,521 - 2,521
HAb AR E
7% 31,571 230,187 - 261,758
ENZs2 - 219,336 - 219,336
Htia TERER 3,250 - 533 3,783
Ait 37,797 742,277 851,697 1,631,771
ERA%R
ZH LB AR
RABIRN = & (119,226) = (119,226)
TSR MR
CEFETR - (28,371) - (28,371)
FEFTETR (10,199) - (10,199)
Ait (157,796) — (157,796)
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20174£12A31H E—BR BER BZER &it
SR
BT S RA
CRFETR - 30,768 - 30,768
FELTETR - 7,119 - 7,119
MAAMET B BRI AL PRANSEBE =
% 913 31,558 - 32,471
Bk 77 8 - 89,182 - 89,182
RERESIRH 2,501 313 - 2,814
EEANARNETE BRI AL PRANSRA
NEIA - - 870,988 870,988
%5 - 72,734 - 72,734
BN - 19,640 - 19,640
KNEESRAE~ - 19,418 - 19,418
FHE L K B Wb fE R - 26,043 - 26,043
A EET - 7,417 - 7,417
AT RATHIIRY > & - - 10,323 10,323
T E SR
%5 28,667 179,058 3,462 211,187
SRz - 301,053 - 301,053
HEBH - 717 - 717
M#ETH 4,522 396 4,521 9,439
Ait 36,603 785,416 889,294 1,711,313
SR
A RMETTEEREHITALHRBE N SR ARK
RAREIIR I = - (164,959) - (164,959)
[P
CELFETR - (27,239) - (27,239)
FELGTETR - (6,256) - (6,256)
a3 - (198,454) - (198,454)
AT
ERMBEF
BT S RA
CRETETR - 24,282 - 24,282
FERLGFETR - 10,472 - 10,472
RGN - - 30,392 30,392
SRR .
ZHHEERA
MARMETEEHEEDITALSHRBNSRE CENER)
5% - 38,984 4,651 43,635
Bl e - 107,028 - 107,028
R#EIA - - 701,834 701,834
MR AMETTEEREDITALHRBOSBA™ (]BE)
B35 - 60,450 - 60,450
[EhZ:a-) - 17,060 - 17,060
ENBE SR = 4,933 = 4,933
FHE AL K Bk 5K - 13,767 - 13,767
R EEITR - 2,521 = 2,521
HABFHIR A
% 23,905 224,809 - 248,714
[ENZE3 - 216,772 - 216,772
Hittizm TRI/E - - 533 533
Ait 23,905 721,078 737,410 1,482,393
SRR
ZHHERAR
RAEIIZ I = & - (118,670) - (118,670)
[ Yl
CREFETH - (28,354) = (28,354)
FERLGFETR = (9.955) - (9,955)
it - (156,979) - (156,979)
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SRR
PTESRE >
CERHFETR - 30,768 - 30,768
FRETETR - 7,154 - 7,154
A RMET B BEHEFH TN L PRBNSRA
% - 102,257 - 102,257
[l 77 2 - 108,822 - 108,822
ENBE SRR - 19,418 - 19,418
(52 ER D AENIAEN - 26,043 - 26,043
# BRI - 5,544 - 5,544
ME TR - - 768,779 768,779
T E SRR
%5 24,821 177,154 3,462 205,437
[ERIZE - 298,311 - 298,311
N#ETH - - 33 33
&it 24,821 775,471 772,274 1,572,566
SRR
MARMET B EHERITALPRA SRR GR
IRAEIIR I 7= - (164,744) - (164,744)
T SRR
CELHFETR - (27,239) - (27,239)
FIELTETR - (6,250) - (6,250)
&it - (198,233) - (198,233)

2018 EM2017HE, ARAE—RANE_RAEMIAZMLERES.
AEALRE=ZRRESRMIALHNT -

AEH ERA=
o semmRER XBESRAS  RGRETRER  SRAFAT
201851818 3,666 885,637 33 889,336
S - (9,819) - (9,819)
0 26,976 10,881 500 38,357
gy = (49,244) = (49,244)
MNE=ZFREEH - - - -
BERAEU
[AES (250) (17,166) - (17,416)
Hitx el - 483 - 483
20184128 31H 30,392 820,772 533 851,697
2018512 A31 HIFH A /RRF -
2018 T NiRE R AP AU ER/ (4R k) (250) (15,349) - (15,599)
2018 It NH b E G I = 483 = 483
ERE

2017€1B1H 916,630 9,159 925,789
Ed) (18,158) (109) (18,267)
0 39,260 3,070 42,330
g (49,104) - (49,104)
MNE=ZRREEH (633) - (633)
KA
WK (6,139) - (6,139)
Hitx el (545) (4,137) (4,682)
20174128318 881,311 7,983 889,294
2017412 A31 BIFH MR/ ARP -
2017 AR TR PR/ (RK) 2,499 - 2,499
20N7HEIT N E LR & A (545) (4,137) (4,682)
ATERE=ZERERMTIEETHNNT .
G SRAT
o semmRER XBESRAS  RGRETRER  SRASAT
2018418 1H 3,666 773,105 33 776,804
) - - - -
o 26,976 - 500 27,476
& - (50,226) = (50,226)
MNEZFEREEH = = = =

REAT
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AT ERE
| EESERER ZSRSBRT  REMSTARR  SRAFAH

Hik (250) (16,394) = (16,644)

Hfbr & s - - - -
20184128318 30,392 706,485 533 737,410
2018512 A31 HIFFHIHR ™/ ffm+ -

2018 IT AR EE R PRI/ (FiK) (250) (16,394) - (16,644)

2018 I A H ML & s - - - -

ERA"
A RMMETE
BEEZZHITALH At E SR~ ERMAFEIT
SR

201741818 828,238 33 828,271
EL) - - -
#hn - 3,462 3,462
s (49,464) - (49,464)
NEZBREH - - -
KA

Hik (9,995) - (9,995)

HtbLr A s - - -
201741283180 768,779 3,495 772,274
2017512 A31 BIHFFHE >/ fR+ -

201 74EIT AN IR E R PRI/ (K) (1,357) - (1,357)

2017 AR &I

(2) FUARNETERNERIA

FEAFUAANETEBNEXASMAR, EAANERTETTIITHTENRE, 2ANEREREZYUD AEZEXR.
() RE&REFRTRBORA. FRELRT. HEHS. IANBELRES. BLERFRHRR. FREATR. FARE, REEBEHEE
FEER . EAEE A H A 5 AR o — 4 P B R A A R MR R A R

ATFNEERAFRERAGNIHARRBLE—FEMR, BESATTHAERRSERNEN, EKENEREEAANE.

(i) B H

ETIESREMNAANEUTRENTHRN AEM. WTFELTHESRE, WEARNERIZESRARKKAN SRR THEMIESFR

RENMOEERARFEE.
(i) BRI

AFFHFERRAFRTEREPFEARRTEATRSEFERABRMAE, AKENERRAANMENSEFI., BEMNRERGLAM
ENRESREWIERE, WIEERASZERARRYREMAIITERFE,

(iv) BEFMZRZEAFR. BLFREER

BEARZFAFR. FRLERMEXNAANENASTERIVERE, MIELERSZERSEROR KBREORITHE,
EROEV)FRAUA>ANETEH SR~ MAERNKEMEREEARNE.

v) ERTGTHEIES

FEHEHAANEUTHRNAEMISELUSRIENTHRNFE. ITLERSTHRNUEMVESRIAETHRNARS, ELOANEN
S5ZBEENRRPRCEAR AR ARMAASRERIERZ.

TRITTERTRFIESNKEMENREEAARNE

A EEH 2018412H31H 20174128318

WEMNE 2NRME
ERTREFIUES 9,108,416 9,246,768 8,446,592 8,174,343
T 2018412A31H 2017412H31H

WEMME NRME
ERTRFIUESH 9,037,446 9,197,909 8,372,128 8,125,485

6. RAEHE

FAEA#TRAEENOAAESL R~ AFRPH NE MEEHZ, HENEER .
- BEAKAZKEMEMRTEENMRENALER .

- RIEAKAFELERNNEEBIFENMEFRBER

- REGENAAEMNIFLSER.

FEAEERRTEERZATHARES], NEBERESHEENE INEBERALANZEXNEERANZABR. AT8FERARRES
ERAEBRNERES.

T=. AFAGEREESEW

FEARFTEERR = MR EEEN.

TH. BWERERZAAE

KITHBRTRAFMERET019F4H25H B AR TEESHIAE.,
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ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE AND DIRECTORY OF BRANCHES AND SUBSIDIARIES

EESNDNE

Board of Directors Office

EES

Board of Directors

BREEE

Executive Management

U)YN Wb BURMRZE Mz (Fk)
Executive Office Financial Research Institute Policy Research Department Planning Department
A J J
\ \ \ \
eSS #AeRH REEER R
Finance & Accounting Treasury & Financial Market Risk Management sl By Diasarima
Department y Department ) Department ) P
\ \ \ \
Efrert/E Eira el W F FEEREE
International Finance Global Cooperation Large Corporate Client Information Technology
Department y Department ) Department y Department
| N | |
. BEEIIE HERIH HEN%RE
fag90) (FFR M 2R FPE) i
Compliance Department Education & Training Department Depgrtment @i Pty . QR Gt el
J (CDB Institute of Development Finance) J Trade Union and Youth Affairs y CDB Headquarters
\
EESrIEWE
Housing Program Finance
‘ v,
\ \ \
FEEGEVER FEEFFR FEERRD
Housing Finance Planning Housing Finance Housing Finance Portfolio
Admin Project Appraisal Management
J J/ J
\ \ \ \
ERD 17 REDTT 47 i Xy
Beijing Branch Tianjin Branch Hebei Branch Shanxi Branch
/ J J
\ \ \ \
BRSTI4T ==ty I AT I 4T
Heilongjiang Branch Shanghai Branch Jiangsu Branch Suzhou Branch
v S J
\ \ \ \
BEa1T SIPE 4T WERD 1T EB01T
Xiamen Branch Jiangxi Branch Shandong Branch Qingdao Branch
v / /
\ \ \ \
31T I T R 4T ERDTT
Shenzhen Branch Guangxi Branch Hainan Branch Chongaing Branch
J J /
\ \ \ \
BN 1T HEE 4T BT TENT
Gansu Branch Xinjiang Branch Qinghai Branch Ningxia Branch
J J S
\ \ \ \
= 5 RPIS A CFRAD
EEHEG B REL EHFHREL SR
Hong Kong Branch ) Representative Office in Cairo Representative Office in Moscow i Blio 6 [l
\ \ \
BRE e AR AL HEIMERFRL Bl FRL
Representative Office in Minsk Representative Office in Jakarta Representative Office in Sydney

v

/
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BES

Board of Supervisors

\
TIHSRA R

VERRER EEEHAB iRl B
Business Development Market Development & Equity Legal and Compliance Shanghai Head Off
Department Investment Department Department EGAEN Gt Gl
J J J
\ \ \
HE—B WE_E EREER
Project Appraisal Project Appraisal Loan Management
Department | y Department Il ) Department y
\ \ \
EEEEE Wit/ HumaAn?;f‘L‘Jrces
Operations Department ) Audit Department Department )
\ \ \
= s N N
AL BRATFHE Ry
D Retired Staff Department Procurement Center
epartment
J J J
\
B e A
Poverty Relief
Program Finance
{ J
\ \ \
ZEVER EMiRiER XL
Planning & Administration Infrastructure Development Regional Development
y,
\ \ \ \
AR EDFT LTR17 REDTT EHRAFT
Inner Mongolia Branch Liaoning Branch Dalian Branch Jilin Branch
J J J J
\ \ \ \
AT 4T TRAFT TR 1T BEDT
Zhejiang Branch Ningbo Branch Anhui Branch Fujian Branch
J J . J
\ \ \ \
AT e 1T HED 1T &Ko
Henan Branch Hubei Branch Hunan Branch Guangdong Branch
J v, J v,
\ \ \ |
m)14347 TN 4T =ZEDTT B 217
Sichuan Branch Guizhou Branch Yunnan Branch Shaanxi Branch
J J , J
\
P 1T
Tibet Branch
J
\ \ \ \
TP T 3L e FIEF S AR
Representative Office in Caracas Representative Office in London epreseniative Lilice Representative Office in Astana
) in Vientiane
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RS

BEIJING BRANCH

ik AERT AR EX ARG 158 ST FRESR

Add: 8/F, COSCO Mansion, 158 Fuxingmennei Street,
Xicheng District, Beijing

BiE(Tel) : (010) 63223100

f&£H (Fax) : (010) 66412282

B 4% (Zip) : 100031

KEST

TIANJIN BRANCH

k. KR X RKE B SINHER R FIDAE6RE

Add: 26/F, Huanbohai Development Centre A, 9 Binshui
Road, Hexi District, Tianjin

BiE(Tel) : (022) 85681234

& HE (Fax) : (022) 88355858

fi4%(Zip) : 300061

AL ST

HEBEI BRANCH

it ARAETRERKISHE HBE

Add: Building B Yuyuan Plaza, 9 Yuhuaxi Road,
Shijiazhuang

Bi%(Tel) : (0311) 85288100

fEH (Fax) : (0311) 85288112

R 4R(Zip) : 050051

AT

SHANXI BRANCH

k. KRH/NEX KAE327S

Add: 327 Changzhi Road, Xiaodian District, Taiyuan
B3%(Tel) : (0351) 4937222

5 (Fax) : (0351) 4937224

{45 (Zip) : 030006

ISES= 5

INNER MONGOLIA BRANCH

it FAERSTHRTE X IKE16S

Add: 16 Chilechuan Street, Saihan District, Hohhot
#iE(Tel) : (0471) 3310014

f£HE (Fax) : (0471) 3310021

4% (Zip) : 010098

TTFH1T

LIAONING BRANCH

dhib. LRI X EERE1095

Add: 109 Qingnian Street, Shenhe District, Shenyang
BiE(Tel) : (024) 22952975

£ (Fax) : (024) 22953371

B4R (Zip) : 110014

KEFIT

DALIAN BRANCH

ik KETH LR ARKI5-17SEFRERAESE

Add: 25/F, International Finance Plaza, 15-17 Renmin
Road, Zhongshan District, Dalian

BiE(Tel) : (0411) 82810918

f&£H (Fax) : (0411) 82633839

84 (Zip) : 116001

HEHT

JILIN BRANCH

it K& T AE3995

Add: 399 Nanhu Road, Changchun
BiE(Tel) : (0431) 85279600

f&£H (Fax) : (0431) 85279700
#i84%(Zip) : 130022

BRINT

HEILONGJIANG BRANCH

k. A RIRT AL X BT —B&277S

Add: 277 Chuangxin 2 Road, Songbei District, Harbin
BiE(Tel) : (0451) 53907900

f&H (Fax) : (0451) 53907808

#R 4R (Zip) © 150028

g

SHANGHAI BRANCH

it b TE A6 S

Add: 68 Puming Road, Shanghai
BiE(Tel) : (021) 58883655

fH (Fax) : (021) 58883659
#B43(Zip) : 200120

IRST

JIANGSU BRANCH

it R TIIR 2325

Add: 232 Jiangdongzhong Road, Nanjing
BiE(Tel) : (025) 83276222

f&HE (Fax) : (025) 83276204

#R 4R (Zip) © 210019

T T

SUZHOU BRANCH

ik FN T T E X R ERE2S

Add: 2 Donghualin Street, Suzhou Industrial Park,
Suzhou

BiE(Tel) : (0512) 67887142

5 E(Fax) : (0512) 67887114

B4R (Zip) : 215123

HIHT

ZHEJIANG BRANCH

k. NI T X2 86953145

Add: 31/F, 69 Chengxing Road, Jianggan District,
Hangzhou

BiE(Tel) : (0571) 81686131

f&H (Fax) : (0571) 89778068

4% (Zip) : 310020

TR T

NINGBO BRANCH

it TR AN KB RILEST7S

Add: 577 Haiyan Road, Yinzhou District, Ningbo
B (Tel) : (0574) 83872888

f£H (Fax) : (0574) 83872100

#B %% (Zip) : 315040

RRSIT

ANHUI BRANCH

it & AR & L X L6995

Add: 699 Qianshan Road, Shushan District, Hefei
BiE(Tel) : (0551) 62867889

5 E (Fax) : (0551) 62875868

#R4R(Zip) : 230071

BEDT

FUJIAN BRANCH

ik BN T 111 S HER KE29-33F

Add: 29/F-33/F, Yifa Mansion, 111 Wusi Road, Fuzhou
#iE(Tel) : (0591) 88569100

f£HE (Fax) : (0591) 87856408

4% (Zip) : 350003

Ea1T

XIAMEN BRANCH

Mk B B X B TE 1005 M8 Ly kAo (BT
Bl 35-40/F

Add: 35/F-40/F, Forture Centre, 100 Lujiang Road,
Siming District, Xiamen

BiE(Tel) : (0592) 2978826

& HE (Fax) : (0592) 2393111

#R 4R (Zip) : 361001

IADT

JIANGXI BRANCH

it EEWAAMHTXFFFKEI1005

Add: 1100 Fenghe Middle Avenue, Honggutan New
District, Nanchang

BiE(Tel) : (0791) 86592323

f£H (Fax) : (0791) 86592333

4% (Zip) : 330038
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IR T

SHANDONG BRANCH

it S m A +EE11666 5 R ik ah LDk

Add: Block D, Olympic Financial Center, 11666 Jingshi
Road, Jinan

B (Tel) : (0531) 81928100

f&H (Fax) : (0531) 81928282

4R (Zip) : 250014

BERHT

QINGDAO BRANCH

it ERTREERISSHRBAEITE

Add: 17/F, Liantong Building, 15A Donghaixi Road,
Qingdao

#iE(Tel) : (0532) 81978277

f£H(Fax) : (0532) 81978288

#B 4% (Zip) : 266071

R SMT

HENAN BRANCH

Mol KBTS IKEE2665

Add: 266 Jinshui Road, Zhengzhou
#i%(Tel) : (0371) 66000888

f&H (Fax) : (0371) 66000777

#B %% (Zip) : 450008

WAL T

HUBEI BRANCH

ik FXHREXRIEAE308S

Add: 308 Youyi Avenue, Wuchang District, Wuhan
Bi%(Tel) : (027) 86759777

5 E (Fax) : (027) 86759666

B4 (Zip) : 430062

WET

HUNAN BRANCH

ik KIS HRORATIHE _RI8SHITRE

Add: CDB Plaza, 118 Block 2, Xiangjiang middle Road,
Tianxin District, Changsha

BiE(Tel) : (0731) 84906658

£ (Fax) - (0731) 84906699

B4 (Zip) : 410002

I"H=H1T

GUANGDONG BRANCH

Motk ©M TR X FHAERE100-1SE B ERT HAKR23A

Add: 23A, Building A Winner Plaza, 100-1 Huangpu
Road West, Tianhe District, Guangzhou

#iE(Tel) : (020) 38633017

f£H (Fax) : (020) 38633000

#B %% (Zip) : 510627

AT

SHENZHEN BRANCH

il Ry EE X8R = 2003 S ER e PO KE
06/Z. 18F. 19, 28-33F

Add: 6/F, 18/F, 19/F, 28/F-33/F, CDB Financial Center,
2003 Fuzhong Third Road, Futian District, Shenzhen

#iE(Tel) : (0755) 25985666

f£E (Fax) : (0755) 25987800

R 4% (Zip) : 518038

I AST

GUANGXI BRANCH

ik T HREKIE1495
Add: 149 Minzu Street, Nanning
1% (Tel) : (0771) 8018114

5 E (Fax) . (0771) 8018510
#B4%(Zip) : 530028

BESMT

HAINAN BRANCH

it BAHERRKIGHEF1S

Add: Jia 1 Changyi Road, Xiuying District, Haikou
B (Tel) : (0898) 68551901

5 E (Fax) : (0898) 68551933

B4 (Zip) : 570311
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BRST

CHONGQING BRANCH

it ERTTIEX @515

Add: 1 Jinrong Street, Jiangbei District, Chongqing
3% (Tel) : (023) 67858000

f2H (Fax) : (023) 67858114

8 4% (Zip) : 400023

M)l 547

SICHUAN BRANCH

ik BT ESHEXRREI120SERFLBITAE

Add: CDB Plaza, 120 Tiantai Road, High-tech Zone,
Chengdu

BiE(Tel) : (028) 86029637

f2H (Fax) : (028) 86029617

HR4R (Zip) : 610041

RMT

GUIZHOU BRANCH

it SRATHE LRSI ER HEEa1#10-218

Add: 10/F-21/F, Huijin International Plaza, 66 Yanan
West Road, Guiyang

1% (Tel) : (0851) 88651588

f£H (Fax) : (0851) 88651605

R4 (Zip) : 550003

BESMT

YUNNAN BRANCH

itk BRI IEER 1765

Add: 176 Guangfu Road, Kunming
BiE(Tel) : (0871) 63634094

51 (Fax) : (0871) 63634001

R4 (Zip) : 650228

BEF 51T

SHAANXI BRANCH

it R EH S ERFRRITKE

Add: China Development Bank Building, 2 Hi-Tech Road
One, Xi'an

BiE(Tel) : (029) 87660578

fZH (Fax) : (029) 87660581

B4 (Zip) : 710075

HRMT

GANSU BRANCH

it MR EEK17285

Add: 1728 Nanchang Road, Lanzhou
&iE(Tel) : (0931) 8866628

£ (Fax) : (0931) 8866237
EB4R(Zip) : 730030

WMEST

XINJIANG BRANCH

ik BEAFHALHEBISERFRRITAE
Add: CDB Plaza, 333 Zhongshan Road, Urumgi
BiE(Tel) : (0991) 2335001

f£H (Fax) : (0991) 2335002

B4 (Zip) : 830002

BT

QINGHAI BRANCH
it AT H RS
Add: 2 Kunlun Road, Xining
iE(Tel) : (0971) 6161900
£ 1 (Fax) : (0971) 6161900
EB4R(Zip) : 810001

TEMT

NINGXIA BRANCH

it RIHTERARARRIEHS

Add: 1 Yinjiaqu North Street, Jinfeng District, Yinchuan
BiE(Tel) : (0951) 5695900

f£HE (Fax) : (0951) 5695813

#R4R(Zip) : 750004

AR T

TIBET BRANCH

k. RIFET/\—FERE28A

Add: 28A Bayi South Road, Lhasa
BiE(Tel) : (0891) 6623818

fZH (Fax) : (0891) 6623818

#R 4% (Zip) : 850000

BEDT

HONG KONG BRANCH

it FEPTERG SEFRER 0331

Add: 33/F One International Finance Centre, 1 Harbour
View Street, Central, Hong Kong

BiE(Tel) : (00852) 28016218

f£H (Fax) : (00852) 25304083

FERKL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN CAIRO

ik KR I T ERNEER 1845415 (A) 1. 28T

Add: Apartment No. 1 & 2, Building 41 (A), St. 18,
Maadi, Sarayat, Cairo, Egypt

BiE(Tel) : (002-02) 27507406

RHRAR RS

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN MOSCOW

it ET B BER R IERITERAH TS

Add: 1 Novatorov St., Moscow 119421, Russian
Federation

BiE(Tel) : (007-495) 9894612

f£H (Fax) : (007-495) 9894611

Brym AR KL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN RIO DE

JANEIRO

ik BEBAHRA AT ROXEINET A A#H955510F

Add: 10/F, Presidente Vargas St., No.955, Central
District, Rio de Janeiro City, Brazil

HiE(Tel) : (0055-21) 981796921

PIETIIE TS S

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN CARACAS
ik FRHBRMRNAHESREERERRER
Add: Base de CITIC, Fuerte Tiuna, Caracas Venezuela

HRL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN LONDON
it EERHHHRAEEES

Add: 4 Lombard Street, London, EC3V 9HD, UK
BiE(Tel) : (0044) 2079338702

ERRE

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN VIENTIANE

it ERFEHREEZEFRX

Add: Saysettha Development Zone, Vientiane Capital of
Lao PDR

BiE(Tel) : (00856)-20-56791136

FTEr g R AL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN ASTANA
it PEE R AT BRI AT IR AT S E T K16 5218
Add: 21/F, 16 Dostyk street, Astana, Kazakhstan

i

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN MINSK
it BT T AT TR R RHE K705
Add: 70 Myasnikova Street, Minsk, Belarus

B3 (Tel) : (00375) 444559461

AR RAE

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN JAKARTA

otk BN e Y AR ANIA K i 7 H Sopo Del K HAEE

Add: Sopo Del Tower A, Mega Kuningan, Jakarta,
Indonesia

ERARL

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE IN SYDNEY

ok SR F T R AR B R R BB AEAOR

Add: 49/F, Governor Phillip Tower, 1 Farrer Place,
Sydney, NSW, 2000, Australia

BiE(Tel) : (61)-432275666

EFEmARTEAH

CDB CAPITAL CO., LTD.

it AR ARK SR AE7TSHERRERPIOI0E

Add: 10/F, Winland International Finance Centre, 7
Financial Street, Xicheng District, Beijing

BiE(Tel) : (010) 88308477

&R (Fax) : (010) 66553276

4% (Zip) : 100033

EFFEHRAARAR

CDB SECURITIES CO,, LTD.

it ERT AKX EMRITINRE29S

Add: 29 Fuchengmenwai Street, Xicheng District, Beijing
#3E(Tel) : (010) 88300999

f&HE (Fax) : (010) 88300946

B4R (Zip) : 100037

ERE&MEERNERLF

CDB LEASING CO., LTD.

il RYI T iR A X 38 = E52003 S E R ¢ r H/I0 K E

Add: CDB Financial Center, 2003 Fuzhong Third Road,
Futian District, Shenzhen

#iE(Tel) : (0755) 23980999

f&H (Fax) : (0755) 23980900

4% (Zip) : 518026

R RESHRAH

CHINA-AFRICA DEVELOPMENT FUND

it ERT AKX EX TR A EH8 S IR E PORE
10-11=

Add: 10/F-11/F, Tower C, Chemsunny World Trade
Centre, 28 Fuxingmennei Street, Xicheng District,
Beijing

BiE(Tel) : (010) 59892900

fZH (Fax) : (010) 59566969

R 4R(Zip) : 100031
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China Development Bank (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 138 to 190, which comprise:
. the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018;

. the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”).

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“CICPA
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the CICPA Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

. Measurement of expected credit losses for loans and advances to customers at amortized cost and loan commitments and financial guarantees

. Consolidation of structured entities in relation to wealth management products, asset-backed securities, assets management plans and funds

HAETK I TR THINE ST (55K 2l A k)

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP, 3-11/F PricewaterhouseCoopers Center,
2 Corporate Avenue, 202 Hu Bin Road, Huangpu District, Shanghai 200021, PRC
T: +86 (21) 2323 8888, F: +86 (21) 2323 8800, www.pwcen.com



136 |

Key Audit Matter

Measurement of expected credit losses for loans and advances to customers
at amortized cost and loan commitments and financial guarantees

Refer to Note 3 (13) (f), Note 5 (1), Note 28, Note 40 and Note 53 (2) to the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's gross loans and advances to customers
at amortized cost recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position
amounted to RMB11,678.23 billion with a credit loss allowance of RMB510.25
billion. The exposure of loan commitments and financial guarantees was
RMB3,695.54 billion, for which a provision of RMB14.20 billion was recognized.
The impairment losses on loans and advances to customers at amortized
cost, loan commitments and financial guarantees recognized in the Group's
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2018
amounted to RMB96.03 billion.

The credit loss allowances for loans and advances to customers at amortized
cost, together with the provisions for loan commitments and financial guarantees,
as of 31 December 2018 represented Management’s best estimate of expected
credit losses (“ECL”") at that date under International Financial Reporting Standard
9: Financial Instruments ECL model.

The Group assessed whether the credit risk of loans and advances to customers
at amortized cost and loan commitments and financial guarantees has increased
significantly since their initial recognition, and applied a three-stage impairment
model to calculate their ECL. Management assessed the credit loss allowance
and provisions in light of forward-looking information and using the risk parameter
model that incorporates key parameters, including probability of default, loss
given default, exposure at default and discount rates.

The measurement model used for assessing ECL involved significant management
judgments and assumptions, primarily including the following:

(1) Segmentation of business operations sharing similar credit risk
characteristics, selection of appropriate model and determination of relevant
key measurement parameters;

(2) Determination of the criteria for significant increase in credit risk (“SICR") and
definition of default and credit impairment;

(8) Establishment of the number and relative weightings of forward-looking
scenarios; and

(4) The estimated future cash flows for loans and advances to customers at
amortized cost in Stage 3.

The Group established controls over the measurement of ECL.

The Group developed a number of complex models that applied significant

management judgments and assumptions in measuring the ECL. These reasons
resulted in this matter being identified as a key audit matter.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We evaluated and tested the Group's internal controls relating to the
measurement of ECL which comprised:

(1) Controls over ECL model, including the selection, approval and application
of methodologies and model; and the ongoing monitoring and optimization
of such model;

(2) Review and approval of significant management judgments and
assumptions, including portfolio segmentation, model selections,
parameters determination, the criteria for SICR with reference to
management credit practice, the definition of default and credit-impairment;
and the use of economic variables and relative weightings for forward-
looking scenarios;

(3) Internal controls over the accuracy and completeness of key inputs used by
the model;

(4) Internal controls relating to estimated future cash flows and calculations of
present values of such cash flows for loans and advances to customers at
amortized cost in Stage 3 taking into consideration forward-looking factors;
and

(5) Internal controls over the information systems for ECL measurement.

We reviewed the ECL modelling methodologies and assessed the
reasonableness of the portfolio segmentation, model selection, key parameters
estimation, significant judgements and assumptions in relation to the model. We
examined the ECL calculation engines on a sample basis, to validate whether or
not the ECL calculation engines reflect Management’s modelling methodologies

We performed testing on a sample basis based on financial and non-financial
information, relevant external evidence and other factors of the borrowers, to
assess the appropriateness of Management's definition and application of SICR,
defaults and credit impairment relating to loans and advances to customers at
amortized cost, loan commitments and financial guarantees.

For forward-looking scenarios, we examined the basis Management used
for determining the economic indicators, number of scenarios and relative
weightings, assessed the reasonableness of economic indicators forecasted
under different scenarios and performed sensitivity analyses of economic
indicators and weightings.

We examined major data inputs to the ECL model for selected samples, including
historical data and data at the measurement date, to assess their accuracy
and completeness. We also tested the major data transfers between the ECL
calculation engines and relevant information systems, to verify their accuracy and
completeness.

For credit-impaired assets under Stage 3, we tested on a sample basis the credit
loss allowance estimated by Management with reference to financial information
of borrowers and guarantors, and the latest collateral valuations, taking into
consideration forward-looking factors, as appropriate.

Based on the audit procedures performed, in the context of the inherent
uncertainties associated with the measurement of ECL for loans and advances
to customers at amortized cost, loan commitments and financial guarantees, we
considered the model, key parameters, significant judgements and assumptions
adopted by Management and the measurement results to be acceptable.



Key Audit Matter

Consolidation of structured entities in relation to wealth management
products, asset-backed securities, assets management plans and funds

Refer to Note 3 (4), Note 5 (2) and Note 48 to the consolidated financial statements.

Structured entities primarily included wealth management products, asset-backed
securities, assets management plans and funds that were issued, initiated,
managed or invested by the Group.

As at 31 December 2018, total assets of consolidated structured entities and
unconsolidated structured entities, issued, initiated and managed by the Group,
amounted to RMB148.61 billion and RMB220.71 billion, respectively. In addition,
as at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of unconsolidated structured entities
invested by the Group which were issued and managed by other institutions included
in the consolidated statement of financial position amounted to RMB39.66 billion.

Management had determined that the Group had control of certain structured
entities based on their assessment of the following:

. its power over these structured entities;

. its exposure to variable returns from its involvement with these structured
entities; and

. its ability to use its power to affect the amount of its variable returns from
these structured entities.

The significant judgement exercised by Management in assessing whether the Group
had control of structured entities and the significant amount of such structured entities
resulted in this matter being identified as a key area of audit focus.

OTHER INFORMATION

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all of the information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal
control as management determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

For different types of structured entities, we performed the following tests:

* assessed the Group's contractual rights and obligations in light of the
transaction structures, and evaluated the Group’s power over the structured
entities through review of related contracts and agreements;

. performed independent analysis and tests on the variable returns from the
structured entities, including but not limited to commission income earned
and asset management fees earned as the asset manager or service
provider, the retention of residual income, and, if any, the liquidity and other
support provided to the structured entities; and

. assessed whether the Group acted as a principal or an agent, through
analysis of the scope of the Group’s decision-making authority over the
structured entities, the remuneration to which the Group was entitled for its
role as the assets manager or service provider, the Group’s exposure to
variability of returns from its other interests in the structured entities, and the
rights held by other parties in the structured entities.

Based on the procedures performed, we found Management's judgment over
consolidation of structured entities acceptable.

for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report
is Wang Wei

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP
Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China
25 April 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

Interest income 7 617,161 560,484
Interest expense 7 (434,213) (380,234)
Net interest income 7 182,948 180,250
Fee and commission income 8 9,009 10,900
Fee and commission expense 8 (1,311) (1,127)
Net fee and commission income 8 7,698 9,773
Net trading and foreign exchange gains/(losses) 9 37,453 (39,308)
Net gains/(losses) on financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss 1,011 (4,830)
Net gains on derecognition of debt instruments at amortized cost 9 N/A
Dividend income 10 13,298 10,816
Net (losses)/gains on investment securities 11 (33) 665
Other income, net 12 3,887 4,312
Operating income 246,271 161,678
Share of profit of associates and joint ventures 156 94
Operating expenses 13 (16,784) (16,044)
Credit impairment losses 14(1) (97,186) N/A
Other impairment losses on assets (897) N/A
Impairment losses on assets 14(2) N/A (5,080)
Profit before income tax 131,560 140,648
Income tax expense 15 (19,504) (27,041)
Profit for the year 112,056 113,607

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 110,758 112,405
Non-controlling interests 1,298 1,202
112,056 113,607

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

Profit for the year 112,056 113,607

Other comprehensive income:

Iltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 1,549 (1,710)
Net gains of debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 5,534 N/A
Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets, net of tax N/A (6,780)
Others (223) (4)

6,860 (8,494)

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Remeasurement of supplemental retirement benefits obligation (32) (63)
Net losses on investments in equity instruments through other comprehensive income (918) N/A
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 5,910 (8,557)
Total comprehensive income for the year 117,966 105,050

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank 116,499 104,146
Non-controlling interests 1,467 904
117,966 105,050

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

As at 31 December

Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 16 275,168 264,868
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 17 758,539 1,129,033
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 18 168,605 227,739
Financial Investments
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 19 1,081,732 N/A
Debt instruments at amortized cost 20 1,458,663 N/A
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 21 484,877 N/A
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 22 N/A 1,151,030
Available-for-sale financial assets 23 N/A 522,396
Held-to-maturity investments 24 N/A 28,388
Debt instruments classified as receivables 25 N/A 1,201,815
Derivative financial assets 26 34,770 37,887
Financial assets held under resale agreements 27 463,502 506,172
Loans and advances to customers 28 11,198,375 10,642,675
Investments in associates and joint ventures 29 1,686 1,835
Property and equipment 30 87,053 72,098
Deferred tax assets 31 125,812 85,982
Other assets 32 41,038 86,791
TOTAL ASSETS 16,179,820 15,958,709
Liabilities
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 33 3,229,518 3,264,100
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 34 428,243 366,992
Placements from banks 35 62,124 85,329
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss 36 119,226 164,959
Derivative financial liabilities 26 38,570 33,495
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 37 66,249 19,327
Due to customers 38 1,670,777 2,070,579
Debt securities issued 39 9,108,416 8,446,592
Current tax liabilities 49,842 15,869
Deferred tax liabilities 31 1,394 2,198
Other liabilities 40 104,738 249,373
Total liabilities 14,879,097 14,718,813
Equity
Share capital 41 421,248 421,248
Capital reserve 42 182,109 169,448
Investment revaluation reserve 43 (15,562) 244
Surplus reserve 44 143,315 121,672
General reserve 44 227,633 213,934
Currency translation reserve 170 (1,132)
Retained earnings 45 319,068 293,454
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Bank 1,277,981 1,218,868
Non-controlling interests 46 22,742 21,028
Total equity 1,300,723 1,239,896
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 16,179,820 15,958,709
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
The consolidated financial statements are signed on its behalf by:
Zhao Huan Zheng Zhijie Ma Xin Wu Jiang
Chairman Vice Chairman, President Executive Vice President, Head of Finance

in charge of the finance function
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before income tax

131,560 140,648
Adjustments:
Impairment losses on assets 98,083 5,080
Depreciation and amortization 4,425 3,942
Interest expense for debt securities issued 308,040 275,602
Interest expense for borrowings from governments and financial institutions 12,182 5,378
Interest income for investment securities (65,188) (50,987)
Interest income arising from impaired loans and advances to customers (638) (563)
Net losses/(gains) on financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss 16,925 (3,857)
Net losses/(gains) in on investment securities 33 (665)
Net (gains)/losses on disposal of property and equipment (652) 7
Net foreign exchange losses/(gains) 10,611 (11,782)
Dividend income (3,830) (2,178)
511,551 360,625
Net change in operating assets and operating liabilities:
Net decrease/(increase) in balances with central banks and deposits with banks and other financial institutions 320,398 (583,618)
Net decrease in financial assets held under resale agreements 35 11,631
Net decrease in financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 24,272 55,242
Net increase in loans and advances to customers (849,325) (1,610,444)
Net decrease in placements with banks and other financial institutions 20,253 19,731
Net (increase)/decrease in other operating assets (47,360) 109,507
Net (decrease)/increase in due to customers and deposits from banks and other financial institutions (443,066) 943,796
Net (decrease)/increase in placements from banks (23,670) 19,836
Net increase in financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 46,874 6,735
Net increase/(decrease) in other operating liabilities 57,702 (26,636)
(893,887) (1,054,320)
Income tax paid (51,547) (562,601)
Net cash outflows from operating activities (433,883) (746,296)

Year ended 31 December

Cash flows from investing activities
Cash received from disposal/redemption of debt instruments at amortized cost and
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 434,374 310,541
Cash received from returns on investment securities 61,475 44,205
Cash received from disposal of property, equipment and other assets 8,899 9,958
Cash received from disposal of investment in subsidiaries and associates 1,121 (5,679)
Cash paid for purchase of property, equipment and other assets (25,919) (16,527)
Cash paid for purchase of debt instruments at amortized cost and
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (369,154) (105,288)
Cash paid for investment in subsidiaries and associates 29 (413) (205)
Cash paid for other investing activities (6) -
Net cash inflows from investing activities 110,377 237,005
Cash flows from financing activities
Cash received from debt securities issued 3,075,985 2,328,387
Cash received from borrowed funds 108,075 81,459
Transactions with non-controlling interests 960 (737)
Cash paid for repayments of debt securities issued and borrowed funds (2,663,339) (1,836,660)
Cash payment for interest on debt securities issued and borrowed funds (300,554) (263,804)
Dividends paid (27,114) (26,837)
Net cash inflows from financing activities 194,013 281,808
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 9,578 (9,077)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (119,915) (236,560)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,151,594 1,388,154
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 47 1,031,679 1,151,594
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES INCLUDE:
Interest received 576,412 532,883
Interest paid (113,334) (99,159)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherwise stated)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

China Development Bank (the “Bank”) was formerly a wholly state-owned policy
bank which was established on 17 March 1994. Approved by the State Council of
the PRC, China Development Bank was converted into a joint stock corporation on
11 December 2008, established jointly by the Ministry of Finance (the “MOF") and
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. (“Huijin"), and renamed as China Development Bank
Corporation.

On 19 April 2017, with the approval of the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory
Commission (the former “China Banking and Regulatory Commission, CBRC”
and “China Insurance Regulatory Commission, CIRC”, the “CBIRC”) and after
completing the review by and registration of corporate changes with the State
Administration of Business and Commerce, China Development Bank Corporation
changed its name to China Development Bank, and changed its form of
organisation from a joint stock corporation to a limited liability company. After these
changes, the Bank operates under business license No. 911100000000184548
issued by Beijing Administration of Industry and Commerce on 19 April 2017,
and financial institution license No. GO001H111000001 issued by the CBIRC on
13 June 2017. The registration of corporate changes does not affect the rights
and obligations of the Bank. After the changes, the Bank assumes all the assets,
creditor’s rights, debts and businesses of the former China Development Bank
Corporation.

Committed to strengthening national competitiveness and improving people’s
livelihood, the Bank and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) align their
business focus with China’s major medium- and long-term economic development
strategies by leveraging its unrivalled position as a leading bank for medium-
and long-term financing and comprehensive financial services, so as to raise and
channel economic resources in support of the following areas:

- Economic and social development, including infrastructures, basic industries,
pillar industries, public services and management;

- New urbanization, urban-rural integration, and balanced regional
development;

- Programs vital for national competitiveness, including energy conservation,
environmental protection, high-end manufacturing, and the transformation and
upgrading of traditional industries;

- Public welfare, including affordable housing, poverty alleviation, student loans,
and inclusive finance;

—  National strategies, including those in science and technology, culture, and
people-to-people exchange;

- International cooperation, including the Belt and Road Initiative, industrial
capacity and equipment manufacturing projects, infrastructure connectivity,
energy and resources, and Chinese enterprises “Going Global”;

— Initiatives that support China’s development needs and economic and
financial reforms; and

—  Other areas as mandated by and aligned with national development strategies
and policies.

The head office and domestic branches of the Bank and its subsidiaries registered
in the Mainland China are referred to as the “Domestic Operations”. Branches
and subsidiaries registered outside of the Mainland China are referred to as the
“Overseas Operations”.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

2.1 Amendments to the accounting standards effective in 2018 relevant to and adopted by the Group

The following amendments have been adopted by the Group for the first time during the financial year ended 31 December 2018:

Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures — Included in The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014 — 2016 Cycle

(1) IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

(2) Amendments to IAS 28

(3) IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

(4) Amendments to IAS 40 Transfer of Investment Property

(5) IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

(1) IFRS 9: Financial Instruments

The complete version of IFRS 9 — Financial instruments was issued in July
2014, which introduces the classification and measurements, impairment and
hedge accounting to replace the guidance in IAS 39 — Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.

IFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes
three primary measurement categories for financial assets: amortized cost,
fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI") and fair value
through profit or loss. The basis of classification depends on the entity’s
business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
asset. Investments in equity instruments are required to be measured at fair
value through profit or loss with the irrevocable option at inception to present
changes in fair value in OCI in which case the accumulated fair value changes
in OCI will not be recycled to the profit or loss in the future.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected
credit loss (“ECL") model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under
IAS 39. The impairment requirements apply to debt financial assets measured
at amortized cost and FVOCI, lease receivables, certain loan commitments
and financial guarantee contracts. At initial recognition, impairment allowance
(or provision in the case of commitments and guarantees) is required for
ECL resulting from default events that are possible within the next 12 months
("12-month ECL”). In the event of a significant increase in credit risk, an
allowance (or provision) is required for ECL resulting from all possible default
events over the expected life of the financial instrument (“lifetime ECL").
Financial assets where 12-month ECL is recognized are considered to be
“Stage 1”; financial assets which are considered to have experienced a
significant increase in credit risk are in “Stage 2"; and financial assets for
which there is objective evidence of impairment, so are considered to be in
default or otherwise credit impaired are in “Stage 3"

The assessment of credit risk and the estimation of ECL are required to be
unbiased and probability-weighted, and should incorporate all available information
relevant to the assessment, including information about past events, current
conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts of economic conditions at
the reporting date. In addition, the estimation of ECL should take into account the
time value of money. As a result, the recognition and measurement of impairment
is intended to be more forward-looking than under IAS 39.

The new hedge accounting rules will align the accounting for hedging
instruments more closely with the Group’s risk management practices. As a
general rule, more hedge relationships might be eligible for hedge accounting,
as the standard introduces a more principles-based approach. The impact of
IFRS 9 implementation is disclosed in Note 4.

(2) Amendments to IAS 28: Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures
— Included in The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014 — 2016 Cycle

These amendments clarify that the election to measure investees at fair value
through profit or loss is available for each investment in an associate or joint
venture on an investment-by-investment basis, upon initial recognition. The
adoption of these amendments does not have a significant impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

(3) IFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining when to
recognize revenue and how much revenue to recognize through a 5-step
approach. The core principle is that a company should recognize revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to the customer in
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. It moves away
from a revenue recognition model based on an ‘earnings processes’ to an
‘asset-liability’ approach based on transfer of control. IFRS 15 provides
specific guidance on capitalization of contract cost and license arrangements.
It also includes a cohesive set of disclosure requirements about the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the
entity’s contracts with customers. The adoption of this new standard does not
have a significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

(4) Amendments to IAS 40: Transfer of Investment Property

On 8 December 2016, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 40 — Transfer of
Investment Property. These amendments specify that an entity shall transfer
a property to, or from, investment property when, and only when, there is
a change in use of a property supported by evidence that a change in use
has occurred. They also clarify that the list of circumstances set out in IAS
40 is non-exhaustive list of examples of evidence that a change in use has
occurred instead of an exhaustive list. The examples have been expanded to
include assets under construction and development and not only transfers of
completed properties. The adoption of these amendments does not have a
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

(5) IFRIC 22: Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The IASB issued IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration, to clarify the date of the transaction for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income when an entity has received or paid advance
consideration in a foreign currency. The adoption of this interpretation
does not have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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effective dates in 2018

2.2 Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that are not yet effective and have not been adopted before their

The Group has not adopted the following new and amended standards IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective.

(1) IFRS 16 Leases

) IFRIC 23

(3) Amendments to IFRS 9 .
Compensation

Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11,

IAS 12 and IAS 23 Cycle

(5) Amendments to IAS 19

(6) Amendments to IAS 28
Ventures

Sale or Contribution of Assets between An
Investor and Its Associate or Joint Venture

(7) Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

(8) Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 The definition of Material

9) Amendments to IFRS 3

(1) IFRS 16: Leases

IFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being recognized on the balance
sheet by lessees, as the distinction between operating and finance leases is
removed.

The Group will apply the standard from its mandatory adoption date of 1
January 2019. The Group intends to apply the simplified transition approach
and will not restate comparative amounts for the year prior to first adoption.
All other right-of-use assets will be measured at the amount of the lease
liability on adoption (adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease expenses).

Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item) and
a financial liability to pay rentals are recognized. The only exceptions are
short-term, that, at the commencement date, has a lease term of 12 months
or less, and low-value leases, of which the underlying assets with a value,
when new, in the order of magnitude of US $5,000 or less.

In these operating lease commitments, the Group measures the lease liability
at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commence
date with the incremental borrowing rate. And the cost of the right to use
asset shall comprise the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability and any adjustments based on the prepaid tease payments. Under the
new standard, the Group's activities as a lessee have no material impact on
the new asset of the Group.

(2) IFRIC 23: Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The IASB issued IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments to clarify
how to apply the recognition and measurement requirements in IAS 12 when
there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. The Group anticipates that the
adoption of this interpretation will not have a significant impact on the Group'’s
consolidated financial statements.

(8) Amendments to IFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation and Modifications of Financial Liabilities

The IASB issued amendments to IFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation and Modifications of Financial Liabilities. These amendments
permit more assets to be measured at amortized cost than under the previous
version of IFRS 9, in particular some prepayable financial assets. These
amendments also clarify the accounting for a modification or exchange of
a financial liability measured at amortized cost that does not result in the
derecognition of the financial liability. The Group anticipates that the adoption
of these amendments will not have a significant impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

(4) Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and IAS 23: The Annual
Improvements to IFRSs 2015 — 2017 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle include a number of
amendments to various IFRSs and IASs, including the amendments to IFRS 3
— Business Combinations, the amendments to IFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements,
the amendments to IAS 12 — Income Taxes and IAS 23 — Borrowing Costs.
The Group anticipates that the adoption of these amendments will not have a
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

(5) Amendments to IAS 19: Employee Benefits’ Regarding Plan
Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The IASB issued amendments to IAS 19: Employee benefits regarding plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement to require an entity to determine the
amount of any past service cost, or gain or loss on settlement by measuring
the net defined benefit liability before and after the amendment, using current
assumptions and the fair value of plan assets at the time of the amendment.
The Group anticipates that the adoption of these amendments will not have a
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

(6) Amendments to IAS 28: Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

The IASB issued amendments to IAS 28: Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures to clarify that companies account for long-term interests in an
associate or joint venture to which the equity method is not applied using

The definition of A Business

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Prepayment Features with Negative
The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015 — 2017
Employee Benefits’ Regarding Plan Amendment,

Curtailment or Settlement

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019
1 January 2019

1 January 2019
1 January 2019
1 January 2019

1 January 2019

The amendments were originally intended to be effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
The effective date has now been deferred/removed. Early
application of the amendments continues to be permitted.

1 January 2020
1 January 2020

IFRS 9. The Group anticipates that the adoption of these amendments will not
have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

(7) Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets
between An Investor and Its Associate or Joint Venture

These amendments address an inconsistency between the requirements
in IFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements and those in IAS 28 —
Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures in the sale and contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. A full gain or
loss is recognized when a transaction involves a business. A partial gain or
loss is recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a
business, even if those assets are in a subsidiary. The Group anticipates that
the adoption of these amendments will not have a significant impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements

(8) Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8: The Definition of Material

The IASB issued amendments to the definition of material in IAS 1 and IAS
8. The amended definition is: “Information is material if omitting, misstating
or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis
of those financial statements, which provide financial information about a
specific reporting entity.”

The amendment clarifies that the reference to obscuring information
addresses situations in which the effect is similar to omitting or misstating that
information. It also states that an entity assesses materiality in the context of
the financial statements as a whole.

The amendment also clarifies the meaning of ‘primary users of general
purpose financial statements’ to whom those financial statements are
directed, by defining them as ‘existing and potential investors, lenders and
other creditors’ that must rely on general purpose financial statements for
much of the financial information they need. The Group anticipates that the
adoption of the amendments will not have a significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

(9) Amendments to IFRS 3: The Definition of A Business

The IASB issued amendments to the definition of a business in IFRS 3. To
be considered a business, an acquisition would have to include an input and
a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs. The definition of the term ‘outputs’ is narrowed to focus on
goods and services provided to customers, generating investment income
and other income, and it excludes returns in the form of lower costs and
other economic benefits. The Group anticipates that the adoption of the
amendments will not have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Accounting period

The accounting year starts on 1 January and ends on 31 December.

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
IFRSs, as issued by The International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for assets and that is received (or in some
circumstances the amount expected to be paid) with respect to liabilities.
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The preparation of financial statements under IFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 5.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Bank and entities (including structured entities) controlled by the Bank and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Bank:

- has power over the investee;

- is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

= has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Bank reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Bank obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Bank loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income, expenses and cash flows of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and the consolidated statement of cash flows from the date
the Bank gains control until the date when the Bank ceases to control the
subsidiary. The Group consolidates all entities that it controls, including those
controlled through investment entity subsidiaries.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting or similar
rights are not the dominant factor in deciding who controls the entity, such
as when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks only and the relevant
activities are directed by means of contractual arrangements.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Bank and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Bank
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into alignment with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions are
eliminated in full on consolidation. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred assets

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognized directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Bank.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognized
in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
All amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in relation
to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss). When the Group retains an interest in
the former subsidiary and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance with IFRS 9.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair
value, which is calculated as the sum of the fair value of the assets transferred
by the Group at the acquisition date, liabilities incurred or assumed by the
Group, and any equity interests issued by the Group. Acquisition related costs
are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, irrespective of non-controlling interests, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
are recognized at their fair values; except that deferred tax assets or liabilities,
and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognized and measured in accordance with IAS 12 — Income Taxes and IAS
19 — Employee Benefits, respectively.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the difference between (i) the
consideration transferred, the fair value of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree, and the fair value of the Group's previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) and (i) the net fair value of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities and contingent liabilities incurred or assumed.

Non-controlling interests that represent ownership interests in the acquiree,
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity's net assets
in the event of liquidation are accounted for at either fair value or the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share in the recognized amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is
made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

Interest in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but does not constitute control or joint control
over those policies.
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A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate or a joint venture is initially recognized in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost.

On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess
of the cost of the investment over the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognized as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognized immediately
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is adjusted thereafter to
recognize the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. When the Group's share of losses of
an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group'’s interest in that associate or
the joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or the joint venture), the
Group discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognized only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

The Group periodically assesses whether it is necessary to recognize any
impairment loss with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate or a
joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36
Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognized forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognized in
accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date when
the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint venture, or when the
investment is classified as held for sale. When the Group retains an interest
in the former associate or former joint venture and the retained interest is a
financial asset, the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that
date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in
accordance with IFRS 9. The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or the joint venture at the date the equity method was discontinued,
and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of a part of the interest in the associate or the joint venture is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or the joint
venture. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognized
in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate or the joint venture
on the same basis as would be required if that associate or the joint venture
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of the
Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognized in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate or joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for services provided in the
normal course of business, net of sales related taxes. Specific recognition
criteria for different nature of revenue are disclosed below.

(@)
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of financial assets, except for:

Interest income

- Purchased or originated credit-impaired (“POCI") financial assets, the
Group calculates the credit-adjusted effective interest rate, which is
calculated based on the amortized cost of the financial asset instead of
its gross carrying amount and incorporates the impact of expected credit
losses in estimated future cash flows.

- Financial assets that are not ‘POCI" but have subsequently become
credit-impaired (or ‘Stage 3’), for which interest revenue is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to their amortized cost (i.e. net of the
expected credit loss provision).

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset (i.e. its
amortized cost before any impairment allowance) or to the amortized cost of
a financial liability. The calculation does not consider expected credit losses
("ECL") and includes transaction costs, premiums or discounts and fees and
points paid or received that are integral to the effective interest rate.

(b)
Fee and commission income is recognized when the service is provided.

Fee and commission income

Interest expense

Interest expense for all interest-bearing financial liabilities, except for
those designated at fair value through profit or loss or held for trading, are
recognized within “Interest expense” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss using the effective interest method.
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(8) Foreign currency transactions

-~

(a) Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Domestic Operations is Renminbi (“RMB”).
ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s Overseas
Operations are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates. The presentation currency of the
Group and the Bank is RMB.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gain and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Changes in the fair value of monetary assets denominated in foreign currency
classified as FVOCI are analyzed between translation differences resulting
from changes in the amortized cost of the monetary assets and other
changes in the carrying amount. Translation differences related to changes
in the amortized cost are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, and other changes in the carrying amount are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value
are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognized in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as
equities classified as FVOCI are recognized in other comprehensive income.

(c) Translation of financial statements in foreign currency

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which has
the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from RMB are translated as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that statement of financial
position; except the retained earnings, other items in equity holders’
equity are translated at the rate prevailing at the date when they occurred;

- income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss and statement
of comprehensive income are translated at the exchange rate prevailing
on the date when the items occurred, or a rate that approximates the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive
income.

Taxation
(a) Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from profit before income tax as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither taxable profit nor accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in
joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are only
recognized to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement
of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, except when they related to items that are recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group
intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

(b) Value-added Taxes (“VAT”)

The Group is subject to value-added taxes on its income from credit business,
fee income on financial services, income from trading of financial products at 6%.

In accordance with “Circular regarding the Value-added Taxes Policies
for Financial, Real Estate Development and Education Ancillary and Other
Services” (Cai Shui [2016] No.140), “Supplementary Circular regarding Issues
concerning Value-added Taxes Policies for Asset Management Products”
(Cai Shui [2017] No.2) and“Circular on the Relevant Issues concerning Value-
added Tax Levied on Asset Management Products” (Cai Shui [2017] No. 56),
managers of asset management products shall pay VAT at 3% for taxable
activities undertaken after 1 January 2018.

(10)Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given and other relevant
expenditures incurred by the Group in exchange for services rendered by employees
or for termination of the employment contracts. These benefits include short-term
employee benefits, post-employment benefits and early retirement benefits.

(a) Short-term employee benefits

In the reporting period in which an employee has rendered services, the
Group recognizes the short-term employee benefits payable for those services
as a liability with the corresponding amounts recognized as expenses in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Short-term employee benefits
include salaries, bonuses, staff welfare, medical insurance, employment injury
insurance, maternity insurance, housing funds as well as labor union fees and
staff education expenses.

(b) Post-employment benefits

The Group’s post-employment benefits are primarily the payments for basic
pensions and unemployment insurance related to government mandated
social welfare programs, as well as the annuity scheme established. The
group operates various post-employment schemes, including both defined
benefit and defined contribution pension plans.

Defined contribution plans

Contributions to the basic pensions and unemployment insurance plan are
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the period in
which the related payment obligation is incurred.

The employees of the Bank’s head office and domestic branches (“Domestic
Institutions”) participate in an annuity scheme established by the Bank (the
“Annuity Scheme”). The Bank pays annuity contributions with reference to
employees’ salaries, and such contributions are expensed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when incurred.

Defined benefit plans

The Group provides supplemental pension benefit and post-retirement
healthcare benefit to the retirees retired on or before 31 December 2011. The
entitlement to the benefits is conditional on one or more factors such as age,
years of service and compensation.

The liability recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position in
respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of
plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually using
the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows
using interest rates of RMB treasury bonds that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation. Differences
arising from changes in assumptions and estimates of the present value of
the liabilities are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income when incurred.

(c) Early retirement benefits

Early retirement benefits have been paid to those employees who accept
voluntary retirement before the normal retirement date, as approved by
management. The related benefit payments are made from the date of early
retirement to the normal retirement date.

The accounting treatment of the early retirement benefits is in accordance with
termination benefits as determined in IAS 19. The liability is recognized for
the early retirement benefit payments from the date of early retirement to the
normal retirement date when the criteria for recognition as termination benefit
is met with a corresponding charge in the consolidated income statement.
Differences arising from changes in assumptions and estimates of the present
value of the liabilities are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss when incurred.

(11)Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short term and highly liquid assets, which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks and other financial institutions and other
short-term and highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less.

(12) Determination of fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants



in the principal market (or in the absence of a principal market, the most
advantageous market) at the measurement date.

For financial instruments traded in active markets, the determination of fair
values of financial assets and financial liabilities is based on quoted market
prices. For financial instruments traded in inactive markets, fair value is
determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation techniques
include the use of recent transaction prices, discounted cash flow analysis,
option pricing model and other valuation techniques commonly used by
market participants.

For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into

Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

—  Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities;

—  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly;

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data

(13)Financial instruments

The adoption of IFRS 9 in 2018 has resulted in changes in the Group's
accounting policies for recognition, classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities and impairment of financial assets

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

(a) Classification of financial assets

Financial assets are classified on the basis of the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the assets:

(i)  Amortized cost (“AC”). Financial assets at amortized cost primarily
include balances with central banks, deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, placements with banks and other financial
institutions, financial assets held under resale agreements, loans and
advances to customers at amortized cost, debt instruments at amortized
cost and other receivables.

(i) Fair value through other comprehensive income. Financial assets
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income include debt
securities, and equity instruments designated as fair value through other
comprehensive income which are not held for trading purpose.

(iii)y  Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"). Financial assets measured at
fair value through profit or loss primarily include held-for-trading financial
assets, loan and advances to customers measured at fair value through
profit or loss, equity instruments other than designated at FVOCI, debt
investments that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI.

The business model reflects how the Group manages the assets in order to
generate cash flows. That is, whether the Group’s objective is solely to collect
the contractual cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual
cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If neither of these
is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes), then the
financial assets are classified as part of “other” business model and measured
at FVTPL. Factors considered by the Group in determining the business model
for a group of assets include past experience on how the cash flows for these
assets were collected, how the asset’s performance is evaluated and reported
to key management personnel, how risks are assessed and managed and
how managers are compensated

Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows
or to collect contractual cash flows and sell, the Group assesses whether the
financial instruments’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest (“SPPI"). In making this assessment, the Group considers whether the
contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e.
interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk,
other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic
lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk
or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related
financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety
when determine whether their cash flows are SPPI.

The classification requirements for debt instruments and equity instruments
are described as below:

Debt Instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a financial
liability from the issuer’s perspective, such as government and corporate
bonds. Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments

depend on the Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of asset.

Based on these factors, the Group classifies its debt instruments into one of
the following three measurement categories:

(i) Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent SPPI, and that are not
designated at FVTPL, are measured at amortized cost.

(i) FVOCI: Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash

flows and for selling the assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
SPPI, and that are not designated at FVTPL, are measured at FVOCI.

(i) FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI
are measured at FVTPL.

The Group may also irrevocably designate financial assets at FVTPL if doing
so significantly reduces or eliminates a mismatch created by assets and
liabilities being measured on different bases.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from the
issuer's perspective; that is, instruments that do not contain a contractual
obligation to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the issuer's net
assets. Examples of equity instruments include basic ordinary shares.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at FVTPL, except
where the Group’s management has elected, at initial recognition, to
irrevocably designate an equity investment at FVOCI. The Group’s policy is to
designate equity investments as FVOCI when those investments are held for
purposes other than to generate investment returns.

(b) Reclassification of financial assets

When the Group changes its business model for managing financial assets,
it shall reclassify all affected financial assets, and apply the reclassification
prospectively from the reclassification date. The Group does not restate any
previously recognized gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses)
or interest. Reclassification date is the first day of the first reporting period
following the change in business model that results in the Group reclassifying
financial assets

(c) Classification of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as subsequently measured at amortized
cost, except for financial liabilities at FVTPL, which is applied to derivatives,
financial liabilities held for trading and other financial liabilities designated as
such at initial recognition.

(d) Initial recognition and measurement

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and
derecognized on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset or financial liability
at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial
liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial
asset or financial liability. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

The Group may, at initial recognition, irrevocably designate a financial liability
as measured at FVTPL: (i) it eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as an accounting
mismatch); (i) a group of financial liabilities or financial assets and financial
liabilities is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy, and
information about the group is provided internally on that basis to the entity’s
key management personnel.

Financial liabilities arising from the transfer of financial assets which did not
qualify for derecognition whereby a financial liability is recognized for the
consideration received for the transfer. In subsequent periods, the Group
recognizes any expense incurred on the financial liability.

(e) Subsequent measurement

Subsequent measurement of financial instruments depends on the categories:

Amortized cost

The amortized cost is the amount at which the financial asset or financial
liability is measured at initial recognition: (i) minus the principal repayments;
(i) plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest
method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount;
(iii) for financial assets, adjusted for any credit loss allowance. Interest income
and interest expense from these financial assets is included in “Interest
income” and “Interest expense” using the effective interest rate method.

For floating-rate financial assets and floating-rate financial liabilities, periodic
re-estimation of cash flows to reflect the movements in the market rates of
interest alters the effective interest rate. If a floating-rate financial asset or a
floating-rate financial liability is recognized initially at an amount equal to the
principal receivable or payable on maturity, re-estimating the future interest
payments normally has no significant effect on the carrying amount of the
asset or the liability.

If the Group revises its estimates of payments or receipts, it shall recalculate
the carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability as the present
value of the revised estimated future cash flows, and the carrying amount
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The adjustment is recognised
in profit or loss as income or expense.

Fair value through other comprehensive income
Debt instruments

Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses on the instrument's amortized cost which are
recognized in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified to profit
or loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in “interest
income” using the effective interest rate method.
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Equity instruments

The equity instrument investments that are held for purposes other than to
generate investment returns are designated as FVOCI. When this election
is used, fair value gains and losses are recognized in OCl and are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal. Dividends,
when representing a return on such investments, continue to be recognized in
profit or loss when the Group's right to receive payments is established, and it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group, and the amounts of the dividends can be measured reliably.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Debt instruments

A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is
recognized in profit or loss and presented in the statement of profit or loss
within “Net trading and foreign exchange gain” in the period in which it arises,
unless it arises from debt instruments that were designated at fair value or
which are not held for trading, in which case they are presented separated in
“Net gains/(losses) on financial instruments designated at fair value through
profit or loss”

Equity instruments

Gains and losses on equity investments at FVTPL are included in the “Net
trading and foreign exchange gain” in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Gains or losses on financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL are presented
partially in other comprehensive income (the amount of change in the fair
value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liability, which is determined as the amount that is not attributable to
changes in market conditions that give rise to market risk) and partially profit
or loss (the remaining amount of change in the fair value of the liability).
This is unless such a presentation would create, or enlarge, an accounting
mismatch, in which case the gains or losses attributable to changes in the
credit risk of the liability are also presented in profit or loss. The gains and
losses from financial liabilities including the effects of credit risk variance
should be recognized in current profit and loss by the Group.

When the liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss is
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to retained earnings

(f) Impairment of financial instruments

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the ECL associated with
its debt instrument assets carried at amortized cost and FVOCI and with
exposure arising from some loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts.

The Group measures ECL of a financial instrument reflects:

(i) an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by
evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

(i)  the time value of money; and

(iii) reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue
cost or effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

For financial instruments whose impairment losses are measured using the
ECL model, the Group assesses whether their credit risk has increased
significantly since their initial recognition, and applies a three-stage
impairment model to calculate their impairment allowance and recognize their
ECL, as follows:

Stage 1: If the credit risk has not increased significantly since its initial
recognition, the financial asset is included in Stage 1.

Stage 2: If the credit risk has increased significantly since its initial
recognition but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired, the
financial instrument is included in Stage 2.

Stage 3: If the financial instruments is credit-impaired, the financial
instrument is included in Stage 3.

Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amount
equivalent to the ECL of the financial asset for the next 12 months. Financial
instruments in Stage 2 or Stage 3 have their ECL measured at an amount
equivalent to the ECL over the lifetime of the financial instruments.

The Group applies the impairment requirements for the recognition and
measurement of credit loss allowance for debt instruments that are measured
at FVOCI. The impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss, and it should not
be presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial position as
a reduction of the carrying amount of the financial asset.

The Group has measured the credit loss allowance for a financial instrument
other than POCI at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses in the
previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the
credit risk on the financial instruments has increased significantly since initial
recognition is no longer met, the Group measures the credit loss allowance at
an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses at the current reporting
date and the amount of expected credit losses reversal is recognized in
profit or loss. For POCI, at the reporting date, the Group only recognize the
cumulative changes in lifetime expected credit losses since initial recognition
as credit loss allowance for POCI financial assets.

The carrying amount of an impaired financial asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognized in profit or loss. When a financial asset is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

(g) Modification of loans

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual cash
flows of loans to customers. When this happens, the Group assesses whether
or not the new terms are substantially different to the original terms.

If the terms are substantially different, the Group derecognizes the original
financial asset and recognizes a ‘new’ asset at fair value and recalculates
a new effective interest rate for the asset. The date of renegotiation is
consequently considered to be the date of initial recognition for impairment
calculation purposes, including for the purpose of determining whether a
significant increase in credit risk has occurred. However, the Group also
assesses whether the new financial asset recognized is deemed to be
credit-impaired at initial recognition, especially in circumstances where the
renegotiation was driven by the debtor being unable to make the originally
agreed payments. Differences in the carrying amount are also recognized as
gain or loss on derecognition of debt instrument at amortized cost.

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or modification
does not result in derecognition, and the Group recalculates the gross
carrying amount based on the revised cash flows of the financial asset and
recognizes a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. The new gross carrying
amount is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original
effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for POCI
financial assets).

(h) Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group continues to recognize the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognizes an associated liability. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognize the financial asset and also
recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the asset’'s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable, the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in profit or loss.

Securitization

As part of its operational activities, the Group undertakes securitization
transactions through which it transfers certain financial assets to special
purpose trusts which issue asset-backed securities ("ABS") to investors. The
Group holds part of the senior and sub-ordinated tranche of these ABS. As the
asset manager of these ABS, the Group provides services including collecting
payments from loans in the assets pool, maintaining account records related
to the assets pool, providing service reports and other services.

After payment of tax and related costs, the trust assets should firstly be used
for principal and interest payment to holders of senior tranche ABS, and then
to holders of sub-ordinated tranche ABS. The Group derecognizes or partially
derecognizes the transferred financial assets according to the extent of transfer
of the risks and rewards of ownership of the transferred financial assets.

(i) Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the
consideration paid and payable is recognized in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

(j) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated statement of financial position when there is a current legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and the Group has an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.
Otherwise, financial assets and financial liabilities are reported separately.

(k) Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due, in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument

Financial guarantees are initially recognized at fair value on the date the
guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities
under such guarantees are measured at the higher of the initial amount, less
amortization of guarantee fees recognized in accordance with the revenue
recognition policy, and the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the guarantee. These estimates are determined based on experience
of similar transactions, historical losses and supplemented by the judgment
of management. Any increase in the provision of the financial guarantee
contracts is taken to profit of loss.

The impairment allowance of loan commitments provided by the Group is
measured by ECL. The Group has not provided any commitment to provide
loans at a below-market interest rate, or that can be settled net in cash or by
delivering or issuing another financial instrument



For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the credit loss
allowance is recognized as a provision. However, for contracts that include
both a loan and an undrawn commitment and the Group cannot separately
identify the expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment component
from those on the loan component, the expected credit losses on the undrawn
commitment are recognized together with the credit loss allowance for the
loan. To the extent that the combined expected credit losses exceed the gross
carrying amount of the loan, the expected credit losses are recognized as a
provision.

(14)Financial instruments — Accounting policies applied

prior to 1 January 2018

The accounting policies about financial instruments in 2017 before adoption
of IFRS 9 are described as follows:

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

(a) Classification and measurement

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories including:
financial assets at FVTPL, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale
financial assets and loans and receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and
derecognized on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets (other than financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss) are added to the fair value of the
financial assets on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
recognized immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(i)  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified into this category when the financial asset is
either held for trading or it is designated at FVTPL on initial recognition

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

- it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near
future; or

— on initial recognition, it is part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be
designated at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

—  such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

—  the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or a group
of both financial assets and financial liabilities, which is managed and
its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
the Group’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

- it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives,
and IAS 39 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
permits the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated
as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with changes in fair
value arising from re-measurement recognized directly in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or
loss recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss includes any
dividends or interest earned on financial assets.

(iij) Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets traded in
active markets, with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity.

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses

(iii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables are carried at amortized cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Financial assets classified as loans and receivables primarily include balances
with central banks, deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
placements with banks and other financial institutions, financial assets held
under resale agreements, loans and advances to customers, and debt
instruments classified as receivables.

(iv) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are
either designated as such or are not classified in any of the other categories.

Equity and debt instruments held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale and are traded in an active market are measured at fair

value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount
of available-for-sale monetary financial assets relating to interest income
calculated using the effective interest method, translation differences related
to changes in the amortized cost of the available-for-sale financial assets and
dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are recognized in profit
or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial
assets are recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the investments revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognized in profit or
loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established.

(b) Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets,
excluding those classified as FVTPL, is impaired. A financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that
loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about the
following loss events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

— the lender granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, a concession that the lender
would not otherwise consider;

- it is probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

—  the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties;

—  observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows from a group of financial assets since the
initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet
be identified with the individual financial assets in the group, including
adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the group,
national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the
assets in the group of financial assets;

— any significant change with an adverse effect that has taken place in the
technological, market, economic or legal environment in which the issuer
operates and indicates that the cost of investments in equity instruments
may not be recovered;

—  a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of equity instrument
investments; or

- other objective evidence indicating impairment of the financial asset or a
group of financial assets.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists
individually for all loans except student loans, debt instruments classified
as receivables, available-for-sale financial assets and held-to-maturity
investments, and collectively for the remainder of financial assets (other
than those at fair value through profit or loss). If the Group determines that
no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, it includes these assets together with student loans in groups
of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses these for impairment. Financial assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be
recognized are not included in collective assessment of impairment.

(i) Assets carried at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, an impairment loss is
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the assets are impaired. The impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. For financial assets with variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract.

The calculation of present value of the estimated future cash flows of a
collaterized financial asset reflects the cash flows that are expected to result
from foreclosure, less the cost of obtaining and selling the collateral.

The carrying amount of an impaired financial asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. When
a financial asset is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognized (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit
rating), the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the
allowance account and recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. The reversal shall not result in the carrying amount of the financial asset
that exceeds what the amortized cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognized at the date the impairment is reversed.
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(ii) Assets classified as available-for-sale

When a decline in the fair value of a financial asset classified as
available-for-sale has been recognized directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve, and there is
objective evidence that asset is impaired, the cumulative loss is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognized in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, and is measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
(net of any principal repayment and amortization) and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss previously recognized.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as
available-for-sale increases and the increase can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized, the impairment loss
is reversed through the consolidated statement of profit or loss. With respect
to equity instruments, such reversals are made through the investment
revaluation reserve within other comprehensive income. If there is objective
evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an unquoted equity
investment that is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be
reliably measured, the impairment loss should not be reversed.

(c) Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group continues to recognize the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognizes an associated liability. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognize the financial asset and also
recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable, the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities issued by the Group are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability in IAS 39 and IAS 32,
respectively.

The Group’s financial liabilities are generally classified into financial liabilities
at FVTPL and other financial liabilities.

(a) Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL has two subcategories, including financial
liabilities held for trading and those designated at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is acquired or incurred
principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term or if
it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed
together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking. Derivatives are also categorized as held for trading
unless they are designated and effective as hedging instruments.

The criteria for a financial liability designated at FVTPL is the same as those
for a financial asset designated at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with changes in fair
value arising on re-measurement recognized directly in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or
loss recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss includes any
interest paid on the financial liabilities.

(b) Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost, using the effective
interest method.

(c) Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the
consideration paid and payable is recognized in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

(15)Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as separate
derivatives when their characteristics and risks are not closely related to
those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are separately accounted for at FVTPL unless the Group choose to
designate the hybrid contracts at fair value through profit or loss

In order to avoid certain risk, the Group has designated certain derivative
instruments as hedging instruments. The Group uses hedge accounting to
account for these hedging instruments which satisfy specified criteria. The
Group’s hedging relationship include fair value hedges and cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the
relationship between hedging instrument and hedged item, as well as its
risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at the inception
of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, of whether the hedging instrument is
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged
item attributable to the hedged risk.

(a) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair
value hedges are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that
are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment
to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which the effective interest
method is used is amortized to profit or loss over the period to maturity. If the
hedged item is de-recognized, the unamortized carrying value adjustment is
recognized in profit or loss.

(b) Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualified as cash flow hedges is recognized in other
comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity are recognized in profit or loss in the periods when the
hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same line as the recognized hedged
item. When the hedged forecast transaction results in the recognition of a
financial asset or a financial liability, the cumulative gains or losses previously
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are
reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the same period during which the
hedged forecast transaction affect profit or loss.

Hedge accounting is discontinued under following situations:

—  When the Group revokes the designation of hedging relationship, when
the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or
when it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting, any cumulative gains
or losses recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity and
is recognized in profit or loss when the forecast transaction ultimately
occurs.

- When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, any
cumulative gains or losses in equity is transferred immediately to profit
or loss.

(16) Equity instruments issued by the group

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recognized at the fair value of proceeds received, net
of direct issuance costs.

(17)Property and equipment

The Group’s property and equipment comprise buildings, office and
machinery equipment, motor vehicles and vessels, aircrafts and construction
in progress.

All property and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent expenditures are included in the asset’s carrying amount or are
recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of
such assets to their residual values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Useful lives Residual value rates Annual depreciation rates
Buildings 20-35 years 0%-5% 2.71%-5.00%
Office and machinery equipment 3-25 years 0%-5% 3.80%-33.33%
Motor vehicles and vessels 4-6 years 0%-5% 15.83%-25.00%
Aircrafts 11-20 years 15% 4.25%-7.73%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Properties in the course of construction for supply of services or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Such properties are
classified to the appropriate category of property and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.

Gains and losses on disposal of property and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss.



(18)Land use rights

Land use rights are classified in “Other assets” and amortized over a
straight-line basis over their authorised useful lives which generally range from
35 to 50 years. At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
useful lives and amortization method of land use rights.

(19)Foreclosed assets

Foreclosed assets are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently
measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value, less costs to
sell, at the end of each reporting period. When the fair value, less costs to
sell, is lower than a foreclosed asset’s carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of the foreclosed asset is included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which the item is
disposed

The Group disposes of foreclosed assets through various means. In principle,
foreclosed assets should not be transferred for own use, but, in the event that
they are needed for the Group’s own business or management purposes, they
are transferred at their net carrying amounts and managed as newly acquired
property and equipment.

(20)Investment property

Investment property is property held to earn rental income or for capital
appreciation, or both

Investment property is initially measured at its acquisition cost. Subsequent
expenditures incurred for the investment property are included in the cost of
the investment property if it is probable that economic benefits associated
with the asset will flow to the Group and the subsequent expenditures can be
measured reliably. Other subsequent expenditures are recognized in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Investment properties are measured using the cost model. Depreciation and
amortization is recognized the same way as property and equipment and land
use rights.

When an investment property is sold, transferred, retired or damaged, the
Group recognizes the amount of any proceeds on disposal, net of the carrying
amount and related expenses, in profit or loss.

(21)Leases

(a) Lease classification

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

(b) Finance lease

When the Group is the lessor in a finance lease, the present value of the
aggregation of the minimum lease payment receivable from the lessee and
unguaranteed residual value, net of initial direct costs, recognized as a
receivable in “Loans and advances to customers”. The difference between
the gross receivable and the present value of the receivable is recognized as
unearned finance income. Unearned finance income is recognized over the
term of the lease using an interest rate which reflects a constant rate of return.

The Group has no finance leases business as a lessee

(c) Operating lease

When the Group is the lessor in an operating lease, the assets subject to the
operating lease continue to be accounted for as the Group’s assets. Rental

income is recognized as “Other income, net” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

When the Group is the lessee under an operating lease, rental expenses are
charged in “Operating expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(22)Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are carried
at costs less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment
loss. Intangible assets include computer software and other intangible assets.
Amortization for intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognized on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives which generally range from
1to 10 years.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the useful lives and
amortization method of intangible assets with finite useful lives. The Group
has no intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.

(23)Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses and is presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the business combination. Cash-generating unit
is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently whenever there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the

unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit, and then to the other assets of
the cash-generating unit on a pro-rata basis, based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the cash-generating unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognized directly in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. An
impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of
goodwill capitalized is included in the determination of the amount of gain or
loss on disposal.

(24) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than

financial instruments and goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to the
extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for
the asset. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss.

(25) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's equity holders is recognized as a
liability in the Group’s financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by those charged with governance.

(26) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

(27)Fiduciary activities

The Group acts as a custodian, trustee and in other fiduciary capacities to
safeguard assets for customers in accordance with custody agreements
between the Group and securities investment funds, trust companies, other
institutions and individuals. The Group receives fees in return for its services
provided under the custody agreements and does not have any interest in
the economic risks and rewards related to assets under custody. Therefore,
assets under custody are not recognized in the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group conducts entrusted lending arrangements for its customers.
Under the terms of entrusted loan arrangements, the Group grants loans to
borrowers, as an intermediary, according to the instruction of its customers
who are the lenders providing funds for the entrusted loans. The Group is
responsible for the arrangement and collection of the entrusted loans and
receives a commission for the services rendered. As the Group does not
assume the economic risks and rewards of the entrusted loans and the
funding for the corresponding entrusted funds, they are not recognized as
assets or liabilities of the Group.

(28)Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A
contingent liability is not recognized, but disclosed.

CHANGES IN PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group has adopted IFRS 9 as issued by the IASB in July 2014 with the
transition date of 1 January 2018, which resulted in changes in accounting
policies and adjustments to the amounts previously recognized in the Group'’s
consolidated financial statements. The adoption of IFRS 9 has resulted
in changes in our accounting policies for recognition, classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities and impairment of
financial assets. IFRS 9 also significantly amends other standards dealing with
financial instruments such as IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”.

As permitted by the transitional provisions of IFRS 9, the Group elected not
to restate comparative figures. Any adjustments to the carrying amounts of
financial assets and liabilities at the date of transition were recognized in the
opening retained earnings and other components of reserves in the current
period. Consequently, for notes disclosures, the consequential amendments
to IFRS 7 disclosures have also only been applied to the current year. The
comparative period notes disclosures repeat those disclosures made in the
prior year.

Set out below are disclosures relating to the impact of the adoption of IFRS 9
on the Group
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(1) Classification and measurement of financial instruments

The measurement category and the carrying amount of financial instruments in accordance with IAS 39 and IFRS 9 at 1 January 2018 are compared as follows:

IAS 39 IFRS 9
Financial assets Measurement category Carrying amount Measurement category Carrying amount
Cash and balances with central banks Amortized cost 264,868 Amortized cost 264,868
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions Amortized cost 1,129,033 Amortized cost 1,128,823
Placements with banks and other financial institutions Amortized cost 227,739 Amortized cost 227,733
Amortized cost 10,609,169
Loans and advances to customers Amortized cost 10,642,675
FVTPL (Mandatory) 3,666

FVTPL (Held for trading) 124,467 FVTPL (Mandatory) 1,023,545

FVTPL (Designated) 1,026,563 FVTPL (Designated) 143,379

FVOCI (Available-for-sale 520 396 FVOCI (Mandatory) 528,562

financial assets) ' FVOCI (Designated) 4,471
Financial investments .

Amortized cost 28 388

(Held-to-maturity investments) ’

Amortized cost (Debt Amortized cost 1,201,383

instruments classified as 1,201,815

receivables)
Derivative financial assets FVTPL 37,887 FVTPL 37,887
Financial assets held under resale agreements Amortized cost 506,172 Amortized cost 506,172
Other financial assets Amortized cost 15,508 Amortized cost 15,285

There were no changes to the classification and measurement of financial liabilities, other than to changes in the fair value of financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss that are attributable to changes in the instrument’s credit risk, which are now presented in other comprehensive income. The above
changes do not impact the Group’s consolidated financial statements significantly.

®

Reconciliation of statement of financial position balances from IAs 39 to IFRS 9

The Group performed a detailed analysis of its business model for managing financial assets and analysis of their cash flow characteristics. The following table
reconciles the carrying amounts of financial assets, from their previous measurement category in accordance with IAS 39 to their new measurement categories upon

transition to IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018:

31 December 2017
IAS 39 carrying
amount

Reclassification

Remeasurement

Loans and advances to customers (Amortized cost)

Opening balance under IAS 39

10,642,675

Subtraction: To FVTPL (Mandatory) (IFRS 9)

(3,837)

Remeasurement: ECL allowance

(29,669)

Closing balance under IFRS 9

10,609,169

Loans and advances to customers (FVTPL)

Opening balance under IAS 39

Addition: From amortized cost (IAS 39)

3,837

Remeasurement: From amortized cost to fair value

(171)

Closing balance under IFRS 9

3,666

Fair value through profit or loss (Held-for-trading) (IAS 39)

Opening balance under IAS 39

124,467

Subtraction: To FVTPL (Mandatory) (IFRS 9)

(124,467)

Closing balance under IFRS 9

Fair value through profit or loss (Designated) (IAS 39)

Opening balance under IAS 39

1,026,563

Subtraction: To FVTPL (Mandatory) (IFRS 9)

(883,184)

Subtraction: To FVTPL (Designated) (IFRS 9)

(143,379)

Closing balance under IFRS 9

Available-for-sale financial assets

Opening balance under IAS 39

522,396

Subtraction: To FVTPL (Mandatory) (IFRS 9)

(11,496)

Subtraction: To amortized cost (IFRS 9)

(1,725)

Subtraction: To FVOCI (Mandatory) (IFRS 9)

(504,704)

Subtraction: To FVOCI (Designated) (IFRS 9)

(4,471)

Closing balance under IFRS 9

Held-to-maturity investments

Opening balance under IAS 39

28,388

Subtraction: To amortized cost (IFRS 9)

Subtraction: To FVTPL (Mandatory) (IFRS 9)
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31 December 2017
IAS 39 carrying Reclassification Remeasurement
amount

Subtraction: To FVOCI (Mandatory) (IFRS 9) (23,892)

Closing balance under IFRS 9 —

Debt instruments classified as receivables

Opening balance under IAS 39 1,201,815

Subtraction: To amortized cost (IFRS 9) (1,197,525)

Subtraction: To FVTPL (Mandatory) (IFRS 9) (4,290)

Closing balance under IFRS 9 _

Fair value through profit or loss (Mandatory)(IFRS 9)

Opening balance under IAS 39 -

Addition: From FVTPL (Held for trading) (IAS 39) 124,467

Addition: From FVTPL (Designated) (IAS 39) 883,184

Addition: From available-for-sale financial assets (IAS 39) 11,496

Addition: From held-to-maturity investments (IAS 39) 80

Addition: From debt instruments classified

as receivables (IAS 39) 4,290

Remeasurement: From amortized cost to fair value 28

Closing balance under IFRS 9 1,023,545

Fair value through profit or loss (Designated) (IFRS 9)

Opening balance under IAS 39 -

Addition: From FVTPL (Designated) (IAS 39) 143,379

Closing balance under IFRS 9 143,379

Debt instruments at amortized cost

Opening balance under IAS 39 -

Addition: From held-to-maturity investments (IAS 39) 4,416

Remeasurement: ECL allowance 3)

Addition: From debt instruments classified as receivables(IAS 39) 1,197,525

Remeasurement: ECL allowance (2,280)

Addition: From available-for-sale financial assets(IAS 39) 1,725

Remeasurement: ECL allowance -

Closing balance under IFRS 9 1,201,383

Fair value through other comprehensive income (Mandatory)

Opening balance under IAS 39 -

Addition: From held-to-maturity investments (IAS 39) 23,892

Addition: From available-for-sale financial assets (IAS 39) 504,704

Remeasurement: From amortized cost to fair value (34)

Closing balance under IFRS 9 528,562

Fair value through other comprehensive income (Designated)

Opening balance under IAS 39 -

Addition: From available-for-sale financial assets (IAS 39) 4,471

Closing balance under IFRS 9 4,471

Deposits with banks and other financial institutions

Opening balance under IAS 39 1,129,033

Remeasurement: ECL allowance (210)

Closing balance under IFRS 9 1,128,823

Placements with banks and other financial institutions

Opening balance under IAS 39 227,739

Remeasurement: ECL allowance (6)

Closing balance under IFRS 9 227,733

Other financial assets

Opening balance under IAS 39 15,508

Remeasurement: ECL allowance (223)

Closing balance under IFRS 9 15,285
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(3) Reconciliation of impairment allowance balance and provisions from IAS 39 to IFRS 9

The following table reconciles the prior period’s closing impairment allowance and provisions measured in accordance with the IAS 39 and IAS 37 to the new
impairment allowance and provisions measured in accordance with the IFRS 9 at 1 January 2018

Impairment Impairment

EISTENED (LD Reclassification Remeasurement ElEEE)

IAS 39/Provision Provision under

under IAS 37 IFRS 9

Deposits with banks and other financial institutions - - 210 210
Placements with banks and other financial institutions - - 6 6
Loans and advances to customers 394,157 (371) 29,669 423,455
T metruments cassfed 2 recahaties (AS 39 3428 (@428 - -
Debt instruments at amortized cost (IFRS 9) - 3,428 2,283 5711
Available-for-sale financial assets (IAS 39) 18,215 (18,215) - -
e oy A f
Other financial assets 359 - 223 582
Total 416,159 (18,436) 32,497 430,220
Commitment and financial guarantee contracts 1,243 — 9,548 10,791

Due to the impact of classification, measurement and impairment, the
investment revaluation reserve and retained earnings of the Group decreased
by RMB16,755 million and RMB14,451 million, respectively, after taking into
consideration the increase of deferred tax of the Group of RMB10,555 million.

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS
POLICIES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in Note 3, management is required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities. The
estimates and related assumptions are based on historical experience and
other relevant factors including on the basis of reasonable expectations for
future events.

IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgements and key estimation uncertainty that
the management has made in the process of applying the Group'’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized
in the consolidated financial statements in the next twelve months.

—
—
~

Measurement of credit impairment losses

The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance (ECL) for financial
assets measured at amortized cost and with exposure arising from some loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts is an area that requires the
use of complex model and significant assumptions about future economic
conditions and credit behavior. The significant assumptions primarily include
the following:

- Segmentation of business operations sharing similar credit risk
characteristics, selection of appropriate model and determination of
relevant key measurement parameters;

- Criteria for determining whether or not there was a significant increase
in credit risk, or a default or impairment loss was incurred as well as
definition of default and credit impairment;

- Economic indicators for forward-looking measurement, and the
application of economic scenarios and weightings;

- The estimated future cash flows for loans and advances to customers at
amortized cost in Stage 3.

Explanations of the inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used in
measuring ECL are further detailed in Note 53 (2) Credit risk.

Consolidation of structured entities

®

Where the Group acts as asset manager of or investor in structured entities,
the Group makes significant judgement on whether the Group controls
and should consolidate these structured entities. When performing this
assessment, the Group assesses the Group’s contractual rights and
obligations in light of the transaction structures, and evaluates the Group's
power over the structured entities, performs analysis and tests on the variable
returns from the structured entities, including but not limited to commission
income and asset management fees earned as the asset manager or service
provider, the retention of residual income, and, if any, the liquidity and
other support provided to the structured entities. The Group also assesses
whether it acts as a principal or an agent through analysis of the scope of

its decision-making authority over the structured entities, the remuneration
to which it is entitled for its role as asset manager or service provider, the
Group’s exposure to variability of returns from its other interests in the
structured entities, and the rights held by other parties in the structured
entities.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets
is determined by using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent
arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow method, net asset value,
comparable companies approach and other valuation techniques commonly
adopted by market participants. To the extent practical, the Group uses only
observable market data, however areas such as credit risk of the Group and
the counterparties, weighted average cost of capital, perpetual growth rate,
liquidity discount, prepayment rate; and comparable performance indicators
such as price to equity or price to book value ratios may not be observable
and require management to make estimates and apply judgements. Changes
in assumptions about these factors could affect the estimated fair value of
financial instruments

c

De-recognition of financial assets transferred

In its normal course of business, the Group transfers its financial assets
through various types of transactions including, among others, regular way
sales and transfers, securitization, financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements. The Group applies significant judgement in assessing whether
it has transferred these financial assets which qualify for a full or partial
de-recognition.

Where the Group enters into structured transactions by which it transfers
financial assets to structured entities, the Group analyzes whether the
substance of the relationship between the Group and these structured entities
indicates that it controls these structured entities to determine whether the
Group needs to consolidate these structured entities.

The Group analyzes the contractual rights and obligations in connection with
such transfers to determine:

—  whether it has transferred the rights to receive contractual cash flows
from the financial assets or the transfer qualifies for the “pass through”
of those cash flows to independent third parties.

—  the extent to which the associated risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets are transferred.

- where the Group has neither retained nor transferred substantially all
of the risks and rewards associated with their ownership, the Group
analyzes whether it has relinquished its controls over these financial
assets and if the Group has continuing involvement in these transferred
financial assets.

Income Tax

There are certain transactions and activities for which the ultimate tax
effect is uncertain. The Group makes estimates and judgement for items of
uncertainty, taking into account existing taxation legislation and past practice
of relevant tax authorities. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
affect the income tax in the period in which such a determination is made.

6. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Bank as at 31 December 2018 were
as follows:
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CDB Capital Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB61,055 100% directly held Equity investment
CDB Development Fund Mainland China RMB50,000 100% directly held N°”'se°“ri'ie;;';‘f;;:‘nz:tt i&g":j\:‘;ig
China-Africa Development Fund Mainland China RMB32,548 84.99%indirectly held Fund investment & management
CDB Leasing Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB12,642 64.40%directly held Leasing
CDB Securities Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB9,500 80% directly held Securities brokerage and underwriting
Upper Chance Group Limited Hong Kong, China GBP1,584 100% directly held Investment holding

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there were no changes in the proportion of equity interests or voting rights the Bank held in its subsidiaries, and there was no
restriction on the Group’s ability to access or use its assets and settle its liabilities.

7. NET INTEREST INCOME

Year ended 31 December

Interest income

Loans and advances to customers 500,149 457,467
Investment securities (1) 65,188 50,987
Placements with banks and other financial institutions and financial assets held under resale agreements 16,763 21,640
Balances with central banks and deposits with banks and other financial institutions 34,243 30,325
Others 818 65

617,161 560,484

Interest expense

Debt securities issued (308,040) (275,602)
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions (98,958) (78,329)
Due to customers (12,794) (13,067)
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions (12,182) (10,151)
Others (2,239) (3,085)
(434,213) (380,234)

Net interest income 182,948 180,250
Interest income accrued on impaired financial assets 638 563

(1) Interest income of investment securities includes interest income of debt instruments at amortized cost and debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
(Mandatory).

8. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Year ended 31 December

Fee and commission income

Fiduciary service fee 3,470 3,804
Loan arrangement fee 2,344 3,025
Credit commitment fee 1,638 2,414
Consultancy and advisory fee 80 197
Brokerage fee 25 79
Others 1,452 1,381
9,009 10,900

Fee and commission expense (1,311) (1,127)
Net fee and commission income 7,698 9,773

9. NET TRADING AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAINS/(LOSSES)

Year ended 31 December

Foreign exchange gains/(losses) 53,793 (57,002)
Net (losses)/gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or losses (Mandatory) (11,531) 6,358
Net (losses)/gains on foreign exchange derivatives (4,934) 11,094
Net gains on interest rate derivatives 125 242

Total 37,453 (39,308)
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10.DIVIDEND INCOME

Year ended 31 December

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Mandatory) 13,198 N/A
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated) - 10,252
Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (Designated) 100 N/A
Available-for-sale equity investments N/A 564
Total 13,298 10,816

11.NET (LOSSES)/GAINS ON INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Year ended 31 December

Net losses on disposal of debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (Mandatory) (33) N/A
Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets N/A 106
Others = 559
Total (33) 665

12.0THER INCOME, NET

Year ended 31 December

Rental income, net 3,549 3,294
Others 338 1,018
Total 3,887 4,312

13.OPERATING EXPENSES

Year ended 31 December

Taxes and surcharges 4,479 3,899
Staff costs 6,811 6,382
General operating and administrative expenses 4,103 4,505
Depreciation and amortization 1,391 1,258
Total 16,784 16,044

14.IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
(1) Credit impairment losses (IFRS 9)

Loans and advances to customers 92,684
Financial investments-debt instruments at amortized cost 324
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (Mandatory) 121
Loan commitments 3,281
Financial guarantee contracts 66
Others 710
Total 97,186

(2) Impairment losses on assets (IAS39)

Loans and advances to customers 4,722
Available-for-sale financial assets 4
Debt instruments classified as receivables 136
Others 218
Total 5,080
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Year ended 31 December

Current tax 51,546 20,922
Deferred tax (Note 31) (32,042) 6,119
Total 19,504 27,041

The income tax expense can be reconciled to profit before income tax presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

Year ended 31 December

Profit before income tax 131,560 140,648
Tax calculated at the PRC statutory tax rate of 25% 32,890 35,162
Effect of different tax rates on subsidiaries (425) (140)
Tax effect of non-taxable income (13,768) (9,735)
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences not recognized 69 616
Tax effects of expenses not deductible for tax purpose and others 738 1,138
Income tax expense 19,504 27,041

16.CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS

As at 31 December

Cash 2 2
Statutory reserve with central banks 425 353
Other deposits with central banks 274,741 264,513
Total 275,168 264,868

17.DEPOSITS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Deposits with:

Domestic banks 661,022 1,036,582
Other domestic financial institutions 11,959 5,014
Overseas banks 82,363 87,435
Other overseas financial institutions - 2
Subtotal 755,344 1,129,033
Accrued Interests (Note 32 (1)) 3,521 -
Total 758,865 1,129,033
Less: Allowance for impairment losses — Stage 1 (326) N/A
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions, net 758,539 1,129,033

As at 31 December 2018, the restricted deposits with banks and other financial institutions of the Group amounted to RMB12,547 million (31 December 2017: RMB5,037
million), which were mainly security deposits pledge with clearing houses.

18.PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Placements with:

Domestic banks 124,744 166,256
Other domestic financial institutions 6,000 8,000
Overseas banks 37,681 53,483
Subtotal 168,425 227,739
Accrued Interests (Note 32 (1)) 195 -
Total 168,620 227,739
Less: Allowance for impairment losses — Stage 1 (15) N/A

Placements with banks and other financial institutions, net 168,605 227,739
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19.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at fair value through profit or losses (Mandatory)

Government and quasi-government bonds 11,5621
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 16,938
Corporate bonds 18,759
Asset-backed securities 134
Inter-bank certificates of deposit 107,028
Stock and fund investments 7,716
Wealth management products issued by other banks 8,672
Equity investments 808,542
Asset management plans 3,853
Subtotal 983,163

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated)

Government and quasi-government bonds 13,785
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 1,979
Corporate bonds 42,739
Asset-backed securities 1,785
Inter-bank certificates of deposit 17,060
Financial assets held under resale agreements 4,933
Deposits and placements with banks and other financial institutions 13,767
Asset management plans 2,521
Subtotal 98,569
Total 1,081,732

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss primarily include investments in debt securities and funds invested in bonds and deposits with banks and
other financial institutions with funds from investors of guaranteed wealth management products.

20.DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTIZED COST

Government and quasi-government bonds 1,328,591
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 2,588
Corporate bonds 104,776
Investments in trust plans and others 6,977
Subtotal 1,442,932
Accrued Interests (Note 32 (1)) 22,002
Total 1,464,934

Less: Allowance for impairment losses

Stage 1 (5,086)
Stage 2 (110)
Stage 3 (1,075)
(6,271)

Debt instruments at amortized cost, net 1,458,663

(1) Analyzed by assessment method of ECL:

Gross debt instrument investments at amortized cost 1,462,181 700 2,053 1,464,934
Less: Allowance for impairment losses (5,086) (110) (1,075) (6,271)
Debt instrument investments at amortized cost, net 1,457,095 590 978 1,458,663

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the transfer among stages of the Group’s debt instruments at amortized cost was not significant.
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(2) Movements of allowance for impairment losses are set out below:

1 January 2018 4,658 134 919 5,711

Transfers:

Stage 1 to Stage 2 (18) 18 - -
Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (134) 134 -
Originated or purchased financial assets 230 = = 230
Remeasurement (a) - 92 12 104
Repayments or transfer out 10) - - (10)
Foreign exchange differences 226 = 10 236
31 December 2018 5,086 110 1,075 6,271

(a) Remeasurement includes the impacts of changes in inputs to model as a result of regular review and updates of parameters such as Probability of Defaults (PDs),
Loss Given Defaults (LGDs) and Exposure at Defaults (EADs) and additional/release of allowance due to stage transfers.

21.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (Mandatory)

Government and quasi-government bonds 144,763
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 81,362
Corporate bonds 32,251
Asset-backed securities 196
Inter-bank certificates of deposit 219,336
Subtotal 477,908
Accrued Interests (Note 32 (1)) 3,186
Total 481,094

Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (Designated)

Listed equity 3,250
Unlisted equity 533
Total 3,783
Financial Assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, total 484,877

The Group has elected to irrevocably designate strategic investments of non-trading equity instruments at FVOCI as permitted under IFRS 9. The changes in fair value of
such instruments will no longer be reclassified to profit or loss when they are disposed of.

(1) Analyzed by assessment method of ECL:

Other debt instruments at fair value through other

S 480,918 9 167 481,094
comprehensive income

Allowance for impairment losses (224) (3) (150) (377)

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the transfer among stages of the Group’s financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income was not significant.

(2) Movements of allowance for impairment losses are set out below:

1 January 2018 106 - 150 256
Originated or purchased financial assets 121 - - 121
Remeasurement (a) - 8 = 3
Repayment and transfer out 3 = = ®)
31 December 2018 224 3 150 377

(a) Remeasurement includes the impacts of changes in inputs to model as a result of regular review and updates of parameters such as PDs, LGDs and EADs and
additional/release of allowance due to stage transfers.
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22.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets held-for-trading

Government and quasi-government bonds 19,017
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 1,677
Corporate bonds 1,777
Inter-bank certificates of deposit 89,182
Stock and fund investments 2,814
Subtotal 124,467

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated)

Government and quasi-government bonds 15,062
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 1,757
Corporate bonds 51,488
Asset-backed securities 4,427
Inter-bank certificates of deposit 19,640
Financial assets held under resale agreements 19,418
Deposits and placements with banks and other financial institutions 26,043
Asset management plans 7,417
Wealth management products issued by other banks 10,323
Equity investments 870,988
Subtotal 1,026,563
Total 1,151,030

23.AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Debt instruments:

Government and quasi-government bonds 135,736
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 37,345
Corporate bonds 37,890
Assets-backed securities 216
Inter-bank certificates of deposit 301,053
512,240

Equity instruments 9,439
Fund investments 77
Total 522,396

As at 31 December 2017, the cumulative individually assessed impairment allowance of available-for-sale financial assets amounted to RMB18,215 million.

24.HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

Government and quasi-government bonds 98
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 25,093
Corporate bonds 3,197

Total 28,388
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25.DEBT INSTRUMENTS CLASSIFIED AS RECEIVABLES

Government and quasi-government bonds 1,096,088
Debt securities issued by financial institutions 5,571
Corporate bonds 97,587
Assets-backed securities 713
Investments in trust plans and others 5,284

1,205,243

Less: Allowance for impairment losses

Individually assessed (488)
Collectively assessed (2,940)

(3,428)
Debt instruments classified as receivables, net 1,201,815

26.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(1) Derivative financial instruments

The contractual notional amounts of derivative financial instruments provide a basis for comparison with fair values of instruments recognized on the consolidated
statement of financial position, but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair values of the instruments and, therefore, do
not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. The fair values of derivative instruments become favorable (assets) or unfavorable (liabilities) as a result of
fluctuations in market interest rates or foreign exchange rates relative to their terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities can fluctuate
significantly.

The table below provides a detailed breakdown of the contractual or notional amounts and the fair values of the Group’s derivative financial instruments outstanding at
the balance sheet date.

31 December 2018

Exchange rate derivatives

Currency swaps (including cross-currency interest rate swaps) 3,195,290 22,907 (28,290)
Foreign exchange forwards and foreign exchange options 152,769 1,375 (81)
Subtotal 24,282 (28,371)

Interest rate derivatives

Interest rate swaps 2,235,329 10,391 (10,102)
Interest rate options 9,715 97 (97)
Subtotal 10,488 (10,199)
Total 34,770 (38,570)

31 December 2017

Exchange rate derivatives

Currency swaps (including cross-currency interest rate swaps) 1,970,083 28,421 (27,198)
Foreign exchange forwards and foreign exchange options 205,913 2,347 (41)
Subtotal 30,768 (27,239)

Interest rate derivatives

Interest rate swaps 1,282,188 6,942 (6,079)
Interest rate options 10,152 177 177)
Subtotal 7,119 (6,256)

Total 37,887 (33,495)
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(2) Hedge accounting
The Group'’s hedging instruments included in the above derivative financial instruments are set out below:

31 December 2018

Hedging instruments for fair value hedges

Interest rate swaps 11,437 393 (146)

Hedging instruments for cash flow hedges

Interest rate swaps 15,890 17 (208)

Total 410 (354)

31 December 2017

Hedging instruments for fair value hedges

Interest rate swaps 17,948 655 (81)

Hedging instruments for cash flow hedges

Interest rate swaps 3,833 21 (17)

Total 676 (98)

Fair value hedges

The Group uses interest rate swap contracts to hedge against changes in fair values attributable to interest rate risks of the negotiable certificates of deposits issued by the
Group as presented in “Due to Customers” in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the current and prior year, there were no significant ineffectiveness to be recorded from the fair value hedges.

Cash flow hedges

The Group uses interest rate swap contracts to hedge against exposure to cash flow variability attributable to interest rate risks of the variable rate borrowings from other
banks for the Group’s leasing business.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group recognized in other comprehensive income a cumulative profit or loss from fair value changes of cash flow hedging were
insignificant.

27.FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD UNDER RESALE AGREEMENTS

As at 31 December

Analyzed by type of collateral:

Bonds 455,665 497,965
Others 7,950 8,266
Subtotal 463,615 506,231
Accrued interests (Note 32 (1)) 408 -
Total 464,023 506,231

Less: Allowance for impairment losses

Individually assessed N/A (59)
Stage 1 (33) N/A
Stage 3 (488) N/A
(521) (59)

Financial assets held under resale agreements,net 463,502 506,172

The collateral received in connection with resale agreements is disclosed in Note 52 (7) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments — Collateral.

28.LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

(1) The composition of loans and advance to customers is as follows:

As at 31 December

At amortized cost, net (a) 11,167,983 10,642,675

At fair value through profit or loss (b) 30,392 N/A

Loans and advances to customers, net 11,198,375 10,642,675
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(a) The composition of loans and advance to customers measured at amortized cost is as follows:

As at 31 December

Loans and advances to customers 11,609,779 10,933,412
Finance lease receivables and others 138,508 103,420
Subtotal 11,648,287 11,036,832
Accrued Interests (Note 32 (1)) 29,947 -
Total 11,678,234 11,036,832

Less: Allowance for impairment losses

Individually assessed N/A (40,087)
Collectively assessed N/A (354,070)
Stage 1 (201,452) N/A
Stage 2 (217,366) N/A
Stage 3 (91,433) N/A
(510,251) (394,157)

Loans and advance to customers measured at amortized cost, net 11,167,983 10,642,675

(b) The composition of loans and advance to customers measured at fair value through profit or loss is as follows:

As at 31 December

Carrying amount of loans and advances to customers 30,642 N/A
Fair value change (250) N/A
Total 30,392 N/A

Finance lease receivables pledged by the Group is disclosed in Note 52 (7) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments — Collateral.

(2) Analyzed by assessment method of ECL:

Gross loans and advances 10,306,130 1,250,794 121,310 11,678,234
Less: Allowance for impairment losses (201,452) (217,366) (91,433) (510,251)
Loans and advances to customers, net 10,104,678 1,033,428 29,877 11,167,983

(3) Movements of allowance for impairment losses are set out below:

1 January 2018 190,559 179,247 53,649 423,455

Transfer to:

Stage 1 to Stage 2 (11,235) 11,235 - -
Stage 2 to Stage 1 8,555 (8,555) - -
Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (11,910) 11,910 -
Stage 3 to Stage 2 = 4,179 (4,179) =
Originated financial assets (b) 24,148 - - 24,148
Remeasurement (a) 8,339 46,707 42,100 97,146
Repayment and transfer out (20,946) (7,454) (210) (28,610)
Write offs = = (13,686) (13,686)
Foreign exchange differences 2,082 3,917 1,849 7,798
31 December 2018 201,452 217,366 91,433 510,251

(a) Remeasurement includes the impacts of changes in inputs to model as a result of regular review and updates of parameters such as PDs, LGDs and EADs and
additional/release of allowance due to stage transfers.

(b) As at January 1, 2018, 89% of the gross amount of loans and advances to customers was classified under Stage 1. The increase in credit loss allowance under
Stage 1 was mainly attributable to the newly originated loans and advances to customers during the year.

(c) AsatJanuary 1, 2018, 10% of the gross amount of loans and advances to customers was classified under Stage 2. The increase in credit allowance under Stage
2 was largely driven by the transfer in from Stage 1. Net transfer of loans and advances to customer balance from Stage 1 to Stage 2 during the year represented
for approximately 3% of the Stage 1 beginning balance as at 1 January 2018.

(d) 1% of the gross amount of loans and advances to customers as at 31 January 2018 was classified under in Stage 3. Net transfer of loans and advances to
customer balance from Stage 2 to Stage 3 during the year represented for approximately 6% of the Stage 2 beginning balance as at 1 January 2018. Such
increase was offset by the decrease resulting from write-offs and recovery of approximately 27% of the beginning balance of Stage 3 loans and advances to
customers.
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Year ended 31 December 2017

1 January 2017 57,645 366,329 423,974
Charges for the year 21,844 119,275 141,119
Reverses (14,823) (121,574) (136,397)
Write offs and transfer out (22,779) (3,565) (26,344)
Unwinding of discount on allowance (563) - (563)
Foreign exchange differences (1,237) (6,395) (7,632)
31 December 2017 40,087 354,070 394,157

(4) Past due loans and advance to customers by collateral types are set out below:

Loans and advances to customers are classified as past-due if the principal or the interest is past due. For loans and advances to customers repayable by installment,
if any installment repayment is past due, the total balance of the loans and advances is classified as past-due.

Past due

31 December 2018

Unsecured loans 5,281 559 3,615 = 9,455
Guaranteed loans 7,947 11,361 5,995 2,134 27,437
Loans secured by collateral 22,5624 17,826 7,875 4,686 52,911
Pledged loans 10,006 16,094 7,988 49 34,137
Total 45,758 45,840 25,473 6,869 123,940

31 December 2017

Unsecured loans 2,665 1,343 156 374 4,538
Guaranteed loans 2,307 9,682 2,696 2,365 16,950
Loans secured by collateral 2,058 5X853] 6,370 2,957 16,738
Pledged loans 3,805 1,278 4,799 2,561 12,443
Total 10,835 17,556 14,021 8,257 50,669

29.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

The balance of interest in associates and joint ventures is as follows:

As at 31 December

Investments in associates and joint ventures 2,214 1,835
Allowance for impairment losses (528) -
1,686 1,835

Movements of investments in associates and joint ventures are set out below:

As at 31 December

1 January 1,835 1,762
Additions 413 209
Disposals (34) (136)
31 December 2,214 1,835

Information of principal associates and joint ventures of the Group as at 31 December 2018 are as follows:

Tianjin Eco-City Investment & Development Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB3,000 20% indirectly held Land and infrastructure development

CDB Jintai Capital Investment Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB1,250 40% indirectly held Investment management and advisory

Weiguang Huitong Tourism Indusiry Mainland China RMB400 44% indirectly held Tourism management service
Development Co., Ltd.

Beijing Far East Instrument Company Ltd. Mainland China RMB213  25% indirectly held Manufacturing of electronic

instruments and electric appliance

30.PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Cost (a) 106,769 88,987
Accumulated depreciation (a) (19,956) (16,647)
Allowance for impairment loss (a) (487) (242)
Fixed asset held for disposal 727 -

Total 87,053 72,098
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(a) Cost, accumulated depreciation and allowance for impairment losses of property and equipment are consisted of the following.

Cost

1 January 2018 20,515 2,604 1,682 60,333 3,953 88,987
Acquisitions of a subsidiary 113 3,890 8 - 157 4,163
Additions 837 1,222 3,102 16,475 1,239 22,875
Transfers 2,826 - - - (2,826) -
Disposals (2,062) (160) (16) (7,008) (10 (9,256)
31 December 2018 22,229 7,556 4,671 69,800 2,513 106,769

Accumulated depreciation

1 January 2018 (4,315) (1,844) (384) (10,104) = (16,647)
Acquisitions of a subsidiary (11) (316) (2) = = (329)
Additions (919) (417) (69) (2,768) = (4,173)
Disposals 150 81 15 947 = 1,193
31 December 2018 (5,095) (2,496) (440) (11,925) - (19,956)

Allowance for impairment losses

1 January 2018 - - = (242) = (242)
Additions = = = (245) - (245)
31 December 2018 - - = (487) = (487)

Net book value

31 December 2018 17,134 5,060 4,231 57,388 2,513 86,326
Cost

1 January 2017 19,278 2,769 1,144 56,690 3,924 83,805
Additions 691 109 452 15,451 787 17,490
Transfers 755 - - - (755) -
Disposals (209) (274) (14) (11,808) (3) (12,308)
31 December 2017 20,515 2,604 1,582 60,333 3,953 88,987

Accumulated depreciation

1 January 2017 (3,635) (1,657) (327) (9,738) - (15,357)
Additions (776) (295) (69) (2,551) - (3,691)
Disposals 96 108 12 2,185 - 2,401
31 December 2017 (4,315) (1,844) (384) (10,104) - (16,647)

Allowance for impairment losses

1 January 2017 - - - (319) - (319)
Additions - - - (61) - (61)
Disposals - - - 138 - 138
31 December 2017 - - - (242) - (242)

Net book value

31 December 2017 16,200 760 1,198 49,987 3,953 72,098

31.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The following is the
analysis of the deferred tax balances:

As at 31 December

Deferred tax assets 125,812 85,982

Deferred tax liabilities (1,394) (2,198)

Net 124,418 83,784
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(1) Movements of deferred income tax asset and liability:

31 December 2017 83,784
Changes in accounting policies 10,363
1 January 2018 94,147
Credit to profit or loss (Note 15) 32,042
Charge to other comprehensive income (1,771)
31 December 2018 124,418

1 January 2017 87,735
Charge to profit or loss (Note 15) (6,119)
Credit to other comprehensive income 2,168
31 December 2017 83,784

(2) Deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) and related temporary differences, before offsetting qualifying amounts, are
attributable to the following items:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Deferred tax assets

Impairment losses 450,561 112,640 327,682 81,921
Fair value changes of financial instruments 75,689 18,922 50,626 12,656
Provisions 14,199 3,550 1,243 311
Others = = 2,186 547
540,449 135,112 381,737 95,435
Deferred tax liabilities
Fair value changes of financial instruments (41,857) (10,464) (46,601) (11,651)
Others (922) (230) - -
(42,779) (10,694) (46,601) (11,651)
Net 497,670 124,418 335,136 83,784

32.0THER ASSETS

As at 31 December

Deposits with securities exchange 735 4,586
Prepayment for bond redemption 7,409 409
Interest receivable (1) 1,084 52,347
Prepayment to vendors 11,080 7,828
Receivables from disposal of rural banks = 1,087
Continuing involvement assets of asset-backed securitization 328 575
Investment property 3,722 1,755
Land use rights 1,537 1,598
Intangible assets 694 701
Goodwill (2) 1,256 1,250
Long-term deferred expenses 510 258
Others 13,156 14,959
Total 41,511 87,353
Less: Allowance for impairment losses
Interest receivable (165) -
Others (308) (562)
(473) (562)
Other assets, net 41,038 86,791

1) As at 31 December 2018, the Group included the interests on financial instruments, accrued using the effective interest rate method, in the carrying amounts of the
corresponding financial instruments. Interest receivable recorded herein represented interests on financial instruments that were due but not yet received as at the
balance sheet date.

©

As at 31 December 2018, goodwill arising from acquisition of China Development Bank Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. and China Development Bank Securities Co., Ltd.
was RMB560 million and RMB629 million, respectively (31 December 2017: RMB560 million and RMB629 million). As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group
performed goodwill impairment test based on cash flow forecast of related cash-generating units, and did not identify any indication that the goodwill was impaired.
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33.DEPOSITS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Deposits from:

Domestic banks 3,109,716 3,186,470
Other domestic financial institutions 60,776 34,993
Overseas banks 53,435 42,633
Overseas other financial institutions - 4
Subtotal 3,223,927 3,264,100
Accrued interests (Note 40 (1)) 5,591 -
Total 3,229,518 3,264,100

34.BORROWINGS FROM GOVERNMENTS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

Borrowings from:

Domestic banks and other financial institutions 362,343 324,650
Foreign banks and other financial institutions 46,783 33,371
Foreign governments 16,130 8,971
Subtotal 425,256 366,992
Accrued interests (Note 40 (1)) 2,987 -
Total 428,243 366,992

35.PLACEMENTS FROM BANKS

As at 31 December

Placements from:

Domestic banks 7,940 21,800
Overseas banks 53,718 63,529
Subtotal 61,658 85,329
Accrued interests (Note 40 (1)) 466 -
Total 62,124 85,329

36.FINANCIAL LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

The Group designated the liabilities to investors and the financial assets sold under repurchase agreements in relation to the principal-guaranteed wealth management
products issued and managed by the Group as financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss. For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, there
were no significant changes in the fair value of these liabilities attributable to the changes in the Group’s own credit risk.

37.FINANCIAL ASSETS SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

As at 31 December

Analyzed by type of collateral:

Bonds 66,201 15,577
Others - 3,750
Subtotal 66,201 19,327
Accrued interests (Note 40 (1)) 48 _
Total 66,249 19,327

The collateral pledged under repurchase agreements is disclosed in Note 52 (7) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments — Collateral.
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38.DUE TO CUSTOMERS

As at 31 December

Demand deposits 1,399,456 1,774,162
Term deposits 99,501 121,761
Pledged deposits 4,833 5,261
Certificates of deposit 163,896 169,395
Subtotal 1,667,686 2,070,579
Accrued interests (Note 40 (1)) 3,091 -
Total 1,670,777 2,070,579

39.DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

As at 31 December

Debt securities issued by financial institutions (1) 8,783,105 8,316,281
Subordinated bonds issued (2) 64,995 64,925
Tier-two capital bonds issued 3) 71,893 41,841
Asset-backed securities issued (4) 7,830 23,545
Subtotal 8,927,823 8,446,592
Accrued interests (Note 40 (1)) 180,593 -
Total 9,108,416 8,446,692

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, there was no default related to any debt securities issued by the Group.

(1) Debt securities issued

As at 31 December 2018

RMB bonds issued in domestic market (i) 2001-2018 2019-2065 1.50-5.90 7,232,285
RMB special bonds issued in domestic market 2015-2018 2019-2037 2.65-4.62 1,356,994
RMB bonds issued in overseas market 2012-2014 2019-2032 3.60-4.50 6,292
Foreign currency bond issued in overseas market 2015-2018 2019-2037 0.13-4.00 130,126
Bonds issued by the Bank 8,725,697
USD bills issued by subsidiaries in overseas market 2012-2018 2019-2027 2.25-4.00 35,450
RMB bonds issued by subsidiaries in domestic market 2014-2018 2019-2023 3.00-6.05 24,420
Less: Debt securities issued by the Group and

held by entities within the Group (2:462)
Debt securities issued by the Group 8,783,105

As at 31 December 2017

RMB bonds issued in domestic market (i) 2001-2017 2018-2065 1.93-5.90 6,728,379
RMB special bonds issued in domestic market 2015-2017 2019-2037 2.65-4.58 1,395,183
RMB bonds issued in overseas market 2012-2014 2018-2032 3.60-4.50 7,992
Foreign currency bonds issued in domestic market 2013-2015 2018 2.39-2.69 18,702
Foreign currency bond issued in overseas market 2015-2017 2018-2037 0.13-4.00 120,105
Bonds issued by the Bank 8,270,361
USD bills issued by subsidiaries in overseas market 2012-2017 2019-2027 2.00-4.25 25,588
RMB bonds issued by subsidiaries in domestic market 2014-2017 2018-2022 3.00-6.05 23,254
Less: Debt se‘cluritiels i§sued by the Group and (2.922)
held by entities within the Group
Debt securities issued by the Group 8,316,281

(i)  As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, there were two RMB bonds issued in the domestic market on the same day with the same maturity date, with face value totaling RMB20,000
million included in this balance. These two bonds bear fixed and floating interest rates respectively and have embedded conversion options which allow the holders of these two
bonds to convert part or all of the bonds at face value to the other bond on a specified date.
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(2) Subordinated bonds issued

As at 31 December 2018

RMB subordinated bonds issued by the Bank in domestic market 2009-2012 2024-2062 5.00-6.05 59,996
RMB sgb.orc.!lna.ted bondg issued by 2016 2021 358 4,999

subsidiaries in domestic market —_—
Subordinated bonds issued by the Group 64,995

As at 31 December 2017

Year of issuance Year of maturity Coupon rates (%) Outstanding balance

RMB subordinated bonds issued by the Bank in domestic market 2009-2012 2024-2062 5.00-6.05 59,926
RMB sgb.orc.ilngted bondg issued by 2016 2021 358 4.999
subsidiaries in domestic market —_—
Subordinated bonds issued by the Group 64,925

All subordinated bonds issued by the Bank have provisions which allow the Bank to redeem them prior to maturity. If the Bank chooses not to exercise its redemption
option on a specified date, it is obligated to pay higher interest rates on the bonds.

(3) Tier-two capital bonds issued

As at 31 December 2018

RMB Tier-two capital bonds issued by the Bank in domestic market 2014-2018 2024-2028 3.65-5.30 71,893

As at 31 December 2017

Year of issuance Year of maturity Coupon rates (%) Outstanding balance

RMB Tier-two capital bonds issued by the Bank in domestic market 2014-2016 2024-2026 3.65-5.30 41,841

The Bank issued Tier-two capital bonds which have fixed coupon rates in year 2014, 2016 and 2018. The Bank has an option to redeem part or all of the bond at face
value upon the closing of the fifth year after the bonds’ issuance, if specified redemption conditions as stipulated in the offering documents were met, subject to regulatory
approval. If the Bank did not exercise this option, the coupon rate of the bonds would remain the same as the existing rate.

These Tier-two capital bonds have the write-down feature of a Tier-two capital instrument, which allows the Bank to write down the entire principal of the bonds when
regulatory triggering events as stipulated in the offering documents occur and any accumulated unpaid interest would become not payable.

(4) Asset-backed securities issued

The Group consolidated certain special purpose trusts established in relation with its assets securitization business when the Group determined it has control over these
special purpose trusts (Note 48 (2)).

As at 31 December 2018, total face value of unexpired asset-backed securities issued by these consolidated special purpose trusts held by third party investors were
RMB7,830 million, with remaining maturities ranging from one month to five years, and coupon rates ranging from 2% to 5.7% (2017: face value of RMB23,545 million with
remaining maturities ranging from one month to six years and coupon rates ranging from 2% to 5.7%).

40.0THER LIABILITIES

As at 31 December

Interest payable (1) - 172,887
Payables from purchasing bond investments 2,768 -
Payables to other holders of consolidated structured entities 21,746 24,897
Deferred government subsidies for education loans 21,383 17,703
VAT and other taxes payable 10,105 8,012
Security deposits for leasing 7,126 5,291
Maintenance deposits from lessees 2,003 2,115
Accrued staff cost 2,210 2,079
Continuing involvement liabilities of asset-backed securitization 328 575
Provision for losses on loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts 14,199 N/A
Provision for losses on financial guarantees N/A 1,243
Purchase payable to leasing equipment vendor 798 921
Payables for security brokerage service 867 1,053
Amounts received in advance 11,752 4,419
Others 9,453 8,178
Total 104,738 249,373

(1) As at 31 December 2018, the Group included the interests on financial instruments, accrued using the effective interest rate method, in the carrying amounts of the
corresponding financial instruments. Interest payable recorded herein represented interests on related financial instruments that were due but not yet paid as at the
balance sheet date.
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41.SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017

Amount %
MOF 153,908 36.54
Huijin 146,092 34.68
Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. 114,537 27.19
National Council for Social Security Fund 6,711 1.59
Total 421,248 100
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, there was no change in the Bank’s equity holders’ equity amount or their holding percentage.
42.CAPITAL RESERVE
Capital premium Others™ Total
At 31 December 2017 169,433 15 169,448
Changes in accounting policy 13,203 (384) 12,819
At 1 January 2018 182,636 (369) 182,267
Cashflow hedge receives and others 14 (172) (158)
At 31 December 2018 182,650 (541) 182,109
At 1 January 2017 169,434 115 169,549
Reductions M (100) (101)
At 31 December 2017 169,433 15 169,448

(1) Others include remeasurement of supplemental retirement benefits obligation and the effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualified as
cash flow hedges.

43.INVESTMENT REVALUATION RESERVE

Gross amount Tax effect Net effect
31 December 2017 434 (190) 244
Changes in accounting policies (20,440) 23 (20,417)
1 January 2018 (20,006) (167) (20,173)
Amount of losses of debt instruments measured
at FVOCI recognized directly in other comprehensive income
— Fair value changes of investments in debt instruments measured at FVOCI 7,323 (1,807) 5,516
e V00! rocasetiod 1 prft orIoss on dispasar 144 2 (108)
— Impairment losses of investments in debt instruments measured at FVOCI 121 - 121
Amount of gains of equity instruments designated
as FVOCI recognized directly in other comprehensive income
— Fair value changes of investments in equity instruments designated as FVOCI (1,224) 306 (918)
31 December 2018 (13,930) (1,632) (15,562)
1 January 2017 9,438 (2,472) 6,966
Fair value changes on available-for sale financial assets
— Recognized directly in other comprehensive income (9,126) 2,312 (6,814)
— Removed from other comprehensive income and recognized in profit or loss 122 (30) 92
31 December 2017 434 (190) 244

44.SURPLUS RESERVE AND GENERAL RESERVE

(1) Statutory and general surplus reserve

According to relevant laws and regulations, the Bank is required to appropriate 10% of its profit for the year, as determined under the PRC GAAP, to statutory surplus
reserve. When statutory surplus reserve has reached 50% of the Bank’s share capital, the Bank would not be required to further appropriate to statutory surplus
reserve. The statutory surplus reserve appropriated by the Bank can be used to replenish accumulated losses of the Bank or to increase the Bank's share capital upon
approval. The remaining balance of the statutory surplus reserve should not be lower than 25% of the Bank’s share capital after such capitalization. In addition, the
Bank appropriates general surplus reserve as approved by the Board of Directors.

(2) General reserve

As at 31 December

The Bank 223,507 210,397
Subsidiaries 4,126 3,637
Total 227,633 213,934

Pursuant to Cai jin [2012] No. 20 “Requirements on Impairment Allowance for Financial Institutions” (the “Requirement”) issued by the MOF in 2012, the Bank is
required to establish a general reserve to address unidentified potential impairment losses. The general reserve should not be lower than 1.5% of the outstanding
balance of risk-bearing assets as at the year-end date.

Pursuant to relevant regulatory requirements in the PRC, subsidiaries of the Group are required to appropriate certain amounts of its profit for the year as general reserves.
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45.RETAINED EARNINGS

At 31 December last year 293,454 255,664
Changes in accounting policies (23,029) N/A
At 1 January this year 270,425 255,664
Add: Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Bank 110,758 112,405
Disposal of subsidiaries = 207
Less: Appropriation to statutory surplus reserve (1) (10,936) (10,707)
Appropriation to general surplus reserve () (i) (10,707) (10,480)
Appropriation to general reserve (2) (i) (13,699) (27,408)
Dividends (2) (iii) (26,767) (26,200)
Transactions with non-controlling interests (6) (27)
At 31 December this year 319,068 293,454

(1) Profit appropriation for 2018

The Bank appropriated RMB10,936 million to the statutory surplus reserve based on profit for the year of 2018. As at 31 December 2018, the statutory surplus reserve
has been recognized as appropriation. Other proposal for profit appropriations of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2018 is pending for approval by the Board
of Directors.

(2)  Profit appropriation for 2017

Pursuant to the Board of Directors’ Meeting held on 26 November 2018, the proposal for profit appropriations of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2017 was
approved as following:

(i) An appropriation of RMB10,707 million to the general surplus reserve by the Bank which had been included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2018;

(i) An appropriation of RMB13,110 million to the general reserve by the Bank which had been included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018;

(iii) A cash dividend of RMB26,767 million by the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2017 which had been included in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018. As at 31 December 2018, the cash dividend has been paid.

(3) As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, retained earnings include surplus reserve appropriated by the Bank's subsidiaries that attributable to the Bank amounting
RMB1,835 million and RMB1,699 million.

46.NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Non-controlling interests of the Group are as follows:

As at 31 December

CDB Capital Co., Ltd. 10,833 9,492
CDB Leasing Co., Ltd. 8,616 8,369
CDB Securities Co., Ltd. 3,293 3,167
Total 22,742 21,028

47.CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(1) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following balances:

As at 31 December

Cash 2 2

Balance with central banks 274,741 264,513

Balances with an original maturity of three months or less:

Financial assets held under resale agreements 455,425 497,946
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 134,582 188,169
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 161,908 200,964
Investments in government bonds 5,021 -
Total 1,031,679 1,151,594

48.STRUCTURED ENTITIES

(1) Principal-guaranteed wealth management products issued and managed by the Group

The Group issued and managed principal-guaranteed wealth management products. Investments made by these products and the corresponding liabilities to the
investors are presented as financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss in the consolidated statement of financial position, respectively.
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(2) Other consolidated structured entities issued, initiated
and managed by the Group

Other structured entities consolidated by the Group include certain asset-backed
securities, asset management plans and funds issued, initiated and managed
by the Group. The Group has power over these structured entities, is entitled to
variable returns from its involvement in related activities and is able to use its
power to affect the amount of its variable returns from such structured entities.
Therefore, the Group has control over these structured entities.

As at 31 December 2018, the total assets of the consolidated structured entities
referred to in (1) and (2) above totaled RMB148,613 million (31 December 2017:
RMB211,609 million). No financing or other supports have been provided by the
Group to these consolidated structured entities.

Unconsolidated structured entities issued, initiated and
managed by the Group

Unconsolidated structured entities issued, initiated and managed by the
Group primarily include non-principal guaranteed wealth management
products, asset-backed securities, assets management plans and funds.
The Group has no plans to provide financial or other support to these
unconsolidated structured entities.

8

As at 31 December 2018, the size of unconsolidated structured entities
issued, initiated and managed by the Group amounted to RMB220,709
million (31 December 2017: RMB226,392 million). The carrying amount of the
Group's share in these structured entities amounted to RMB5,026 million (31
December 2017: RMB3,326 million). These amounts represented the Group's
maximum exposure to these structured entities.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the types of return that the Group
obtained from these structured entities included fee income, interest income
and investment gains, totalled RMB1,080 million (2017: RMB1,125 million).

(4) Other unconsolidated structured entities invested by
the Group

As at 31 December 2018, the Group classifies its interest held in other
structured entities issued and managed by other third-party entities into
financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss. As at 31
December 2017, the group classified the above assets into financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss, debt instruments classified as
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. The information on the
size of total assets of these unconsolidated structured entities was not readily
available from the public domain. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, interest
held by the Group in structured entities issued by other entities are as follows:

As at 31 December

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Mandatory) 39,662 34,489
Debt instruments classified as receivables N/A 3,361
Available-for-sale financial assets N/A 900
Total 39,662 38,750

49. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group enters into securitization transactions by which it transfers loans to
structured entities which issue asset-backed securities to investors. The Group
assessed among other factors, whether or not to derecognize the transferred
assets by evaluating the extent to which it retains the risks and rewards of the
assets and whether it has relinquished its controls over these assets based on the
criteria as detailed in Note 3 (13) (h) and Note 5 (4).

As at 31 December 2018, the unexpired asset-backed securities included
accumulative loans transferred by the Group before impairment of RMB18,983
million (31 December 2017: RMB50,664 million), among which:

- RMB15,796 million was in respect of loans transferred that the Group retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of these special purpose trusts and
therefore has not been derecognized in the consolidated financial statements
(31 December 2017: RMB32,783 million).

- RMB961 million was in respect of loans transferred that the Group concluded
it had continuing involvement in these assets (31 December 2017: RMB3,621
million). Carrying amount/maximum exposure to loss was RMB328 million (31
December 2017: RMB575 million).

- RMB2,226 million was in respect of loans transferred that qualified for full
derecognition (31 December 2017: RMB14,260 million).

50.SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group reviews the internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources. Segment information is presented on the same basis as the
Group’s management and internal reporting.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on an arm’s length
basis, with intra-segment revenue and costs being eliminated at head office level.
Income and expenses directly associated with each segment are included in
determining operating segment performance.

In accordance with IFRS 8, the Group has the following operating segments:
banking, equity investment, leasing and securities. The Group’s main operating
segments are set out below:

(1) Banking operations
This segment consists of corporate banking, debt issuance and treasury
operations. The corporate banking operations primarily consist of lending,
deposits, agency services, consulting and advisory services, cash
management, remittance and settlement, custody and guarantee services.
Debt issuance is the major source of funding to corporate banking operations.
The treasury operations primarily include money market transactions, foreign
exchange transactions, bond investments, customer-based interest rate and
foreign exchange derivative transactions and asset and liability management.

@
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Equity investment

This segment consists of equity investment activities.

3
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Leasing operations

This segment consists of finance lease and operating lease business in which
the Group acts as a lessor.

(4
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Securities operations

This segment consists of security brokerage, proprietary trading and
underwriting operations.

2018
Interest income 609,306 1,124 7,393 1,533 (2,195) 617,161
Interest expense (426,434) (2,138) (6,863) (980) 2,202 (434,213)
Net interest income 182,872 (1,014) 530 558 7 182,948
Include: Net interest income from customers 181,061 71 1,287 529 = 182,948
Inter-segment net interest income/(expenses) 1,811 (1,085) (757) 24 7 -
Net fee and commission income 6,621 381 (75) 772 (1) 7,698
Include: Net fee and commission from customers 6,715 386 (29) 626 - 7,698
Inter-segment net fee and commission (94) (5) (46) 146 (1) -
Other income, net (1) 50,268 778 5,027 584 (876) 55,781
Operatir?g expenses and credit impairment and (110,090) (1,453) (2.207) (1,094) 23) (114,867)
other impairment losses on assets
Profit before income tax 129,671 (1,308) 3,275 815 (893) 131,560
31 December 2018
Total assets 15,856,948 182,011 238,067 40,789 (137,995) 16,179,820
Total liabilities 14,617,753 82,627 213,864 24,380 (59,527) 14,879,097

Other information:
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Depreciation and amortization 1,301 129 2,948 47 - 4,425
Capital expenditure 1,651 5,357 20,123 106 = 27,237
Credit Impairment losses 95,516 68 992 460 150 97,186
Other impairment losses on assets 65 530 302 = = 897
Credit commitments 3,705,399 - - - (9,863) 3,695,536
2017
Interest income 554,021 1,354 5,889 651 (1,431) 560,484
Interest expense (374,040) (1,650) (4,985) (1,040) 1,481 (380,234)
Net interest income 179,981 (296) 904 (389) 50 180,250
Include: Net interest income from customers 178,834 486 1,319 (389) - 180,250
Inter-segment net interest income/(expenses) 1,147 (782) (415) - 50 -
Net fee and commission income 8,614 427 (62) 815 21) 9,773
Include: Net fee and commission from customers 8,678 427 (26) 794 - 9,773
Inter-segment net fee and commission 36 - (36) 21 21) -
Other income, net (37,215) 5,019 3,624 1,309 (988) (28,251)
Operating expenses and impairment losses on assets (18,045) (1,072) (1,658) (624) 275 (21,124)
Profit before income tax 133,335 4,078 2,808 1,111 (684) 140,648
31 December 2017
Total assets 15,688,904 170,078 187,099 43,559 (130,931) 15,958,709
Total liabilities 14,505,925 72,194 163,590 28,173 (51,069) 14,718,813
Other information:
Depreciation and amortization 1,144 50 2,699 49 - 3,942
Capital expenditure 1,113 240 16,941 96 - 18,390
Impairment losses on assets 4,193 215 913 28 (269) 5,080
Credit commitments 3,761,863 - - - (19,155) 3,742,708

(1) Other income includes net trading and foreign exchange gains/(losses), net gains/(losses) on financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss, net
gains/(losses) on derecognition of debt instruments at amortized cost, dividend income, net (losses)/gains on investment securities, other income and share of profit
of associates and joint ventures.

51.RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS

(1) Ministry of Finance
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the MOF owned 36.54% of the issued share capital of the Bank.

The Group enters into transactions with the MOF in its ordinary course of business, including subscription and redemption of treasury bonds. Details of transactions
with the MOF are as follows:

As at 31 December

Treasury bonds issued by the MOF 90,215 95,971
Interest receivable 1,194 1,365
Interest rate range (%) 2.22-4.68 2.29-4.68

Year ended 31 December

Interest income 2,800 2,854
Net trading gain 201 146
(2) Huijin

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, Huijin owned 34.68% of the issued share capital of the Bank.

Huijin is a wholly owned subsidiary of China Investment Corporation, with a registered capital of RMB828,209 million. Its principal activities are equity investments as
authorised by the Chinese State Council and it does not engage in other commercial operations. Huijin exercises its rights and assumes the obligations as an investor
of the Bank on behalf of the PRC Government.

Details of the balances and transactions with Huijin were as follows:

As at 31 December

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (Mandatory) 8,433

Available-for-sale financial assets N/A 3,335
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss N/A 148
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Mandatory) 2,055 N/A
Interest rate range (%) 3.12-5.15 3.32-4.38

Year ended at 31 December

Interest income

Transactions with Huijin and transactions with entities controlled or jointly controlled by Huijin are carried out in the Group’s ordinary course of business under normal
commercial terms.
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(3) Buttonwood Investment Holding Company Ltd. (‘Buttonwood’)
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, Buttonwood owned 27.19% of the issued share capital of the Bank.

Buttonwood is a wholly owned subsidiary of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange of China. Its principal activities are domestic and overseas investments in
project, equity, debt, loan and fund, fiduciary management and investment management.

Transactions with Buttonwood and transactions with entities controlled or joint controlled by Buttonwood are carried out in the Group’s ordinary course of business

under normal commercial terms.

Transaction with subsidiaries

2

Outstanding balances of transactions with subsidiaries included in the Bank’s statement of financial position are as follows:

As at 31 December

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss N/A 1,675
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Mandatory) 202 N/A
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated) 163 N/A
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (Mandatory) 713 N/A
Available-for-sale financial assets N/A 1,286
Derivative financial assets 5 56
Loans and advances to customers 42,142 36,863
Other assets 430 123
Liabilities

Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 6 "
Derivative financial liabilities 16 7
Due to customers 156,067 31,728
Debt securities issued 961 900

As at 31 December 2018, the total outstanding balance of loan commitments and letters of guarantee issued to subsidiaries were RMB9,863 million (31 December

2017: RMB16,154 million).

Transactions with subsidiaries included in the Bank’s statement of profit or loss are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

Interest income 2,004 1,304
Interest expense (454) (195)
Fee and commission income 51 52
Fee and commission expense (23) (28)
Dividend income 1,128 952

Transactions between the Bank and its subsidiaries are carried out on normal
commercial terms in ordinary course of business.

(5) Transactions with associates and joint ventures

Transactions between the Bank and its associates and joint ventures are
carried out on normal commercial terms in ordinary course of business. The
Group's transactions and balances with associates and joint ventures for the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 were not significant.

2

Transactions with other government related entities

Other than disclosed above, a significant portion of the Group’s banking
transactions are entered into with government authorities, agencies, affiliates
and other State controlled entities. These transactions are entered into under
normal commercial terms and conditions and mainly include provision of
credit and guarantee, deposits, borrowings, foreign exchange transactions,
derivative transactions, agency services, purchase, sales and redemption of
investment securities issued by government agencies.

Management considers that transactions with other government related
entities are conducted in the ordinary course of business, and that the
dealings of the Group have not been significantly or unduly affected by the
fact that the Group and those entities are government related. The Group has
also established pricing policies for products and services and such pricing
policies do not depend on whether or not the customers are government
related entities.

(7) Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons who have the authority and
responsibility to plan, direct and control the activities of the Group. During
the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had no material
transactions with key management personnel.

(8) The Group and the Annuity Scheme

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had no
material transactions with the Annuity Scheme set up by the Bank, apart from
the obligation for defined contribution to the Annuity Scheme.

52.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

Legal proceedings

As at 31 December 2018, the Group was involved in certain lawsuits arising
from its normal business operations. After consulting legal professionals,
management of the Group believes that the ultimate outcome of these
lawsuits will not have a material impact on the financial position or operating
result of the Group.

—
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(2) Capital commitments

As at 31 December

Contracted but not provided for

— equity instruments 37,972 50,201
— properties and equipments 68,193 99,130
Total 106,165 149,331




(3) Credit commitments
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As at 31 December

Loan commitments 3,622,583 3,649,438
Letters of guarantee issued 59,968 60,039
Bank acceptance 8,001 18,441
Letters of credit issued 4,984 14,790
Total commitments 3,695,536 3,742,708

As at 31 December 2018, the amount of credit commitments with original maturities of less than one year was RMB26,614 million (31 December 2017: RMB6,257
million), with the remainder of the credit commitments were all with original maturities over one year.

(4) Operating lease commitments

At the end of each reporting period, the Group, as a lessee, had the following non-cancellable operating lease commitments:

As at 31 December

Within one year 586 528
One to two years 312 286
Two to three years 207 246
Above three years 796 481
Total revocable or irrevocable commitments 1,901 1,541

(5) Finance lease commitments

At the end of each reporting period, the Group, as a lessor, had the following non-cancellable finance lease commitments:

As at 31 December

Contractual amount

27,002 7,790

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group’s finance lease commitments were all within one year.

(6) Underwriting obligations

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had no outstanding securities underwriting obligations.

(7) Collateral
(a) Assets pledged

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as collateral under repurchase agreements at the end of each reporting period are as follows:

As at 31 December

Bonds 67,487 16,130
Others - 3,750
Total 67,487 19,880

As at 31 December 2018, the principal of financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements by the Group was RMB66,201 million (31 December
2017: RMB19,327 million) as set out in Note 37 Financial Assets Sold under
Repurchase Agreements. All repurchase agreements were due within 5 years
from the effective date of these agreements.

In addition, certain finance lease receivables and leased assets under
operating lease, where the Group was a lessor, were pledged as collateral
for borrowings from other banks. As at 31 December 2018, carrying amounts
of these collateral amounted to RMB7,284 million and RMB4,016 million,
respectively (31 December 2017: RMB6,485 million and RMB2,326 million).

(b) Collateral accepted

The Group received securities as collateral in connection with the purchase of
financial assets under resale agreements (Note 27). The Group did not hold
any collateral that can be resold or re-pledged as at 31 December 2018 and
31 December 2017.

53.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(1) Strategies adopted in managing financial risks

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. The Group
analyzes, identifies, monitors and reports on these financial risks or the
combinations of these financial risks during its operations. Risk-taking is a
core characteristic of a financial undertaking, and business operations cannot
be carried out without being exposed to operating risks. The Group’s aim is,
therefore, to achieve an appropriate balance between risks and returns, and
minimize the potential adverse effects these risks may have on the Group’s
financial performance.

The Group raises funds primarily through issuing fixed-rate and floating-rate
debts with different maturities, and earns spread income by investing these

funds in medium- to long-term lending projects in infrastructure sectors,
basic industries and pillar industries. In China, the benchmark deposit and
lending interest rates are set by the People’s Bank of China, the central bank.
The PBOC established RMB benchmark interest rates for loans whereby
financial institutions are in a position to price their loans based on credit risk,
commercial and market factors. The Group seeks to increase its profitability
by minimizing the funding costs as it issues different types of bonds, where
feasible under market conditions, to meet its asset and liability management
needs and funding needs.

The Group carries out a range of plain vanilla derivative transactions including,
among others, currency forward, currency and interest rate swaps, interest
rate floor options, for risk management purposes as well as to meet the needs
of its customers.

The Group provides appropriate risk limits and control measures in its risk
management policies, and monitors the risks and the implementation of the
risk limits in reliance on reliable and timely information from its information
systems, as part of its efforts to identify and analyze risks. The Group regularly
reviews and continues to make improvement to its risk management policies
and systems to reflect changes in markets and products, and incorporate
best practices. The most important types of financial risks to which the Group
is exposed are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

Credit risk

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk which represents the potential
loss that may arise from a customer’s or counterparty’s failing to discharge
an obligation. Credit risk is the most important risk for the Group's
business, management therefore carefully manages its exposure to credit
risk. Credit exposures arise principally in lending activities that lead to
loans and advances, and investment activities including debt instruments
and derivatives. Off-balance sheet financial instruments, such as loan
commitments and financial guarantees, also expose the Group to credit risk.

(2
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In accordance with the CBIRC's regulatory guidelines on the internal credit
rating approach, and in light of its unique business features, the Group has
established its credit rating framework, including credit rating methodologies,
policies, procedures, control and management, data collection and IT
infrastructure. It is a two-dimensional risk rating framework that incorporates
both customer credit ratings for their probabilities of default and the facility
credit ratings for estimated loss given default when the customers become
default. To ensure the accuracy and comprehensiveness of the ratings, the
Group has also established internal guidelines and criteria for country rating,
sovereign rating, local government rating, regional rating and industry rating.

(a) Credit Risk Management

The Group performs standardized credit management procedures on the
entire credit process, including credit due diligence and applications, credit
review and approval, loan disbursement, post-lending monitoring and
non-performing loan management. By applying strict and standardized credit
operational procedures, the Group strives to strengthen its end-to-end credit
management for pre-lending due diligence, credit rating, review and approval,
disbursement review and approval, and post-lending monitoring, improve the
mitigating effectiveness of collateral, accelerate the recovery and disposal
of non-performing loans, and drive the upgrade of its credit management
systems, as part of its efforts to comprehensively enhance its credit risk
management capabilities across the Group.

The Group writes off a financial asset, in whole or in part, when it comes
to the conclusion, after exhausting all necessary recovery procedures, that
it cannot reasonably expect to recover the whole or part of the financial
asset. Indicators that it has become impossible to reasonably expect to
recover a financial asset, in whole or in part, include: (1) enforcement has
been completed; and (2) the Group has no other recovery alternative but to
foreclose and dispose of the collateral, and does not expect the value of the
collateral to fully cover the principal and interest of the financial asset.

Apart from the credit risk exposures on credit assets, the Group is also
exposed to credit risk arising from its treasury operations, and it manages its
risk exposures on its treasury operations by carefully screening counterparties
with acceptable credit quality, balancing credit risk and investment returns,
adopting rating-based underwriting by comprehensively considering the
internal and external credit rating information, and reviewing and adjusting
credit limits in a timely manner through limit management systems. In
addition, the Group also provides off-balance sheet loan commitments and
financial guarantee services to customers, which may expose the Group to the
risk of having to make payments on behalf of customers in case they default,
where the risk approximates that of a loan. For these operations, the Group
adopts risk control procedures and policies similar to those applicable to the
credit business to minimize their credit risk.

(b) Credit risk limit control and risk mitigation policy

The Group has adopted a series of credit risk mitigation policies and measures,
including the requirement for collateral, the most widely used and traditional
measure. The Group has developed operational guidelines for the acceptability
of specific assets pledged as collateral and their capability to mitigate credit
risk, and regularly reviews the assessment results of the collateral.

The primary types of collateral are rights and commercial assets such as toll
collection rights, real estate, land use rights, equity securities, cash deposits and
equipment, collateral held for financial assets other than loans and advances
to customers are dependent on the nature of the financial instrument. Debt
instruments are generally unsecured, but for asset-backed securities and other
similar instruments, they are generally secured by pools of financial assets. As at
31 December 2018, the Group held no significant foreclosed assets.

(c) Credit risk ratings

The Group uses internal credit risk ratings to reflect the PD assessments
of individual counterparties, and employs different internal rating models
for different types of counterparties. Borrower information and specific loan
information collected during a loan application (e.g., the borrower’s revenue
and the industry/sector it operates in) is incorporated into the rating models
At the same time, the Group also includes external data as supplementary
information, such as a borrower’s credit rating from a credit reporting agency.
In addition, the models also incorporate the expert judgments of credit and
risk management officers into the final internal credit rating of each individually
reviewed credit exposure, thus enabling the rating models to capture factors
that may not have been considered by other sources. Such ratings are regularly
updated based on the updated circumstances and situations of the borrowers,
market conditions and other related factors.

(d) Measurement of ECL

Upon the adoption of IFRS 9 from 1 January 2018, the Group applies ECL
model to calculate the credit loss allowance for its debt financial instruments
carried at amortized cost and FVOCI, as well as loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts. The method applied by the Group in assessing
the expected credit losses of its financial assets is a risk parameters model.
For the financial instruments incorporated into the measurement of expected
credit losses, the group uses a “3 — Stage” model to measure the credit loss
allowance and ECL:

Stage 1: A financial instrument whose credit risk has not increased
significantly since its initial recognition.

Stage 2: Credit risk has increased significantly since the initial recognition, but
it is not considered as a financial instrument with credit impairment.

Stage 3: A financial instrument in which credit impairment has occurred.

A Stage 1 financial instrument credit loss allowance is measured at an amount

equivalent to the expected credit loss of the financial instrument in the next 12
months. Stage 2 and Stage 3 financial instruments shall have their credit loss
allowances measured at an amount equivalent to the expected credit loss of
the financial instrument expected to arise over its remaining duration.

Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those financial
assets that are credit-impaired on initial recognition. Their ECL is always
measured on a lifetime basis.

The Group assesses ECL in light of forward-looking information and uses
complex model and assumptions in calculating the expected credit losses.
Such model and assumptions relate to the future macroeconomic conditions
and the borrowers’ creditworthiness (e.g., the likelihood of default by
customers and the corresponding losses). In assessing the expected credit
risks in accordance with accounting standards, the Group uses judgments,
assumptions and estimates where appropriate, including:

—  Segmentation of business operations sharing similar credit risk
characteristics, selection of appropriate model and determination of
relevant key measurement parameters;

- Determination of the criteria for SICR;

- Definition of default and credit impairment;

—  Establishment of the number and relative weightings of forward-looking
scenarios;

- The estimated future cash flows for financial instruments at amortized
cost in Stage 3.

Segmentation of business

rations sharing similar credit risk charac

of appropriate model and determination of relevant key measurement parameters

For expected credit loss allowances modelled on a collective basis, a grouping
of exposures is performed on the basis of shared risk characteristics, such that
risk exposures within a group are homogeneous. In performing this grouping,
the Group uses information such as the type of borrower, industry, usage, and
type of collateral to ensure the reasonableness of its credit risk grouping.

According to whether there is a significant increase in credit risk and whether
a financial asset has become credit-impaired, the Group recognizes an
impairment allowance based on the expected credit loss for the next 12
months or the entire lifetime of the financial asset. The key parameters of
ECL measurement include PD, LGD and EAD. The Group establishes its
PD, LGD and EAD based on the internal rating system currently used for
risk management purposes. In accordance with the requirements of IFRS
9, the Group performs quantitative analyses of historical statistics (such as
counterparty ratings, guarantee methods and collateral types, repayment
methods, etc.) and forward-looking information.

The parameters are defined as follows:

PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial
obligation, either over the next 12 months (12m PD) or over remaining lifetime
(Lifetime PD) of the obligation. The definition of default and credit impairment
refers to the failure to pay the debt as agreed in the contract or other
violations of the debt contract that have a significant impact on the normal
debt repayment.

LGD represents the Group's expectation of the extent of loss on defaulted
exposure. LGD is expressed as a percentage loss per unit of EAD.

EAD is based on the amounts the Group expects to be owed at the time of default.

The group uses an internal credit risk rating to track the default probability
assessment results of a single counterparty and adopts different internal
rating models for different types of counterparties. Borrowers and specific loan
information collected at the time of a loan application are incorporated into
the rating model. The group regularly monitors and reviews the assumptions
associated with the calculation of expected credit losses, including the
probability of default and changes in value of the collateral over each period.

In 2018, no significant changes were made to the ECL methodology or key
assumptions.

Determination of the criteria for SICR

The Group assesses whether or not the credit risk of the relevant financial
instruments has increased significantly since the initial recognition at each
balance sheet date. For the purpose of staging an assessment of its financial
assets, the Group thoroughly considers various reasonable and supportable
criteria that may reflect whether or not there has been a significant change in their
credit risk. Key factors considered include regulatory and operating environments,
internal and external credit ratings, solvency, viability as a going concern, terms
of loan contracts, repayment behaviors, among others. The Group compares the
risk of default of financial instruments on the reporting date against that on the
initial recognition date in order to determine the changes of default risk.

The Group sets quantitative and qualitative criteria to determine whether or
not the credit risk of a financial instrument has increased significantly since its
initial recognition. The criteria include changes in the borrower’s PD, changes
in its credit risk rating and other factors. The Group decided that credit risk
has significantly increased if contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due; or when borrower’s PD increased a specific proportion since its initial
recognition. The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument
has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. The credit risk on a
financial instrument is considered low if the financial instrument has a low risk
of default, the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of
the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.



Definition of default and credit impairment

The criteria used by the Group to determine whether a credit impairment

occurs under IFRS 9 is consistent with the internal credit risk management

objectives. In assessing whether a borrower has become credit-impaired, the

Group mainly considers the following quantitative and qualitative factors:

- Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event in relation to
interest or principal payment, or the borrower is overdue for more than
90 days in any principal, advances, interest or investment in corporate
bonds due to the Group;

- The lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

— It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

- The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because
of financial difficulties;

- The purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep discount that
reflects the incurred credit losses;

The default and credit impairment of a financial asset may be caused by the
combined effect of multiple events rather than any single discrete event.

Es

shment of the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios

The assessment of whether or not there has been a significant increase in
credit risk and the calculation of ECL both involve forward-looking information.
Through the analysis of historical data, the Group identifies the key economic

Factor

Year-on-year growth rate of GDP

Assuming the core macroeconomic forward-looking indicator would increase
or decrease by 10%, the impact to the balance of credit loss allowance as at
31 December 2018 would be less than 5%.

At 31 December 2018, the Group concluded that three scenarios are
appropriate, being the optimistic scenario, base scenario and pessimistic
scenario. As at 31 December 2018, the incremental impact to the balance
of ECL allowance of using the probability-weighted ECL against the base
scenario was less than 5%

Scenario v\‘e\gywlmgs

Assuming a further 10% weighting is added to the probability of the optimistic
scenario and a corresponding 10% weighting reduction in the base scenario when
measuring ECL using the aforesaid three scenarios, the decremental impact on

indicators that affect the credit risk and ECL of various business types,
including macroeconomic index, Enterprise prospect index and Real estate
index, etc. The impact of these economic indicators on the PDs and the LGDs
varies from one type of business to another. The Group comprehensively
considers internal and external data, expert forecasts and quantitative
measurement to determine the relationships between these economic
indicators and the PDs and LGDs. The Group assesses and forecasts these
economic indicators at least on an annual basis, calculates the best estimates
for the future, and regularly reviews the assessment results.

Based on statistical analyses and expert judgements, the Group determines
the weightings of the optimistic scenario, base scenario and pessimistic
scenario and the corresponding macro-economic forecast under each
scenario. The group’s multi-scenario economic forecasts reflect positive
or negative trends in the economy. The group assesses and determines
the weighting of each scenario. The weighting of base scenario is greater
than the aggregated weightings of the optimistic and pessimistic scenarios.
The Group uses the weighted 12-month PD (Stage 1) or weighted lifetime
PD (Stage 2 and Stage 3) together with weighted LGD to measure relevant
impairment allowances. These weighted credit losses reflect unbiased and
probability-weighted amounts that are determined by evaluating a range of
possible outcomes.

ECL impairment allowances recognized in the financial statements reflect
the effect of a range of possible economic outcomes, calculated on a
probability-weighted basis, based on the economic scenarios. The key
macroeconomic variables are set using the forecasts of an external
organisation which was consistent with the Government'’s guideline. The range
of the key macroeconomic variable used in the ECL model is as follows:

Range

6.0%-6.5%

credit loss allowance would be less than 5%. Assuming a further 10% weighting
added to the probability of the pessimistic scenario and a corresponding 10%
weighting reduction in the base scenario when measuring ECL using the aforesaid
three scenarios, the incremental impact would also be less than 5%.

The estimated future cash flows for loans and advances to customers at
amortized cost in Stage 3

At each measurement date, the Group projects the future cash inflows of
each future period related to credit-impaired financial assets. The cash flows

are discounted and aggregated to determine the present value of the assets’
future cash flows that taking into consideration forward-locking factors

(e) Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking into account any
collateral held or other credit enhancements

Credit risk exposures relating to financial assets

Balances with central banks

Deposits with banks and other financial institutions

Placements with banks and other financial institutions

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial investments
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Mandatory)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated)

Debt instruments at amortized cost

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (Mandatory)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Held-to-maturity investments

Debt instruments classified as receivables

Derivative financial assets

Financial assets held under resale agreements

Loans and advances to customers

Others

Credit risk exposures relating to credit commitments

Loan commitments
Letters of guarantee issued
Bank acceptance

Letters of credit issued

Total

As at 31 December

2018 2017
275,166 264,866
758,539 1,129,033
168,605 227,739

N/A 1,046,007

N/A
868,709 N/A
98,569 N/A
1,458,663 N/A
481,094 N/A
N/A 512,240
N/A 28,388
N/A 1,201,815
34,770 37,887
463,502 506,172
11,198,375 10,642,675
22,605 66,450
15,828,597 15,663,272
3,622,583 3,649,438
59,968 60,039
8,001 18,441
4,984 14,790
3,695,536 3,742,708
19,624,133 19,405,980

The above table represents a worst case scenario of credit risk exposures to the Group as at 31 December 2018 and 2017, without taking into account any collateral
held or other credit enhancements attached. For financial assets on the consolidated statement of financial position, the exposures set out above are based on

carrying amounts of these assets.
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(f) Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts and provision

(i)  Movements of provision for loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

1 January 2018 9,044 1,650 97 10,791
Transfers:

Stage 1 to Stage 2 (168) 168 - -
Stage 2 to Stage 1 1 (1) - -
Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (7) 7 -
Remeasurement (a) (1,498) 2,481 768 1,751
Charge for the year 4,126 - - 4,126
Reverse (2,346) (222) (75) (2,643)
Foreign exchange differences 87 70 17 174
31 December 2018 9,246 4,139 814 14,199

In 2018, the gross amount of credit commitments remained stablely and most of them were in Stage 1. The changes in provision of credit commitments were mainly
driven by the changes in provision rates.

(a) Remeasurement includes the impacts of changes in inputs to model as a result of regular review and updates of parameters such as PDs, LGDs and EADs and
additional/release of allowance due to stage transfers.

(i) Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts 3,649,401 41,383 4,752 3,695,536

In 2018, the gross amount of credit commitments decreased 1%. The changes in provision of credit commitments were mainly driven by the changes in provision
rates.

(g) Maximum exposure to credit risk rating
The Group classified the credit grades of loans and advances to customers into “Low Risk”, “Medium Risk”, “High Risk” and “Default”.

- “Low Risk” exposures demonstrate a strong capacity to meet financial commitments, with negligible or low probability of default and/or low levels of expected
loss.

- “Medium Risk” exposures require closer monitoring and demonstrate a good capacity to meet financial commitments, with low default risk.
—  "High Risk” exposures require varying degrees of special attention and default risk is of greater concern.

The following financial instruments subject to impairment are analyzed to reflect the different expected credit losses. Unless otherwise stated, Stage 1 represents a
12-month expected credit loss, and Stages 2 and 3 represent lifetime expected credit losses.

Loans and advances to customers at amortized cost

Credit Grade

Low Risk 10,276,183 - - 10,276,183
Medium Risk - 1,250,794 - 1,250,794
High Risk - - 121,310 121,310
Total 10,276,183 1,250,794 121,310 11,648,287
Less: Credit impairment losses (201,452) (217,366) (91,433) (510,251)
Net 10,074,731 1,033,428 29,877 11,138,036

Debt instruments at amortized cost

Credit Grade

Low Risk 1,461,682 - - 1,461,682
Medium Risk 499 700 = 1,199
High Risk - - 2,053 2,053
Total 1,462,181 700 2,053 1,464,934
Less: Credit impairment losses (5,086) (110) (1,075) (6,271)
Net 1,457,095 590 978 1,458,663

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (Mandatory)

Credit Grade

Low Risk 480,918 = = 480,918
Medium Risk = 9 = 9
High Risk = = 167 167
Total 480,918 9 167 481,094

Expected credit losses (224) (3) (150) (377)
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Credit Grade

Low Risk 3,649,401 = = 3,649,401

Medium Risk = 41,383 = 41,383

High Risk - - 4,752 4,752

Total 3,649,401 41,383 4,752 3,695,536
Provision

Credit Grade

Low Risk 10,195 = = 10,195
Medium Risk - 4,139 - 4,139
High Risk - - 814 814
Total 10,195 4,139 814 15,148

Collateral and Other Credit Enhancements

The Group closely monitors collateral held for financial assets considered to be credit-impaired, as it becomes more likely that the Group will take possession of
collateral to mitigate potential credit losses. Financial assets that are credit-impaired and related collateral held in order to mitigate potential losses are shown below:

Credit impaired assets

Loans and advances to customers 121,310 (91,433) 29,877 54,132

Debt instruments at amortized cost 2,053 (1,075) 978 =

Debt mstrumen}s gt fair value through other 167 (150) 167 _
comprehensive income (Mandatory)

Total 123,530 (92,658) 31,022 54,132

The Group’s polices regarding obtaining collateral have not significantly changed during the reporting period and there has been no significantly change in the overall
quality of the collateral held by the Group since the prior period.

(h) Loans and advances to customers

The gross amounts of loans and advances to customers by types of collateral and maturity are as follows:

Unsecured loans 272,933 507,893 1,829,441 2,610,267
Guaranteed loans 162,691 226,295 1,274,627 1,663,613
Loans secured by collateral 55,523 110,806 1,091,761 1,258,090
Pledged loans 36,496 85,218 6,025,245 6,146,959
Total 527,643 930,212 10,221,074 11,678,929

Unsecured loans 378,725 383,282 1,763,138 2,525,145
Guaranteed loans 188,477 207,545 1,104,322 1,500,344
Loans secured by collateral 64,664 117,451 1,087,689 1,269,804
Pledged loans 39,719 95,419 5,606,401 5,741,539
Total 671,585 803,697 9,661,550 11,036,832

Loans and advances to customers by industry of counterparties:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Loans and advances to customers

Urban renewal 3,041,138 26 2,728,850 25
Road transportation 1,812,274 15 1,792,708 16
Electric power, heating and water production and supply 1,068,583 9 1,048,395 9
Railway transportation 972,949 8 929,434 8
Water conservation, environmental protection and public utilities 878,469 8 860,768 8
Petroleum, petrochemical and chemical industry 764,554 7 745,828 7
Urban public transportation 657,229 6 412,919 4
Manufacturing industry 540,960 5 551,846 5
Mining industry 284,421 2 300,629 3
Other transportation 264,543 2 208,577 2
Financial industry 227,165 2 246,855 2
Education 137,665 1 129,289 1
Telecommunication and other information transmission services 109,690 1 95,688 1
Others 919,289 8 985,046 9

11,678,929 100 11,036,832 100
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Credit quality of loans and advances to customers is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired (i) 10,951,827
Past due but not impaired (i) 8,207
Impaired (iii) 76,798

11,036,832

Less: allowance for impairment losses

Individually assessed (40,087)
Collectively assessed (354,070)
(394,157)

Loans and advances to customers, net 10,642,675

(i) Loans and advances to customers — neither past due nor impaired

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances to customers that were neither past due nor impaired can be assessed with reference to the asset quality
grading adopted by the Group.

Normal 10,258,048
Special-mention 693,779
Total 10,951,827

(i) Loans and advances to customers — past due but not impaired

As of 31 December 2017, past-due student loans but not impaired totalled RMB1,816 million. In accordance with the relevant regulatory policies, deferred government
subsidies for student loans will be utilized to cover any losses incurred in relation to student loans, and after taking into account this mitigation measure, past due
student loans were not identified as impaired. Other past due loans but not impaired excluding student loans amounted to RMB6,391 million. After taking into account
of the underlying collaterals held and other controls and mitigation measures, these loans were not identified as impaired.

The gross amounts of loans and advances to customers that were past due but not impaired are as follows:

Past due up to 90 days 6,453
Past due over 90 days 1,754
Total 8,207
Exposure covered by collateral and pledge 3,873

(i) Loans and advances to customers — impaired

Impaired loans and advances to customers are listed below:

Impaired loans and advances to customers 76,798
Less: individually assessed impairment allowance (40,087)
Net 36,711
Exposure covered by collateral and pledge 25,039

(iv) Restructured loans and advances

Restructured loans and advances to customers are loans that have been renegotiated due to deterioration in the borrower’s financial position which resulted in the
borrower’s inability to meet its repayment obligations. Restructuring measures are based on the judgment of management that payment will most likely continue.
These measures are under continuous review by management. As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s total restructured loans amounted to RMB24,661 million (31
December 2017: RMB12,310 million).
(i) Investment in debt instruments

Credit quality of debt instruments under IAS 39 is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired (i) 2,017,851
Impaired (i) 2,458
Total 2,020,309

Less: Allowance for impairment losses

— individually assessed (638)

Net 2,019,671
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(i) Investment in debt instruments — neither past due nor impaired:

31 December 2017

Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi-governments 34,079 135,736 98 1,096,088 1,266,001

Financial institutions 3,434 37,345 25,093 5,571 71,443

Corporates 63,265 37,874 3,197 94,458 198,794
Asset-backed securities 4,427 216 - 713 5,356
Inter-bank certificates of deposit 108,822 301,053 - - 409,875
Financial assets held under resale agreements 19,418 - - - 19,418
Deposits and placements with banks and other financial institutions 26,043 - - - 26,043
Wealth management products issued by other banks 10,323 - - - 10,323
Asset management plans 7,417 - - - 7,417
Investment in trust plans and others - - - 3,181 3,181
Total 277,228 512,224 28,388 1,200,011 2,017,851

(i) Investment in debt instruments — impaired:

Debt securities issued by corporations 189
Trust plan and others 2,103
2,292

Less: Allowance for impairment losses

— individually assessed (488)

Investment in debt instruments — impaired, net 1,804

The Group’s available-for-sale debt instruments were individually assessed for impairment. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of impaired available-for-sale
debt instruments of the Group was RMB16 million. The accumulative impairment losses recognized for these impaired available-for-sale debt instruments by the Group
as at 31 December 2017 was RMB150 million.

Carrying amount of investment in debt instruments analyzed by credit rating from independent rating agencies is as follows:

Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi-governments - - - - 1,495,400 28,421 1,523,821

Financial institutions 21,205 997 - 2,918 - 79,405 104,525

Corporates 46,667 15,029 92 8,644 - 126,910 197,342
Asset-backed securities 1,273 20 - - - 1,682 2,975
Inter-bank certificates of deposit (1) 340,474 899 - - - 2,052 343,425
Financial assets held under resale agreements - - - - - 4,933 4,933
R - - - - - o W
Wealth management products issued by other banks - - - - - 8,059 8,059
Investments in trust plans and others 437 164 - - - 3,261 3,862
Asset management plans - — - - - 2,521 2,521

Total 410,056 17,109 92 11,562 1,495,400 271,011 2,205,230
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As at 31 December 2017

PRC
AAA AA A Below A government 01 (3) Total

and quasi-

governments (2)

Debt securities issued by:

Governments and quasi-governments 14,982 - - - 1,250,817 202 1,266,001
Financial institutions 10,276 1,605 650 1,035 - 57,877 71,443
Corporates 31,810 13,327 21 3,627 - 150,025 198,810
Asset-backed securities 2,398 - - 131 - 2,827 5,356
Inter-bank certificates of deposit (1) 409,875 - - - - - 409,875
Financial assets held under resale agreements - - - - - 19,418 19,418
S e f f f f - mee zoa
Asset management plans - - - - - 7,417 7,417
Wealth management products issued by other banks - - - - - 10,323 10,323
Investments in trust plans and others — - - - - 4,985 4,985
Total 469,341 14,932 671 4,793 1,250,817 279,117 2,019,671

(1) Analyzed by ratings of issuers of inter-bank certificates of deposit.

~

) Unrated debt securities issued by PRC government and quasi-governments are from issuers including the MOF, the PBOC, Huijin and policy banks of China.

(8) Other unrated debt instruments mainly include subordinated bonds issued by insurance companies, super short-term commercial papers, asset management
plans, and wealth management products issued by other banks and investments in trust plans.

(j) Financial assets other than loans and advances to customers by nature of counterparties:

Financial assets other than loans and advances to customers

31 December 2018

Balances with central banks 275,166 - - 275,166
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions - 758,539 - 758,539
Placements with banks and other financial institutions - 168,605 - 168,605
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 239,868 178,243 549,167 967,278
Debt instruments at amortized cost 1,348,631 2,632 107,400 1,458,663
D ompranensie noom (Mandton) sz ) 33,880 sailoed
Derivative financial assets 2,204 30,782 1,784 34,770
Financial assets held under resale agreements = 455,950 7,552 463,502
Other financial assets 942 1,756 19,907 22,605
Total 2,012,838 1,897,685 719,699 4,630,222
31 December 2017

Balances with central banks 264,866 - - 264,866
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions - 1,129,033 - 1,129,033
Placements with banks and other financial institutions - 227,739 - 227,739
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 286,759 157,717 601,531 1,046,007
Derivative financial assets 6,408 29,263 2,216 37,887
Financial assets held under resale agreements - 497,965 8,207 506,172
Available-for-sale financial assets 135,736 338,398 38,106 512,240
Held-to-maturity investments 98 25,093 3,197 28,388
Debt instruments classified as receivables 1,096,088 5,571 100,156 1,201,815
Other financial assets 20,794 7,524 38,132 66,450
Total 1,810,749 2,418,303 791,545 5,020,597

(3) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss, in respect of the Group’s on and off-balance sheet activities, arising from movements in market rates including interest rates, foreign exchange
rates, and stock and commodity prices. The Group’s major market risks are interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk in its trading book and banking book.

The objective of the Group’s market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within an acceptable range to optimize return on risk. The aim
is to ensure the Group could operate safely and soundly under a reasonable market risk level and undertake market risk consistent with the market risk management
capabilities and capital capacity.

Market risk is managed using risk limits approved by the Board of Directors and its affiliated committees. The Risk Management Committee and the Asset & Liability
Committee (“ALCQO") supervise overall market risk, meetings and review risk management reports periodically to ensure that all market risks are effectively managed.

Segregation of trading book and banking book
The Group’s exposures to market risk mainly exist in its trading book and banking book.
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Trading book consists of financial instruments and commodity positions held for trading or for hedging purposes. Banking book consists of on and off balance sheet
financial instruments not held in the trading book.

Market risks arising from trading and banking books are managed by the Risk Management Department and the Treasury Department within the scope of their respective
roles and responsibilities. The Risk Management Department assumes the responsibility for the overall risk management and the periodical submission of market risk reports
to Risk Management Committee. The Treasury Department assumes the responsibility for the overall asset and liability management as well as management of interest rate
risk and foreign exchange risk in the banking book, and the periodical submission of interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk reports related to banking book to the ALCO.
Market risk measurement and management approaches

Market risk is monitored and managed through established limits, market value revaluation, duration analysis, gap analysis and sensitivity analysis indicators.

Trading book

The Group monitors and manages its various risk exposures in trading book through limits control, risk limits control, enforcement of stop-loss limits and sensitivity
analysis.

The Group adopts stress testing approach to estimate the potential maximum losses under extremely unfavorable conditions. The Group also continues adjusting and
refining the stress testing scenarios and measurements in relation to its trading book, so as to capture impact of market price on market value, and to improve its
ability in identifying market risks.

The Group establishes appropriate risk limits for each risk category considering its risk management capabilities over risks as well as capital capacity. The Risk
Management Department is responsible for the identification, measurement, monitoring and reporting of risk exposures from all trading portfolios.

Banking book

The Bank monitors market risks for banking mainly through sensitivity analysis for foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk. The Risk Management Department
is responsible for reporting risk measurement results to Risk Management Committee by means of market value revaluation, duration analysis, etc. The Treasury
Department is responsible for the accurate and timely identification and measurement of interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk using gap analysis and other
methods, and regularly reporting to the ALCO.

For sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk, please refer to Note 53 (3) (a) interest rate risk and Note 53 (3) (b) foreign exchange risk
(including trading book and banking book).

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk of the banking book is the risk of loss arising from unfavorable movements in interest rate, duration and other elements of the risk.

The Group’s pricing strategy in China mainland is impacted by the macro-economic environment and the monetary policies of the PBOC. The PBOC established RMB
benchmark interest rates for loans whereby financial institutions are in a position to price their loans based on credit risk; commercial and market factors. In general, the
interest rates of interest-bearing assets and liabilities with the same currency and maturity terms will move in the same direction. During the year ended 31 December
2018, the PBOC has not adjusted the benchmark interest rates for RMB loans and deposits.

Interest rate risk of the Bank’s banking book is principally managed based on assessing impact of interest rate change on both the income and economic value, by
using gap analysis, duration analysis, basis point (“BP”) analysis and net interest income simulation model. The Group adjusts its asset and liability structure and uses
hedging instruments to mitigate the interest rate risk of banking book. Interest rate risk of trading book is mainly managed and monitored by using interest rate limits,
sensitivity analysis, exposure analysis by currency, mark-to-market and breakeven analysis.

In terms of measuring and managing interest rate risk, the Group regularly measures interest rate repricing gaps, portfolio duration and monitors the sensitivity of
projected net interest income and fair value changes to interest net moves under varying interest rate scenarios (simulation modeling).

Repricing gap analysis

The table below summarizes the Group’s financial assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorized by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates.

Financial assets:

Cash and balances with the central banks 275,023 - - - - 145 275,168
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 715,960 10,572 5,093 105 - 26,809 758,539
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 161,896 6,515 - - - 194 168,605
F”t‘:r”;uizlha;f;tj g:elg::rec’ atfair value 67,180 108,555 52,376 41,066 1538 811,017 1,081,732
Incluce: F;ngjé’;/ ij;fsoff J:;’e‘f;jan datory) 33,171 17,024 44,877 24,174 1,538 810,419 931,203
Fi ’g;igi;’; iiji;sofzgz’; rg/e“jgna o) 34,009 91,531 7,499 16,892 - 598 150,529
Debt instruments at amortized cost 106,911 49,376 710,996 569,378 - 22,002 1,458,663
Fir:)?rr:ecziraéj:wsper:hztnfs?\i/:evi?cusr:;mugh 111,194 211,205 100,370 51,652 3,471 6,985 484,877
Derivative financial assets - - - - - 34,770 34,770
Financial assets held under resale agreements 455,665 7,573 - - - 264 463,502
Loans and advances to customers 5,457,359 2,898,294 262,339 234,145 2,311,307 34,931 11,198,375
Other financial assets 912 5] (950) - - 22,638 22,605
Total financial assets 7,352,100 3,292,095 1,130,224 896,346 2,316,316 959,755 15,946,836
Financial liabilities:
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 98,549 821 3,122,150 - = 7,998 3,229,518
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 159,552 228,366 23,395 10,437 = 6,493 428,243
Placements from banks 16,480 41,655 - 3,453 71 465 62,124
Fi?::;:glhlizlro(i,‘figeosr Eizsured at fair value 85.744 32,643 a N a 839 119,226
Derivative financial liabilities = = = = = 38,570 38,570
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 66,227 = = = = 22 66,249
Due to customers 1,481,313 110,160 64,718 3,518 6,093 4,975 1,670,777
Debt securities issued 1,069,926 1,160,910 3,282,209 2,697,168 717,595 180,608 9,108,416
Other financial liabilities 869 1,084 (52) - - 27,696 29,597
Total financial liabilities 2,978,660 1,575,639 6,492,420 2,714,576 723,759 267,666 14,752,720

Net interest repricing gap 4,373,440 1,716,456 (5,362,196) (1,818,230) 1,692,557 692,089 1,194,116
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Within 3 3-12 1-56 5-10 Over 10  Non-interest

& DEeIileer ey months months years years years bearing USED
Financial assets:
Cash and balances with the central banks 264,823 - - - - 45 264,868
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 1,096,067 6,105 3,813 105 - 22,943 1,129,033
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 227,739 - - - - - 227,739
F"::?;leha;rs;t: g’:elg:;”ed at fair value 113,025 78,122 72,629 14,202 1,870 871,162 1,151,030
Include: ;Zf:j;; Zf;:fifi;:’s’ef;mn datory) 64,973 50,604 7,055 1,661 - 174 124,467
F 1126;555/; ‘;srz‘;fo‘f[ /c';‘:’s’ rg/::/gna o) 48,052 27,518 65,574 12,561 1,670 870,988 1,026,563
Derivative financial assets - - - - - 37,887 37,887
Financial assets held under resale agreements 499,126 4,942 2,104 - - - 506,172
Loans and advances to customers 5,244,599 2,981,302 151,997 211,184 2,053,573 20 10,642,675
Available-for-sale financial assets 230,860 144,767 89,564 44,408 2,944 9,853 522,396
Held-to-maturity investments 16,159 8,715 2,360 1,154 - - 28,388
Debt instruments classified as receivables 96,207 19,963 521,818 563,827 - - 1,201,815
Other financial assets 6,384 - - - - 60,066 66,450
Total financial assets 7,794,989 3,243,916 844,285 834,900 2,058,387 1,001,976 15,778,453
Financial liabilities:
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 111,102 - 3,150,142 - - 2,856 3,264,100
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 162,159 198,391 5,681 8,564 2,297 - 366,992
Placements from banks 42,538 42,791 - - - - 85,329
Fi?ﬁ:{f&;'h”gf’;'fixeosr T;‘;:S“'Ed atfair value 134,792 28,452 1,688 - - 27 164,959
Derivative financial liabilities - - - - - 33,495 33,495
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 15,577 3,750 - - - - 19,327
Due to customers 1,887,691 101,427 65,122 8,021 5,801 2,517 2,070,579
Debt securities issued 1,472,958 1,081,955 2,904,767 2,269,492 717,420 - 8,446,592
Other financial liabilities 21 64 551 1,158 - 189,401 191,195
Total financial liabilities 3,816,838 1,456,830 6,127,851 2,287,235 725,518 228,296 14,642,568
Net interest repricing gap 3,978,151 1,787,086 (5,283,566) (1,452,335) 1,332,869 773,680 1,135,885

Sensitivity analysis of net interest income and other comprehensive income

The following table illustrates the potential pre-tax impact of a parallel upward or downward shift of 100 basis points in all financial instruments’ yield curves on the
Group’s net interest income and other comprehensive income for exposures with repricing or maturity date within the next twelve months from the reporting date,
based on the Group’s net positions of interest-bearing assets and liabilities at the end of each reporting period. This analysis assumes that interest rates of all
maturities move by the same amount, and does not reflect the potential impact of unparalleled yield curve movements.

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Net interest income ity ComESicnee

income
Increase 100 basis points 44,704 (6,922) 41,510 (6,240)
Decrease 100 basis points (44,704) 7,294 (41,510) 6,616

The sensitivity analysis above is based on reasonably possible changes in interest rates with the assumption that the structure of financial assets and financial liabilities
held at the period end remains unchanged and does not take changes in customer behavior, basis risk or any prepayment options on debt securities into consideration.

The sensitivity analysis on other comprehensive income reflects only the effect of changes in interest rates on fair value changes on debt instruments at FVOCI held at
the period end.

The assumptions do not consider the Group’s capital and interest rate risk management policy. Therefore, the above analysis may differ from the actual situation. In
addition, the impact of interest rate fluctuation is only for illustrative purpose, showing the potential impact on net interest income and other comprehensive income
of the Group under different yield curve movements and current interest rate risk situation. The impact did not take into account the risk management activities to
mitigate the interest rate risk.

(b) Foreign exchange rate risk
The Group takes on foreign currency exposure arising from moves of foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows.

The Group's primary business is conducted in RMB, with certain foreign currency transactions in USD, Euro (“EUR”), Japanese Yen (“JPY”) and other currencies.
The Group manages its foreign currency exposures by using exchange rate derivatives, and economically hedges its USD exposure to the extent possible. RMB
appreciated by RMBO0.329 per USD during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: depreciation of RMB0.4028 per USD).

The Group measures the impact from exchange rate risk primarily by using foreign currency exposure management, sensitivity analysis of foreign currency exchange rates,
and Earnings at Risk (“EaR"). The Group adjusts its asset and liability structure and uses hedging instruments to mitigate the foreign exchange risk to the extent possible.

The table below summarizes the Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at the end of the reporting period, with the Group'’s assets and liabilities
presented at carrying amounts in RMB or RMB equivalents categorized by the original currency.

31 December 2018

Financial assets:

Cash and balances with central banks 275,004 161 3 275,168
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 641,543 93,477 23,519 758,539
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 27,055 138,579 2,971 168,605
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 1,051,308 30,266 158 1,081,732

Include: Financial assets at fair value

through profit or losses (Mandatory) SERIAL EHED i LR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | 185

Financial assets at fair value

31 December 2018

through profit or loss (Designated) e - B e
Debt instruments at amortized cost 1,359,155 99,508 = 1,458,663
T rough oter comprehansie income 491,545 7138 e i
Derivative financial assets 32,324 1,566 880 34,770
Financial assets held under resale agreements 463,502 = = 463,502
Loans and advances to customers 9,655,164 1,373,564 169,647 11,198,375
Others 18,723 3,607 275 22,605
Total financial assets 13,925,323 1,812,111 209,402 15,946,836

Financial liabilities:
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 2,997,917 212,411 19,190 3,229,518
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 133,892 280,642 13,709 428,243
Placements from banks 3,684 37,135 21,305 62,124
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss 119,226 - - 119,226
Derivative financial liabilities 36,251 1,800 519 38,570
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 66,249 - = 66,249
Due to customers 1,426,079 167,907 76,791 1,670,777
Debt securities issued 8,942,297 117,154 48,965 9,108,416
Others 19,719 9,848 30 29,597
Total financial liabilities 13,745,314 826,897 180,509 14,752,720
Net on-balance sheet position 180,009 985,214 28,893 1,194,116
Currency forwards and swaps (Contractual/notional amount) 276,282 (262,113) (14,859) (690)
Credit commitments 3,355,632 295,721 44,183 3,695,536

31 December 2017
GLAS (RMB equivall:,?lg (RMB equi\(l)atllenr; el
Financial assets:

Cash and balances with central banks 264,790 75 3 264,868
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 1,016,879 78,800 33,354 1,129,033
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 68,980 154,395 4,364 227,739
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 1,124,921 24,886 1,223 1,151,030
:
R
Derivative financial assets 34,664 2,023 1,200 37,887
Financial assets held under resale agreements 506,172 - - 506,172
Loans and advances to customers 9,025,935 1,444,120 172,620 10,642,675
Available-for-sale financial assets 486,142 29,655 6,599 522,396
Held-to-maturity investments 3,262 25,126 - 28,388
Debt instruments classified as receivables 1,107,126 94,650 39 1,201,815
Others 57,821 8,026 603 66,450
Total financial assets 13,696,692 1,861,756 220,005 15,778,453

Financial liabilities:
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 3,035,866 211,495 16,739 3,264,100
Borrowings from governments and financial institutions 95,419 255,804 15,769 366,992
Placements from banks 21,800 56,676 6,853 85,329
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss 164,959 - - 164,959
Derivative financial liabilities 31,036 2,131 328 33,495
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 19,327 - - 19,327
Due to customers 1,806,261 188,768 75,550 2,070,579
Debt securities issued 8,288,732 105,539 52,321 8,446,592
Others 180,677 9,868 650 191,195
Total financial liabilities 13,644,077 830,281 168,210 14,642,568
Net on-balance sheet position 52,615 1,031,475 51,795 1,135,885
Currency forwards and swaps (Contractual/notional amount) 350,772 (307,510) (35,717) 7,545
Credit commitments 3,383,314 296,758 62,636 3,742,708

The table below summarizes the effect of a 1% possible movement in exchange rate of RMB against other currencies on the Group’s profit before tax in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss:

31 December 2018

USD against RMB

1% appreciation

9,852

31 December 2017
Profit before tax

10,3156

1% depreciation

(9,852)

(10,315)

Given a 1% possible movement in exchange rate of RMB against other currencies, there is no significant impact on the Group’s other comprehensive income.
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In analyzing the impact on profit before tax exchange gain or losses due
possible exchange rate movements, simplified assumptions and scenarios are
adopted and do not take into account the following:

- changes in the Group’s net position in USD subsequent to the balance
sheet date;

—  the impact on the customers’ behavior due to the movement of the
exchange rate;

- the effect of hedge on the Group’s net position in USD by using certain
derivative instruments; and

- the impact on market prices as a result of the movement of exchange rate.
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that although the Group has the payment capacity,
however is unable to raise sufficient funds at a reasonable cost to increase
its assets as needed or to replace matured debt. The consequence may be

the failure to meet obligations to repay debtors and depositors and fulfill
commitments to lend.

The Group has established a set of liquidity management policies and to
mitigate the liquidity risk effectively. These policy and approaches include
the forecasting and monitoring of future cash flows, stress testing scenarios,
plans for emergency, etc.

In 2018, the Bank continued to obtain funds from markets through issuance
of debt securities. In accordance with the approval from the CBIRC, all
RMB bonds issued by the Bank enjoys sovereign debt credit rating, which
enables the Bank to continuously raise funds in the domestic markets through
issuance of sovereign debt.

Obijectives of liquidity risk management and processes

The Group is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources from
current customer deposit, matured customer term deposits, repayment of
debt securities issued, loan drawdown, fulfil obligations under guarantees and
other calls on cash settled derivatives.

To maintain the mismatching of the cash flows and maturities of assets and
liabilities within a reasonable range is an important mission of the Group. It is
impracticable for the Group to be completely matched in such positions since
business transactions are often of uncertain terms and of different types. A
mismatched position might enhance profitability, but at the same time carries
the risk of loss. The Group takes effect to manage its mismatched positions
within a reasonable range.

Liquidity risk management is performed by the ALCO. The Treasury
Department is the execution department for detailed daily management. The
Group'’s liquidity management processes include:

—  Projecting cash flows by major currencies with consideration of the level
of liquid assets necessary in relation thereto;

—  Monitoring the liquidity gaps on the balance sheet;
- Managing the concentration risk of debt maturities; and
—  Maintaining debt financing plans.

The Group does not need to maintain cash resources to meet all of its
liquidity needs for demand payment as the Group has the ability to finance of
new debts in the market. In addition, experience shows that a certain level of
matured liabilities such as term deposit from customers will be renewed and
not to be withdrawn. Management maintains an appropriate level of highly
liquid assets to address unexpected cash demands.

In general, the Group does not generally expect third-parties to draw all of
the committed funds under letters of guarantees or letters of credit issued.
The total outstanding contractual amount of commitment to extend credit
does not necessarily represent future cash requirements, since some of these
commitments will either expire, be terminated or not meeting requirements for
drawdown due to customers’ inability to fulfill the related conditions.

Liquidity analysis of financial instruments

Sources of liquidity are regularly reviewed by the Group to maintain a wide
diversification in terms of liquidity provider, product, term, currency and
geographical area.

The Group’s funding policy is to seek a long-term healthy balance between
its funding requirements and demands from investors by maintaining a
presence and participation in, and constantly making returns to, the debt
capital markets, and to raise funds under its different funding programs. The
Group issues fixed rate and floating rate debt securities each year. These
debt instruments might be with embedded options that allow the Group or
the bond holders to redeem them prior to the bonds’ respective maturity.
However, bonds with redemption options only comprise a small portion of
all bonds issued. As at 31 December 2018, long-term (with a maturity of one
year or longer) debt securities issued of the Group amounted to RMB7.69
trillion (31 December 2017: RMB7.14 trillion), and other long-term debts
(include deposits from banks and other financial institutions, borrowings from
governments and financial institutions, financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements and due to customers) amounted to RMB3.31 trillion (31
December 2017: RMB3.28 trillion).

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under
non-derivative financial instruments and derivatives, whether settled in net or
gross by their contractual maturities. The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractually undiscounted cash flows. The expected cash flows of these
financial instruments by the Group may have different with the table as below:

(a) Liquidity analysis of financial instruments

Non-derivative financial assets

31 December 2018

Cash and balances with central

banks = 275,162 5 = 1 = = = 275,168

Deposits with banks and other 33,891 704,653 4,986 11,281 4,453 = = - 759264
financial institutions

Placements with banks and other = 500 152,207 10,262 5914 = = = 168,883
financial institutions

Financial assets measured at fair 106,792 1,797 22,632 26,413 135,759 199,089 209,042 401,309 1,102,833
value through profit or loss

Debt instruments at amortized cost 8 265 484 15,391 89,976 874,190 627,662 102,262 1,710,238

Financial assets measured
at fair value through other 3,783 - 21,167 78,909 222,204 123,826 57,988 50,524 558,401
comprehensive income

Financial assets held under resale a a 456.275 a 7,967 B a N 464.242
agreements

Loans and advances to customers 81,710 = 116,381 228,857 1,623,619 5,062,860 4,257,012 4,800,596 16,071,035

Other financial assets 1,968 1,630 1 37 15,916 (588) 9 20 18,993

Total non-derivative financial assets 228,152 984,007 774,138 371,150 2,005,809 6,259,377 5,151,713 5,354,711 21,129,057
Non-derivative financial liabilities

Deposits from banks and other 5584 92,517 6,642 2,495 312 3,122,150 = - 3,229,700
financial institutions

Borrowings from govemments and = = 26,335 123,789 142,229 128,149 6,860 20,294 447,656
financial institutions

Placements from banks 30 - 6,979 9,125 41,622 739 4,217 961 63,673

Financial liabilities measured at fair 30 _ 57.630 29,964 33,469 B _ B 121,093

value through profit or loss
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31 December 2018

Financial assets sold under

repurchase agreements - - EBAIY E=8 - - - - ce2es
Due to customers - 1,407,285 46,728 32,372 111,476 69,232 4,491 10,924 1,682,508
Debt securities issued - - 189,337 254,344 1,190,553 4,951,214 3,315,589 1,325,199 11,226,236
Other financial liabilities 1,873 3,245 1,203 139 19,236 711 = 2 26,409
Total non-derivative financial liabilities 7,517 1,503,047 400,264 453,083 1,538,897 8,272,195 3,331,157 1,357,380 16,863,540
Net position 220,635 (519,040) 373,874 (81,933) 466,912 (2,012,818) 1,820,556 3,997,331 4,265,517
Derivative cash flows
Derivatives settled on a net basis:
Net inflow - - 14 (57) 287 20 347 302 913
Derivatives settled on a gross basis:
Total inflow - - 1,063,995 752,240 1,518,891 146,064 811 19 3,482,020
Total outflow = - (1,064,216) (752,254)  (1,524,086) (147,374) (843) (16)  (3,488,789)
Total derivative cash flows — — (207) (71) (4,908) (1,290) 315 305 (5,856)
31 December 2017
P:itd::l:é Onldenand W::)I:t:\ mon:t-lz mo?l;:li ye;;i y::r: 10 yct::sr et
Non-derivative financial assets
Cabs:nzgd balances with central 408 264.460 N B B ~ B B 264,868
D?ﬁzsr::sia\lnlii:]stki)tirt]izisnd other 20950 1,156,788 7,430 373 16,997 1,244 105 - 1,205,887
Mnancal mattuons - - a0m adr - - - - 220
F"V'Z'lquci'hfzz?; gr‘gﬁtsgf’lgsf fair 91,295 5619 226220 49,950 94306 241044 201457 320594 1230485
Fi;z::;arlq:zf:ts neld under resale - - 499,021 641 5,289 2,243 - - 507,194
Loans and advances to customers 15,561 1,256 93,526 262,995 1,566,562 5,747,808 3,809,355 5,098,499 16,595,562
Available-for-sale financial assets 9,139 4,437 84,152 145,775 153,187 110,349 53,637 3,860 564,536
Held-to-maturity investments - - 5,423 10,681 8,975 2,780 1,528 - 29,387
D‘“;:éie?vs;g‘re”:ms classified as 142 - 336 5,454 55198 667,610 630227 97,576 1,456,543
Other financial assets 599 4,355 168 618 4,001 3,977 1,790 - 15,508
Total non-derivative financial assets 140,094 1,436,915 1,060,369 560,863 1,904,515 6,777,055 4,698,099 5,520,529 22,098,439
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Depostts from banks and otner - 68,880 5,864 242 39.808 3,150,153 - - 3264047
B‘;i’:;"r:igglsir:g::ﬁs::’”mems and - - 14,442 74,581 187,026 68,938 14,789 25,773 385,549
Placements from banks - - 27,777 15,810 43,479 - - - 87,066
Firv‘zruci'h'rigﬁgi:e;(;“ﬁfzfﬁ;i‘i atfar 27 - 72,293 63,808 29,263 1,598 - - 166989
P e - - e e e - - - e
Due to customers - 1,766,071 71,131 53,187 102,692 69,464 9,728 10,707 2,082,980
Debt securities issued - - 280,618 271,550 1,032,410 4,733,334 2,892,336 1,408,531 10,618,779
Other financial liabilities 176 4,037 882 1,222 2,227 5,898 5,783 2 20,227
Total non-derivative financial liabilities 203 1,838,988 480,817 488,210 1,440,876 8,029,385 2,922,636 1,445,013 16,646,128
Net position 139,891 (402,073) 579,652 72,653 463,639  (1,252,330) 1,775,463 4,075,516 5,452,311
Derivative cash flows
Derivatives settled on a net basis:
Net inflow - - 104 (111) 162 735 878 1,919 3,687
Derivatives settled on a gross basis:
Total inflow - - 440,075 554,515 1,036,787 49,038 815 12 2,081,242
Total outflow - - (439,733) (555,207)  (1,032,807) (48,481) (807) (16)  (2,077,051)
Total derivative cash flows — — 446 (803) 4,142 1,292 886 1,915 7,878
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Letters of guarantee issued, letters of credit issued, bank acceptance and loan commitments are included below based on the earliest contractual maturity date.

31 December 2018

Loan commitments 4,484 8,657 65,066 224,293 269,230 3,050,853 3,622,583
Letters of guarantee issued 3,223 2,113 4,222 40,243 9,685 482 59,968
Bank acceptance 1,619 1,628 4,754 - - - 8,001
Letters of credit issued 1,776 1,510 1,685 113 = = 4,984
Total 11,102 13,908 75,627 264,649 278,915 3,051,335 3,695,536
31 December 2017 Vooth  monthe  momhe  yews  yews yeas Total
Loan commitments 7,847 13,875 126,226 183,574 330,096 2,987,820 3,649,438
Letters of guarantee issued 3,566 839 4,782 35,770 14,603 479 60,039
Bank acceptance 2,943 5,156 10,342 - - - 18,441
Letters of credit issued 1,694 5,237 5774 2,085 - - 14,790
Total 16,050 25,107 147,124 221,429 344,699 2,988,299 3,742,708

denominated in foreign currencies is determined based upon the valuation
results published by the Bloomberg. Fair value of derivatives are calculated
by applying discounted cash flow method or the Black Scholes Pricing Model.
Fair value of underlying assets of principal-guaranteed wealth management
products and the associated liabilities to investors in relation to the principal-
guaranteed wealth management products are estimated by discounted cash
flow method. All significant inputs for the fair valuation of these financial
assets and liabilities are observable in the market.

(5) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The best evidence of fair value for a financial instrument is the quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. If the market
for a financial instrument is not active, fair value is determined using valuation
techniques. The valuation technique makes maximum use of observable
market data and relies as little as possible on the unobservable inputs.
The valuation techniques adopted by the Group incorporate all factors that
market participants could consider in setting a price, and are consistent with

accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments. Level 3 financial assets of the Group are primarily unlisted equity investments

and equity investments with embedded derivatives. Management uses
valuation techniques to determine the fair value, which mainly include
discounted cash flow method, net asset value, and comparable companies
approach. The fair value of these financial instruments based on unobservable
inputs which may have significant impact on the valuation of these financial

Substantially all financial instruments classified within Level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy are securities and funds listed on exchange. The fair values are
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Substantially all financial instruments classified within Level 2 of the fair

value hierarchy are securities investments, derivatives, underlying assets
of principal-guaranteed wealth management products and the associated
liabilities to investors in relation to the principal-guaranteed wealth

instruments, including credit risk of the counterparties, weighted average
cost of capital, perpetual growth rate, liquidity discount, prepayment rate and
similarity to comparable companies and their performance indicators, etc.

management products. Fair value of securities investments denominated
in RMB is determined based upon the valuation published by the China
Central Depository & Clearing Co., Ltd. Fair value of debt investments

(a) Financial instruments measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value are as follows:

31 December 2018

Financial assets

Financial investment

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or losses (Mandatory)

— Bonds 216 43,578 3,558 47,352
— Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 107,028 - 107,028
— Stock and fund 2,760 4,956 - 7,716
— Wealth management products issued by other banks = = 8,672 8,672
— Equity investments - - 808,542 808,542
— Asset management plans - 3,853 - 3,853

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated)

- Bonds - 60,288 - 60,288
— Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 17,060 - 17,060
— Financial assets held under resale agreements - 4,933 - 4,933
— Deposits and placements with banks and other financial institutions - 13,767 - 13,767
— Asset management plans = 2,521 = 2,521

Financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income

— Bonds 31,571 230,187 - 261,758

— Inter-bank certificates of deposit = 219,336 = 219,336

— Fund investments = = = =

— Equity investments 3,250 - 588 3,783
Derivative financial assets

— Exchange rate derivatives - 24,282 - 24,282

— Interest rate derivatives - 10,488 - 10,488

Loans and advances to customers = = 30,392 30,392

Total 37,797 742,277 851,687 1,631,771
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31 December 2018

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Designated)

— Wealth management products with principal guaranteed = (119,226) = (119,226)
Derivative financial liabilities

— Exchange rate derivatives - (28,371) - (28,371)

— Interest rate derivatives - (10,199) - (10,199)
Total = (157,796) = (157,796)

31 December 2017

Financial assets

Financial investment-financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or losses (Mandatory)

- Bonds 913 31,558 - 32,471
— Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 89,182 - 89,182
— Stock and fund 2,501 313 - 2,814

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Designated)

— Equity investments - - 870,988 870,988
— Bonds - 72,734 - 72,734
— Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 19,640 - 19,640
— Financial assets held under resale agreements - 19,418 - 19,418
— Deposits and placements with banks and other financial institutions - 26,043 - 26,043
— Asset management plans - 7,417 - 7,417
— Wealth management products issued by other banks - - 10,323 10,323

Derivative financial assets

— Exchange rate derivatives - 30,768 - 30,768

— Interest rate derivatives - 7,119 - 7,119

Available-for-sale financial assets

- Bonds 28,667 179,058 3,462 211,187
— Inter-bank certificates of deposit - 301,053 - 301,053
- Fund investments - 77 - 7
— Equity investments 4,622 396 4,521 9,439
Total 36,603 785,416 889,294 1,711,313

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

— Wealth management products with principal guaranteed - (164,959) - (164,959)
Derivative financial liabilities

— Exchange rate derivatives - (27,239) - (27,239)

— Interest rate derivatives - (6,256) - (6,256)
Total - (198,454) - (198,454)

There were no significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

The reconciliation of Level 3 financial assets and financial liabilities presented at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position is as follows:

Financial assets

1 January 2018 885,637 33 3,666 889,336
Disposals (9,819) - - (9,819)
Additions 10,881 500 26,976 38,357
Settlements (49,244) - - (49,244)

Transfer out from Level 3 - = - _

Total losses recognized in

- Profit or loss (17,166) - (250) (17,416)
— Other comprehensive income 483 - - 483
31 December 2018 820,772 533 30,392 851,697

Change in unrealised losses for the year recognized in

— Profit or loss (15,349) - (250) (15,599)

— Other comprehensive income 483 - - 483
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Financial assets

Financial assets

at fair value through Av.ailablfe-for-sale n " Lot

profitiorlloss financial assets financial assets

1 January 2017 916,630 9,159 925,789

Disposals (18,158) (109) (18,267)

Additions 39,260 3,070 42,330

Settlements (49,104) - (49,104)

Transfer out from Level 3 (633) - (633)

Total losses recognized in

— Profit or loss (6,139) - (6,139)

— Other comprehensive income (545) (4,137) (4,682)

31 December 2017 881,311 7,983 889,294
Change in unrealised gains/(losses) for the year recognized in

— Profit or loss 2,499 - 2,499

— Other comprehensive income (545) (4,137) (4,682)

(b)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

In respect of financial assets and financial liabilities carried at other than fair value, the following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of
each type of financial instruments for which it is practicable. The fair value hierarchy is primarily categorized as Level 2.

0]

(i)

Cash and balances with central banks, deposits with banks and other financial institutions, placements with banks and other financial institutions, financial assets
held under resale agreements, demand deposits from banks and other financial institutions, demand deposits from customers, placements from banks, financial
assets sold under repurchase agreements, current receivables or payables within other assets and other liabilities

Given that these financial assets and liabilities are short-term in nature and reprice to current market rates frequently, the carrying amounts approximate the fair
value.

Debt investments

Fair value of listed securities is estimated using quoted market price. Fair value of unlisted securities is estimated using valuation techniques that take into
consideration future cash flows and market price of similar quoted securities.

Loans and advances to customers

The carrying amounts of variable rate loans and advances to customers are reasonable approximate of fair values because interest rates reflect market rates
which are based on PBOC's established rates and are adjusted when applicable. Fair value of fixed rate loans and advances to customers is estimated using a
discounted cash flow analysis utilizing the rates currently offered for loans of similar remaining maturities.

Fixed interest-bearing customer deposits, deposits from banks and other financial institutions and borrowings

Fair value of fixed rate customer deposits, deposits from banks and other financial institutions and borrowings is estimated using a discounted cash flow analysis
utilizing the rates currently offered for deposits and borrowings with similar remaining maturities.

The carrying amount of financial instruments referred to in (i) to (iv) are approximate fair value.
Debt securities issued

Fair value of debt securities issued is determined using quoted market prices where available or by reference to quoted market prices for similar instruments. For
those securities where quoted market prices or quoted market prices for similar instruments are not available, a discounted cash flow analysis is used based on
a current yield curve appropriate for the remaining maturity of the instruments.

The tables below summarize the carrying amounts and fair values of debt securities issued:

As at 31 December 2018

Amortized cost Fair value

Debt securities issued 9,108,416 9,246,768

As at 31 December 2017

Amortized cost Fair value

Debt securities issued 8,446,592 8,174,343

(6) Capital management

Capital of the Group uses for capital management, which is a broader concept than the “equity” as presented on the consolidated statement of financial position. The
purpose of the Group’s capital management is:

to comply with the capital requirements set by the regulators of the banking markets where the Group entities operate;
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to generate returns for equity holders; and

to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

Capital adequacy of the Group and the utilization of regulatory capital are closely monitored by management in accordance with the guidelines established by the
Basel Committee and relevant regulations promulgated by the CBIRC. Required information related to capital levels and utilization is filed quarterly with the CBIRC
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